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OUR VISION,
STRATEGY AND VALUES
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‘With strong values and
innovative people, we aim

to deliver a great trading
experience for our customers
and sustainable growth for
our shareholders.’

Andy Green
Chairman
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AT A GLANCE

2015 was another year of solid
underlying financial performance,

with underlying revenue reaching

£400 million@ for the first time. We took
an important strategic step with the

launch of execution-only stockbroking,
based upon our leading-edge
technology, and also increased our
global reach with offices in Switzerland
and Dubai.’

Tim Howkins
Chief Executive Officer
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M Throughout this zeport Revenue refers
to statutory net trading revenue
which 1s statutory trading revenue
excluding interest on segregated
chent funds and 1s net of ntreducing
partner Commissons

@ For FY15 two metres are disdosed
The unadjusted statutory and also the
hegher undertying performance that 1s
stated excluding the losses assoaated
with the Swiss franc event

@ FY14 has been restated followng the
adoption of IFRIC 21 Please refer 1o
rate 38 to the finanoal statements

* The profi; befare tax and diluted
earrungs per share figures for FY11
exclude both the amortisation and
imparment of goodwll and customer
relationships associated with our
Japanese business 1G Securiies
tformerty FXOnline} and of the Group s
Sport Business

8 Caleulated with reference to the
statwiory figures

B The kghter shaded asea indicates the
underlying performance
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OUR
BUSINESS

Back in 1974 we invented a new way
for people to trade gold. Since then
IG has grown to become a global

leader in online trading and the
world’s No.1 provider of CFDs.™

In 2002 we opened cur Melbourne
office and we are now located in
20 countries.

IG 15 a global leader in online trading, providing active traders
with fast and flexible access to the world's financial markets
through our award-winning dealing platforms Since our
inception in 1974 we have opened sales offices in a further 16
countnes across Europe, the Middle East and Africa, Australia,
Asia and the US, and serve clients in 164 countries We are
the No 1 provider of CFDs and spread betting worldwide!”
and In the last year we also launched our execution-only
stockbroking service in the UK, Ireland and the Netherlands
For more mformation on our products please see the

What We Do section of this report, on page 14

Our industry and our products are highly regulated - we

are regulated by the FCA in the UK and Europe and by the
equivalent local regulators in other junsdictions where we
have a physical presence We set out to develop strong and
constructive relationships with regulators and engage with
them and policymakers as much as possible - both where we
have a hicence and in countnes where we see the potental for
future expansion

Two years ago we established the clear global brand of IG,
with the exception of Nadex, our binanes exchange in the US
As part of this process we acquired the IG com domain name
and consolidated our global web traffic through this route
Online leadership 1s increasingly important in our industry,
from a perspective of acquinng, educating and providing a
high level of service to clients

The global nature of cur business, coupled with the
consistent brand, provides us with several advantages Over
the past year this enabled us to taunch a global advertising
campaign — Live Every Trade - based on the more emotional
side of trading and the factors that can influence success
The campaign included a major television advert, and in the
past we would have had to recut such an advert 1o sutt local
markets Our centralised operating model has also made it
easter for us to expand into additional countries, with a well-
practised approach to launching an office and the associated
marketing that accompanes it

& ] K Care vy Holdisge ple Anres FRep ent 2014

Technology s key to our client acquisition and retentton More
sophisticated clients have greater expectations when 1t comes
to a trading platform As a result, we invest significantly in
ensuring our dealing platforms are not just robust and secure
but also available via both web-based and downloadable
platforms as well as via a full range of tallored apps for mobile
and tablet devices We also invest in providing a range of
advanced trading and education tools to support our clients’
trading needs

In 2014 we celebrated our 40th anniversary Through the last
40 years our operating model and sk management strategy
have been thoroughly tested and have proved highly resilient
Our long history of profitability has produced the financial
strength which is visible today and provides the capital and
liquidity we need in our regulated environment as well as
supporting our future growth Our business has cantinually
adapted to a changing world and the technolegical and
economic backdrop, and we will continue to innovate as we
look to the next phase of our growth

47% REVENUE 136,100 ACTIVE

QUTSIDE THE UK CLIENTS
WORLDWIDE
1G RETALIL
BRANDS l G
NADEX
™ No 1CFD and spread betting provider for CFDs based on revenue excluding
FX published financial statements July 2015, for spread betting numbser of

active UK financial spread betting accounts {fnvestment Trends UK Leveraged
Trading Report July 2014)




WHERE WE OPERATE

UK EUROPE
+ Iniroduced the first financial spread betting product in 1974 * Entered the market in Germany in 2006, with rapid
* Offices located in the City of Londen and Dublin (Republic expansion acioss Europe from 2007
of reland) » Offices located in France Germany ltaly {uxembourg,

Annual revenue of £206 O million in the 2015 financial year Netherlands, Norway, Span, Sweden and Switzerland

with 60,400 active clients trading + Annual revenue of £76 9 millien in the 2015 financial year,
with 29,800 active clients trading

Accounts for 53% ol Group revenue
* Accounts {or 20% of Group revenue
AUSTRALIA

* Fntered the market in 2007

* Office located in Melbourne

REST OF WORLD

* Began expansion in 2006

* Offices located in Dubal, Japan, Singapore, South Africa
and the US

* Annual revenue of £47 4 miffion in the 2015 financial year,

« Annual revenue of £58 1 million in the 2015 finanaial year,
with 18,700 active chents trading

+ Accounts for 15% of Group revenue
with 27,200 active clients trading

s Accounts for 12% of Group revenue

-
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CHAIRMAN'S
STATEMENT

This is my first opportunity to
address shareholders directly
since | was elected chairman of IG
in October 2014. | am delighted

to present the results for the 2015

financial year.

It was another record year for revenue, with net trading revenue
ahead by 4 9% at £388 4 million (2014 £370 4 milion) This was
after the impact of the extreme event involving the Swiss franc
in January, which | discuss in more detall below, excluding this
incident, on an underlying basis, revenue was ahead by 8 0% at
£400 2 million Underlying profit before tax was down shghtly
on the prior year as a result of ongoing investrment, as set out
in the Chief Executive’s statement Diluted earnings per share
was down by 10 5% at 35 99 pence (2014 40 22 pence), on an
underlying basis it was ahead by 2 1% at 41 07 pence

In January the Swiss National Bank announced, without notice,
that 1t was ceasing intervention in the franc exchange rate
Thes caused an unprecedented appreciation in the value of
the franc, creating turmoil in the foreign exchange markets
and drastically reducing global liquidity in this G10 currency
This was a salutary reminder, for both industry providers and
existing clents, of the potential risks and rewards of trading
in the financial markets At |G we take very seriously our
regulatory and consumer responsibilities on appropriateness
tests for prospective clients This maident underlines the need
for regulators to ensure that regulatory standards are applied
robustly and consistently across the industry

The Swiss franc event provided a sudden real-world stress

test for our technology, our nsk management procedures and
our balance sheet capacity Although the resultant negative
impact of £27 million, net of recovenies, was sigrificant and
disappainting, 1G clearly demonstrated its ability to manage
through such a so-called ‘Black Swan’ event while maintaining
a robust business that delivers strong cash flows Following
this, we have reviewed our robust nsk management system and
learned lessons that we are applying to provide even greater
protection for our busness and our clients

Over the past few years IG has set out a clear vision of what

it wants to achreve Our aim 1s to become the default choice
for active traders globally We constantly engage with our
clients and carefully cons:der competitive and regulatory
developments We continue to see the opportunity to innovate
and take an increasing share of a growing global market To
achieve this, we are bullding on our award-winning technology
suite, broadening the range of products we offer to appeal

to sophisticated investors, expanding into further geographic
regions and fundamentally mproving our mobile and online
marketing capability

This year we achieved a major milestone in I1G's development
with the launch of an execution-only stockbroking service in
the UK Towards the end of the year, we launched this service
in the Netherlands as the frst step in the international roll-out
Stockbroking, and its Iink to 1G's existing products, has the
potenual to underpin the future growth of our business We
will use technology to bring a revolution to a very traditional
market through real-ume tradeable pnces, direct market
access, market-leading foreign shares commussion rates

and a full sute of mobile trading platforms This wall allow

IG to appeal to a much bigger global audience, providing
an attractive business opportunity in its own right as well

as broadening the understanding and 1ake-up of our core
teveraged trading products




THE RETIREMENT OF TIM HOWKINS

After a long and extremnely successiul career at IG, as both CFO
and CEQ, Tin Howkins has informed the Board of his intention
to retire Tim's career at IG has spanned 16 years and he has
been part of and led extremely dedicated teams which have
bult IG from a single office in London to the global leader

it 1s today Although | have only had the pleasure of working
with Tim for the last year, | would like to express my personai
gratitude and I'm sure | speak for all the employees at IG, past
and present, in wishing him every success in the future The
Board 1s disappointed to lose somebody with Tim’s proven
leadership skills but fully understands his decision

The Board has cammenced a thorough search and setection
process for a successor Tim will step down as CEO and as

a director at the AGM in Octaber and Peter Hethenngtaon,
currently Chief Operating Officer, will assume the role of
Intenm Chief Executive, subject to regulatory approval Peter
has been a Board member since 2002 and has been integral to
the successful development of the company | am pleased to
report that Peter has confirmed that he would like to enter the
selection process for the permanent CEQ role

DIVIDEND

IG remains highly cash-generative and we have sought to
reflect this in the direct cash returns to shareholders Last
year your Board raised the Ordinary dividend payout ratio to
approximately 70% Although statutory earnings this year are
behind due to the impact of the Swiss franc incident, both our
business and the market opportunity remain strong In line
with our progressive dividend policy, the Board made clear

at the time of the first half results 1n January our intention to
hold the full-year dividend flat on 2014 at 28 15 pence, and so
the Board is recommending a final dwidend of 19 70 pence

BOARD

There have been a number of changes to the Board this year
| was delighted to be elected to lead your Board as Charrman
of IG in October 2014 My arrival was of course accompanied
by the departure of Jonathan Davie, who had been Chairman
of the Board since before the public isting of IG in 2005
Aithough I didn’t work alongside Jonathan for very iong, his
record speaks for itself His guidance over the years assisted
the Executive team to grow IG into the global leadership
position it halds today | wouid like to express the gratitude of
the Board and the broader IG community for his wise counsel
over the years and wish him every success in the future

Last year's AGM also saw the departure of Martin Jackson
Jonathan addressed Martin's contribution very elogquently in
his statement last year Martin was replaced as Chairman of
the Audit Committee by Jim Newman

During 2014 Roger Yates, our Senior Independent Non-
Executive Director and Chairman of the Remuneration
Commuttee, confirmed his intention to stand down from the
Board after nine years We are currently carrying out a search
process for his successor, with the intention of conducting

a smooth handover before Roger departs at the AGM in
Cctober We are also seeking an additional Non-Executive
Director wiath digital experience
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Following these changes, your Board continues to comply
with provision B 1 2 of the 2012 UK Corporate Governance
Code {'the Code") Lo

Your Board 15 committed to continually reviewing its
performance and effectiveness and to ensunng its governance
remans of the very highest standards To enable a substanually
refreshed Board to take a thorough view of our performance
and any changes that may be required, we have embarked

on a muit-year external Board evaluation process This year
we conducted a questionnaire-based analysis which will be
followed up with face-to-face interviews with Board members
next year The resuits were reviewed by the Board, along with
the actions from last year's internal review The introduction of
the Board Risk Commutiee has aliowed the Board to increase
the ime spent on strategic and operational matters

The intention again this year Is to put every Board Director, with
the exception of Roger and Tim, up for re-election at the AGM, .
in comphance with paragraph B 7 1 of the Code

REMUNERATION

The Remuneration Committee has continued to operate well

this year The simplified remuneration scheme introduced

in 2013 has proved effective Salary increases for executive

drrectors are in line with those of our people generally :

IG'S PEOPLE

| want to express the Board's great apprectation for the efforts

this year of our entire employee base In my first year with 1G, '
| have been struck by the dedicatian, talent and hard work

I have witnessed from IG people Qur people remain our

greatest asset and | want to thank themn for therr commitment

LOOKING FORWARD

We have broadened our hortizons to bring our offering to a
much wider audience through both product and geographic
expansion Qur new offices in Switzerland and Dubai are in the
very early stages of growth but | am encouraged by the mitiat
signs Importantly, they both provide clear evidence of the
ability of the I1G team to deliver in challenging environments
and demonstrate our adaptabilty and desire 1o contmue
growing the business We have commenced the international
rollout of our stockbroking offering and over the next year |
expect us to expand this into more of our current markets

We are investing significant time and effort into improving a
number of our business processes, particularly in the sales,
marketing and client-onboarding areas This includes work on
our maobile app strategy and dniving value from our mvestment
in generic top-level domains (gTLDs) We recognise the need
to evolve rapudly in response to the increasing importance of
the internet and mobile devices as the key chient interfaces

In summary, 2015 was a solid year, both financially and
strategically, but we are not resting on our laurels We are
clear about our agenda and the team s energised to deliver
growth and profitability for the future

N e

Andy Green
Chairman

21 July 2015
1G Group Hotdngs 1 Aniw TRt 7505 | 9




CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER'S REVIEW

‘2015 was another year

of good progress on our
strategic initiatives, coupled
with a solid underlying set of
financial results.’

Tim Howkins
Chief Executive Officer

Underlying revenue, before the impact of the Swss franc
event in January — the detall of which | discuss later — was
£400 2 million, up 8 0% from £370 4 million 1n the prior

year Underlying profit before tax was down by 0 9% at

£193 2 million, with operating costs increasing to support the
future growth of the business Underlying diluted earnings
per share was up by 2 1% to 41 07 pence, benefiting from

a fall in the Group's effective tax rate On a statutory basis,
profit before tax was down by 13% and earnings per share
was down by 10 5% The Group continues to invest to drive
future growth This year, this 1s reflected i the £27 3 million
ncrease in underlying administrative expenses which
includes the inrastructure and additional marketing to
support the core business and various iniiatives, including
the expansion into Swiizerland and Dubay, the roll-out of
execution-only stockbroking and investments in mobile and
web-based technology

TRADING PERFORMANCE

B Ve achieved double-digit underlying
revenue growlh in the UK, Australia
and Rest of World, which together
comprise 80% of our revenues

This growth was driven by the combination of higher active
chent numbers and higher average revenue per client in
the UK and Australia, and strong client growth in Rest of
World However, this was partially offset by a 1 5% fall in
European revenue

While Europe continues to see good growth in active client
numbers, which were up 14 3%, this was more than offset

by a fall n revenue per client and as a result revenue was
shghtly down A number of factors have contributed to the
fall in revenue per client just over a third of this movement
was caused by the weakness in the exchange rate of the

eurc aganst sterling, overnight funding revenue has fallen

as clients have held fewer positions overmight, althcugh the
number of trades per client increased significantly, this was
more than offset by a drop in the overall average trade size,
reflecting a movement towards smaller size contracts, and
through the second half, we also saw a widening of spreads i
the underlying DAX futures contract, which increased the cost
of hedging in what 1s the most popular traded product across
our European business

We saw notable growth in our US business, Nadex, which
accelerated as the year progressed Revenue was up 68%
year-on-year and growth was strongestn the final quarter
of the year, when revenue was more than double the same
quarter of the prior year

This growth was driven by a number of factors including the
introduction of a second market maker a ittle over a year
ago, on-going Improvements to our marketing efficiency
and vanous other operational enhancements, including the
relocation of our IT infrastructure Following this marked




J

improvement in the growth rate of Nadex, in the final months
of the year we increased our US marketing expenditure to
take advantage of the improving return on investrment that it
was yielding

IMPACT OF THE SWI5S FRANC EVENT

All of the above revenue figures and growth rates are stated
before the impact of the Swiss franc de-peg on 15 January,
which reduced revenue by £12 million and increased the
bad debt charge by £15 million {net of recovenies) This was
a market event of unprecedented proportions, with a major
currency moving over 30% in a matter of minutes We have
spent considerable time reflecting on the lessons we can learn
from this, and will continue to do so Cur first change s to
intraduce more extreme scenanos into our stress-testing and
scenano planning and we are considenng carefully the risk/
reward ratio on all aspects of our business

Of the 342 clients who initially owed us money as a result of
the Swiss franc move, less than 100 remain outstanding We
recognise that the scale of the move was beyond anyone’s
expectations and we are being sympathetic to debiors’ abulity
to pay, accepting less than the full amount of the debt where
this s justified by the financial arcumstances of the indwidual
Unfortunately a few chients, whom we beheve to be financially
sophisticated, with the means to pay their debts, have used
social and more traditional media to generate adverse
publicity for IG in an attempt, we believe, to avoid taking
responsibility for their debts We continue to encourage

any remaining affected clients to make contact so that therr
indwidual circumstances can be taken nto account in settling
their account balance We have provided a full reconciliation
between the statutory numbers and those on an underlying
basis, adjusting for the impact of this extreme event, in note
2(a) to the finanoal statements

The Swiss franc event had an immediate impact on some
providers in our industry around the globe, which either
went into insolvency or had to refinance to rebuild their
balance sheets

At least one mejor hadging counterparty has withdrawn from
the market, and we believe others are re-assessing who they
want to do business with in future | think it inevitable that the
smaller players in our industry will ind hedging relationships
become harder and more expensive to secure This may result
in some consahdation across the sindustry or more industry
players adopting a model that involves little or no hedging
The fatter 1s unlikely to result in good consumer outcomes n
the long run

GEOGRAPHIC EXPANSION

In October we opened our office in Switzerland, having
obtained a Swiss Banking licence that was necessary for us

to do business there This operation 15 performing according
to our expectations and in line with the early growth rates we
have seen in other Eurapean markets Shortly after the year
end we receved our licence from the Dubar Financial Services
Authority (DFSA) and opened for business in the Dubai
International Financia! Centre To maxsimise effectiveness,

the full marketing and PR launch of this business 1s planned
for Septernber, once the summer s over Our licence from
the DFSA 1s one of the first 1t has 1ssued that enables the
licence-holder to deal with retail clients, this opens up the
market for IG to a much broader pool of potential clients than
has previously been possible in Dubat
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Bl The challenges in obtaining the types
ot hcence which we have been granted
in both Switzerland and Duba are
considerable and we were subject to
detailled and prolonged scrutiny by
both reguletors | am delighted that
we have been able to cbtain these
licences This s testament to our
ongoling mvestment in people, systerns
and processes to ensure that we
remain fully comphant with the ever-
mcreasing regulatory burdens, both
within our industry and on all financial
businesses globally

Subsequent to the year-end we obtained a representative
office hcence from the China Secunties Regulatory
Commussion This allows us to establish a small office in w
Shanghai, which will facilitate discussions with potential

partners in China, but does not give us any right or ability

to transact business in China As | indicated in January this

year, we continue to view China as an interesting future

market for us, but one in which we anticipate that matters will

develop slowly

PRODUCT DIVERSIFICATION

In September we launched our stockbroking service in the
UK, and have been pleased with the progress to date We
cunbinue 1o see goad recruitment of new clients - roughly
65% of all funded stockbroking accounts are clients new 1o
IG Even more encouragingly, although the numbers will
take some time to settle down, around 20% of those are
going on to trade with our existing leveraged products Early
ndications are that the clients who start with stockbroking
and move on to our other products are, on average, at least
as valuable as those clients who do not start wia stockbroking

In March we began our internauonal roll-out of this service
with the launch in the Netherlands While this 1s one of our
smaller offices, we were able to complete the development
work necessary to launch here quickly because the tax regime
there made this less complex tn July 2015, we launched
stockbroking in Germany - with the offening also available to
Austnian clients We will continue wath a targeted international
roll-out and expect to launch in most of our current countries

over the coming years

3G Group Heldings % Annwal Report 20051 1




CHIEF

EXECUTIVE !
OFFICER'S ‘
REVIEW

(CONTINUED)

As well as extending our stockbroking offering internationally,
as we continue our diversification strategy to appeal to a
broader set of clients, we will also be seeking to increase

its scope with the addition of innovative new products

and services which we believe will extend the reach of

our offering

B 1o this end, IG recently entered into
an egreement with BlackRock, the
largest ETF provider globaily, which
will tacilitate 1G constructing a range
of ETF-based mvestrnent portfolios for
our chients

The details of this new service are still being worked through
and we do not expect it to be fully operatronal until 2016
However, 1t fits with IG’s strategy of broadening our offering
to cater for sophisticated investors as well as active traders
At |G we believe that portfolios composed of passive
instruments such as ETFs have the potential to disrupt the
Investment management industry, as passive Investing and
ETFs become an integral part of investors’ portfolios The
new service will be delivered digitally and will leverage the
capabihties of our existing stockbroking platform We beheve
that this partnership with BlackRock can sigmificantly broaden
our reach beyond our existing client base and we consider it
to be an exciting long-term opportunity

RISK MANAGEMENT OPTIMISATICN

Over the last decade our hedging has become progressively
more cautious relative 1o the scale of IG, as nisk limits have
remained relatively stable while client numbers, trading
volumes and Group revenue have grown significantly
Following further development of our back-end nisk
managerant systems, we commenced an extremely detailed
analysis of our Indices nsk hmits market-by-market Our
iniiial conclusions led to us increasing certain of our nsk
hmits but, more importantly, dunng the period we made

our main regional and global equity hrmits dynamic Thig
involves increasing the nsk imit for a market when it 1s open,
most liquid or when we are seeing most client actvaty in that
market, and reducing the limut approaching market closing,
or when liquidity or acuvity levels are reduced We expect
this approach will enable us to reduce our hedging costs
and thus on average increase the revenue that we make per
unit of volume We do not expect this approach to materially

12 [ 1G Group tHoldings ple Aneuwse | Repr it 2015

impact the very high correlation that our revenue has to client
volume, which we recognise as an important element of the
IG investment case

GROWING OUR ACTIVE CLIENT BASE

Over the long term we expect that growth in our business will
be driven primarily by increasing the number of active clients
and that this in turn will be driven mainly by the rate of client
recrutment We have a number of imtiatives in progress which
we enwisage will lead to improvemenits in the rate of client
recrutment across all of our businesses globally

Over the last year we have made significant improvements
to our data-driven digital marketing capabibty, both in terms
of personnel and technology As we have done so, we have
been progressively optimising how and where we spend on
digital marketing We have greater confidence in our abiity
to track our marketing spend, to measure its effectiveness
and to switch the focus rapidly to respond to opportunities
There 1s more work to be done to further optimise spending,
but the initial results are encouraging and this contnbuted

to the strong account opening we achieved throughout the
second half of the year The payback from digital marketing
1s good - on average a new trading chent generates enough
revenue to cover their marketing recruitment cost within therr
first three months It therefore makes sense for us to continue
to increase our marketing spend progressively, untl we reach
a point of dminishing returns from the incremental spending

We are making ongoing incremental improvements to our
‘conversion funnel’ - the journey which a client goes through
from starting to complete our application form to funding
their account and trading for the first time These changes
include implementing electronic ID verfication in a number of
additional countries and simphfying the process of captunng
and uploading images of identity documents
B 5y climinating manual steps from the
conversion funnel and making the
process as streamlined as possible,
we expecl 1o reduce the proportion of
potential clients who drop out part-
way through the application process
In making these changes, we will
nol in any way compromise the high
regulatory standards we apply duning
the account opening process

We continue to develop multiple mobile applications to
address different stages in the client journey We will shortly
be releasing a new educational app, |G Academy on 1Phone




The initial content of IG Academy comprises educational
maternials for prospective and new chients and it will act as a
feeder into our suite of trading apps Over time we intend to
bulld the content of IG Academy to address the educational
needs of clients with the full range of experience, everyone
frorm newcomers to sophisucated traders wanting to learn
advanced techrigues

CAPITALISING ON TOP-LEVEL DOMAINS

As | have mentioned before we were successful in our
application for seven generic top-level domains (gTLDs)

that are directly relevant to our business We made this
investment to posttion our business for changes to the
structure and usage of the internet and the drivers of search
engine rankings, which we envisage will result from the recent
sigmiicant expansion in the number of top-level domains

As afirst step in exploiting these gTLDs we intend to build a
significant number of specialised websites over the coming
year Some of these will be |G branded and be devoted to
one aspect of our product set or service, for example, 1G forex
will be devoted to our extensive forex offering Others will
be more generic and concentrate on one segment of our
audience or one aspect of consumer need, for example,
whatis spreadbetting will provide genenc education on
financial spread betting Each of these websites will have a
ughtly defined audience, subject matter and purpose as well
as a highly relevant domain name As a result, we expect that
they will rank highly on search engines for topics relevant to
the success of IG

Alongside this, we will be encouraging third parties to buy
licences for domain names on our gTLDs with the wiew that
over time these gTLDs should become recognised as marks
of authority and relevance and become synonymous with

the products they represent We have already made some
early sales of domain name licences for markets, the first of
our gTLDs to go live We do not view this as a business in its
own nght, but rather as a source of income which will partally
offset the cost of developing our own websites using our
gTLDs, aimed at increasing the level of chent recruitment for
our business We currently expect the remaning gTLDs to go
Ive duning the first half of the current finanaial year

B \We believe that all of the above
initiatives, together with the ongoing
development of our product offering,
wili help to drve the recruiiment,
conversion and long-term retention of
good-quality clients

By successfully expanding our client base globally we can
ensure the next phase of growth for IG

MY RETIREMENT
After 16 years at IG, seven as CFO and almast nine as CEC,
I have nformed the Board of my intention to retire

Firstly and mainly, | would like to thank all of IG’s employees,
past and present, for therr hard work and dedication and

for helping to make the last 16 years such an enjoyable

and rewarding expenence | would also like to express my
gratitude to the clients who have put their trust in |G over the
years | also want to thank the loyal shareholders who put therr
faith in IG and supported it with their investment
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During my time at 1G | have seen our business transform, as .
we have grown revenues from £12 million to an underlying
£400 milion In my time as CEQ, we have grown earnings per
share from 10 88 pence to an underlying 41 07 pence, and
have gone from less than 10% of our revenue coming from
outside the UK to now almost 50% Our group now has offices
in 20 countnies and includes a US regulated exchange and

a Swiss Bank This has been a great team effort | have been
surrounded by an extremely talented senior management
team, a number of whom have been with me throughout my
tenure as CEQ, and | have every confidence that this team will
continue to drive the business forward with the same degree
of success | very much look forward 1o seeing the more
recent initiatives we have started together come to fruition
over the coming years

%L/

Tim Howkins
Chief Executive Officer
21 July 2015

in the following sections, we will

e Quthne the products and services we provide for
our retail and ingtitutional chents

* Show how we are set up ta provide support for our
chents and meet therr needs as they evolve over
ume, and the cnucal importance of our people and
the values we live by to our success

* Summanise the ratronale, the progress made in
2014, the prronues for 2015, and the link to our
business model for each of our strategic objectives

* Lastly then work through some examples of our
strategy in action and our focus for 2015
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WHAT WE DO

We offer our clients fast and
flexible trading on a range of
instruments including indices,

shares, forex and commodities on
award-winning platforms. We also
offer trading opportunities on
interest rates, government bonds,
exchange-traded funds (ETFs} and
a number of other markets.

The vast majonty of our clients engage directly with us, and we aim to build a long-term relationship with them by anticipating
and responding to ther changing needs through technological and service inovation Most of our global revenue comes
from CFDs and financial spread betting (in the UK and Ireland), with an increasing proportion ansing from binaries trading,

including our US retall derivatives exchange, Nadex This year we introduced execution-only stockbroking in the UK and Ireland

and began our international roll-out of this product in the Netherlands in March Worked examples of our major products are
shown below

CONTRACTS FOR DIFFERENCE (CFDs)

CFDs are derivatives contracts that enable clients to take advantage of changes in an asset’s price, without owning the
asset itself

* We are the world’s No 1 CFD providert

¢ We offer global CFD trading, including direct market access (DMA) to shares and forex markets

The diagram below shows, in simplified form, how a CFD can be used to ‘sell’ a market when you expect it to fall This 1s known
as ‘going short’ In this scenano, a subsequent fall in the market price results in a profit for the client while a nse would have
resulted in a loss The diagram below should be viewed in conpuncuon with our more detaled example of a CFD trade on

page 180
THE TRADE
You open a trade for 500 contracts
at the market price of 320p
COMMISSION
£10.00
=
CLOSING

PRICE

¢ -3 If you expect the market 320p 500
MARKET tofall, you sell atthe

PRICE MARKET PRICE

t .
CLOSING MARKET PRICE RISES

PRICE ..

t b rep Y CLOSING PRICE LOSS
270p £150 00
The market maves by 30p
w CLOSING PRICE PROFIT
290p £150 CO
MARKET PRICE FALLS
" Based on revenue excludmg FX published financal statements, July 2015 b
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SPREAD BETTING

Financial spread betting in the UK and treland 1s a tax-freet way to trade by betting on the price movement of an asset Like a
CFD, a chent takes advantage of changes in an asset’s pnce, without owning the asset itself, and the size of a chent’s win or loss
depends on the magmitude and direction of the price moverment

Y
nam
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* We are the UK's largest and longest-runming spread betting provider®
* We hold 40% of the UK financial spread betting market®

The diagram below shows, in simphfied form, how a spread bet can be used to ‘buy” a market when you expect it to rise

This 1s known as "going long’ In this scenario, a subsequent rise In the market price results in a profit for the client while a fall
would result in a loss The diagram below should be viewed 1n conjunction with our more detailed example of a spread bet on
page 182

THE DEAL

You open a posiuon for £10 03 per point
at the offer prica ol 1001

BUY/OFFER PRICE J| SIZE (£ PER POINT)

1001

Il you expect the market
6 nse you buy atthe
GFFER PRICE

A 6 BUY/OFFER
BRICE

THE UNDERLYING
SPREAD MARKET VALUE

1G SFLI/BID
. PRICH

— -

MARKET PRICE RISES

SELL/BID PRICE PROFIT

The market moves by eight points

SELL/BID PRICE LOSS

0991 £100 00

MARKET PRICE FALLS

STOCKBROKING

Qur stockbroking sernce, which launched in the UK in the
second quarter of the year, 1s powered by our ex:sting
market-leading technology and provides clients with access
to live streaming prices and a transparent execution process,
as well as a cost-eflective way to trade international equimes
At the end of November we enhanced the offering by gving
clients the ability to use therr share portfolio as collateral

to support thewr shorter-term trading with CFDs or spread
betting Clients can benefit from lower charges if they have
executed at [east ten stockbroking transactions or placed at
least one spread bet or CFD trade in the previous month
For a detailed stockbroking example please see page 184

™ Tax laws are subject to change and depend on indwidual circumstances

@ No 1 spread betting prowider based an number of active UK financial spread
betting accounts {lrvestment Trends UK Leveraged Trading Repart July 2014)

@ By number of actve primary accounts All market share data presented in
this report 15 provided by Investment Trends Pty Limited (please refer to the
Investor Resources section on page 190 for further details)
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WHAT
WE DO

(CONTINUED)

BINARIES

Our proneening binary contracts are based on a single
question ‘Wil the underlying market behave in a speafic way
before the contract expires? Clients use their knowledge of
the financial markets to deade whether the answer will be yes
or no We also offer "sprint markets’ — high-speed, fixed-rnisk
trades Qur binary contracts give clients the opportunity to
trade in even the flattest markets

The ma:n attributes of binary contracts are that they enable
clents to trade with imited risk and are unrestricted by

low volatihity, therefore remaining attractive to clients when
markets are relatively stable

NORTH AMERICAN DERIVATIVES
EXCHANGE (NADEX)

MNadex 1s our US denivatives exchange, enabling US and
overseas Investors to trade options on global financial
markets in retail-sized contracts

¢ Nadex s the first and largest US-based
retail-onented exchange

* We provide a flextble way for our clients to trade with
limited risk

* The main product on Nadex 1s the binary option

HOW WE GENERATE REVENUE

Our principal revenue sources on our core leveraged products
are the dealing spreads or commission charges we apply

to each transaction, according to the asset and product

type being traded As chients are trading on margin, we also
levy a financing charge for positions held overnight Our
stockbroking offer charges a flat fee commussion per trade in
UK shares

We derive our earnings from the volume of our clrents’
dealing transachions, which is influenced by the level

of activity in the underlying financial markets Since cur
clients can choose to 'buy’ or ‘sell’, dealing volumes can be
maintained, and we are able to profit, irrespective of the
direction in which markets are moving

16 | 1G Graup Hold ngs ple Anrval Re part 7055

Our centralised operating model enables us to consolidate
the market risk associated with client trades from around
the globe, which lessens our requirement to hedge due to
the net impact of clients buying and selling the same asset,
and so reduces nisk and cost This model also enables us to
maintain lower-cost and capital-efficient processes, while
robust nisk-management procedures help us monitor and
conirol the impact of market and credit risk on the company
and our clients

Our exposure to market risk at any point in time depends
primarnily on short-term market condittons and the levels of
client activity We utihse market position hmits for "operational
efficiency’ and do not take proprietary positions based on
an expectation of market movements As a result, not all

net client exposures are hedged and we are likely to have

a residual net position in any of the financial markets in
which we offer products up to the market nsk it The
costs associated with the hedging of market nsk as well as
any gains or losses incurred on the unhedged residual net
position are reported within revenue, along with the charges
levied on our clients




OUR
CLIENTS

In the year, we had 136,100 active clients around the globe
The majonity of our customers engage directly with us and our
aim 15 to build a long-term mutually beneficial relavonship
with them by anticipating and responding tc their changing
needs throughout therr ime with us

We offer them a portfolio of instruments to trade including
indices, shares, forex and commodities on award-winning
platfarms In addition, we offer trading oppartunities on
interest rates, government bonds, exchange-traded funds
(ETFs) and a number of other markets We aim to make our
platform execution consistently fast and flexible

We also provide our products through a number of third-party
institutional providers that are chosen carefully to ensure they
maintain our strict standards of regulatory compliance as well
as fitting our nsk profile Of our acuive chents, approximately
10% were introduced by our partners in the financial year
ended 31 May 2015

The basis of these partnerships vanes from straight referral,
where an mstitution refers the clent directly to 1G, through to
full ‘white-labelling’ of our dealing and back-office systems,
where we provide a dealing solution in the branding of the
institution This allows our partners to generate new revenue
streams using therr marketing and sales capabilities while
relying on our award-winning dealing platforms, and our
expertise in dealing, nsk management and client services

Clients introduced to us through partner institutions are able
to trade our full product suite over the counter, or if they
prefer can trade directly on the underlying exchange via our
direct market access products

Ouwr platiorm offening encompasses our regular web and
mobile platfiorms, as well as a downloadable proprietary
platform specifically designed for institutional users We alse
have web and direct API (Application Programming Interface)
connectvity for those clients who wish to fully integrate their
trading strategies to the |G infrastructure wia their own frony
end or any number of third-party solutions

Qur partner relationships are designed to be mutually
beneficial, with generous rebates for successful partners,
which resutted in £33 7 mullion of payments being made to
partners in the year

1H0Od3y
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OUR CLIENTS AND US

We aim to be responsive to
the needs of our clients as
they evolve, with the suite

of products and services we
offer. By achieving this we will

i Stockb ~-NEW IN 2015
attract and retain the most ockbroking
active traders. Spread betting
CFDs
Binarnies ﬂ

igﬁ GLOBAL
PROVIDER
OF CFDS AND
“# FINANCIAL
SPREAD BETTING

Ongoing investment in

Expanding product suite

Customer Relationship Management

BRAND STRENGTH PRODUCT SUITE

Our unrivalled global brand We provide clients with an

and reputation for integrity and extremely broad product set,
transparency are key reasons why both in terms of markets to
new clients choose |G as their trade and platform functionality,

trading provider. to enable them to manage
their risk.
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Industry-leading investment in core
platform to remain at the forefront of

the industry
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News flow provision including economic

calendar, alerts and market insight

IG TV with more than 20 educational videos

n multiple languages launched in 2015

Innovative e r e

: ' . EvRus#
products including: o gy
012062 (0.77072,

- +
Apple Watch App | - \

© Credte poation
“ s

Major Markets App

APl introduction

_ataty -“;',:.7_“‘, i
TECHNOLOGY ON L| IEI&E— ;ﬂf‘fﬁm“%}%&

|G is recognised as a technology Resources such as an economic
leader in the industry, with calendar, current news, market

a track record of innovation. insight and educational videos are
We constantly engage with our designed to assist clients to trade

clients to understand what they and to deepen the relationship we
require of a trading platform. have with them.
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OUR STRATEGIC
OBJECTIVES

ADDRESS THE NEEDS
OF ACTIVE TRADERS

We seek to attract and retain
the most active traders Active
traders are both demanding

and valuable because they trade

frequently or place large trades
We aim 1o be responsive to
their needs as they evolve over
time with the suite of products
we offer

ACHIEVE MAINTAIN
OR EXTEND MARKET
LEADERSHIP

Market leadership 1s a reflection
of great customer service

combined with a strong product

and platform offering Having

scale 1s important for profitabdity

and the long-term success of
our business

STRENGTHEN GLOBAL
PRESENCE

Opening offices In new countries
provides us with the opportunity

to recrunt new clients and grow
the busmess Qur single global
identity and standard platform
helps us to grow the global
footprint of our business in a
cost-effective manner

- DELIVER QUALITY

SERVICE TO CLIENTS

By maintaining absolute
integnity, dehivering excellent
customer service and fast

and reliable execution with
transparent pnong we strive
to make our clients feel secure
and confident in trading with
us, resulting in a longer, more
profitable reationship

SUSTAIN TECHNOLOGY
LEADERSHIP

The strength and market-leading
functionality of our platform and
its proven resilience are essenuial
to maintaining client satisfaction,

and enhance clhent acquisilion

, and retention

20 | 16 Group Holdings ple Anne © Repot 2006

PROGRESS IN 2015

Launched our technologically advanced
execution-only stockbroking service

Launched new IG Major Markets app for the 1Pad In
the UK 1in December

Successful first year for IG TV in educating new and
prospective clients

23 new localised websites lzunched, focused on
onboarding new chents

First major provider to introduce Sunday trading

Maintained our UK market ieadership position in the
UK for CFDs and financial spread betting

Maintained leadership position in Austraha and
increased lead in France

Successful launch of IG TV and the |G video app

Various improvements to clent onboarding process
showing positive results

Launched our first gTLD { markets) to assist
onhine marketing

Opened for business in Switzerland with a full
banking licence

* Recewed regulatory approval and opened in Dubai

*

in June
Achieved rapid growth in Nadex in the US

Single brand of |G enabled first global brand
campaign across 13 countnes in 2015

Contnued focus on delverning industry-leading
customer service

Livechat introduced in ali our sites with an average of
3,700 conversations per month

Expanded charting technical support team

Training intraduced to mave team from transactional
to relationship management

Extended avarability of full version of IG com to all
mobile platforms

» Dehvered fully dynamic versions of all IG websites

Developed and supported new stockbroking product
Launched the first global trading app for the

Apple Waich

Launched web AP| allowing automated trading

for clhients

Co-located trading infrastructure n Nadex to reduce
pricing and execution latency

Economic calendar rolled out to mobite apps, with
push message alerts on economic figures

Established mobile app team to increase rate of
client sign-ups - delivered Major Markets App

.

»

PRIORITIES FOR 2016

Continue the successful roll-out
of stockbroking to further
regions and add the ability for
clients to participate i IPOs

Broaden the product
set 10 include a wealth
management platform

Launch further apps for new
and prospective clients,
meluding educational apps to
suit all levels of expenence

Continue to increase client
numbers and revenue In
stockbroking as well as the
level of cross-selling

Further enhance the account
application to trading
process 10 INncrease new
client numbers

Launch the remaining gTLDs
and leverage marketing and
SEC benefits

Fully establish and grow the
office In Cubar

Establsh relationships in
China which may enable us to
buld a future business there

Roll out stockbroking
offering 10 at least three
more countres

Continue to deliver growth
in Nadex

Introduction of new contact
centre management too! to
Improve proactive contact
with chents and focus on
active traders

Introduce peer-to-peer support

Introduce ‘My IG' on the
trading platiorm to allow
chents to self-serve

Revamp of our core online
trading platform to ensure
we remain at the forefront of
retail trachng platforms

Development of suite of
educational apps lor existing
and prospective clients

Invest in technology

o support our

onboarding processes
Improve the users® application
process experience

Provide trading through
charts functionality on

mohile devices




KPIs

(SEE PAGE 28)
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OUR
BUSINESS
MODEL

We have developed a business model that
harnesses the demand from active traders
for fast, flexible and secure online trading

OUR CLIENTS

We attract clients globally via a number of channels, including

+ Qur international network of offices through * Qur cpumised on'ine and

local serminars and public-relations exercises app store presence
* Our mulu-channel brand and targeted ¢ Our worldwide netwark of
advertising campaigns high-quality partners

AUTHORITY AND EXPERTISE
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STRENGTH AND STABILITY

FINANCIAL MARKETS

Qur clients can trade across a wide vanety of markets, geographies and asset classes

Corey
111 Indices H Shares FX Forex .-. Commodities

Other markets Interest rates, bonds, ETFs
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OUR STRATEGY

In this section we outline our

strategic objectives and work
through examples of our strategy

in action and our focus in the
year ahead.

ADDRESS THE NEEDS OF ACTIVE TRADERS

The most valuable traders are those that trade most frequently or in the largest deal size We aim to service
the needs of these traders as they evolve over ime with the surte of products and platform functionality
that we offer Qur platforms, products and service levels are therefore designed with these clients in mind,
while we remain conscious of the importance of defrvenng an excellent trading experience for all

ACHIEVE, MAINTAIN OR EXTEND MARKET LEADERSHIP

Market leadership 1s a result of an award-winning ptatform and product offenng, combined with a service
ethos with the client at 1ts centre, by delvering this we can ensure the long-term success of our business
We are a global leader in online trading, with the aim 16 become the default chonce for active traders
We are currently the No 1™ global provider of CFDs and financial spread betuing and a recognised
authority on finanoial trading We have achieved this position through a focus on what traders need
technology, platform functionality, education and research, senvices, product breadth, all supported

by the excellent customer service provided by our people We will remain focused on achieving,
maintaining, or extending market leadership in each of the markets and regions in which we operate

STRENGTHEN GLOBAL PRESENCE

We began our expansion cutside the UK in 2002, with the opening of an office i Australia We now
have sales offices in 17 countries, serving clients in the vast majonty of the countries of the world

We have used a consistent and purposeful approach in growtng our client base, both in established
and new regrons Our single global brand - I1G —1s helping us to develop our reach, increase our
market penetration and target addiional countnes, from the offices where we already operate, using
lighter versions of the IG website These sites are fully responsive, and aim to remove the barners

to converting clients to |G by catening for additional currencies, offering faster identity checks and
facilitating the uploading of application paperwork

DELIVER QUALITY SERVICE TO CLIENTS

QOur vision 1s to deliver an industry-leading and world-class service to our clients, and for the quality of
our customer service to be viewed as a competitive advantage Through fast and reliable execution,
transparent pricing, Investment in education and market insight resources and full segregation of
chent funds, we aim to make our clients feel secure and confident in trading with us Backing this up
with the best online support, helpdesk and service levels will position us very well to attract and retain
valuable actve clients

SUSTAIN TECHNOLOGY LEADERSHIP

This 15 a virtuous circle Our onginal concentration on delivering technological excellence assisted

us in building a highly profitable business Our financial strength now enables us to mamntain a igh
level of investment in IT development and infrastructure to remain at the forefront of the industry,
with a supernior platform, technology, tools and resources The strength of our platform and its proven
resilience over a long penod of time are essential in acquinng and retaining clients and maximising
the length and value of a client relationship

™ N 1 CFD and spread betung provider far CFDs based on revenue excluding FX pubhished financial statements July 2015 for
spread betung, number of actrve UK financia! spread betung accounts (Investment Trends UK Leveraged Trading Repert July 2014}
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ADDRESS
THE NEEDS
OF ACTIVE
TRADERS

STOCKBROKING SERVICE

In September 2014 we successfully launched our execution-
only stockbroking business in the UK and Ireland - our first
significant diversification from leveraged trading and a key
milestone on our journey to become the default choice for
active traders

Prior to developing the service, a survey of our clients
concluded that 60% of thern also traded cash equities, and
65% of those said that they would consider moving their
business to IG if we offered this service In addition, our
research indicated that the trading life of a cash equity client
was lenger than that of our existing client base, that many

of them were wealthy and that there was a constituency
among them that traded very actively This presents several
opportunities it gives us a new and much broader sales and
marketing opportunity, it allows us to deepen the relatonship
we have with our chients and to manage a greater proportion
of their trading and investment activity Stockbroking should
extend the duration of a client relationship as their nsk
appetite changes and it enables a cross-sell from more active
stockbroking customers into the leveraged product set

We strive to deliver unparalleled service to our clients and
therefore we have undertaken a number of nitatives to
address therr needs and differentiate ourselves from the
competition We offer our customers the apportunity to
transfer thewr existing shareholdings to us, free from IG
charges Once the portfolio has been transferred, the client
has access to the full range of features on IG's platform This
includes access to our range of over 8,000 shares, which

are offered in their local denomination, regardless of the
currency on the chent’s account This means our customers
know exactly what they are paying, with our fee to convert
to therr base currency being one of the most competitive In
the market

Unitke most traditional stockbrokers, we charge our chents
only when they trade and not for holding an active account
with us, while our supenor technology supports both ‘at
quote’ and ‘on exchange’ trading, ensuring ¢lients have
access to the best possible price We allow traders to interact
directly with the order bock and our systems search for
hquidity and price improvements across multiple venues This
means they have more options when looking for the best
execution as well as live visibility of the market and access to
full market depth

In addition, at the end of November we enhanced the
offenng by gving chents the ability to use therr share portfolio
as collateral to support therr shorter-term trading with CFDs
or spread betting, with over 900 clients already signed up for
this service In March we extended the stockbraking service 1o
the Netherlands and in July we rolled it out in Germany — the
largest of our continental European countries by revenue

We anticipated that initial take up of the stockbroking

service would be slow but steady However, we have been
encouraged by the number of early sign-ups and pleased with
the proportion of these that has come from new chents After
nine months, we have over 4,000 clients who have opened
and funded a stockbroking account, with roughly 65% of
these being clients new to IG Although 1t 1s very early in the
Iife of this product, we have seen evidence already that a
proporuon of clients who start as stockbraking clients do then
move on to also trade with our other products There 1sn't
sufficient data to be clear about the size of this cpportunity
but the early evidence suggests that around 20% of those
new clients who began with stockbroking go on to trade with
a leveraged product

FOCUS ON MOCBILE

With the use of mobile apps continuing to grow, an increasing
number of our clients use this as their pnmary method for
wnteracting with |G and the financial markets As a response
to the needs of our expenenced clients, our core apps

are extremely feature-rich and provide powerfui 1ools
However, they may not be appealing to less sophisticated
traders, discouraging them from opening an account with
us Therefore, towards the end of our last financial year

we established an operation in Eastern Europe in order to
develop apps that better suit the needs of prospective and
new chients, with the vision to recruit, educate and support
their journey to high-value customers In tandem with this
we are actively buillding the necessary marketing skills and
support to encourage app downloads and then convert the
interest shown into active chents In December we launched
the IG Major Markets app for 1Pad in the UK amed at
improving acquisition rates The app aims 1o be less daunting,
offering a simpler experience, access to a smaller suite of
markets as well as bewng hughly customisable Since then we
have added versions for different platforms and rolled 1t out
to most of our geographic locations
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I STRATEGY-.- - -
(CONTINUED)

Market leadership 15 a result of delivening the products and
services that our clients require Our strategies for achieving,
maintarming and extending market share have consistent
themes but have also been localised 1o suit each market We
are currently the No 1% global provider of CFDs and financial
spread betting and acknowledged as a recognised authority
on financial trading

Presented here 1s the background and current performance of
our three largest indwidual markets

UK

IG Index was founded in 1974, becoming the UK's first
financial spread betting company CFDs were then introduced
in 2000 under the IG Markets brand We now offer a full suite
of assets under the |G brand Qur UK business 15 based in the
City of Lendon and accounted for just over half our Group
revenue In 2015

Last year aver 60,300 active chents traded with us in the UK
and Ireland, and in the UK market we are the market leader
in spread betting by 32 percentage points and in CFDs by
13 percentage points @

AUSTRALIA

Our Australian business was establhshed in 2002 and 1s
based m Melbourne Although not first to market, we rapidly
overhauled the market leader to become the largest CFD
provider in Australia In 2014 we had a 33% market share,

16 percentage points ahead of the second-placed prowder®
Austraha represented 15% of Group revenue in 2015

The total CFD market has grown strongly over the last six years
fram 32,000 to 42,000 traders™, as the product has become
better understood and displaced the retail warrants market,
a previously popular leveraged trading product in Australia

™ No 1 CFD and spraad betting prewder for CFDs, based on revenue excluding
FX, published fimancial statements July 2015, for spread betung number of
active UK financial spread betting acceunts {Investment Trends UK Leveraged
Trading Report tuly 2014}

@ By number of active prmary accounts All market share data presented in
this repart ts provided by Investment Trends Pty Limited (please refer top the
investor Resources section on page 190 for further details)

@ By number of active Australian CFD waders {Investment Trends Australia CFD
Report, 2014)
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OUR ACHIEVE,
MAINTAIN
OR EXTEND
MARKET
LEADERSHIP

SINGAPORE

We opened our office n Singapore in 2006 Although quite
small, Singapore has a highly concentrated and financially
sophisticated population |G has grown its market share
consistently to overtake most other providers We are now
the second-largest CFD provider in Singapore, with a market
share of 17% and the second largest retall forex trading
provider with a market share of 15% Adapting to local cultural
preferences, In 2013 we opened up our first shop front office
in the centre of Singapore and this has increased the flow

of current and new clients to the office In 2015 Singapore
accounted for 6% of Group revenue and was the third-largest
revenue country within the Group




STRENGTHEN

GLOBAL b
PRESENCE e

With the opening of our office in Dubar in June we made further progress in expanding our worldwide presence to markets
where regulation allows and where the potential financial returns to IG are attractive v
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Dubas 1s the financial centre of the Middle East region and an obvious location for our expansion There are a significant number

of inancially sophisticated and high net worth indiduals in the region and gur investment in producing an Arabic language

website could ulimately prove popular to potential clients across the broader UAE We recruited a 17-strang team, giving us

full local language customer service capabilities, and, following approval of our hicence by the Dubai Financial Services Authority
(DFSA), we opened our office in June The launch conaided with Ramadan and so we delayed our first major marketing :

and media push until the end of the summer Duba: provided some of our greatest challenges to date, due to the increased o
requirement to localise the offering, but the team rose to these challenges and we are delighted to be now serving this ‘
region locally .

Switzerland was another example of a more complex setup process, requiring a flexible but disciplined approach to the

licensing process We were granted our licence by Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authonity (FINMA) in September 2014

and opened for business in Geneva in October 2014 The application process was extremely ngorous, requiring us to apply for

a full banking licence n order to be able to offer our full product set to clients there In order to comply with local requirements, L
we also had to clearly establish a process by which ¢lients could opt to ring-fence their personal data within Switzerland and

be able to operate In four languages The granting of this icence 1s a powerful testament to the quality of our people and
our growing credibility and reputation internationally It will take time for us to establish ourselves in this market but the early
progress Is encouraging and we are excited by its potential in the long term

Looking forward, we continue to have dialogue with other regulators and potential partners to explore ways to further extend
our geographic reach

It will not always be viable for us to open offices everywhere where we believe clients would benefit from cur products In light
of this in the fast year we have launched slimmed-down websites for European countries without offices These sites are fully
responsive but aim to remove the barners to converting clients to I1G by catering for additional currencies, and offering faster
identity checking and uploading of application paperwork

B Dubaiis the financial centre
of the Middle East region and
an obvious location for our
expansion there There are a
significant number of financially
sophisticated and high net worth
ndividuzls in the regron and

our investment in producing
an Arabic languege website
could ultimately prove populer
to potentiel chents across the

broader UAE
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. OUR DELIVER
—~ -STRATEGY .- - - QUALITY
{CONTINUED) SERVICE
TO CLIENTS

QOur vision 15 to deliver an industry-leading and world-class
service to our clients, and for the quality of our customer
service to be viewed as a competitive advantage Through
fast and reliable execution, transparent pricing, investment in
education and market insight resources and full segregation
of client funds, we aim to make our clients feel secure and
confident in trading with us Backing this up with the best
online support, helpdesk and service levels will position us
very well to attract and retain valuable active clients

Qur 110-strong trading services team supports our clients
across the world, 24 hours a day They are located in 8 offices
around the world, speak 12 languages and deal with around
80,000 client communications per month

We continually seek 10 imprave our service to our chents,
for example In the last year

* We introduced livechat for prospectrve clients in all our
sites and to date this has already been used for over 83,000
conversations The service 1s now offered globally to answer
queries efficiently, 1o provide reassurance and to speed
up the chient application process Livechat s also very
popular with our existing clients because it provides a more
immediate and persanal answer than email — especially
when speed 15 of the essence — and 1s more discreet
than using the phone Our teams are traned to deal with
chent quernies as quickly and comprehensively as possible
Looking ahead, we are working to increase the functionality
of our livechat tocls to enable clients and the client service
team to share screenshots to help resolve queries, we are
also exploring the potential for wdeo chat

* We have commissioned a new contact centre management
tool This tool will manage engagement with clients
across all channels, including social media and livechat,
and facilitate more regular proactive contact with higher
valve chents

* We have designed a peer-to-peer support service, which
will go live in the first half of next year, with the am being
to build a forum where clients can engage with and support
one ancther on elements of trading such as charts, mobile
apps, market events and technical analysis We envisage
this "G Community’ being a closed group for the first six
to nine months to allow us to tnial and perfect the offer
and the technology in trme we expect clients to be able to
move seamlessly between trading on the platform and peer
support, and to integrate the service into our mobile apps

26 1 1G Group Holdings plc Annudl Repert 2615

* We have developed and will soon offer ‘My IG’, where a
chent will be able to access all products and add-ons in one
place using a single logn In addwion, we plan to introduce
a major markets moves’ service that will identify significant
moves in the market which a client trades and alert them
with relevant information in a timely fashion, they will then
be able to link straight through seamlessly to place a trade

We consistently monitor both our response times and the
quality of our answers to ensure our customer service remains
industry-leading in both aspects This year

* Percentage of calls dropped or missed decreased, while
call volumes increased

* Over 90% of ematls were answered within 24 hours

* We developed a dedicated social media response strategy,
with our followers increasing by 46% over the year and daily
mentions increasing by approximately 75%

We were also ranked first in an IPSOS mystery-shopper
exerase involving UK spread betung providers, with the
survey also providing very useful insights into the areas
where we have further room for improvement Meanwhile,
our service was rated as ‘good’ or "very good’ by 89% of
spread bettors and 81% of CFD traders who responded to an
independently conducted satisfaction survey

In order to measure our progress we have also put in place a
series of more stretching targets for next year These include
answering all dealing calls within ten seconds, answenng all
customer service calls within 15 seconds, responding to chient
emails within two hours and respending to a livechat request
withtn 20 seconds

“ Survey provided by Investment Trends Pty Limited (Investment Trends UK
Leveraged Trading Report July 2014)




SUSTAIN
TECHNOLOGY
LEADERSHIP
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Our onginal concentration on delivering technological We have also built our stockbroking offer to integrate

excellence assisted us in building a highly profitable business seamlessly with all our platforms and 1t 1s currently being '
Our finanaial strength now enables us to maintain a high rolled out into selected markets around the globe We believe E
level of investment in IT development and infrastructure it 15 the most advanced offering in the market as, distinct from

to keep at the forefront of the industry, with a superior other providers, 1t provides a straightforward choice between

platform, technology, tools and resources In the last year a quote-based order ar going directly to the exchange As

this has resulted m 99 29% of deals being executed in under well as providing greater price transparency in the UK, it

0 1 seconds™ and a cere platform uptime of 99 95% @ allows clients to trade in US shares in all sessions, thereby

enabling extended hours trading We also permit clients to

We appreciate the importance of technology in underpinnin
PP P 9 P 9 Use their shares as collateral for therr leveraged trading

the trading expenence of our chients Consequently, in the

last year we have introduced various enhancements to Cur IT team remains focused on innovating to provide our

improve the client expenience, for example a more flexible clients with the latest in cutting-edge techneology to help '
layout which allows panels to be tabbed together, enabling them trade international markets For example, on 10 Apnl

markets to be dragged and drapped on to charts and into 2015, the day the Apple Watch was available for pre-order, .
watchlists, and the ability to rebase markets an charts to we announced that we were one of the first onhne trading '
imprave comparability providers to build an Apple Watch app that automatically L

installs itself on to a chient’s watch if they have the 1G app on .
thewr iIPhone Via a one-tap login, clients are able to buy and

sell stocks, trade CFDs and spread bet across a number of

asset classes, monitor their existing positions, receve push

We have also sought to support more valuable active
traders who want to deal in larger quantities by improwving
our execution of large orders and allowing clients to submit

parval orders to us For chents who are new to our products,
notfications and view upcoming market events Available in

12 languages and fully localised, this 1s our first move into
wearable technology and offers a new, ight-touch and more
Instantaneous way to trade and monitor the financial markets

we now allow permanent demo accounts, and we are allowing
chents with live trading accounts to also have an addiional
demo account where they can test automated and new
trading strategies

In addition to this activity

* We launched a web API for our more sophisticated traders,
allowing chents to automate their trading by building their
own software to create trading strategies

We rulled out the economic calendar to our mobile

apps, with push message alerts on the release of
economic figures

We also implemented changes to our mobile charts, with
improved data quality, speed and usabibty

Going forward, the strength of our platform and its proven
resilience across web, mobile and tablet devices is essential
to maintaining client satisfaction, retention and acquisition
and keeps us at the forefront of the industry We will therefore
continue to Invest to mamntan our competitive advantage

™ 99 29% of trades executed n 0 1 seconds IG globally (12 months to 31 May 2015)
@ 99 95% core platform uptime |G globally (12 months to 31 May 2015)
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KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS (KPls)

We use nine key financial and

operational performance metrics

to measure our performance
and our progress against the

short-term and long-term goals of

the business.

A 4 .9%

£388.4m
£400.2m

FY15

FY14 £3704m

N 2.8%

FY15

£2,937

A 7.9%

FY14

FY15
Fy14 126,100
w 13.0%
£169.5m
EY15S £193.2m
FY14 £194 9m
N 10.5%

35.99p
1.07p

FY15

a4 22p

FY14
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REVENUEW

Revenue performance demonstrates business growth in terms of global
reach, range of products offered ta chents, active clients and revenue per
client, and 1s also a driver of the staff bonus pool Statutory revenue grew
by 4 9% in the year, iImpacted by the extreme event mvolving the Swiss
franc Excluding this, underlying revenue was up by 8 0%, dniven by strong
performance in UK and Australia, which resulted in another record year for
the Group

REVENUE PER CLIENT!

Revenue per client 1s calculated as total revenue divided by the number of
active clients in the penod, and 1s a measure of client activity and quality
The Swiss franc event resulted in a drop of 2 8% in the headlined revenue
per chent, however underlying revenue per client marginally increased

by 0 1%

ACTIVE CLIENTS

Active clients are those clients who have opened at least one trade in the
period Active clients increased by 7 9% in the year, as a result of strategic
wntiatves, the launch of our stockbroking offering and strong customer
acquisition performance by Nadex

PROFIT BEFORE TAX (PBT)

Statutory PBT was down by 13 0% as a result of the Swiss franc event, with
underlying PBT marginally decreasing by 0 9% A detaled commentary on
our PBT performance 1s provided in the Operating and Financial Reviews

DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE {DEPS)

DEPS includes all components of the Group's performance based on
profitabiity and capital structure DEPS s a key measure in the award or
vesting of our Executive Director and senior staff share plans 1s partially with
reference to DEPS Statutory DEPS decreased by 10 5%, while underlying
DEPS increased by 2 1% over the prior year, reflecting growth in underlying
after-tax profitabiity




OWN FUNDS GENERATED FROM OPERATIONSE!

High profit-to-cash conversion gives us strong hquidity and supports our
robust nsk-management strategy and our dwidend payment Mamntaining

a ngh level of cash generauon, afier the required investment, 1s key to
delwering strong shareholder returns A detalled commentary 1s provided in
the Operating and Financial Reviews

DIVIDEND PER SHARE

Shareholder returns are central to our strategy and reflect the strength of our
business, our capital position and our expectations of future performance
Therefore and despite the unexpected Swiss franc event and its impact in
statutory results, we have mantained our total dvidend at the same leve!

as in the prior year This reflects a dividend payout policy of 78%, with our
intention always remaining to grow the dividend in absolute terms in years
when earmings are ahead

PLATFORM UPTIME

The avalability of the dealing platform g key to our chents’ confidence
trading with IG Reliability has remained strong in the current year, however
we narrowly missed our internal availabihty targets following an cutage

in Apnl This measure 1s one of a suite of non-financial iIndicators used to
determine share-plan and benus awards - an assessment 1s provided n the
Directors’ Remuneration Report

NET PROMOTER SCORE (NPS)&

FY15

FY14

FY15

FY14

EY15 99.95%

FYi4

\14.8%

£136.8m

£159.2m

£160 6m

0.0%

28 15p

v 0.02%

99 7%

To better understand how well we deliver quality service to our clients, we use NPS, as well as other measures of satisfaction, to
assess the extent of chent recommendations Over the Jast year we have seen improvements in Germany and France and, while
our absolute score has fallen across other markets, we have maintaned our ranking and compare very favourably against the
industry average This measure is one of a suite of non-financial indicators used to determme share-plan and bonus awards —

an assessment s provided in the Directors’ Remuneration Report

UK SPREADBETTING UK CFDs
1G's 1G's
most most
recent - 17% recent 7% .
NPS NP5
'ndus.ry Industry !
average. > I average 9%
AUSTRALIA GERMANY
IGs 1G’s

recent recent
NP5 16% NPS 7%

Indlustry 1 Industry
evrage 3% B average 455

SINGAPORE
1G's
recent
NP3 13%
Industry

average  19%

FRANCE

1G's
most
recent
NP5

Industry
wvCruge

™ Far FY15 two metrics are disclosed The unadjusted statutory and also the higher underlying performance that ts stated excluding the losses associated wath the

Swnss franc event

@ All NPS data presented in this report 15 provided by Investment Trends Pty Limied (please refer ta the Investor Resources section on page 190 for further details)
NP5 s calculated by asking respondents  How kely are you to recommend this company to a frrend ar colleague? Respondents reply on a 0-10 scale wath the final
NPS calculated as the percentage of promoters (those answenng 9 or 10) minus the percentage of detractors (those answering G-6)

M The shaded area indicates the underlying performance
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OUR PEOPLE
AND COMMUNITIES

After 40 years in business we
understand that sustainable
long-term returns stem from

good conduct. We seek to act
with integrity towards our staff,
our clients, our regulators and the
markets, maintaining a reputation
for quality and transparency.

As a global employer with people in 20 countries, our
commitment to our people 15 both an important part of
delhvering our strategy and a cornerstone of our success

We are committed to providing a rewarding career for each
one of our almost 1,400 employees We recogrise that having
a long-term strategy which develops our people is crucial to
our success, as well as being a factor that contributes strongly
to our reputation within the financial services industry

SUSTAINABLE BUSINESS

Our conduct as a business 1s driven by our values of
hallmark quality, passion for progress, transparency in
dealing and mentocratic opportumity These values have
been fundamental in the historic growth and success of IG
However, with growth comes the challenge of maintaining
that culture and with it appropnate conduct For that reason,
we decided to define the values set out above to support
us n realising the Group's overall wision and strategy

This has enabled us to embed sound corporate conduct
in the culture of the business, so tt1s not simply a risk or
regulatory requirement

However, canduct undoubtedly represents a real nisk to

all firms within the financial industry Consequently we
have actively engaged in the agenda and developed a risk
management strategy, entrenching vanous quantitative
and qualitative measures to identfy, measure, manage
and momtor Conduct Risk Demonstrable elements to

this strategy include among others the production and
appropnate escalation of monthly conduct nisk Key Risk
Indicators (KRls) and dashboards, a rolling plan of thematic
conduct nsk reviews, and formalised conduct consideration
pnior to project signoff

In this way we ensure effective commumication of the

tone from the top throughout the organisatton We apply
high standards across our businesses, and specifically in

our corporate governance — as set out in the Corparate
Governance Report and the Directors’ Report In compliance
with the UK Corporate Governance Code The following areas
demonstrate how we do this
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COMMITMENT TO OUR CUSTOMERS

We aim to put our customers at the heart of everything we
do, and we strive to ensure that we understand our clients’
needs and consistently delver far outcomes and positive
experiences We have a very low tolerance for poor consumer
outcomes, and we are committed to Investing In process,
training and culture to prevent unsatsfactory customer
experiences and to address root causes where any practice
falls short We maintain this polhcy even when it may have a
negative tmpact on our own revenue or costs

. We ensure that commitment to our
customers s embedded in our culture
and strategic iImtiatives, and we
regularly seek and review feedback
irom our clients This enables us to
develop our products and services
specifically to meet the needs of active
tracers globally

Central to our commitment to our customers is the quality of
our order execution We offer near-instantaneous execution,
with around 99 3% of client orders accepted automatically We
never requote prices and, outside our set margin of tolerance,
our mnavative price-improvemnent technology enables
customers 1o recewve a better price f one becomes available
as a trade 15 executed

CLIENT SUPPORT AND ERDUCATION

We offer extensive educational resources for clients, including
an introduction programme for new clients that promotes
responsible trading, and a wide range of chent seminars and
webinars We continually look to keep this content engaging
and targeted towards our clients’ needs

For example, in recognition of the feedback received from
clients and following the launch of our m-house TV studio in
2014, we have continued to increase the amount of oniginal
video content we supply This ensures our chients have instant
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access to educational resources covering everything from
fundamental trachng concepts to risk mitigation across all
their devices and in the medium they want

We also provide an extensive range of trading tools, such as
regular free news, commentary and analysis on I1G TV and wia
the Market insight section of our website We offer charting
packages and vanious techmical analysis tools that enable our
chents to screen markets for trading oppertuntties and to
receive alerts when trading signals appear

CLIENT APPROFRIATENESS

Our products are not approprate for everyone, and we
recognise that our conduct 1s particularly wital in relation to
marketing and client onboarding, in order to prevent poor
consumer outcomes ansing from them Accordingly, we
have a number of procedures that ensure our advertising
reaches the right audience, and that our clients appreciate
the nisks involved with our products and understand how our
services work

B e foliow strict guidehines to ensure
that we only promote our products 1o
a2 larget auvdience within appiopiiate
sectors and demographic groups We
also conduct rigorous checks 1o ensure
that all promotions arc clear, fair and
not misleading, and that risks are not
downplayed compared to the benefits
of our producis

Before we allow a prospective client to open an account,
we undertake an assessment to determine whether our
products are appropriate for them At account opening we
actively questron and must be satishied that clients have
the necessary knowledge or expenence to understand the
nsks involved To further assess whether our products could
produce poor outcomes, we ask clients for details of their
income and savings, both at account operuing and in rolling

reviews Based on the results of these assessments, we may
choose 10 provide an applicant with a clear warning about the
appropnateness of the product We may also dechine to open
an account for them, or iIndeed close their account if 1t has
already been opened

LIMITING CLIENT LOSSES
We have a number of services designed to help clients imit
their losses

Our clients can choose to attach guaranteed stops to ther
positions, so that they know their maximum possible loss at
the outset of the trade

Qur close-out moritor (COM), which automatically iquidates
clients’ positions when their margin has been significantly
eroded, also aims to restrict our clients’ potential losses At
31 May 2015, 99 4% of all chient accounts were subject to the
automatic COM procedure Further details are set out in note
36 to the Financial Statements

PROTECTING OUR CLIENTS DATA AND FUNDS
We pniaritise the secunty of our clients’ information and
have achieved the 1SO 27001 2005 certificate for information
security management

We fully segregate funds for retail individuals, in compliance
with the regulations, and we hold segregated client money
entirely separately from our own money across a diverse
range of banks This ensures that, in the event of our default,
client funds would be returned to the clients rather than being
treated as a recoverable asset by our general creditors

We continue to engage PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP to
conduct ongoing independent reviews of our controls and
procedures for chient money calculation and segregation
(ISAE 3000} In commiting to this review process, we have
taken an additional step, over and above standard audit
checks and our regulators’ reporting requirements This
reflects our dedication to keeping our chents’ funds secure
and delivering beneficial outcomes for customers
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OUR
-PEOPLE AND .
COMMUNITIES

{CONTINUED)

OUR PEOPLE

The Group provides a dynamic and friendly working
environment for almost 1,400 employees, located around
the world We believe that our people should take pride in
what we achieve together, should have a powerful sense
of belonging to G Group, and should know that we fully
recogrise the crucial role that the quabty of our employees
plays in our success

In order to attract and retain the nght people, we offer a
competitive reward package to recognise past performance
and encourage our key talent to be part of our future We
believe that working together as a team 1s key to our global
success and so to complement our market-related salary
structure, we also include over 90% of our employees in

a group bonus scheme which 1s completely inked to the
financial success and ongoing stability of IG This bonus 1s
then distributed on an individual performance related basis
{tdentified through an annual performance-appraisal system)
We also reward our high potential employees through
long-term incentive plans The remainder of our employees
have specific sales-related bonus schemes

Linked to our belief in our employees investing in 1G, we are
happy to offer employees tax-advantaged share purchase
schemnes in the UK, Australia and the US An average of 33%
of eligible employees tock part in our share plans in 2014

To complement these direct financial rewards, we also
provide a full range of appropriate benefits, ncluding
pension contnbutions In the UK, we contnbute up to 10%
of an employee’s basic salary to thew pension, provided
the employee contributes 5% of their salary i they choose
to contribute less than 5%, we will contribute double the
individual rate We are ‘auto-enrolment’ compliant, having
met our planned staging date in November 2013, as part
of the government’s workplace pensions reform, and
continue to have over 85% participation in our UK Group
pension schemes
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EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT

We believe that understanding our employees’ motvations,
concerns and feedback in general 1s crucial in allowing us
to decide what employee engagement iniratives we take
forward each year It s for this reason that we have again
partnered with IBM to deliver our employee engagement
survey and were dehghted to have an 85% response rate
this year

In terms of highlights, we are pleased to report that over
90% of our employees feel that there 15 a strong sense of
teamwork and cooperation within IG Similar numbers feel
a strong sense of befongmg and involvement and over 0%
feel that there 15 a clear future wviston and trust the senior
leadership of IG

This year, 98% of employees who completed our engagement
survey agreed that IG has an outstanding future and just

over 90% have trustin senior leadership to deliver against

the vision Both these questions scored above extemal

global benchmarks

In terms of work in progress, we still have work to do n clearly
setting out career and reward structures and are working with
our managemeni team to help them explain and develop
performance management processes

In summary, this data continues to provide invaluable insight
to what our employees feel about working for us around the
globe Working with a world leader ike IBM means that we
continue to be able to benchmark our results agamnst global
high-performing organisations and the finance sector




DIVERSITY AND EQUALITY

We are committed to maintaining a diverse workforce at all
levels of the Group We believe that diversity 1s a broad 1ssue,
encompassing vanations in an indwidual's expenence, skills,
age and background, as well as more traditional diversity
factors such as ethnic origin and gender Qur total employee
gender breakdown 1s shown to the nght

Commercially and for every other best practice reason, we
are an equal opportunities employer We strangly believe
that to succeed as a global business, we need to make the
most of the potential workforce in every country that we work
within As such, we have extensive human resource policies

In place to ensure that we attract the nght people and that
once working with us, our people can expect to develop 1n an
environment free from disenmination and harassment

For this reason, we continuously reinforce the need to treat
all employees fairly We are committed to creating a wark
environment free from bullying, where everyone 1s treated
with dignity and respect, irrespective of positon or grade
within the organisation

We give full consideration to applications for employment
from disabled persons, where the candidate’s aptitudes and
abilities are consistent with meeting the requirements of the
Job Where existing employees become disabled, whether
on a temporary or permanent bass, 1t 1s our policy to provide
continuing employment wherever practicable in the same or
an alternative position, and to provide appropnate training
and/or graduated back-to-wark programmes, in conjunction
with the occupational health professionals to achieve this am

LEADERSHIP, MANAGEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT
With our strategic management team having been with us for
over nine years on average and therefore having developed
their careers within the Group, we recognise the strength of
having a stable and long-serving workforce This 1s especially
true within the decision-making core, and as such we
continue to invest in developing our employees worldwide
while improving the quality of learming opportunities

We have recently implemented an online learning and
policy-management system, which 1s accessible by all of

our employees wherever they are located in the world We
are making every effort 1o enhance the system's content

as well using this system as a means to record our policy
based traiming

Our new recording studio 1s enhancing our internal
cormmunications and allowing our sentor team to reach out to
all of our offices with our popular "Views from the Bndge’ - a
series of videos featuring members of the senior management
tearn which aim 10 ensure that our key leadership messages
reach all of our people around the globe

In terms of gender, our workforce 1s made up as follows

BOARD
MALE 7
FEMALE 1

FERCENTAGE
FEMALE 13%

STRATEGIC
MANAGEMENT TEAM®

MALE 10
FEMALE 3

PERCENTAGE
FEMALE 23%

SENIOR
MANAGEMENT TEAM®

MALE 41
FEMALE @

PERCENTAGE
FEMALE 18%

TEAM MEMBERS
MALE 919
FEMALE 357

PERCENTAGE
FEMALE 28%

TOTAL
MALE 977
FEMALE 370

PERCENTAGE
FEMALE 28%

™ The strategic management team 1s defined as the employees responsible for
planning directing and controlling the actvities of the Group

@ The serior management 1eam 15 defined as the sirategic management team
plus the Directors of the subsidiary comparies included in the consolidated
Financial Staternents
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We support our staff in their continuing personat and
professional training and development, and encourage
attendance at external and industry-recognised training
courses, sponsoring our people to undertake formal
education programmes and achieve professional
quahfications We also offer internal secondments, both

in terms of pure raiming of newer employees and more
strategic, longer-term appomtments, which allow individuals
to wark in our smaller offices and provides an epportunity for
growth and expanding skill-sets

We have made further progress this year {as measured by our
annual employee engagement survey) in terms of the senior
team aruculating our vision and strategy for the future Our
next goal 1s to allow our future generation of leaders to carry
on with this important leadershup skill, as well as ensuring that
we are building a strong group of managers equipped with
the competences and behaviours to take 1G forward

Last year we agreed a new set of leadership behaviours for
our managers, and during the 2015/2016 appraisal cycle,

we will actively measure performance against these metncs
There are four core principles communicating with others,
leading by example, developing people and bemng passionate
about results

We continue to support our managers in therr ongoing
traning with our Inspirattonal Bevelopment programme
which focuses on the outcomes of 360° feedback and the
behawviours associated with generating high performance

All of our strategic and semior management team have
attended at least one structured programme over the past
18 months and our more junior managers attend a Transition
to Leadership programme, which speaifically targets the
process of developing from a technical specialist to a leader
of people
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TALENT MANAGEMENT

Retention of talent can be challenging m companies with
relatively flat organisational structures, and we recognise

the importance of encouraging people to grow and stretch
themselves in roles that have limited scope for verucal
movement We also acknowledge that it is important to
employees to understand where they are in their career and
salary progression and 1t 1s with this in mind, and in answer
to feedback from our employee engagement survey, that we
launched our salary grading cornrmunication this summer It 1s
one of our core values to be transparent in dealing with our
employees n all areas, but particularly with regard to career
and salary aspirattons

We have had career pathways and associated competency
frameworks in place for key areas of the business for a
number of years now and we continue to build on these

The frameworks describe what 1s needed for exceptional
performance in each role and provide space for indiwviduals to
strengthen thewr performance in readiness for future honzontal
or vertical moves We continue to expand our mentoring
programmes with the aim of not only motivating and
developing the careers of employees with high potential, but
also providing advancement opportunities for our mentors

To attract new, high-calibre staff, we offer three graduate
schemes, in [T, operations and finance Graduates joining the
IT and operations schemes follow a 12-month training plan
before we assign them to a permanent position The finance
scheme s longer term, aiming to train graduates as qualified
accountants within the team Graduates joining IG benefit
from the support of a business mentor, access to cross-
business placements, structured training plans and reviews,
which fast-track their development to first-role competence n
their chosen area




EMPLOYEE INVOLVEMENT

We take pride in being an open, non-hierarchical
orgamisation, with direct and open access among all teams
and at all levels The Chief Executive Officer addresses all
employees every six months, at the half-year and full-year
points, and presents the Group’s financial results, business
updates and plans for the future He and other members
of senior management maintain a schedule of overseas
office visits and take these opportunities to address each
local employee audience, while we also make full use of our
in-house TV studio to record interviews with key members
of the business, mncluding the CEQ, to ensure a consistent
message 1s sent out to all our offices

TOP EMPLOYER

Our positive workplace culture continues to be recognised as
IG celebrates being named as one of Britain's Top Employers
for the erghth year running in 2015

The Top Employer certification s awarded only to
orgarusations that meet the highest standards in human
resource management, and we are very proud to be a long-
standing recipient The award, by the Corporate Research
Foundation, 1s based on a strong performance in each

of the audited categories pay and benefits, training and
development, corporate culture and career development

SOCIETY AND EMPLOYEE 5SPONSORSHIP

We are keen to encourage our people to engage m activities
that both help their own development and support facal
communities, so we are proud to support a wide variety

of different charities that are close to our employees’

hearts We match any funds our employees have raised for
sponsored events

To make the most of charitable donations, we continue

to work with the Charities Aid Foundation, allowing our
employees to operate a chanty fund and make contributions
to selected charities from gross earnings, directly from therr
monthly pay

Not only do we support chanties with gifts of money, but also
by providing time and resources Gur absence-manayement
policy offers the opportunity for our people to take up
valuntary work, for which we grant additional leave on a
like-for-like basis up to a maximum of five matched days per
annual leave year

HEALTH AND SAFETY

We believe that our employees are one of our most valuable
assets, and we are committed to providing each employee
with a safe and healthy working erwvironment

Health and safety s an integral part of our business, and by
prawiding key members of staff with the relevant extemal
traiming, and all other staff with appropnate in-house training,
we ensure that we camply with all statutory health and

safety requirements

WELLBEING

We are fully committed to our employees” health and
wellbeing, and the benefits we provide to all employees
include private medical cover, permanent health nsurance and
hie assurance

To help our people enjoy healthy Ifestyles, we reimburse
50% of the costs of employees’ annual gym subscriptions,

up te a specified amount, on a global basis We also support
cycling, and we offer our staff savings on bicycles under

the government-backed cycle-to-wark initiative, as welt as
providing free-of-charge bicycle parking at our London office

We support our employees’ wellbeing by providing a
confidential employee assistance programme that offers a
24/7 telephone counselling service to all our Head Office
employees and their immedsate families

Our people can use this service for impartial advice on all
matters, from housing to personal finance
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OUR
PEOPLE AND i
COMMUNITIES

(CONTINUED)
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OUR ENVIRONMENTAL {MPACT

As a business which conducts nearly all of its client trades
online and undertakes no industnal actvues, we do not see
ourselves as a significant emitter of environmentally harmful
substances However, we understand that we need to take
any necessary actions to ensure that we mitigate the impact
of our operations on the surrounding environment

B Running and maintaining our IT
infrastructure comprises the mam
source of our environmental iImpect
This supports our ewerd winning
platform and ensures we are able to
consistently mamtain our high level of
platform uptime

Powering and cooling our datacentres results in the majority
of our power usage — as well as our energy costs As such,
we update our hardware and software as approprate 1o save
money and energy

This year we continued replacing a number of our rack servers
with new blade technology This has allowed us to integrate
power and cooling technologies across the server estate

and provides a considerable saving in energy and costs

We recycled the legacy hardware in accordance with our
internal recycling policy, ensuring that any data was securely
destroyed before recyeling the remaining compenents

Our global offices follow our datacentres as the second
largest consumer of energy A number of energy-saving
processes I1s in place and we are committed to a far-reaching
recycling policy This encompasses not only a proportion of
our daily office waste, but also extends to our [T equipment
when we replace hardware, while trying to ensure that we use
any desktop equipment for its maximum useful life Our head
office building, where more than half of our employees are
based, 15 also 1ISO 14001 certfied, and we complement this
environmental-management system with our own sensor-
hghting to reduce our energy use In addition, we have

used PIR technology in both of our newly opened offices in
Dubai and Geneva and we invested in the mast modern and
energy-efficient personal computers and penpherals, in line
with our commitments
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The global nature of our business, with employees located

in 20 countries, results in the need for our people to travel
around the globe to prowvide local support for staff and clients
We have taken further steps to mimimise these journeys by
installing state-of-the-art ideo-conferencing equipment in
two more of our globa! locations, taking the tally of offices
offering this facility up to nine

We provide emissions data in respect of the financial year |
ending 31 May 2015 in the Mandatory Greenhouse Gas

Emissions Report and Greenhouse Gas Emissions Intensity

Ratio tables to the nght In the tables, Scope 1 emissions are

those incurred in air conditioning our offices and running

back-up generators for our servers, while Scope 2 emissions

are purchased energy such as electricity For the most

significant sources of energy consumption discussed above,

we purchase electricity via our landlords

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Greenhouse gas emissions are calculated on the basis of
financial control, with the emissions data included for the
companies consolidated in the Financial Statements, noting
the Statement of Exclusions given below

* We have based our methodology on the principles of the
Greenhouse Gas Protocol

* We have reparted on all the measured emissions sources
required under The Comparies Act 2006 (Strategic
Report and Directors’ Report} Regulations 2013, except
where stated

¢ This includes emissions under Scope 1 and 2, except where
stated, but excludes any ermissions from Scope 3

Conversion factors for electricity, gas and other emissions are
those published by the Department for Environment, Food
and Rural Affarrs for 2014-2015

STATEMENT OF EXCLUSIONS

Global diesel use (for vehicles) has been excluded from
the report on the basis that it 1s not matenal to our
carban footprint |

The scope of reporting for our fugitive emissions has been |
restricted to the United Kingdom Other regions have been
excluded due to lack of data or iImmateriality




EMISSION CATEGORY

Il Operation of facility
B FPurchased energy
[ Combustion

EMISSION SOURCE

Electricity
F-gas
Diesel
Gas

Vehicles*

* Global diesel use {for vehicles) has been excluded from the report on the
basis that i1 1s not matenal to our carbon footprint

MANDATORY GREENHOUSE GAS
EMISSIONS REPORT

Tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent (tCO,e}

Emission type

Scope 1 aperation of facillities 16177
Scope 1 combustion 3492
Total Scope 1 emissions 196 7
Scope 2 purchased energy 4,007 &4
Total Scope 2 emissions 4,007 64
Total emissions 4,204 34

GREENHQUSE GAS EMISSIONS INTENSITY RATIO

Total footprint

{Scope 1 and Scope 2)-tC0O e 4,204 34
Turnover (fm) 3884
Intensity ratio tCO e/fin) 10 827
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CHIEF FINANCIAL
OFFICER'S REVIEW

'2015 once again highlighted the
strength of IG’ financial position

and business model that allows

it to invest in future growth while
maintaining our ordinary dividend at
approximately 70% of earnings.’

Christopher Hill
Chief Financial Officer

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Swiss franc de-pegging event in January, which has

been discussed at length in this document, means that we
address here both underlying numbers, excluding the impact
of this event, and the statutory financtal results We consider
the underlying results to give a clearer indication of the
performance of the business through the period

IG delivered record underlying'” revenue® in the penod of
£400 2 million, 8 0% up on the prior year {2014 £370 4 million}
Underlying profit before tax was £193 2 midl:on, 0 9% behind
the prior year {2014 £194 ¢ million) and underlying profit after
tax was up by 2 4% at £150 7 million (2014 £147 2 millien},
with the prior year having been restated slightly upwards for
an industry-wide change in the accounting treatment of the
FSCS levy Underlying diluted earnings per share was 41 07
pence, 2 1% ahead of the prior year (2014 40 22 pence)

On a statutory basis, Group revenue was £388 4 milhien, 4 9%
ahead of the prior year, with profit before tax of £16% 5 million
and profit after tax of £131 9 million The Group effective tax
rate reduced to 22 2% from 24 5% in the prior year, as the fall
in the UK corporation tax rate continued to feed through
Statutory diluted earnings per share was 35 99 pence, down
10 5% from the prior year {2014 40 22 pence)

Overall, active client numbers for the year were ahead of
the prior period by 7 9% at just over 136,000, while average
revenue per chent was flat at £2,937 Underlying revenue

i the second half of the year was slightly ahead of the first
half, with the first half marked by the difference between the
two quarters, the first quarter was very subdued, while the
second quarter was a record for the Group and contamed
the record month of October, when increased newsfiow

and a sigrwficant sell-off in financial markets produced more
trading opportunities for chents Revenue from forex trading
increased through the year, returning to more normal levels,
with evidence of more volatility in this asset type after a very
guiet spell in 2014

IG remains highly cash-generative and we have sought to
reflect this in the duect cash returns to shareholders Last
year the Board raised the Crdinary dividend payout ratio to
approximately 70% Although statutory earnings this year are
behind due to the impact of the Swiss franc incident, both the
business and the market opportunity remain strong In line
with our progressive dimdend policy, the Board made clear at
the time of the first half results in January its intention to hold
the full-year dividend flat on 2014 at 28 15 pence, and so the
Board s recommending a final dvidend of 19 70 pence




All following references to revenue are with respect to the underlying® revenue®

Underlying' revenue®®

FY15 FY14
% change in
Revenue Clients Revenue Chents revenue per chent
fm 000s fm 000s from FY149
UK 219 604 1927 593 80%
Europe 809 297 821 260 {14%)
Austraha 592 187 522 180 9 3%
Rest of World 48 2 273 434 228 {7 3%}
Total 400 2 1356 1 3704 1261 01%
Statutory revenue
FY15 Fy14
% change in
Revenue Chents Revenue Clents revenue per client
fm 000s fm 000s frorn FY149
UK 2060 04 1927 593 50%
Europe 769 297 821 250 (18%)
Austraha 581 187 522 180 72%
Rest of World 474 273 434 228 (8 8%)
Total 3884 1361 3704 1261 (2 8)%

" The term underlying reflects the results before the impact of the Swiss franc event (refer to note 2 of the financial statements)
@ All references 10 ‘revenue  this statement are made with regards 1o net trading revenue Net trading revenue s rading revenue excluding interest on segregated

chent funds and 1s presented net of inroducing partner commissions

M The financ:al tables above contain numbers which have been rounded while all year-on-year percentages are calculated off underlying unrounded numbers

UNITED KINGDOM

The UK segment comprised the offices in London and
Dublin Revenue in the UK was 10% ahead of the prior year
at £211 2 million (2014 £192 7 mullion} First half revenue
(£106 8 million) was shghtly ahead of the second half

(£105 1 million}, with the UK benefiting from a very strong
performance n the second quarter, as clients in this region
responded more immediately to increases in market volatiity
Active client numbers were 1 9% ahead of the prior year at
just over 60,000 Active chent numbers in the second half

of the year were around 2% ahead of the first half Revenue
per client for the year was 8 0% ahead of the prior year, at
around £3,500, with particular strength in the second quarter,
driven by the very active October The UK segment accounted
for 53% of Group revenue in the period, agamst 52% in the
prior year

An annual study of the UK’s retail leveraged-trading industry,
released towards the end of 2014, showed that IG's market
share of spread bettors had fallen slightly from 41% to 40%
and our share of CFD traders had faller from 34% 10 26%,

IG remained the clear market leader in both categories The
study also showed a decline in the overall size of the market
for these trading instruments, from 93,000 to 89,000 retail
traders Drawing precise quantitative conclusions from these
resulis 1s increasingly difficult The measurement 1s based

purely on the number of primary accounts and makes no
allowance for the value of indwdual client value, and does
not reflect IG's focus on active retail traders, who generate a
disproportionate percentage of the total ndustry revenue

The launch of the stockbroking offering in the UK and Ireland
took place In September 2014 The proposition was then
strengthened in November with the launch of the collateral
service which allows clients to use their equity portfalio as
margn for therr leveraged trading By the end of May there
were over 4,000 funded stockbroking accounts, 65% of which
are new to |G, and of which around 3,300 had traded There
15 also early evidence that a proportion of clients who began
as stockbroking chents are going on to use the leveraged
trading products
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AUSTRALIA

The Australia segment comprsed the Melbourne office and
also includes revenue from New Zealand and other countnes
in the Asia Pacific region In Australia, revenue for the year
was up by 13 4% to £59 2 million {2014 £52 2 million} As
with the broader Group, Australia revenue was stronger in
the second half of the year, delivering £30 5 million against
£28 7 million for the first half The first half was held back by
the particularly quiet first quarter As with the UK, the second
quarter was a record for this region and was followed by a
mare consistent second half Here we experienced good
growth in active chent numbers, up 3 9% against the prior
year Active client numbers in the second half of the year
were 8% up on those in the first half In [ine with the UK, as
one of the more mature reqions, average revenue per chent
was ahead of the prior year by @ 3% The Australia segment
accounted for 14 8% of Group revenue in the year, against
14 1% in the prior year

During the year, an annual market research study concluded
that IG's market share of the retad CFD industry had fallen by
five percentage points to 33%, although it remains the clear
industry leader As for the UK, this simple measure 1s based
on number of pnmary accounts Internal analysis suggests
that any loss of share was concentrated towards the lower end
of client activity and value Encouragingly, in the same time
penod, the market size increased from 41,000 participants

to 42,000

EUROPE

The Europe segment compnsed the German, French,

ftalian, Spanish, Dutch, Swedish, Norwegian, Luxembourg
and Swiss offices Overall, revenue performance in Europe

in the penod was disappointing Revenue feltby 1 5% to

£80 9 million (2014 £82 1 million} Revenue was equally spht
between the two halves of the year, although in line with the
UK and Australia, the second quarter was a record penod

for Europe The growth in client numbers accelerated, up by
14 3% on the prior year, with growth across all countries in the
region However, this was more than offset by a fall in average
revenue per chent, which fell to £2,720 (2014 £3,156), due

to a number of factors including currency conversion, lower
overnight funding revenue, chents trading 1n smaller size and
increased hedging costs in relation to German 30 contracts
The European segment accounted for 20 2% of Group
revenue In the year, against 22 2% 1n the prior year
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During the second half of the year, annual market research
studies were published for Germany and France They
concluded that IGs market share of the retail CFD industry
in Germany had fallen by three percentage points to 10%,
and in France 1t had nisen by six percentage points to 28%
Drawing precise quanttative conclusions from these results
15 increasingly difficult, given the measurement 1s based
purely on the number of primary accounts and makes no
allowance for the value of indwidual ¢hient value In the
same time penod, the market size In France stayed flat at
19,500 participants and increased in Germany from 45,000
participants to 47,000

REST OF WORLD

The Rest of World segment comprised the offices in Singapore,
Japan and South Africa and our retall exchange, Nadex, in
the US Revenue for the penod in the Rest of World region
was ahead of the prior year by 11 1%, at £48 2 million (2014
£43 4 milhon) All countnes in the Rest of World segment
expernenced growth, with particutarly strong results in

South Africa (up 27% to £6 5 million) and the US (up 68% to
£5 3 million}, but also good contributions to the growth from
Singapore {up 3 5% to £23 8 milon) and Japan {up 3 3% to
£12 6 milbon) Overall revenue per chent was down due to the
mix effect of the particularly strong growth in the US, where
average revenue per client 1s structurally lower due to the
nature of the product set As a result of the US acceleration
through the year, revenue was weighted towards the second
half, which delivered 55% of the revenue The recovery in
trading in forex over the prior year was also stigraficant, as
Singapore and Japan are particularly heavily weighted towards
this asset class The Rest of World segment accounted for

12 0% of Group revenue in the penod, against 11 7% in the
prior year

As reported in the half-year results, an annual market research
study concluded that IG's market share of the retail CFD
industry tn Singapore had fallen by one percentage point to
17%, with the overall market size remaining stable at 17,000,
following two years of shrinkage

FACTORS IMPACTING REVENUE

The tight distnibution of our daily revenue during the year 1s
illustrated in the chart to the nght The single loss-making day
highlighted by the chart 1s that for 15 January when the Swiss
National Bank ceased mtervention in the franc exchange rate

The absence of proprietary trading by IG and the hedged nature
of the business model -1 e hedging with third parties to cover
the residual nsk above preset rmits — tends to deliver a more
stable revenue stream, irespective of the direction of underlying
market movements During the year we have undertaken an
extremely detalled analysis for certain of our nsk limits - more
detail 15 provided in the Chief Executive’s Statement
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ASSET MIX

IG has conssstently benefited from the broad range of asset
classes it enables clients to trade, resulting in a more stable
revenue stream in different market conditions This year we
derived 48% of our underlying revenue from clients trading
inchces (2014 47%} and had another strong year in shares
trading, delivering 17% of Group revenue (2014 20%} Chent
forex trading delivered 19% of Group revenue, down from
20% n the prior year, but margmally up at an absolute level
The remaining 16% of revenue came from clients trading
binares and commodities (2014 13%}

Indices Commodiues Forex  Binanes Shares
Ravenue {£m)
40
50
40
30
20 :

a1 Q2 Q3 Q4 an Q2 Q3 Q4

FY14 FY15

40

Revenue (£m)

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Summary Group Income Statement

Year ended  Year ended Restated*
31 May 2015 31 May 2015 Year ended
Underlying Statutory 31 May 2014
fm fm fm
Net trading
revenue'™ 400 2 3884 3704
Net interest on
segregated clent
funds 45 45 55
Betting duty
and financial
transaction taxes (59 63 (38
Other operating
income 06 06 21
Net operating
Income 3994 387 2 3742
Admintstrative
expenses (206 1) (217 &) (178 8}
Qperating profit 1933 169 6 1954
Net finance
expense (R} 01} 0 5)
Profit before tax 1932 1695 1949
Tax expense (42 5) (37 &} 47 7)
Profit for the year 1507 1319 147 2
Diluted earmings
per share 4107p 35 99p 40 22p
Total dividend
per share 28 15p 28 15p 28 15p

" Net trading revenue I1s trading revenue excluding interest on segregated
chent funds and 15 net of intreductory pariner cammissians

* Comparative periods have baen restated to reflect the change in timing of
recognition of the FSCS levy in accordance with IFRIC 21 Levies
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NET OPERATING INCOME

Statutory net trading revenue, although negatively impacted
by the Swiss franc event, increased by 4 9% to £388 4 milhon
(2014 £370 4 mllion)

Underlying net trading revenue i1s 8 0% ahead of the prior year
at £400 2 million (2014 £370 4 million)

Net interest income on segregated chent funds decreased by
£1 0 milion to £4 5 million (2014 £5 5 million) This was driven
by depreciation in the Australian base interest rate and low
margins received on sterling and euro money depasits from
the banks throughout the year following their response to
Basel Ill changes in 2014

Betting duties paid by the Group, in refation to losses for
spread betting clients, increased by £2 4 million to £5 8 milhon
(2014 £3 4 million} including 2 £0 4 million negative iImpact
due to the Swiss franc event The ltalian Financial Transaction
Tax incurred by the Group marginally increased to £0 5 milhion
from £0 4 million last year

Other operating income for the year ending 31 May 2014
includes income of £1 4 million in relation to a revenue share
arrangement with Spreadex Limited, following the sale of
the Group's Sport business client hst in 2012 The agreement
ended on the 23 June 2014 and therefore the income in

the current financial year 1s just under £0 1 milbon Other
operating ncome also includes mactwity fees, introduced in
February 2013 and are applied te any account that has not
traded for more than two years and has a positive account
balance As expected, the charge reduced to £0 5 million
(2014 £07 mulhon)
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ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Statutory administrative expenses increased by 21 7% to
£217 6 mllion (2014 £178 8 million), following the iImpact
of the Swiss franc event and the additional operating costs
associated with the Group’s strategre development

Underlying administrative expenses increased by 15 3%

to £206 1 mulion (2014 £178 8 million) This includes

the infrastructure and additional marketing to support

the core business and vanous ininiatives, including the
expansion into Switzerland and Dubal, the roll-out of
execution-only stockbroking and investments in mobile and
web-based technology

As a result, each of employee remuneration costs, advertising
and marketing and legal and professional fees are higher than
in the prior year

Year ended Restated*
31 May 2015 Year ended
Statutory 31 May 2014

fm fm
Employee remuneration costs 943 893
Advertising and marketing 378 N7
Prermises-related costs 11 100
{1, market data and
communications 164 138
Legal and professional 59 43
Regulatory fees 7 54
Net charge for mpaired trade
receivables 162 16
Other costs 181 130
Depreciation & amortisation 107 Q7
Statutory administrative
expenses 217 6 178 8
Swiss franc event
Employee remuneration costs 36 -
Bad and doubtful debt (151} -
Underlying administrative
expenses 2061 178 8

* Comparative peniods have been restated to reflect the change in tming of
recognition of the FSCS levy in accordance with IFRIC 21 Levies’

In the year ending 31 May 2016, the Group will continue to
invest In its growth strategy The Group anticipates a further
increase n administrative expenses at a level similar to that
seen on an underlying basis {or this year




EMPLOYEE REMUNERATION COSTS
Employee remuneration costs increased by 5 6% to
£94 3 rmilhon (2014 £89 3 million) in the year

The average headcount increased by 20 3% year-on-year,
however, due to the change In the staff mux, which reduced
the average salary by 8 4%, total salary costs increased by
9 6% Inclusive of national iInsurance and pension costs,
employee remuneration costs compnse

Year ended Restated*
31 May 2015 Year ended
Statutory 31 May 2014
£m fm
Total salarnies 740 650
Performance-related bonuses
and comrmissions 140 172
Share schemes 63 71
Statutory employee
remuneration costs 943 893
Swiss {rane event
Performance-related bonuses
and commssions 31 -
Share schemes 05 -
Underlying employee
remuneration costs 979 89 3
Average headcount 1,287 1,070
Year-end headcount 1,400 1,153

* Comparative penads have been restated to reflect the change n uming of
recogmtion of the FSCS levy in accordance with IFRIC 21 Levies

The £3 2 million reduction in statutory performance-related
bonuses and share-based payment schemes charges reflects
the Group’s finanoal and non-finanaial performance measures
which were heavily impacted by the Swiss franc event The
impact of the Swiss frane event itself on the staff bonus pool
and share scheme vesting and therefore charges, is estimated
as £3 6 million

Headcount across most departments was higher year-on-
year Overseas |T and marketing development teams, in
particular, have grown further to facilitate the development of
a broader range of mobile apps alongside ongoing platform
improvements projects As at 31 May 2015, IT headcount

was 603 (2014 497), an increase of 21 3% compared to the
previous year

ADVERTISING AND MARKETING COSTS
Advertising and marketing costs increased by £6 1 mullion to
£37 8 mullion (2014 £31 7 million)

This year saw a change 1n focus between online and offine
advertising, with online spend increasing as we continue to
optimise and support our digiial marketing approach The
Group's geographical expansion, with increased marketing
spends in Switzerland and later in the year in Nadex, has also
added to the increase
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The main marketing campaigns run in the year focused on
iG's 40th birthday, ‘Live Every Trade’ TV campaign and the
new stockbroking offering launched during the year

The Group 1s now In the second year of the three-year
partnership with Harlequins Rugby Club and 15 one of three
principal partners of the club The partnership 1s consistent
with the Group's strategic approach to increase visibility of the
|G brand and value proposition

OTHER EXPENSES

Premises-related costs were higher at £11 1 million (2014

£10 0 million) The increase n costs reflects the full-year effect
of the offices opened during the latter part of the last financial
year in Switzerland and Eastern Europe and also the costs
incurred in relation to the Dubai office opened in 2015

IT, market data and communication costs include the cost
of IT maintenance and short-term licence arrangements as
well as market data fees from exchanges The increase of
costs from £13 8 million in the prior year to £16 4 miilion 1s
due to a change in software agreements from perpetual
licences to cloud software This has resulted in more items
being expensed, rather than capnalised, and ulumately
amortised This change s also reflected in the reduction of
software amortsation

Legal and professional fees, which include audit, taxation,
legal and other professional fees, mereased by £1 6 milhon
to £59 miliion (2013 £4 3 million) The increase was pnimanly
driven by professional fees incurred in relation to the generic
top-level dumain operation

Regulatory fees increased by 31 5% to £7 1 million (2014
£5 4 million) The level of FSCS levy paid by the Group
remains dependent on investment intermediary firms'
fallures and the eventual compensation paid Accordingly,
thrs charge 1s outside of Group's control and 1s hard 1o
accurately forecast

During ithe year the Group changed its accounting policy
for recogrusing the costs of the FSCS levy to reflect
gurdance provided in the IFRIC 21 ‘Levies’ standard The
standard requires the Group to recogrise in full an estimate
of the FSCS levy for the applicable year on 1 April each
year A full explanation is provided in the Group’s intenm
consohdated financial statements for the six months ended
30 November 2014
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The Group also pays other regulatory fees to the FCA in the
UK, as well as regulatory bodies in other junsdictions where
it operates

The net charge for imparred trade receivables was significantly
higher compared to the previous year, increasing to

£16 2 million {2014 £1 6 milion) The increase was largely due

to £15 1 million charge relating to the Swiss franc event which

resulted from an oniginal debt amount of £18 4 milhion Out of
this debt total, £2 8 million has been recovered to date

Other costs include bank charges, training, travel, recrurtment
and irecoverable sales taxes The mcrease 1s primarnily
attnbutable to higher recruitment fees driven by the increase
in headcount, and higher irrecoverable sales taxes following
the increase in advertising and marketing spend

Depreciation and amortisation increased by £1 0 million
to £10 7 mitlion (2014 £9 7 million), partly due to the
amortisation of IT development costs

OPERATING PROFIT MARGINS

The Group uses operating profit margin, which includes
an allocation of central costs, as an indicator of regional
performance (refer to note 4 of the financial statements
Segment Information

Statutory operating profit decreased 13 2% to £169 6 million
{2014 £195 4 millien} Underlying operating profit, which
excludes the impact of the Swiss franc event, decreased by

1 1% The Group statutory operating profit margin {operating
profit expressed as a percentage of net trading revenue)
decreased to 43 7% (2014 52 B%)

The following table summarises operating profit margin
by region

Year ended Yearended  Restated*

31 May 31 May Year ended

Operating profit 2015 2015 31 May
margin by region  Underlying Statutory 2014
UK 57 2% 521% 611%
Australia 60 3% 59 2% 60 1%
Europe 27 6% 181% 389%
Rest of World 30 2% 29 5% 333%
Group 48 3% 43 7% 52 8%

* Comparative peniods have been restated to reflect the change in tming of
racogniton of the FSCS levy n accordance with IFRIC 21 Levies
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Underlying operating profit margin fell to 48 3% (2014 52 8%)
driven by lower margins in UK, Europe and Rest of World
Thus reduction reflects the ongoing investment in strategic
development For Europe the reduction in underlying profit
margin i1s particularly marked and dniven by a combination of
a fall in underlying revenue and the direct costs associated
with the newly established operation in Switzerland The Rest
of World region includes the new office in Dubai that did not
contribute to revenues during the year ended 31 May 2015

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Statutory profit before taxation reduced by 13 0% to

£169 5 million (2014 £194 9 mullion) Profit before tax margin,
calculated with reference to net trading revenue, decreased
to 43 6% (2014 52 6%)

Underlying profit before taxation reduced by 0 9% to
£193 2 milhon (2014 £194 ¢ mullion)

TAXATION EXPENSE

The effecuve rate of taxation for the year ended 31 May 2015
decreased to 22 2% compared to a rate of 24 5% for the pnior
year The effective rate for the current year has benefited
from the reduction in the UK corporation tax rate to 20 0%
The Group’s effective tax rate 1s dependent on the mix of
geographic revenue and profitability as well as the tax rates
levied in those geographies

The calculation of the Group's tax charge involves a degree of
estimation and judgement, in particular with respect to certain
items whose tax treatment cannot be finally determined untl
agreement has been reached with the relevant tax authority
{refer to note 10 of the financial statements)

DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Siatutory diluted earmings per share decreased to

35 99 pence from 40 22 pence i the year ended 31 May 2015
{refer to note 11 of the financial statements)

Underlying diluted earmings per share increased 2 1% to
41 07 pence (2014 40 22 pence)

Diuted earnings per share 1s used as a primary measure
of underlying profitability and as a financizl measure in
relation to the Executive Director and semior management
share plans

DIVIDEND POLICY

IG remains highly cash-generative and we have sought to
reflect this In the direct cash returns to shareholders Last
year the Board raised the Ordinary dividend payout ratio to
approximately 70% Although statutory earnings this year are
behind due to the impact of the Swiss franc incident, both the
business and the market opportunity remain strong In line
with |G’ progressive dividend policy, the Board made clear at
the time of the first half results in January 1ts intention to hold
the full-year dividend flat on 2014 at 28 13 pence, and so the
Board s recommending a final dividend of 19 70 pence




SUMMARY GROUP CASH FLOW

The following cash flow statement summarises the Group's
cash generation dunng the year and excludes all cash flows
in relation to monies held on behalf of clients In order to
provide a clear presentation of the Group’s hquid assets both
amounts due from brokers and financial investments have
been treated as ‘cash equivalents’ and included within ‘own
funds’ A more detailed version of the cash flow presented
below and the dernvation of own funds are provided in note
19 to the financial statements

Year ended Year ended Restated*
31 May 31May Year ended

Operating profit 2015 2015 31 May
margin by region  Underlying Statutory 2014
Operating activities
Profit before tax 1932 169 5 1949
Depreciation &
amortisation 107 107 @7
Other non-cash
adjustments 31 {0 5} 38
Income taxes
paid (47 8} (429} (47 8}
Own funds
generated from
operations 159 2 1368 160 6
Movement in
working capital n/a 79 (33
Qutflow from
investing and
financing
actvities n/a {126 3) (96 8)
increase in own
funds n/a 184 605
Own funds at
start of peniod n/a 487 3 4293
Exchange profits/
{losses) cn owmn
funds nfa 14 {25
Own funds at
end of period n/a 507 1 487 3

* Comparativa penods have been restated 1o reflect the change in trming of
recognition of the FSCS levy in accordance with IFRIC 21 Levies

Cash generation remains strong with statutory own
funds generated from operations of £136 8 million
(2014 £160 6 million}

Underlying own funds generation was broadly flat at

£159 2 milhon (2014 £160 6 milhon) The underlying cash
conversion rate, calcutated as own funds generated from
operations dwided by profit before tax, has remained strong
at 82 4% (2014 82 4%)

'Own funds’ increased by £18 4 million {2014 £60 5 million}
after adjustments for movements in working capital balances
and significant outflows in relation to mvesting and financing
activities The outflow from investing and financing actmities
includes £12 4 million in relation to capital expenditure
(2014 £11 5 milhon) and £112 8 million {2014 £84 8 rrulhon}
in refation to the final 2014 and intenm 2015 dividend
payments The Group made investments of £6 4 million on

a combination of IT development and software assets (2014
£8 1 mullion) Cash investment in tangible fixed assets total
£6 0 million (2014 £3 4 million) and compnise £5 0 million

on IT hardware and £1 0 million on the fit out of the newly
leased offices

LIQUIDITY

The Group’s quid assets comprise cash balances available
to the Group for its own purposes and exclude all monies
held in segregated client money accounts The Group's
businesses are also entitled to use "title transfer funds’ in the
UK and customer deposits held by the banking subsidiary in
Switzerland in normal business operations Therefore these
are mcluded in the statement of financial positton and the
Group’s liquid assets

An element of the Group’s iquidity 1s not available for the
purposes of the centrally performed market risk management
as 1t 1s held in overseas businesses for the purposes of local
regulatory and working capital requirements or Is currently
held within segregated client money bank accounts to
ensure the Group's segregation obligations are met At 31
May 2015 the unavailable cash increased by £37 2 million
from that unavailable in the prior year to £86 4 million (2014
£49 2 million} primanly as a result of additional capital
requirements in each of Switzerland and Duba

Avallable hquid assets enable the funding of large broker
margin requirements when required and should be
considered in the context of the intra-year high broker
margin requirement of £293 7 million (2014 £290 3 mullion),
the requirement to hold a hquid assets buffer, the continued
growth of the business, the Group’s commitment to
segregation of mdmdual clients’ money as well the final
proposed dwidend for the year ended 31 May 2015, all of
which draw upon the Group’s iquidity

Net available iquidity 1s disclosed in the table below and
represents the Group’s avalable iquidity inclusive of the
liquid assets buffer and after the payment of broker margin

=
"

.
P

PR
"

4
rx
>
o

m
2a
- =
[a]

N

1G Group He'dings plc Annual Report 2015 | 45




CHIEF
' FINANCIAL
OFFICER’S :
REVIEW

(CONTINUED)

Restated*
31 May 2015 31 May 2014
fm fm
Own funds 5071 487 3
Client funds held on balance
sheet 169 210
Total iquid assets 5240 508 3
Less amounts required to
ensure appropriate chent
money segregation — other
amounts due to the group {27 8) {20 4)
Less amounts required for
regulatory and working capital
of overseas businesses {58 B) (28 8)
Avatlable hgquid assets 437 6 459 1
Less broker margin requirement (204 8) (285 1)
Net available iquidity 2328 174 0
Of which held as a hquid assets
buffer 831 825

* Comparative penods have been restated 1o reflect the change in tming of
recognition of the FSCS levy in accordance with IFRIC 21 Levies

In order to mitigate iquidity risks, the Group regularly

stress tests its three-year iqurdity forecast to validate the
appropriate leve! of committed unsecured bank facihties
held During the year the facility was drawn on a number of
occasions dunng penods of high broker margin requirements
or when there was a perception of higher volatility and nisk in
the financial markets Subsequent to the year-end, the Group
undertook a review of s contingent hquidity requirements
and, upon approval from the Executive Risk Commitiee,
concluded to reduce its facihties to £160 0 million (refer to
note 39 of the financial statements)

A detalled analysis of the Group's lquidity and the management
of iquidity nsk are provided in note 19 to the financial statements
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REGULATORY CAPITAL RESQOURCES
Throughout the year, the Group maintained a significant
excess over the capital resources requirement, both on a
conschdated and indwidual regulated entity basis

The Group considers there are significant benefits to being
well caprtalised at a tme of contnuing global economic
uncertainty The Group 1s well placed in respect of any
regulatory changes which may increase our capital or iquidity
requirements, and high levels of hquidity are important in

the event of significant market volatility The Group's hquidity
requirements have historically been, and remain, significantly
in excess of its regulatory capital requirements The total
regulatory capital requirement remains significantly below the
necessary iquidity levels

The new CRD IV requirements that came into force on

1 January 2014 require deferred tax assets relating to future
profitability to be deducted from Tier 1 Capital n the
determination of capital resources for the Group

The following table summarnses the Group's Pillar 1 capital
adequacy on a consolidated basis

Restated™

31 May 2015 31 May 2014

fm fm

Shareholders’ equity 5914 5659

Investment in own shares 12 11

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital 592 & 5670

Less

Intangible assets (124 Q) {1227}

Investment in own shares (12) 11

Deferred tax assets™ 71 7N

Total capital resources {CR) (a) 460 3 4361
Capital resources requirement —

Pillar 1 (CRR) (b} (111 3) (115 4}

{a-b) 3490 3207

= Comparative pencds have been restated to reflect the change in uming of
recogrition of the FSCS levy in accardance with IFRIC 21 Levies

W The new CRD IV requirernants which came into force on 1 January 2014
require deferred tax assets relaung to future profitability to be deducted from
Tier 1 Capital to deterrmine capital resources for the Group




SUMMARY GROUP STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

Restated*

31 May 2015 31 May 2014

fm fm

Property, plant and equipment 133 130
Intangible assets 1240 1227
Financial investments 755 322
Deferred tax assets 71 71
Non-current assets 2199 1750
Trade and cther receivables 2818 397
Cash and cash equivalents 148 8 1015
Financial investments 329 503
Current assets 463 5 4915
Total assets 683 4 6665
Trade and other payables 789 803
Income tax payable 131 203
Current habilities 920 1006
Redeemable preference shares - -
Non-current habilities - -
Total habilities 920 100 6
Total equity 5914 5659
Total equity and liabilities 6834 666 5

* Comparative penods have been restated to reflect tha change in tming of
recognitien of the FSCS levy in accordance with IFRIC 21 ‘Levies

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

As discussed in the Chief Executive’s Statement, the Group
continues to invest in technology both to enhance chient
expenence and to improve the capacity and resihence of
dealing platforms, each of which 1s enuical 1o the success of
the business

Intangible assets purchased during the year include £1 5 millson
(2014 £1 8 million), for a suite of country-code and generic top-
level domams that are directly relevant to our business

Intangible assets also include goodwill of £107 1 million
{2014 £106 7 milon), primarnily arnsing on the acquisition

of 1G Group Ple and its subsidianes in 2003, the goodwill
associated with the acquisition of Nadex of £5 0 million (2014
£4 6 million) and the goodwill arising on the acquisition of
our South African business of £1 2 million (2014 £1 2 milhon)
{refer to note 16 of the financial statements)

Capitalised investment in relation to development costs
and software and licences amounted to £4 4 million {2014
£6 0 million) largely relating to the development of the
share trading platform Durning the year the Group also
invested £5 9 million in property, plant and equipment {2014
£3 4 million) This included £4 6 milhon (2013 £2 5 million} in
refation to IT equipment

CURRENT ASSETS

Trade and other recewvables include amounts due from
brokers, amounts due to be received from segregated

chent money accounts and prepayments Amounts due

from brokers represent cash placed with counterparttes in
order to prowde initial and vanation margin in relation to the
Group’s market nisk management Amounts due from brokers
have decreased to £239 2 mill:on (2014 £303 9 mullion)
resutung from lower broker margins than at the prior year-
end dnven by the Group's hedging of clients' futures and
shares positions

CLIENT MONEY AND ASSETS

Total monies held on behalf of chents at year-end was

£930 5 million (2014 £879 4 million) of which £913 6 million
(2014 £858 4 million) 1s segregated i trust bank accounts
and treated as 'segregated client money' and therefore
excluded from the Group Statement of Financial Position

Of the remaining monies, £11 4 mithon (2014 £21 0 million}
represents ‘utle transfer funds' where the client agrees, under
a Title Transfer Collateral Arrangement (TTCA), that full
ownershup of such momes s unconditionally transferred to the
Group, while the remaining £5 3 milion (2014 £nl) relates to
customer deposits with our banking operation in Switzerland

Although the levels of client money can vary depending on
the overall mix of financial products being traded by clients,
the long-term increase In the level of client money placed by
chents with the Group 1s a positive indicator of future chent
propensity to trade

FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

During the year the Group increased the holding of UK
Government Securities from £82 5 million as at 31 May 2014
to £108 4 million at 31 May 2015 The additional secunty 1s
held at broker as collateral to support the hedging of chent
market exposures in accordance with the Group's market

risk management policy The value of securities held against
potential hguidity stress under BIPRU 12 1s broadly flat on the
prior year

LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables include amounts due to chents in
relation to both utle transfer funds and customer deposits
with the Group’s Swiss banking subsidiary as welt as accruals
and other payables

Trade payables have decreased by £4 2 million from 31 May
2014 due to the decrease in the number of title transfer clients
from £21 0 million as at 31 May 2014 to £11 6 million as at 31
May 2015 parually offset by an increase in amounts due to
chents of £5 3 million i relation to the customer deposits with
the banking operation in Switzerland {2014 £nil)

Income tax payable has fallen to £13 1 milion at year end
(2014 £20 3 miflion) reflecung the lower corporation tax
charge for the current financial year following both lower
statutory profitability and a lower overall effective tax rate
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MANAGING OUR
BUSINESS RISK

Our strategy depends on the effective
management of our business risks. By
identifying the nature and potential

impact of these risks, we can design and
operate processes that ensure that they
are effectively controlled and mitigated.
Over time, we have developed a robust
and consistent Risk Management
Framework that we continually seek

io improve.

In this section we explain how we manage nisk in accordance
with our Risk Appetite Statement (RAS) and Risk Management
Framework We also explain in detall the key nsks we face, our
governance structure for nsk, and the reporting cycle that we
use to monitor and report on risk

RISK APPETITE STATEMENT (RAS)

The RAS is at the heart of our nsk management framework

It defines the amount of risk that the Board is prepared to
accept, both on an indvdual risk and aggregate basis, In
pursuit of its business objectives and strategic goals The RAS
provides parameters within which the business can operate,
and 1s reviewed by the Board We have identified three main
types of nsk affecting our business, and we explain these in
more detall later in this section

1 BUSINESS MODEL RISKS

These are rnisks we actively manage and are able to measure,
control and assign hmits and parameters to

s Credit nisk - see page 51

* Market risk — see page 51

¢ Ligquidity nsk — see page 51

2 INDUSTRY RISKS

These are risks we accept as ansing from operating in

the financial services sector For these risks we set a risk
tolerance rather than a nsk appetite They include (but are not
limited to}

* Financial institution credit nsk - see page 51

s Operational nsk - see page 52

¢ Regulatory risk — see page 52

e Conduct nsk — see page 53

* Technology {IT} nisk - see Operational Risk, page 52
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3 ENVIRONMENTAL RISKS
These are risks over which we have minimal control
They include {but are not mited 1o}

* Natural disasters such as floods, earthguakes and
disease epidemics

» Strikes and civil unrest

The RAS contains a set of statements and Key Risk Indicators
{KRlIs) These balance quanutative and qualitative measures to
provide an indication of increasing or declining nisk levels over
an appropriate timescale

They are designed to alert our Board and management that a
nsk 1s approaching, or has exceeded, an acceptable level, and
we momitor them on an ongoeng basis The Board receives
regular reports on our performance against the KRls, and the
Board reviews the KRIs in conjunction with the RAS annually

OUR RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

In order to establish effective governance over risk according to
our RAS, we have developed a Risk Management Framework
to identfy, measure, manage and monitor the nsks faced by the
business Our Risk Management Framework provides the Board
with assurance that we have understood and managed our nisks
as far as possible, within appropriate boundanes It comprises
our Risk Governance Framework and Risk Reporting Cycle

CUR RISK GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

The diagram opposite sets out the framework for the Board
and executive committees, independent control functions
and ongoing business operations that exercise governance
over risk

Responsibihities of the Board
The responsibilities of the Board in relation to nisk
management are to

* Set and review the RAS and the KRIs

* Review and challenge updates from the Board
Risk Commuttee

Review and challenge the system of internal control and
nsk management

Review and challenge capital and liquidity stress-testing

Approve the Corporate Governance Report in the
Annual Report

Board committees

The Board 1s supported 1n its monitoning of the Risk
Managernent Framework by the Board Risk, Audit and
Remuneration Committees

Last year, we formed the Board Risk Committee in recogmtion
of the Board's continued development of the Group's focus
on nsk managernent The committee provides the Board with
a more in-depth Jevel of understanding of, and governance
over, the Group's nsk framework This 1s becoming
increasingly iImportant as we expand our reach and extend
our product range, at the same time as global regulators
continue to strengthen thetr regimes




THE BOARD

BOARD COMMITTEES

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEES

Senior
Nomination { Remuneration Audit Board Risk | Executive Risk | ICAAP & ILAA | Client Money | Accounting
Committee Committee Committee Comrmuttee | Commattee Committee Committee Officer Review by
Committee internal
audit of risk
and internal
Finance | Risk | Complance | Ltegal controls

BUSINESS OPERATIONS

Internal controls implemented by management |

The Board Risk Committee’s responsibilities in relation to nisk
management are to

* Consider, and recommend for approval by the Board, the
RAS and KRls for the current and future strategy

* Monitor, rewew and challenge the Internal Capatal
Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) and Internal
Liquidity Adeguacy Assessment ([LAA)

* Ensure ngorous stress-testing and scenano-testing of
the Group's business and receive reports that explain the
impact of identified risks and threats

* Ensure that nsk mitigation consistent with our nsk appetite
15 1n place

* Review the Group's major nsk exposures

* Consider the adequacy and effectiveness of the technology
infrastructure and supporting documentation in the Risk
Management Framework

* Provide input to the Remuneration Committee on the nsk
implications of the remuneration policy

The Audit Commitiee’s responsibilities in relation to
nsk management are to

* Receive an annual report from the Board Risk
Committee on the Company’s internal controls and Risk
Management Framework

Review an assessment of the control environment, via
internal audit reports, and progress on implementing both
internal and external audit recommendations

* Momitor and review the internal audit function’s
ellecliveness in the overall conteat of the Group's internal
controls and risk management systems

The Remuneration Committee’s responsibility in relation

to nsk management s to review the structure and level of
remuneration throughout the business and assess the impact
of remuneration on nsk

An overview of all the Board Cormmitiees’ man duties and
activity during the financial year is set out in the Corporate
Governance Report, and the Chairman of each commuttee has
provided a review of its actity for the year in the Corporate
Governance Report

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEES

Execulive Risk Committee

The Executive Risk Committee 1s an executive committee
chaired by the Chief Risk Officer Its role 1s to oversee day-
to-day nsk management activity across the Group The
committee generally meets weekly to ensure that it deals

with 1ssues as they arise, reflecting the semior management's
commitment to playing an active role in nsk management
decision-making It also sets the tone across the Group that
risk management is central to corporate culture The Board
receives copies of the Executive Risk Committee minutes

Chent Money Committee

The Client Money Committee 15 chared by the Chief Finaneial
Officer, who 1s responsible for overseeing our processes

and controls over segregating client funds and the Financial
Conduct Authonty (FCAY's chient assets (CASS) operational
oversight function The committee meets monthly and
recewes reports from a number of control functions, enabling
it to monitor the effectiveness of our global processes and
controls for segregating client money

ICAAP and ILAA Committee

In addition to managing individual rnisks, we stress-test

and scenarto-test as part of the Internal Capital Adequacy
Assessment Process (ICAAP) and the Indmdual Liquidity
Adequacy Assessment (ILAA) These assessments test

the potential iImpact on capital and iquidity of a senes

of combined nsk events The committee meets monthly

and oversees the results of the ongoing stress-testing and
scenario-testing process, ensuring that risks are continuously
identified and assessed

Senior Accounting Officer Commitiee

The Senior Accounting Officer (SAQ) Committee 1s
responsible for reviewing and challenging the processes
and controls put in place to ensure we comply with HMRC
requirements to certify that each of our UK subsichiaries 'had
appropriate tax arrangements throughout the financizl year’
The committee reports to the Chief Financial Officer, who s
the designated SAO

Control functions

Addional levels of assurance are provided by control
functions, which are independent of the business operations —
namely finance, nisk, compliance, legal and internal audit The
control functions provide periodic reporting to the Board and
executive committees as appropnate

Business operations

In addition to the control functions, we have embedded nsk
management into our underlying business operations Heads of
departments are responsible for mamtaining nsk registers and,
where necessary, taking action to mitigate risks and enhance
the control environment The nisk and compliance control
functions use these registers In coordinating the identification,
measurement and monitoring of nsk across the business
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MANAGING
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CQUR RISK REPORTING CYCLE
The diagram below represents the flow of information and feedback that supports the Risk Governance Framework

QUR
KEY RISKS

BOARD REVIEW

CREDIT BOARD AND EXECUTIVE COMMITTEES

Remuneration | Risk | Client Money | ICAAP and JLAA |
Senior Accounting Officer

b A 4
REPORTS ACTIONS
¢ Periodic reporting : c | i
;o Control AUDIT
LIQUIDITY » Monthly nsk reporting (iIncluding Key : Actons :‘— COMMITTEE
Risk Indicators) : :
* Internal audit —p: A »

Risk registers

Most significant risks Monitored by

OPERATIONAL internal audrt

External audit control report
* ICAAP and ILAA
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BUSINESS OPERATIONS

CONDUCT
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OUR KEY RISKS
The following section descnbes the key risks that we face and
the steps that we take in order to manage these risks

Credit risk

Credit risk 1s the nisk that a counterparty fails to perform

its obligations, resulting in financial loss Our credit nsk is
managed on a Group-wide basis The principal sources of
credit risk to our business are from financial institutions and
indiwvtdual chients

Finanaial institution credit risk

All financial nstitutions with which the Group has a
relationship are subject to a credit revew Exposure limits are
set and approved by the Executive Risk Committee

We monitor a number of key metrics on a daily basis in
respect of financial institution credit nsk These include
balances held, change in short-term and long-term credit
rating and any change in credit default swap (CDS) price

The Group 18 responsible, under vanous regulatory regimes,
for the stewardship of client monies These responsibilities
include appointing and periodically reviewing institutions
where we deposit chent money Our aim s that all financial
mstitutions holding cltent money and assets should have a
minimum Standard & Poor's short-term and long-term rating
of A-2 and A- respectively Where this 1s not possible, we

set low exposure hmits and seek to use the best avalable
counterparty - preferably one that 1s considered locally
systernic and therefore most likely to receve support We also
maintain multiple brokers for each asset class

We monitor our exposure to financial institutions with whom
the Group holds money through a dally review against
financial kmits and diversification critena

Chent credil nsk

Client credit nsk principally anses when a client’s total
deposited funds are insufficient to cover any trading losses
incurred In particular, client credit nsk can arise where there
are sigruficant, sudden movements in the market, due to high
gensral market volatility or specific volatility relating to an
instrument 1n which the client has an open position

We mitigate, but do not eliminate, chent credit nsk in a
number of ways We only accept clients that pass certain
suitability eriteria, and our training programme aims to
educate clients in aspects of trading and risk management, as
well as encouraging them to collateralise their accounts to an
approprate level We also conduct a pre-deal credit check on
every chent order

We offer a number of sk management tools that enable
chents to manage their exposures, including

* Guaranteed and non-guaranteed stops

¢ Limit orders

* Extended trading hours

* Trading via mobile platforms

In addition, we manage our overall credit nsk exposure
through real-time manitoring of client positions via our ‘close-
out monitor’ {COM) and through the use of iered margining
The COM s an automated process whereby accounts which
have fallen below the liquidation threshold are automatically
dentified and closed

For a small number of generally long-standing chents, we
grant credit against unrealised losses, with credit terms such
that any losses arising are payable immediately on the closure
of transactions

Both the ctese-out monitor and client-initiated stops result
in the transfer of market risk to the Group Market nsk anses
follow:ng the closure of the underlying client position as
the Group (subject to the market nsk Imits, ciscussed in
the following section}, may hold a corresponding hedging
position that will, assuming sufficient market hiquidity,

be unwound

For more information refer ta note 36 to the
Financial Statements

Market nisk

Market nisk s the risk that the fair value of financial assets
and financial liabiities will change due to movements in
market prices

We manage market risk on a real-time basis, morstonng all
client positions against market nisk limits set by the Executive
Risk Committee for ‘operational efficiency’ The Group
operates within these imits by hedging our residual market
nsk exposure We do not take proprietary positions based

on an expectation of market movements As a result, not all
net client exposures are hedged and the Group may have a
residual net posiion in any of the financial markets in whrch it
offers products up to the market nsk limst

QOur technology enables us to monitor our market exposure
constantly and in real time If exposures exceed our pre-
agreed limits, our risk-management policy requires that we
hedge the positions to biing the exposure back into line with
these limits

For more information, including our nsk limits and
residual exposures at 31 May 2015, refer to note 356 to the
Financial Statements

Liquidity risk
Liquidity sk 1s the nisk that we will be unable to meet
payment obligations as they fall due

We manage hiquidity nsk by ensuring that we have sufficient
hquidhty to meet our broker margin requirements and other
financial liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed
conditions We carried out an Individual Liguidity Adequacy
Assessment during the year and, while this applies specifically
to the Group’s FCA-regulated entities, 1t provides the context
within which we manage liquidity throughout the business

Due to the very short-term nature of our finanaial assets and
liablities, we do not have any matenal mismatches in our
hquicity maturity profiles Short-term hiquidity ‘gaps’ can arise,

« %

2
Ao
>
o4

m
A
5@
(]

1G Group He dings p'c Annuel Ropert 2015 | 51




MANAGING
OUR BUSINESS
RISK

i
| (CONTINUED)
!
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due to our commitment to segregate all individual chent

funds If a ssgnificant market fall occurs, and assuming our
client base holds a net long position which we have hedged,
we are required to fund margin payments to brokers before
releasing funds from segregation Dunng penods of very high
client activity, or of significant directional movements in global
markets, we may need to fund higher margin requirements with
our brokers to hedge increased underlying client positions We
do this from our own available iquidity

At 31 May 2015 we had total available hquidity, mduding
cormmitted unsecured facilities and after accounting for broker
margin, of £724 0 million (2014 £708 3 million) This includes
the hquid assets buffer, which consists of £83 1 million of UK
government secunties We hold this, as required by the FCA, to
provide a safeguard in times of stress

We monitor total available liquidity on a daily basis, including
our committed unsecured facilities We perform daily stress
tests and regularly stress-test our three-year liquidity forecast to
validate the level of committed unsecured bank facilities that we
hold At the year-end, these amounted to £2000 millian (2014
£200 0 rullion), with £120 0 milhon availlable for one year and
£80 0 million avalabte for three years Qur Japanese business,
IG Markets Securtties, has a ¥300 0 milfion liquidity facility as at
31 May 2015 (2014 ¥300 Q mulhon)

For more information on how we calculate our total available
liguidity, see note 19 to the Finanaal Statements

Operational nsk

Operational nisk 1s the nisk of financial loss due to iInadequate
or faled internal processes and systems It can also anse from
human error or external events that we cannot influence

Our approach to managing operational nsk 1s governed by the
fuisk Appetite Statement and Risk Management Framewark We
have designed and implemented a system of internal controls to
manage, rather than elimmnate, operational risk

The reliability of our client trading platforms is key to deliverning
our strategy, and we invest significantly in the technology
infrastructure to ensure that these platforms are operauonally
stable, with system access being centrally controlled Qur
nvestment supports the restlience and rehability of the platform,
ensunng low levels of latency, mantaning and testing system
capability under significant load and conducting penetration
testing The Executive Risk Committee reviews our Key Risk
Inchcators on a monthly basis, a process which indludes
monttoring levels of core system uptime and deal latency

In order to ensure that we prowvide our clients with a consistent
and uninterrupted leve! of service, we run a complete disaster-
recovery scluton This nvolves a fully functional secondary
site with real-time replication of all systems across the two
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locations and fully independent power supplies We support
these systemns with ongoing business-continurty planring and
regular testing

All our IT and data secunty systems conform to the ISO
27001 2005 information Secunty Management System standards

Cyber nsk s a constant threat in the modem online environment
We have a dedicated team which has implemented a robust,
multi-layered system, providing round-the-clock manitoring and
intruder-prevention controls

Regulatory risk
We regard regulatory nsk as one of our most significant nisks In
short, we define regulatory risk as

Change nisk the nsk that one of our regulators intraduces
new regulations or the regulatory environment itself changes,
either making our business less profitable or our products
more difficult or mpossible to offer

Expansion nsk the risk that pelicy and regulation in
junsdictions where we do not currently operate remain
anerous and closed to our business model, imiting our
geographic expansion oppartunities

Breach nsk the nisk that we breach a regulation that applies to
our business, leading 1o client or market detnment, sanctions,
fines, reputational damage and, in extrermne situations, loss

of licence

We invest sigruficant uime and resources to manage and
contral our regulatory nsk in parallel with the development of
bustness strategy

Change nisk

The regulatory environment continues to evolve, and there
are a number of events, policy imttiatives and proposals in
development that may impact or have already impacted our
sector, as follows

* Change to UK membership in the European Union the Group
business in continental Europe 1s offered pursuant to the
EU passporting regime for finangial services Any change to
the UK's membership status of the European Union could
have an impact on how the Group s able to operate in the
European Union

» French marketing restrictions there are ndications that French
regulators may implement measures that would restnct the
ability for firms like ourselves to advertise complex financial
products to retad clients The impact of these measures walf
depend on whether the measures are introduced and, if so,
the form in which they are introduced We have also seen
other European regulators in markets where we operate
introduce guidelines on the selling of complex products
this year

¢ Swass franc market dislocation extreme market events such as
was seen earlier in the year regarding the Swiss franc can result
n increased regulatory scrutiny across our industry

Financial Transactions Tax (FTT) in the European Uruon the
Enhanced Cooperatron FTT effort, nvolving 11 of the 28
member states, has continued this year We have expended
significant efforts throughout the year to mantain an aceurate
knowledge of the status of this tax iniiative, to understand
the many stakeholders’ interests and views and to ensure
IG's voice 1s heard in the debate It remains unclear what the
ultmate outcome of the Enhanced Cooperation FTT will

be, and although progress 15 extremely slow recent thetonc
suggests increased political will for the introduction of an
Enhanced Cooperation FTT The lack of detall makes the
potentiat impact on our revenue from Europe very difficult to
assess We continue to monitor developments carefully




* European Markets Infrastructure Regulation (EMIR} the
man impact of this legislation on our business 1s increased
reporting requirements to trade reposrtories Potentially,
we will also be impacted in the medium-to-longer term by
the International Organization of Securites Commissions
{I0SCQ), European Secunties and Markets Authonty (ESMA)
and European Banking Authonty (EBA)s work on margin for
over-the-counter trading, but the rules on this have not yet
been settled

¢ Markets in Financial Instruments (MIFID) Il the MIFID 11
dossier has continued to develop this year The MIFID Il and
Markets in Financial Investments Regulation (MIFIR) Level One
texts were adopted last year and there has been significant
work on the preparation of the detaled Level Two texts We
remain of the view that MIFID [11s unlikely to pose a threat to
our UK and European businesses We continue to monitor
MIFID Il carefully and to take part in industry consultation
where appropnate

Packaged Retall Investments Products Regulation {PRIPS) this
will impose an obligation on us from May 2016 to provide our
UK and European clents with information about our products
n a standardised form We do not anticipate this having a
negative Impact on our business

Monetary Autharity of Singapore (MAS) regulatory framework
for margined denvatives As previously reported, in 2013 the
MAS cenfirmed that it would push forward with its proposal to
increase margin requirements for non-accredited investors on
a forex trade from 2% to 5%, thereby reducing leverage from
50 times to 20 times  Although these rules have not yet been
introduced, we consider that there is a good possibility that
they will be introduced 1n the future If they are introduced, it
15 Intended that the rules will not apply to accredited investors,
defined by wvirtue of therr wealth or ncome level We believe
that the majonty of IG% revenue currently comes from clients
who would qualify for accredited investor status In addition,
the use of guaranteed stops enables chients to further manage
leverage levels

Common Reporting Standard (CRS) this 1s being
implemented in just under 100 countries {including the UK
and all countries where IG has offices} to facilitate a global
exchange of nformation on income and wealth of individuals
and organisations as a measure to counter tax evasion On-
boarding processes will need to be updated to identfy and
report nformation on clients resident in countries who have
already signed up or will sign up to CRS

Base Erosion and Profit Shifing (BEPS) The Organisation

for Econormic Cooperation and Development (OECD) has
develnped a series of action plans to address percewed
international tax avoidance by high-profile multinationals
None of the action plans are expected to sigmificantly impact
the Group's tax profile

-

Foreign Account Tax Complance Act (FATCA)} reporting of
accounts held outside the US by US persons, or in the Crown
Dependencies and Overseas Territones by UK residents
Onboarding processes have been updated to idenufy clients
where we have a reporting obligation and the first round of
reporting is in progress

Capntal Requirements Directive IV (CRD IV) and Capirta!
Requirements Regulation {CRR)

The European Union [EU) began implementation of Basel

Il the European Union (EU) via the Capital Requirements
Directive IV (CRD IV} and the Capital Requirements Regulation
{CRR) on 1 January 2014  The Regulation applies directly to all
member states, while the directive required implementation
by the national regulator, the FCA in our case

These measures have introduced many different requirements
for us, bath since implementation and over the coming years

The main areas of relevance include

- changes to capital requirements
> new capital buffers in the capital conservation and
countercychical buffers {phased in approach to 2019)
> introduction of the leverage ratio (measure of
exposures without nisk weighting)
> removal of Tier 3 capital and re-use of deferred
tax assets

- changes to hquidity requirements
> introduction of hiquidity coverage ratio (LCR)
> introduction of net stable funding ratio (NSFR)
- other changes, including
> new corporate governance and
remuneration standards
> additional capital and liquidity reporting {COREP)

We have modelled the impact of the regulations as they
currently are scheduled to be implemented and expect
no significant changes to our corporate governance or
remuneration structures, as well as no significant impact
on our caprtal or hquidity position
We seek to mitigate change nsk by engaging with our
regulators and policymakers as much as possible, as part of
policy consultations and more generally, and also by investing
in public relatrons programmes and ensunng we have access
to up-to-date information on regulatory change

Expansion risk
Like change nsk, we seek to mitigate expansion nsk by

engaging with regulators and peolicymakers in countries where

we do not yet operate, but which are desirable targets for
our future expansion Of course, requlatory change can also
represent an opportunity for our business, and we are in talks
with certain regulators who are considering changing their
regulations in order to allow retall dervatives trading These
discussions are still at an early stage

Breach risk

Qur complance, legal and risk teams provide a robust

line of defence to ensure that our processes and controls
are effective in ensunng we comply with our regulatory
obligations Duning the year, the Group has successfully
undergone a number of external reviews into key areas such

as chient money and information security, gving us assurance

that we are managing and controlling breach nsk well As
our business hecomes more complex, this nsk also grows,
and we remain committed to increasing cur investment in
our framework to manage nisk controls

In summary, we work closely with our regulators to ensure
that we operate to the highest regulatory standards and can
adapt quickly to regulatory change We are commutted to
engaging proactively with regulators and industry bodies,
and will continue to support changes which promote
protection for clients and greater clarity of the risks they
face However, we cannot provide certainty that future
regulatory changes will not have an adverse impact on

our business

Conduct rnisk

This 1s the risk that the Group's conduct poses to the
achievement of fair outcomes for consumers or 1o the
sound, stable, resilient and transparent operation of the
financial markets Put another way, conduct nisk 1s the nisk
that the manner in which we carry out our business causes
poor outcomes for our chents or the markets

The Board has developed a conduct risk strategy that
applies across the organisation putting cansumer outcomes
at the heart of the business We have undertaken and
continue to undertake training to fully embed this strategy
nto the current business practices and culture of the Group
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CHAIRMAN'S
INTRODUCTION
TO CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

This is my first report to you on
corporate governance at I1G. | was
elected Chairman of the Board of
|G in October 2014, succeeding
Jonathan Davie, who retired at
the AGM, having served ten years
as Chairman.

The Board of Directors is responsible for the governance of the
Company We are committed to mantaiming the highest standards
in the way the Company s directed, governed and managed We
believe that good quality governance underpins IG's ability to
deliver sustainable future growth and long-term value creation

After a long and extremely successful career at |G, as both CFO
and CEQ, Tim Howkins has infarmed the Board of his intentian
to retire He will step down from the Board as a director and
CEQ at the AGM in October We have commenced a search and
selection process for his successor Peter Hetherington, currently
Chief Operating Officer and an IG Board member since 2002, wilt
assume the position of Intenm CEOQ at the end of the AGM

In 2014 we announced that, after nine years of service, Roger Yates
will stand down from the Board as Senior Independent Director
and Chairman of the Remuneration Committee We have begun

a search for hus successor to enable a smooth handover ahead of
his departure at the AGM in October this year More information

15 set out In my Nomination Committee report that can be found
on pages 66 to 67 | would like to thank Roger, on behalf of the
Board and the whole of IG, for his commitment and exceptional
contnbution and wish him well for the future

To ensure that the Board has the appropnate balance of relevant
expernience, knowledge and skills to discharge its responsibilities,
we review its membership on a regular basis Our [atest review
identified the need for greater digital expenence and so we have
begun a search for a Non-Executive Director with these skills

Last year, we strengthened our governance framework by creating
a Board Risk Committee to provide more focus on nsk and nsk
management issues There 1s continuous interaction between the
Audit and Board Risk Committees Stephen Hill and Jim Newman
report on the activities of the Board Risk Committee and the Audit
Commuttee respectively later in this report

At the 2014 AGM, our shareholders approved our Directors’
Remuneration Pclicy The Remuneration Committee has operated
In accordance with the policy and its repart can be found on pages
681093

As Chairman, my primary role is to provide leadership for the
Board and to ensure we have an effective and well-functioning
Board Each year, a formal evaluation of the effectiveness of the
Board and its committees is conducted This year, we undertook a
questionnaire-based independent external evaluation of the Board
and its commiutiees Next year, we will conduct externally faclitated
face-to-face interviews The results were reviewed by the Board
along with the actions from the 2014 internal review In summary,
the review concluded that the Board and its committees continue
to operate effectively More information on the evaluation process
and its findings can be found on pages 63to 64

The Corporate Governance Report that follows details the Group's
governance framework and its management practices and,
together with the Directors’ remuneration report, addresses how
the Company has applied the principles of the Code for the year
ended 31 May 2015

NS e

Andy Green
Chairman
21 July 2015




CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE
STATEMENT

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The UK Corporate Governance Code ('the Code’} sets out
the standards of good practice in relation to how a company
should be directed and governed As we have a Premium
Listing on the London Stock Exchange, the Company reports r
in accordance with the Code pubhshed in 2012 The Code
is published by the Financial Reporting Counal {FRC} and
further information can be found on its website at frc org uk

The Board has reviewed the Code and considers that the
Company has been compliant with its provisions for the year
ended 37 May 2015
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OVERVIEW OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK AS AT 31 MAY 2015

1
SHAREHOLDERS ,

Elect the Board

|

THE BOARD

4— Appoint the auditors

Four independent Mon-Executve Directors {NEDs), three Executive Directors and Non-Executive Chairman

l

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

] l

w
BOARD COMMITTEES ’ ’ EXECUTIVE COMMITTEES ' s
enior

Nomination Remuneration management
Committee Committee team
(Four independent (Two independent E’gm"v:RISk C(I;:"t M“‘:“y
MNEDs and Non- NEDs and Non- ommistes mmirtiee
Executive Chairman) || Executive Chairman)
Audit Board Risk
Committee Committee ICAAP and ILAA Senior Accounting
{Three independent {Four independent Committee Officer Committee
NEDs) Ds)
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THE BOARD

From left to nght Andy Green | Tim Howkins | Chrsstopher Hill | Peter Hethenington | Roger Yates | Stephen Hill | Sam Tymms | Jim Newman

ANDY GREEN | NON-EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN | AGE 59

Andy joined the Board as deputy chairman in June 2014 and became chairman of the Group in October 2014 He has in-depth Board
experience and knowledge of major listed companies, having served as Group Chief Executive of Logica ple and having held board
roles in BT Group including the role of CEQ of Group Strategy and Operations Andy's other current reles, including Non-Executive
Director of ARM Holdings ple, enable him to bring to the Board a wide perspective on technology and digital development

Other current appomtments Andy 18 a Non-Executive Director of Avantt Communications Group plc He holds a number of other roles
including chainng DockOn AG and Dhgital Catapult He 1s a board member of the CBI, president of UK Space, co-chairman of the Space
Leadership Council and a member of the Digital Economy Counell

Committee Membership Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee

TIM HOWKINS | CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER | AGE 52

Tim was appointed Chief Executive Officer of 1G in 2006, having served as the Group's Finance Director since joining the company in
1999 Tim qualified as a Chartered Accountant with Ernst & Young, and i1s a member of the Chartered Institute of Taxatron In 1990,

he was one of a group of partners and staff who left Ernst & Young to form Rees Pollock, a firm of Chartered Accountants targeted at
entrepreneunal, owner-managed businesses He was a partner in Rees Pollock for seven years, and there developed a relationship with
IG, taking responsibility for the Group’s audit With a strong finance background and a considerable number of years in the business, in
his role as our Chief Executive Tim continues to wark with the Board and lead IG to develop and implement our strategy Tim graduated
from the University of Reading with a first-class degree in Mathematics and Computer Science Trm will be stepping down from the
Board at the AGM on 15 October 2015

Other current appoiniments Tim 1s a member of the Board and Executive Committee of FIA Europe, formerly known as the Futures and
Options Association

Committee Membership Nene

CHRISTOPHER HILL | CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER | AGE 44

Chnstopher joined the |G Board in April 2011 from Travelex, a group providing cross-barder payment and foreign exchange services to
corporate and retall customers, where he served as Chief Financial Officer A Chartered Accountant, Christopher has extensive finance
and accounting expernience from a number of different business sectors He has previously held roles at VWR International, a global
laboratory-supply company (2005-2007), General Electric (2000-2005) and Arthur Andersen (1992-2000) Christopher graduated from
Oxford University with a degree in Modern History and 1s an assaciate member of the Association of Corporate Treasurers

Other current appointments None

Committee Membership None

PETER HETHERINGTON | CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER | AGE 46

Peter was an officer in the Royal Navy prior 10 joining IG Group as a graduate trainee in 1994 In 1999, he became Head of Financial
Dealing, and in 2003 he joined the Board following his appointment as Chief Operating Officer Peter's considerable expenience, built
over 20 years in the business, 1s invaluable in his role as Chief Operating Officer Peter graduated from Notungham University with a
degree in Economics, and from the London Business School with a Masters in Finance

Other current appointments None

Committee Membership None
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ROGER YATES | SENIOR INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR | AGE 58 g

Roger joined the Board as Senior Independent Director in February 2006 He has over 28 years’ experience in the fund management
industry, both as an investment professional and a business manager He brings a broad knowledge and understanding of investor
1ssues and the financial services sector having previously served as Chief Investment Officer of Invesco Global, and holding senior
roles at fund management firms LGT and Morgan Grenfell He was Chief Executive of Henderson Group ple and previously served as a
Non-Executive Director for F&C Asset Management plc Roger will step down from the Board at the AGM on 15 October 2015

Other current appointments Roger s a Non-Executive Director of St James's Place ple and JPMorgan Elect ple, as well as Charman of N
Electra Private Equity plc and Pioneer Global Asset Managemeant SpA

Committee Membership Audit Committee, Board Risk Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee N
STEPHEN HILL | NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR [ AGE 55 ’

Stephen joined the Board in Apnl 2011 He brings significant and extensive board experience having previously served as the CEO
of Betfarr plc and holding managenal roles at Pearson plc, including the role of CEQ of the Financial Times Group He was Chairman
of Interactive Data Corporation in the US as well as a member of the boards of Royal Sun Alliance Insurance Group ple, Psion plc and
Channel 4

Other current appointments  Stephen 1s the Chairman and CEC of D'Aval, his family’s private investment company, and Trustee and
Chairman of the Royal National Institute for Deaf People — Action on Hearing Loss He 1s also a member of the Advisory Board of
the Cambridge Judge Busmess School and a Non-Executive Director of Applengg Limited and Aztec Limited, a fund administration
business, and of Ofcom

Committee Membership Board Risk Committee, Remuneration Commuttee and Nommation Committee

SAMTYMMS | NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR | AGE 51

Sam joined the Board :n May 2013 She began her career at the London Stock Exchange’s Survelllance Division, which over time became
the Secuniuies and Fulutes Authoniy and eventually the Financial Services Authonty Durning that time, she held a range of supervisory
roles and worked for two years in the Investigations and Enforcement Division  As a supervisor, she ran departments overseeing global
wmvestment fiems, retail and investment banks and major insurance groups Sam’s extensive experience in the regulatory field and her
knowledge of compliance matters provide a valuable contribution to the Board

Other current appomtments Sam 1s currently a Managing Director at Promontory Financial Group, a leading strategy, risk
management and regulatory compliance consulting firm, where she advises financial services businesses on a wide range of nisk and
regulatory matters

Comruttee Membership Board Risk Committee, Audit Committee and Nomination Committee

JIM NEWMAN | NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR | AGE 50

Jim joned the Board in October 2013 A qualified Chartered Accountant, he was Finance Director for Resolution ple, having joined
the company as Group Financial Controller Jim spent ten years at Aviva, where he was Group Integration Director for the CGU/
Norwich Union merger and Finance Director of Norwich Union Life, Aviva's UK life insurance business He was formerly the Corporate
Development Director for Friends Life Group, where his responsibilities included overseeing the final separation and integration of
the UK life business acquired by Resolution plc, as well as the delivery of the overall group change portielio and strategic corporate
development His in-depth knowledge and expenience of the financial services sector, as well as his considerable expenence both as a
CFO and in the implementation of transformation programmes, 1s proving invaluable to the Board

Other current appomntments None

Committee Membership Board Risk Committee, Audit Committee and Nomination Commitiee
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THE BOARD

The Board is responsible
for promoting and ensuring

the lang-term success of the

Group through the creation
and delivery of sustainable
shareholder value.

LEADERSHIP

ROLE OF THE BOARD

The Board’s role 1s to provide guidance and entrepreneunial
leadership of the Company by setting the strategic direction
of the Group and overseeing management’s mplementation
of the strategy within a framewaork of prudent and effective
nsk controls The Board is responsible for promoting and
ensuring the long-term success of the Group through the
creation and delivery of sustainable shareholder value

The Board seeks to ensure that, while the ultmate focus 1s on
long-term growth, managernent also delivers on short-term
objectives and achieves the night balance between immediate
and future goals When setting the Group's strategy and
monitoring tts implementation, the Board considers the
impact its decisions may have on various stakeholders, such
as suppliers, investors, employees and the environment as a
whole It 1s accountable for ensuning that, as a collective body,
it has the appropnate skills, knowledge and experience to
perform its role effectively

The powers of the Board are set out in the Company’s articles
of association, which are avallable on the Group’s website,
iggroup com The Board may exercise all powers conferred
on 1t by the articles and in accordance with the Compantes
Act 2006 and other applicable legislation

The Board mantains and periodically reviews a list of matters
that are reserved to, and can only be approved by the Board
These include setting Group strategy, approval of major
acquisitions, divestments and capital expenditure, approval
of annual budgets, approval of changes to the Group's
capital structure including reduction of capital, approval of
expansion plans into new business or gecgraphies, reviewing
operational and financial performance, appointment and
termination of the Directors and Company Secretary, approval
of policies related to Directors’ remuneration and severance
of Directors’ contracts, ensuring adequate succession
planning for the Board and senior management, setting the
nsk appetite of the Group and approval of any changes to the
Group's nisk management policy that materially increases the
Group's nisk profile
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A formal schedule of matters specifically reserved for the
Board's decision can be found on the Group’s website

The matters that have not been speafically reserved for the
Board are delegated to the Executive Directors These include
the development, recommendation and implementation

of the strategic plans for the Group, the development and
implementation of the nisk management systems, policies and
procedure, the promotion af a geod standard of corporate
governance and shareholder engagement and monitoring the
Group's operating and financial results

BOARD STRUCTURE

The Board 1s made up of the Chairman, Executive Directors,
including the Chief Executive Officer, and independent
Non-Executive Directors

The dwision of responsibilities between the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer 1s set out in writing and has been
approved by the Board

Chairman

The Chairman is responsible for leading the Board and
creating the nght conditions for its effective working

and overall governance He sets the Board's agenda, in
consultation with the Chief Executive Officer and Company
Secretary, taking full account of Board members’ 1ssues and
concerns and the need to allow suffictent time for items on
the agenda to be discussed It ts the Chairman's responsibility
to encourage and faclitate active engagement by Directors,
drawing on therr skills, knowledge and expenence The
Chairman 1s also respeonsible for ensuring there 15 effective
commurication with shareholders and other stakeholders,
and that Directors are aware and maintain an understanding
of their views The Chairman works closely with the Chief
Executive Officer, Tim Howkins, to ensure that the strategies
and actions agreed by the Board are effectively implemented

Chief Executive Officer

The Chief Executive Officer 1s responsible for recommending
the Group's strategy to the Board, implementing the agreed

strategy and managing the day-to-day business of the Group
The Board has delegated this responsibility to him, and he is
accountable to the Board

Executive Directors

The Executive Directors support the Chief Executive Officer
in implementing the Group’s strategy and in the operational
performance of the business

Non-Execuvtive Chrectors

The Non-Executive Directors are independent of
management and are considered by the Board to be free
from any business or other relationships, which could
compromise ther independence Therr role 1s to effectively
adwise and constructively challenge management, along
with monitoring management’s success in delivering

the agreed strategy within the nisk appetite and control
framework set by the Board They are also responsible for
determining appropriate levels of remuneration for the
Executive Directors




Senior Independent Director

The Senior Independent Non-Executive Director’s rofe 1s

to provide a sounding board for the Chairman and support
him in the delivery of his objectives He serves as a trusted
intermediary for the other Directors when necessary He
maintains an understanding of the major 1ssues and concerns
of major shareholders and informs the Board of these

issues The Senior Independent Non-Executive Director 1s
also available to shareholders if they have cancerns which
communication via the normal channels of Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer or other Executive Directors has falled to
resolve, or when shareholders prefer to speak directly to
him He 1s responsible for evaluating the performance of the
Chairman on behalf of the other directors

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary, 8ndget Messer, supports and works
closely with the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer and
the Board Committee Chairmen in setting agenda items for
meetings of the Board and its committees She ensures that
accurate, timely and high-guality information flows within

the Board, the Board Committees and between Directors
and semor management In addition, she supports the
Chairman in the designing and delivery of Director induction
programmes The Company Secretary also advises the Board
on corporate governance issues and Board procedures

HOW THE BOARD OPERATES

The Board meets regularly at least five times a year — and
attends an additional off-site strategy day to review strategic
options open to the Group in the context of the economic
and regulatory environment There were seven scheduled
Board meetings this year, including the annual strategy day

The Board alse meets when necessary to discuss important
ad-hoc emerging 1ssues that require consideration between
scheduled Board meetings Two such meetings were held
during the year Each Director committed an appropriate
amount of time to their duties durning the financial year, and
the Non-Executive Directors met the time commitment
specified in their letters of appointment Where Directors are
unable to attend meetings, they are encouraged to give the
Chairman their views on the matters to be discussed

The Charrman and Non-Executive Directors meet formally in
the absence of the Executive Directors at least twice a year
There were three such meetings during the year

ATTENDANCE AT BOARD MEETINGS

The number of full Board meetings attended by each Dwector
during the year, including the Board strategy day, 1s set

out below

MEETINGS
ELIGIBLE TO MEETINGS
ATTEND ATTENDED
Chairman
Jonathan Davie 2 2
Andy Green @ 9
Independent Non-Executive Directors
Marun Jackson 2 2
Stephen Hil 9 8
Jim Newman g 8
Sam Tymms g g
Roger Yates ? 9
Executive Directors
Twn Howkins 9 Q
Peter Hethenngton g g
Chnistopher Hill 9

* Jonathan Davie retired as Chairman of the Company on 16 October 2014

** Andy Green was appointed as the Deputy Chairman of the Company on
9 June 2014 and as Chairman from 16 October 2014

*** Martin Jackson retired from the Board on 16 Oclober 2014

BOARD ACTIVITIES DURING THE YEAR

The Board meeting agendas dunng the year included
business across the key areas of strategy, governance, risk and
financial performance, as highlighted in the following chart

In addition to regular reviews of performance, the Board
discussed rnisk appetite, capital and liquidity planning and
talent management, including succession planning

BOARD ALLOCATION OF TIME

B CQuarterly forecast
and budget

Il Strategy

Business, cperational
highlights and current
trading

[J Risk and governance

Financial perfermance

Other
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THE BOARD
¢ (CONTINUED)

BOARD COMMITTEES

Centain governance responsibilities have been delegated

by the Board to Board Commitiees to ensure that there

1s independent oversight of internal control and risk
management and to assist the Board with carrying out

its responsibilities These Board committees comprise
independent Non-Executive Directors and, in some cases,
the Chairman Each committee has agreed terms of reference
approved by the Board, which are available on our corporate
website, iggroup com

A brief description of the roles of each Committee 1s set
out below

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Responsible for:

Integrity of the financial statemenis of the Group,
including its annual and interim reports.

Reviews and recommends to the Board:

The effectiveness of the Group’s Internal Audit
function and risk management system, annual
internal audit plan, appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the

external auditors.

BOARD

The Chairman of each Board committee reports to the

Board on the matters discussed at commitiee meetings,

and the minutes of each committee meeting are made
available to all Directors Reports from the Chairman of each
Board committee, including information on the committee’s
composition and activities in the year, can be found in the
sections relating to each committee within this Annual Report

BOARD RISK COMMITTEE

Responsible for:

Providing oversight and advice to the Board in relation
to current and future risk exposures of the Group and
promoting a risk awareness culture within the Group.

Reviews and recommends to the Board:

The design and implementation of risk management
policy and measurement strategies
across the Group, the Group's risk
profile, risk appetite and key risk
indicators Jor the current and future
sirategy.

COMMITTEES

NOMINATION
COMMITTEE

Responsible for:

Reviewing the composition of the Board and Board
Committees to ensure that they are appropriately
balanced in terms of knowledge, skills and experience.

Reviews and recommends to the Board:

Appointments 1o the Board and to other senior
management positions,

011G Group Helelings ple Annual Reg et 2015

REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

Responsible for:

Making recommendations to the Board on the Group's
senior executive remuneration palicy.

Reviews and recommends to the Board:

The Group's remuneration policy which is consistent
with effective risk management, the framework for the
remuneration of the Company’s Chairman and executive
directors and all share-based awards under the Group's
Employee Incentive Scheme.




EFFECTIVENESS COMPOSITION OF EXECUTIVE AND INDEPENDENT

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS ON THE BOARD
BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board's size and the skills and expernience of its members,
have a significant impact on 1ts effectiveness It ams to
maintain a balance in terms of expenence and skills of

Independent

Non-Executive Chairman :
individual Board members These factors are regularly
reviewed 1o ensure that the Board has the nght mix of skills
and expenience for constructive discussion and, ultimately,
effective Board decisions

Executive Directors

Independent
Non Executive Directors

INDUSTRY/BACKGROUND EXPERIENCE ¥
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DMLl CONFLICTS OF INTFREST
DIRECTORS
{EXECUTIVE AND Drrectors have a statutory duty to avoid situations i which
NON-EXECUTIVE) they may have interests that confhict with those of the
AND NON-EXECUTIVE Company, unless that conflict 1s first authonsed by the Board

EXPERIENCE CHAIRMAN
Directors are required to disclose both the nature and extent

31¥YH0OdH0D

Fmanaal services 7 of any potential or actual conflicts with the interests of
Accountancy/Finance expert 3 the Company
Regulatory 5 In accordance with the Companies Act 2006, the Company’s
Marketing 4 articles of association allow the Beard to authorise potential '
PR P conflicts that may anise, and to impose such conditions or

imitations as it sees fit Duning the year, potental conflicts
T 4 were considered and assessed by the Board and approved

Y
Current or recent 4 where appropniate
Chief Executive Ofticer or
Charrman SUCCESSION PLANNING AND APPOINTMENTS TO
4

Prior plc expernence THE BOARD

The Board uses succession planning to ensure that Executives
with the necessary skills, knowledge and expertise are in
place to deliver our strategy, and that 1t has the nght balance
of indwiduals to be able to discharge its responsibilities

The Board regularly reviews its composition to keep 1t
constantly refreshed Any searches for Board candidates,

and appointments made, are based on ment against
DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE objective critena

The Company 1s fully compliant with the UK Corporate
Governance Code, which requires that at least half of the
Board, excluding the Chairman, should comprise Non-
Executive Directors who are determined by the Board to

M |ndividual Directors may fall into one or more categones

There 15 an appropriate combination of Executive
Directors and Non-Executive Directors such that no
indwidual or small group of Individuals can dominate the
Board's decision-making

The Nemination Committee has specific responsibility for
the appomntment of Non-Executive and Executive Directors
and it recommends new appointments to the Board It
regularly reviews the structure, size and composition required

be independent
of the Board and makes recommendation to the Board as

The independence of the Non-Executive Directors ts appropnate More infoermation on the work of the Committee
considered by the Board and reviewed on an annual basis, as can be found in the report of the Normination Committee
part of the Board effectiveness The Board considers factors on pages 66 to 67 The Board as a whole 1s also involved
such as length of tenure and relationships or circumstances, in overseeing the development of management resources
which are likely to affect or appear to affect the Director's across the Group

judgement in determining whether they remain independent
Following this year’s review, the Board concluded that all of
the Non-Executive Directors continue to remain independent
in character and judgement and are free from any business or
other relationships, which could matenally affect the exercise
of their judgement

LENGTH OF TENURE OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

n 0-3 years
n 3-6 years
E 6-9 years
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THE BOARD
(CONTINUED)

INDUCTION

On appointment, each new Director receives a full and
formal bespoke induction to familianse them with their
duties and the Company's business operations, nsk and
governance arrangements The induction programme,
which i1s coordinated by the Company Secretary, includes
briefings on regulatory matters relating to the Company, as
well as meetings with seruor management in key areas of the
business, such as compliance, legal, IT, human resources,
finance, nsk, marketing and investor relations These are
supplemented by induction matenals such as recent Board
papers and minutes, orgamsation structure charts, hlstory
of the Group, industry and regulatory reports and relevant
company policies Newly appointed Directors also meet
the company's external auditors and corporate brokers and
attend a presentation led by Linklaters on the roles and
responsibilities of a UK-listed company director

Inductions are tailored to each Directors indmidual
experience, background and areas of focus

Chairman’s induction

Andy Green’s induction programme took into account his
later leadership role as Chairman and among other things,
included the following

His induction programme also included meetings with other
Directors, Comparny heads and wisit to global offices of the
Group He also attended meetings of all the commuttees of
which he Is not a member to assess the framework in which
the commuttees operate and for a better understanding of the
work of the Commitiees

ONGOING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Given the rapidly changing environment 1n which the
Group operates, all Directors are given regular updates orn
changes and developments in the business The Company
Secretary on a regular basis updates the Board on any
relevant legislative, regulatory and governance changes A
professtonal development programme 1s in place to enable
Directors to fulfil their roles and personal development logs
are maintained for each Non-Executive Director

Training opportunities are provided through internal
meetings, presentations and briefings by internal advisers,
business heads as well as external advisers Durnng the year,
the Directors attended briefing sessions on cyber secunty
and risks, the Group’s mobile apps development business,
genenc top-level domains (gTLDs) and the newly launched
stockbroking business

The Charman ensures that the Directors continually update
and refresh their skills and knowledge, and independent
professional advice 1s provided when required, at the
Company's expense

INFORMATION PROVIDED TO THE BOARD
The board has full and timely access to all relevant
information to enable it to perform its duties effectively

COMPANY STRUCTURE, HISTORY, STRATEGY AND BUSINESS

*  Bnefing on Group history sirategy including opportunities and threats, straiegy and business model analysis and
strength, chalienges and rnisks to the strategy and its implementation

+  Matenal business lines and markets, including international markets and future plans

GOVERNANCE, REGULATORY AND RISK

*  Board and Board Committees terms of reference, Board and Commitiee procedure, hsting obligauons and market abuse

responstbilities

*  Regulatory framewaork and proposals impacting the business

+  Risk appetite, key nisks and priories nsk management and its effectiveness and Stress testing/Scenario planning

PRODUCTS, FINANCE, MARKETING AND SHAREHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

¢ IC% vanous products arkels i which cbe rts can trade

+  Business plan, Standelone ~no conschaated balance sheets Lvogeting process enc hnanciol projections

*  Mecung with top shareholders, analysts and birokers
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The Company Secretary ensures appropriate and timely
information flows within and to the Board and its committees,
enabling the Board to exercise its judgement and make fully
informed decisions when discharging its duties All Directors
have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary, who is responsible 1o the Board for ensuring

that Board procedures are followed and compliance with
applicable rules and regulations 1s observed The Company
Secretary supports the Chairman in setting the Board
agenda, and Board papers are distnbuted to all Directors in
advance of Board meetings via a secure electronic system
The Company Secretary s also responsible for adwising the
Board, through the Chairman, on all corporate governance
matters Directors receive financial and nsk information on the
company on a monthly basis, and they receive briefings from
the Chief Executive Officer in the periods between meetings

RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The UK Corporate Governance Code requires that all
directors of FTSE 350 companies should be subject to

annual election by shareholders Each Director and the Board
as a whole underwent a performance evaluation during

the course of the year Following this, all Directors, with

the excepuon of Roger Yates and Tin Howkins who will be
stepping down at the Company’s Annual General Meeting
(AGM) on 15 October 2015, will stand for re-election at

the AGM

BOARD EVALUATION

Each year, an evaluation of the effectiveness of the Board

15 carried out to moniter and, where necessary, make
improvements to the performance of the Board In 2014, an
internal evaluation was carnied out and, in response to the
findings, the following actions have been taken

THE NEED TO Succession planning for executive
INCREASE and non-executive roles on the Board
THE LEVEL OF was a man focus of the Nommaton
FOCUS ON THE

LONG-TERM Commuttee in the year The Board
COMPOSITION skills matnx was reviewed 10 1denufy
OF THE BOARD. the skdls and expenence required
to maich the long-term strategy of
the Company

THE BOARD TO Ihere has been 2 gieater focus
FLAY A MORE on succession planning wath the

ACTIVE ROLE B
oard recewmng presentations from
IN TALENT g p abons

MANAGEMENT E:xecullves QN SuCCessIon planrlnng
AND for serwor management In addition
SUCCESSION further opportunitics are being
PLANNING created for the Board 1o engage
FOR SENIOR with semor maragement by way of
EXECUTIVES, e Poord due ner presentetians
THE NEED There mas Leen Lontinuous
Li:i\g::'; inprovemia it on the (o1} .!hly and
NT

danty of pares prese 1
INFORMATION fo N e nledlo ‘kcd
PRESENTED TO gt 'y P8 s atcempane
THE BOARD, with & turnmary setting out the key

sy § 05 1he Soard

The UK Corporate Governance Code and the Financial
Reporting Council’s guidance on Board effectiveness
recommend that the annual performance review of the Board
should be externally factitated every three years To this end,
in 2015, the Board engaged Lintstock Limited to assist with
the evaluation of its own performance, that of its Committees
and individuat Directors Lintstock has no other connection
with the Company

The first stage of the review involved Lintstock engaging with
the Chairman and the Company Secretanat to set the context
for the evaluation, and to tailor the surveys used to the
specific arcumstances of IG Group All Board members were
reqguested to complete a web-based survey addressing the
performance of the Board and its Commutiees, the Chairman
and indwvidual Director performance The review addressed
the following core areas of Board performance

* The composition of the Board was assessed, and the key
changes that cught to be made over the next 12 - 24
months, and over the next 3 - 5 years given the Group’s
strategic goals in particular, were considered

* The Non-Executive involvement in the affairs of the Group
outside meetings was considered, and the relationships
between the members of the Board, and between the
Board and management, were reviewed

* The time management at meetings was addressed, as was
the quality of the presentations made by management
to the Board The quality of the Board packs provided in
advance of meetings was also considered

The role of the Board in testing and developing strategy
was assessed, as was the Board's oversight of the strategic
plan The Directors’ views as to the top strategic 1ssues
facing the company were 1dentified

* The Board'’s attitude towards risk was reviewed, as was the
management of the mam rsks to the business

» The structure of the Group at senior levels was considered,
and the succession planning for Executive Directors,
and the Board's visibility of potential successors for key
positions from within the business, were addressed

Further to these core toptcs, the review also included a
case study on the Board's 2015 strategy day, addressing
the management of time, the documentation provided In
advance and the quality of the sessions during the day
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THE BOARD
| {CONTINUED)

Lintstock subsequently produced a report of its findings

that were discussed with the Chairman Overall, the results
indicate that the Board 15 operating effectively with a number
of areas reviewed, rated positively The top prionities for the
Board in the coming year include

* The need to continually manage succession
planning processes,

* The need to consider the amount of trme allocated to
strategy and its implementation in the annual cycle of
work, and

* Continuous tmprovement on the information provided to
the Board ahead of meetings

The outcome of the performance review will be discussed at a
Board meeting with a view to developing actions to be taken
on the recommendations We will report on actions taken and
progress made in next year's Annual Report

Led by Roger Yates, the Senior Independent Director, a
review of the Chairman’s performance was carried out by
the Board using a questionnaire completed by the Executive
Directors and the Non-Executive Directors The performance
of the Chairman was discussed with the Board without the
Chairman present

The evaluation of the performance and contribution of
each Director was conducted by the Charrman in individual
discussions referencing a self-performance review
guestionnaire completed by each Director

The reviews concluded that each Director continues to
perform effectively and demonstrate commitment to the role

64 | 16 Liroup Holdings pp'c Annwal Re port A5

ENGAGEMENT WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recogrises the importance of maintaining good
communication with the Company’s shareholders, and we
have a comprehensive programme to facilitate this each year

Cur Annual Report 15 an important medium for
communicating with shareholders, setting out detailed
reviews of the business and its future developments in the
Chawrman’s Statement, the Chief Executive Officer’s Review
and the Strategic Report

In order to ensure that the members of the Board develop
an understanding of the views of major shareholders, there 15
regular dialogue with institutional investors and shareholders,
presentations by management and Investor Roadshows
around the time of the Group's year-end and hall-year results
announcements These are coordinated by our Investor
Relations team We make these presentations available in
real time on the Group's website, which also provides a wide
range of other information to shareholders and prospective
shareholders We also respond to ad hoc requests from
shareholders on a very regular basis

Meetings with the Company’s largest institutional
shareholders and market analysts are held to discuss
governance, business strategy and financial performance by
the Chairman and the Executive Directors Non-Executive
Directors are also avallable to meet and hear the views of the
nstitutional shareholders when required




Following all investor presentations and meetings, feedback
15 passed to the Board on any opinions or concerns expressed
by shareholders The Directors receve regular updates on
shareholder views, roadshow feedback as well as analysts’
reports on market perception of the Group's performance and
strategy, and are made aware of the financial expectations

of the Group from the outside market The Board also
recelves an Investor Perception study to identify shareholders’
concerns and actions undertaken for its resolution

The Chairman and the Senior Independent Non-Executive
Director are avallable to meet shareholders on reguest,
and ensure that the Board i1s aware of shareholder concerns
not resolved through other communication mecharisms
The Charman and the Senior Independent Non-Executive
Director provide feedback to the Board on any views or
concerns expressed to them by shareholders

AGM

The AGM provides the Board with the opportunity to
communicate with private and institutional investors and we
welcome and encourage therr participation at the meeting
The Chairman aims to ensure that all the Directors, including
the Chairmen of the Board Committees, are available at

the AGM to answer questions We send the Annual Report
and notice of the AGM to sharehclders, or make them
avallable on the Group's website, at least 20 working days
before the date of the meeting The Notice of AGM sets

out a clear explanation of each resolution to be proposed

at the meeting Shareholders have the opportunity to ask
questions and, if they are unable to attend, can submit wnitten
queries In advance of the meeting At the meeting, we will
make available to shareholders full details of the proxy votes
recewved on each resolution, and we will publish these on the
Company’s website on the same day

The 2014 AGM was a successful event attended by all the
Directors Jonathan Davie and Martin Jackson did not

seek re-election and stepped down from the Board of the
Company All the proposed resolutions were passed with the
percentage of votee m favour of each resolution ranging from
94 35% to 99 90%

The 2015 AGM will be held on 15 October 2015 The Notice
of the Meeting sets out the resolutions 1o be proposed at the
meeting A copy of the Notice 1s avaitable on the Company’s
website 1ggroup com

1H40d3y
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NOMINATION
COMMITTEE

Andy Green, Chairman of

the Nomination Committee,
gives his review of the
committee’s activities during
the financial year.

CHAIRMAN'S OVERVIEW

It essential that the Board 1s well balanced in terms of
structure, skill, experience, diversity and knowledge to enable
the Company to achieve its objectives and long-term strategy
The Nomination Committee 1s responsible for identifying

and recommending suitable candidates for appointment |
to the Board to ensure that its composition in this regard
meets the Company's needs We maintain and implement
an effective succession plan to ensure that the Board 1s
progressively refreshed

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP AND ATTENDANCE
The committee consists of independent Non-Executive
Directors and meets as necessary to discuss appointments to
the Board The Chairman of the Board is also the Chairman
of the committee and the Company Secretary acts as the
Secretary of the committee The Chief Executive Officer

also attends, but i1s not involved in decisions relating to his
oWwWnN suUCcession

During the year the committee met three tmes to consider
Board composition and succession planning

ROLE OF THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE
The role and responsibilities of the committee include

* Reviewing the composition of the Board and Board
Committees to ensure that they are appropriately balanced
in terms of skills, knowledge diversity and experience

Ensuning that there s a formal, ngorous and transparent
pracedure for the appointment of new Directors

Identifying and nommaung for approval by the Board,
suitable candidates to fill Board vacancies as and when
they arise

Ensuning that plans are in place for orderly succession,
for appointments to the Board and to other seror
management positions

The Terms of Reference of the committee are avatlable on the
Group's website, iggroup com

ACTIVITY DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR
In Qctober 2014, | succeeded Jonathan Davie as the
Charrman of the Board and of the Nomination Committee

We also announced that Roger Yates will be stepping down
from the Board following the AGM in October Durning the
year, the commirttee’s main focus has been on the search {or
a candidate to replace Roger as Senior Independent Director
(SID} and as Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
Zygos Partnership, an executive search firm which has no
other connection with the Company, was engaged following
a selection process to assist with the search for a suitable
canchdate The committee prepared a candidate specification
based on objective criteria setting out the knowledge, skill,
experience and attributes required




These include among others,

* Having served on the board of a listed company erther as an
executive or a Non-Executive Dhrector,

* Having knowledge and experience of UK governance

requirements and a good understanding of the current
regulatory environment,

Having a deep insight around how the investor community
operates, and

Having the ability to be able to commit the time required for
the role

From the candidate specification, a longlist of potential
candidates was drawn up from which a shortlst was compiled
Candidates on the shortlist were interviewed by me and the
Chief Executive following which a proposal was made 1o

the committee on the candidates Briefing reports on the
shortlisted candidates were reviewed by the committee and
the candidates were interviewed by Executive members of the
Board and by members of the committee 1t is expected that
an appomntment will be made shortly

In addition to the search for a replacement for Roger

Yates, the committee also commenced the search for a
Non-Executive Director with digital expenence following a
discussion around long-term Board composition prompted
by the 2014 Board evaluation Russell Reynolds Associates, an
executive search firm which has no other connections with the
Company, was engaged to assist with the search As with the
search for a replacement SID, a candidate specification was
prepared, taking into account the desired skills, knowledge
and expenence required for the role We also specified

that candidates must be able to give the necessary time
commitment Russell Reynolds Associates prepared a longlist
of potential candidates following which a shertlist of candidates
was interviewed by me and the Chief Executive It 1s expected
that an appointment will be made shortly

Following the announcement that Tim Howkins will be retiring
from the Board as a director and Chief Executive Officer at
the 2015 AGM in Qctober, we have commenced a search and
selection pracess for his successor We will report fully on this
process In next year's annual report

During the year, the committee reviewed membership of the
Board Committees in ight of the retirements of Jonathan
Dawvie and Martin Jackson Following the committee's
recommendation and with the Board's approval, | joined the
Remuneration Commuttee in September 2014 In addition,
Sam Tymms, Stephen Hill and myself joined the Nomination
Committee in September 2014

COMMITTEE EVALUATION

In addition to overseeing appointrnents to the Board, an
evaluation of the performance of the committee and 1ts
members was undertaken in ine with the committee’s
Terms of Reference The evaluation process was externally
facilitated by Lintstack Limited as part of the overall annual
Board effectiveness revew The evaluation concluded that
the committee operates effectively and its performance

SCHEDULED

MEETINGS
ELIGIBLETO
ATTEND

SCHEDULED
MEETINGS
ATTENDED

Chairman of the Nomination Commitiee

Jonathan Davie® 1 1
Andy Green** 3 3
Independent Nan-Executive Directors

Martin Jackson*** i 1
Jim Newman 3 2
Roger Yates 3 3
Stephen Hill 3 3
Sam Tymms 3 3

* Jonathan Davie stepped down from the committee on 16 October 2014
** Andy Green became the Charman of the committee on 16 Qctober 2014
*** Martin Jacksen stepped down from the committee on 16 October 2014

NOMINATION COMMITTEE ALLOCATION OF TIME

B Board Composition
M Succession Planning

) Other

was positively rated overall The committee, however, could
improve its performance by operating with greater formality

DIVERSITY STATEMENT

As a business, we are committed to maintaining a diverse
workforce at all levels across the Company, and more
infarmation on how we do this can be found in the

Qur People section, on page 33

The Directors understand the significant benefits that come
with having a diverse Board We recognise the importance

of gender dwersity on the Board, however, we believe that
dversity 1s a wider issue and includes vanations in expenence,
skills, personal attributes and background Noenetheless, we
aspie 1o achigve 25% female representation on the Board

We will continue to appoint on merit, based on the skills and
expenence required for membership of our Board, while
giving consideration to gender diversity when the committee
reviews the Board’s composition For appointments to the
Board, we use executive search firms who have signed up to
the voluntary code of conduct setting out the key principles
of best pracuce in the recrutment process These principles
include a recommendation that search firms should consider
gender diversity and we insist on having both male and
fernale candidates when drawang up longlists and shorthsts
of candidates

NS e

Andy Green
Chairman, Nomtnation Committee
21 July 2015

o
Q
<
mm
v
o=z
A »
4z
[a]
m

1G Greup Ho'dings ple Annuc) hoput 2015 | 67

.

L

i

JLYHOLHOD




REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

Roger Yates,

Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee,
gives his review of the

committee’s activities
during the financial year.

CHAIRMAN'S OVERVIEW

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the Directors’
Remunerauon Report for the year ended 31 May 2015

The overall structure of the executive remuneration package
and the pninciples that underpin it have not changed and,
therefore, we will continue to operate with the Directors’
remuneration policy that has been in place stince June 2013
and was approved n a binding vote by over 96% of our
shareholders at the AGM 1n 2014

There will be a single advisory vote at this year's AGM with
regards to this annual statement and the Annual Report on
Remuneration that details both amounts paid in respect of
the year ending 31 May 2015 and the intended operation of
the remuneration policy for the coming year | hope you agree
that how we have rewarded our executives 1s commensurate
with the Company’s performance and that you will support
this year's resolution at the forthcoming AGM

THE BUSINESS CONTEXT IN 2015

Qver the last year, |G invested significantly m longer-term
strategic projects, including the launch and roll-out of
stockbroking in the UK and, internationally, expansion into
Switzerland and Dubai and increased emphasis on mobile
technology Against thrs backdrop underlying revenue for
2015 was £400 2 million, which represents an 8% increase

on 2014, and underlying diluted earrings per share (DEPS)
increased by 2% to 41 07 pence per share Statutory diluted
earnings per share of 35 99 pence are lower than the pnor
year primarly due to the impact of the unpegging of the
Swiss franc in January The Board made clear at the ime of
the first-half results in January its intention to hold the full-year
dividend flat on the prior year at 28 15 pence per share The
Board's recommendation of a final dividend of 19 70 pence
per share demonstrates the confidence in the underlying cash
generation of the business

REMUNERATION OUTCOMES FOR 2015

The year to 31 May 2015 1s the second year of the executive’s
vanable remuneration being awarded under the Sustained
Perfarmance Plan (SPP) In respect of performance for the
period ended 31 May 2015, the committee has awarded 41%
of the maximum potential award under the SPP compared
with 54% in the prigr year The overall SPP outcome 15 lower
than last year primarily as a result of the negative impact on
performance of the financial losses resulting from the Swiss
franc event in January 2015 on both the earnings per share
(EPS) and the non-financial performance measures However,
relative total shareholder return against the benchmark has
been stronger than that for the prior year and performance
agamst non-financial metrics has, overall, remained strong

We consider this award to be reflective of performance and
the business context as set out above




The 2015 award under the SPP 1s driven by three metrics

* EPS - 45% of the maximum potential award based on 2015
annual performance The diluted earnings per share target
range for 2015 was set by the commuttee at 40 18 pence
to 44 20 pence, with a inear relationship between The
unadjusted statutory DEPS has been used for the purposes
of performance assessment for the SPP While the Swiss
franc event was excepuonal in both size and nature and
use of the underlying EPS would have resulted in a partial
award, adjustment of the statutory earmings was not
deemed to be appropriate Accordingly, the statutory EPS
of 3599 pence was below the threshold and none of this
element will be awarded

* TSR - 35% of the maximum potential award based on
the two-year performance penod ending 31 May 2015
The Company's TSR over this perniod of 48 2% ranked the
Company 98th out of 291 FTSE 350 companies (excluding
Investment Trusts), as a result, 74 5% of this element will
be awarded

* Non-financial metrics — 20% of maximum potential award
based on a suite of non-financial and delivery objectives
relating to the 2015 financial year The committee has
considered the Company's execution and delivery of
key strategic intiatives and performance against key
quantitative and qualitative non-financial metrics A
detailed explanation of the Company's performance against
the non-financial metrics 1s discussed at page 84 Qverall,
the committee has concluded that 76% of this element will
be awarded

We remind shareholders that, as was the case last year, the
SPP 1s the Company's only Executive Director incentive plan
for 2015, replacng both the annual bonus and long-term
incentive plans

2015 also marked the end of the performance period for the
2012 awards made under the previous long-term plan, the
Value Sharing Plan None of this award vested, despite strong
TSR over the three-year penod of 88%, and as a result of the
impact of the Swiss franc event on statutory PBT

The committee considers that shareholders deserve thorough
disclosure on remuneration To this end, the Company has
set out extensive explanation of the jJudgements it has made
in granting the above awards This disclosure 15 set out in the
Annual Report en Remuneration at page 84

The committee 1s regularly informed of potenual changes to
remuneration regulations that could impact the current policy
In particular, we are mindiul of the impact of the European
Banking Authonity's current consultation on changes to its
guidelines that would remove the proportionality exemptions
for certain companies The proposed changes to the
proportionality principle are likely to require amendments

to the Group’s Sustatned Performance Plan and averall
remuneration policy With ths in mind, the commuttee 1s
conscious of the need to consult with shareholders at an early
stage and we will do so in advance of any material change to
the remuneration policy, if required

SCHEDULED )

MEETINGS  SCHEDULED .
ELIGIBLE TO MEETINGS

ATTEND ATTENDED [

Chairmanp of the Remuneration Committee

Roger Yates 4 4
Independent Non-Executive Directors

Stephen Hill 4 3
Jonathan Davie 2 2
Martin Jackson 2 2
Andy Green 4 4

* Jonathan Davie stepped down fram the committee on 16 October 2014
** Martin Jackson stepped down from the committee on 16 October 2014
*** Andy Green attended twe meetings by nwvitation
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REMUNLRATION COMMITTEL ALLOCATIQN OF TIME

I Salary and Bonus
Scheme Arrangements

M tncentive Awards

[¥ Remuneration regulation

[ Remuneration reporting
Remuneration policy
Other

IMPLEMENTATION OF REMUNERATION
POLICY FOR 2015

Finally, the committee has recommended a 3% base salary
increase for the Executive Directors to take effect from 1

June 2015 The general increase for employees across the
group was approximately 4% Over the last few years our
Chief Operating Officer Peter Hetherington, has received a
reduced salary {at 80% of the annual equivalent) to reflect his
flexible working arrangements From this year, Peter will revent
to normal working arrangements and therefore the reduced
salary will no longer apply

Faor 2014, the commuttee will use the same SPP metncs
described above, with the same weightings Accordingly,

EPS will drive 45% of the maximum potential award, with
relative TSR and non-financial metrics accounting for 35% and
20% respecuvely

In relation to the EPS targets, as with past years, the
commuttee has used a set of internal and external reference
points The target range will be disclosed and explained in
next year's remuneration report

I hope that you will support the advisory vote on the
remuneration resolution at the AGM M, in the meantime, you
have any questions regarding our remuneration report then
we will be pleased to consider them

LN\

Roger Yates
Chairman, Remuneration Commuttee
21 July 2015
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DIRECTORS'
REMUNERATION REPORT

The Remuneration Committee’s
objective is to ensure remuneration
encourages, reinforces and rewards

the delivery of shareholder value.

As such, it has implemented a
remuneration policy which provides
a framework for making decisions,
including those covering the
remuneration of Executive Directors.

PREPARATION OF THE DIRECTORS’
REMUNERAT!ON REPORT

Our Directors’ Remuneration Report covers the remuneration
of the Executive and Non-Executive Directors of IG Group
Holdings plc In line with the regulations governing the
disclosure and approval of directors’ remuneration, the report
i1s split into three sections an annual statement from the
Chairman of the Remuneratron Commuttee, the Directors’
Remuneration Policy and an Annual Report on Remuneration

The disclosures required under Article 450 of the Capital
Requirements Regulation are provided on the corporate
website and accordingly are not detalled within the Directors’
Remuneration Report

Unless otherwise stated, information and disclosures within
the Drtrectors’ Remuneration Report are unaudited The
regulations require the Company’s auditors to report on

the audited information in the report and to state that this
section has been properly prepared in accordance with these
regulations The audited sections, which fall within the Annual
Report on Remuneration, have been clearly identified

This following part of the Remuneration Report sets out the
Directors' Remuneration Policy as approved by shareholders
at the 2014 Annual General Meeting Although not required
by the reporting regulations, the substantive terms of the
Directors’ Remuneration Policy are reproduced here for

ease of reference Any details, however, that were specific to
2014 or earler years (including, for example, any disclosures
relauing to particular Directors and the remuneration
scenartos charts) have been updated, where applicable, to
reflect the current position There 1s no vote on the Directors’
Remuneration Policy at the 2015 Annual General Meeting as it
1s unchanged

0|16 Grenip Halding, ple Annual Rej ont 2015

DIRECTORS REMUNERATION POLICY

The role of the Remuneration Committee

The commuttee is respensible for making recommendations
to the Board on the Group's senior executive remuneration
policy Cperating within defined and agreed terms of
reference, it determines an overall remuneration package
for the Executive Directors in order to attract and retain
high-quality Directors capable of achieving the Group's
objectives The committee’s terms of reference can be found
on our corporate website at iggroup com

The commuttee sets and agrees with the Board a competitive
and transparent remuneration framework which 1s aligned

to the Company strategy and s In the interests of both

the Company and its shareholders The committee
determines the contractual terms, remuneration and other
benefits for each of the Executive Directors, including
performance-related incentive arrangements, pension nghts,
compensation payments and share-incentive awards

The committee’s other responsibilities are to

* Determine and review the Group's remuneration policy,
ensuring It 1s consistent with eflective nsk management
across the Group, and to consider the implications of this
remuneration policy on nsk

* Determine and agree the policy for the remuneration of the
Board Chairman and the Executve Directors

Review and note pay and employment conditions and the
remuneration trends across the Group

Approve all share-based awards under the Group's
employee incentive schemes, to determme each year
whether awards will be made and, if awards are made, to
monitor their operation, the size of such awards and the
performance targets to be used

Establish the selection cntera, appoint and set the terms
of reference for any remuneration consultants who adwise
the committee




In line with new regulations governing the disclosure and

approval of directors’ remuneration, our Directors’ Remuneration -

Report 1s split into two sections

Directors’ Remuneration Report
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Directors’ Remuneration Policy 70 o 2
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¢ Monitor regulatory developments, including those affecting  value both for the Company and the shareholders Likewsse, ‘

UK-listed companies and financial services firms, to ensure
the Company's remuneration policy 1s consistent with these

The Board determines the remuneration of
Non-Executive Directors

Objectives of the remuneration policy

The Remuneration Committee’s objective is to ensure
remuneration encourages, reinforces and rewards the

growth of shareholder value As such, it has implemented a
remuneration pahcy which provides a framework for making
deaisions, including those covenng the remuneration of
Executive Directors The remuneration policy 1s set to ensure
that remuneration has the ability to attract and retain senior
executives of a high calibre, remains competitive and provides
appropriate incentive for performance

The committee has agreed that all matters relating to
remuneration of Group employees should

* Align with the best interests of the Company's shareholders
and other stakeholders

* Recognise and reward guud and excellent performance of
employees that helps drive sustainable growth of the Group

« Focus on retaming high-performing senior management

Be consistent with regulatory and corporate
governance requirements

Be designed to achieve effective risk management

Be straightforward, easy for employees to understand and
easy for the Group to monitor

Not be used to reward behaviour that inappropnately
increases the Group's exposure to risks

The committee considers that a successful remuneration
policy needs to be sufficiently flexible to take account of
future changes in the Company’s business environment and
i remuneration practice There must be transparency and
alignment to the delivery of strategic objectives at both a
Coempany and an individual level There must also be scope
to reward for exceptional effort and achieverment that delivers

failure to achieve, individually or at Company level, will not
be rewarded

The committee 15 also mindful of ensuring that there 1s an
appropniate balance between the level of nsk and reward
for the individual, the Company and for our shareholders
When setting levels of vanable remuneration, the degree ,
of stretch in performance conditions and the balance of

equity and cash within a package, consideration i1s given A
to obtaining the appropriate balance of each so as not to ”
encourage unnecessary risk-taking As well as finanaial nsk,

the commttee also ensures that there 1s an appropnate focus

on regulatory and governance matters

The total remuneration package 1s structured so that a
significant proportion 1s linked to performance conditions,
and it 1s the Company’s policy to ensure that a high
proportion of the potential remuneration package 1s provided
via share-based instruments This ensures that executives
have a strong ongoing alignment with shareholders through
the Company’s share price performance

The table on pages 72-77 summanses each element of the
rernuneration policy for the Executive Directors, explatning
how each element operates and how each part links to the
corporate strategy
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT

(CONTINUED)

KEY ELEMENTS OF REMUNERATION

PURPOSE AND LINK TO STRATEGY

BASE SALARY

OPERATION

Prowides a sound basis on which to recruit and retain
key employees of approprate calibre to deliver the
strategic objectives of the Company

Reflects the market value of the role and the post-
holder's experience, competency and performance
within the Company

BENEFITS

Salaries are normally reviewed by the committee annually,
and are usually fixed for 12 months commencing 1 June
Any salary increase may be influenced by

» Scale, scope and responsibility of the role

* Expenence of the indwidual and his or her performance
s Average change in wider workforee pay

* Bustness performance and prevailling market conditions
¢ Commercial need

* Penodic benchmarking of similar roles at comparable
companies selected on the basis of comparable size,
complexity, geographic spread and business focus

Competitive, cost-effective benefits to help recruit and
retain Executive Directors and senior management

Benefits may include, for example, private medical
insurance, discounted health club memberstup and
hfe assurance

Cash alternatives may be prowided for any or all of these
benefits, depending on indwvidual circumstances

Relocation and related benefits may be offered where a
Director 1s required to relocate

Market-competiuve, cost-effective retirement benefits
attract and retain executives

72 1 1G Gronp Holdings ple Annual Re port 2015

The Group contributes to Executive Directors’ personal
pension plans Executives have the option to receive part,
or all, of their pension contribution as a cash allowance in
lieu of Company pension contributions




OPPORTUNITY

The general policy s to pay around
rmid-market levels with annual increases
typically m line with the wider workfarce

Increases beyond the percentage
increases granted to the wider
workforce may be awarded in
exceptional circumstances,

such as

* Where there 1s a change in the
individual’s responsibility

Where the salary set at minial
appointment was below the level
expected once the individual gains
further expenence and a track record
of performance in the role

An above-market positioning may be
appropriate, in exceptional circumstances,
to reflect the cnticahty of the role and the
individual’s experience and performance

Base salary levels for the financial year
ending 31 May 2016 are

T A Howkins — £486 400
C F Hill - £340,400
P G Hetherington - £364,900

The aim 1s to provide market-competitive
benefits, and thewr value may vary from
year to year, depending on the cost to
the Company from third-party prowiders

Benelits constitute a small percentage
of total remuneration

The company may contnbute up to 15%
of base salary to pension, an equivalent
cash allowance in ey, or a mixture

of both

PERFORMANCE METRICS

No performance metrics apply to base salary

No performance metrics apply to benefits

No performance metrics apply to
retrement benefits

RECOVERY OR
WITHHOLDING

No recovery or
withholding applies to
base salary
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No recovery or
withholding applies
to henefits

No recovery or
withholding applies to
retrement benefits
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT

(CONTINUED)

KEY ELEMENTS OF REMUNERATION

SUSTAINED PERFORMANCE PLAN (SPP)

Approved by shareholders at the 2014 AGM, the

SPP prowides a single incentive plan for Executive
Directors rather than having separate annual and

long-term plans

It provides a simple and competitive iIncentive
mechanism that encourages and rewards both annual
and sustained long-term performance, linked to the
Company's strategic objectives

The SPP encapsulates traditional annual bonus and
long-term incentive plans It 1s entirely share-based,
encouraging executives to build up a substantial
stake in the Company, thereby aligning the interests
of management with shareholders

74 11G Group Holdings pic Annual Re pertt 2015

We are iniially operating the SPP by reference to five
consecutive ‘plan years' The first plan year was the
financial year ended 31 May 2014

Awards of shares (either in the form of par value options,
nil cost options or conditional awards), known as ‘plan
contributions’, are made after the announcement of results
relating to each plan year

Plan centnbutions are granted by reference to achievement
against applicable performance targets and accumulate
within a participant’s ‘plan account’

Each year, a percentage of the accumulated balance in
the plan account vests {ie options or awards are released
to participants)

Therefore, a participant’s plan account will comprise the
sum of the plan contribution (f any} being made n relation
to the relevant plan year plus the accumulated awards
registered n the plan account from previous plan years

In the first five plan years, a participant’s plan account vests

as follows
Following Financial year % of cumulative shares in
ending plan account vesting
Plan year 1 31 May 2014 400%
Plan year 2 3N May2015  400%
Plan year 3 31 May 2016 333%
Plan year 4 31 May 2017 333%
Plan year 5 31 May 2018 333%

After plan year 5, the committee may at such time {or at a
later date during the life of the SPP} close the operation of
the plan

I the SPP 15 closed fellowing plan year 5, unvested awards
remaining In the plan account will vest in tranches of 50%,
25% and 25% on the first, second and third anniversanies of
the SPP's closure The same principles will apply on a later
termination of the plan

Participants may receive a payment at the time of delivery
of vested shares of an amount equivalent to the dividends
that would have been paid on those shares while in the
plan account {adopting a first-in, first-out basis} This
amount may assume dividend reinvestment Dwidends will
not accrue on vested but unexercised awards




OPPORTUNITY

The maximum plan centribution in
respect of a plan year 1s an award of
shares with a market value of no more
than 500% of an executve's annual
rate of salary

PERFORMANCE METRICS

The quantum of any awards granted i1s dependent
on performance against performance targets set by
the committee for each relevant fimancral year

Performance targets may comprise, for example,
diuted earnings per share (DEPS) targets, Total
Shareholder Return {TSR) and non-financial
measures Performance 1s measured over single
plan years (ftnancial years} except for TSR (from plan
year 2 — awards in respect of financial year ending
31 May 2015) We currently intend to apply the
following performance cnitena

DEPS - a shding scale of targets will apply for each
plan year The targets will be set at the start of
each plan year Targets and performance will be
disclosed retrospectively in the Annual Report on
Remuneration for the relevant financral year-end

Relative TSR — the Company's share price {plus
dwidends reinvested) performance 1s measured
against an appropriate comparator group For

the first plan year, performance was based on

that plan year alone, for the second plan year,
performance was based on plan years 1 and 2 For
plan years thereafter performance 1s measured over
three plan years ending with the plan year being
reported on The committee retains the discretion
to scale back the level of award i 1t feels the
Company's underlying financial performance does
not warrant the level of award resulting from TSR
performance alone

Non-financial - these may compnse strategic goals,
operattonal and chent satisfacthon measures for
each plan year Targets and performance will be
disclosed retrospectively

Where possible, a sliding scale of targets will be
set For the DEPS and relative TSR measures, no
more than 25% 1s payable for achieving threshold
performance, nsing to full payout for achieving a
more challenging target

The scorecard of financial, share price and non-
financial metrics may vary from year to year m
accordance with strategic prionties and the
regulatory environment

At the time of determining the contributien for plan
year 5, in the event that the commuttee feels the
Company's underlying financial performance over
the first five plan years has not been satisfactory, the
commitiee may scale back the final balance of the
plan account

RECOVERY OR
WITHHOLDING

The commitiee

may decaide within
three years of a plan
contribution that the
undertying award will
be subject to clawback
This may happen
where there has been a
material misstatement
in the Company's
financizl results or an
eIror 1N assessing any
applicable performance
condition it may also
be tnggered if there has
been substantial faillure
of risk management,
or if the participant’s
employment s
terminated for

sernous misconduct
The clawback may be
satisfied by a reduction
In the amount of

any subsisting plan
account, a reduction

in the vesting of any
subsisting vested
awards or future

share awards and/or a
requirement to make
cash payment
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT
(CONTINUED)

KEY ELEMENTS OF REMUNERATION

PURPOSE AND LINK TO STRATEGY OPERATION

ALL-EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEMES

All employees including Executive Directors are The SIP 15 a flexible, tax-efficient, all-employee plan Parinership,
encouraged to become shareholders through the free, dividend and matching shares may be granted under the SIP
operation of an HMRC-approved share-incentive
plan (SIP) and/or such other ali-employee share plans
as the Company may adopt 1n the future

If other HMRC-approved all-employee plans are introduced, they
will operate n accordance with HMRC guidance and limits

Similar non-UK plans may be operated to enable non-UK
employees and Directors to participate

SHARE OWNERSHIP POLICY

Ahgns the interests of management and shareholders A share ownership policy was introduced from the financial year
and promotes a long-term approach to performance ended 31 May 2014

and sk management Under this policy, the Chief Executive Officer 1s required to

hold shares to the value of a minimum of 200% of base salary,
and for other Executive Directors a raquirement of 100% of
base salary apples

Only shares owned outright by the Executive Director are
included in the gwdeline, which must be achieved within five
years of the introduction of the policy o, f later, from the date
of appointment to the Board

The committee will review progress annually, with an
expectation that Executive Directors will make progress towards
achieving the shareholding policy each year

NOTES TO THE POLICY TABLE

Choice of performance measures
The periormance measures that are used in the share performance plan (SPP} are a subset of the Company's Key Performance Indicators (KPls}

Metnc Rationale and link to the strategic KPIs
Total Shareholder Return TSR measures the total return to IG Group's shareholders, both through share price growth
(TSR} relative to a suitable and dwidends paid, and as such it 1s aligned to shareholder interests

bench k
enchmark group TSR s influenced by how well IG Group performs on a range of other metries, ncluding

financial indicators such as revenue, profit, cash generation and dividends, and non-financial
indicators such as client satisfaction and operational performance

Diluted earmings per share DEPS is a key indicator of the profits generated for shareholders, and a reflection of both
(DEPS) revenue growth and cost control

Non-financial performance

Specific non-financial measure  Speafic non-financial critena iInclude system reliability, customer satisfaction, effective
risk management, sustaimving the Company’s excellent reputation and maintaining a good
standing with regulators Each of these measures has a direct impact on a number of the
Group's KPlIs, for example, system reliability 1s a key measure of the resilience of our trading
platforms, which i1s an essential element of revenue generauon and client satisfaction

Customer sauisfaction 1s also measured using the Net Promoter Scare (NPS) data supplred by
tnvestment Trends NPS 1s a measure of whether clients would recommend IG Group

The basket of measures chosen 15 considered to provide a broader assessment of executive
delwery than financial metnics alone

Execution and delivery of key ~ The delivery of the Group's strategic Initiatives 15 key 1o the delivery of the strategy and will,
strategic Inibiatives aver time, drive financial performance and growth
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OPPORTUNITY PERFORMANCE METRICS RECOVERY OR T
WITHHOLDING [

— "

HMRC or non-UK plan equivalent limits No performance metrics tend to apply, although No recovery or
will apply to any al-employee schemes they may be introduced where applicable and withholding applies
that may be intraduced if appropniate to all-employee

share schemes
This currently constitutes a small

proportion of Executive Directors’
total remuneration
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Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable

How performance measures are set

The committee sets the requirements for each plan year The current benchmark group compnses the constituents of the FTSE 350
index (excluding investment irusts)

The committee deterrmines appropriate performance targets each year, taking account of the annual and longer-term business
plans DEPS s calculated on such adjusted basis as the committee reasonably selects {eg adjusung for the effects of any share
buybacks)

The committee approved, in advance, a basket of non-financial measures for the year ended 31 May 2015

Following the end of the year the commitiee assesses performance relative to prior years, internal targets and sector averages
Assessment 1s undertaken "in the round’, taking account of activities and achievements duning the year

For example, for NPS, performance 1s assessed through companson of the Group's performance against other companies in the
sector, with the aim of maintaining a high NPS score relative to the sector average

As part of the Board's strategy planning, there 15 a clear plan of strategic inttiatives provided to the Remuneration Committee at the
start of the year, which details the underlying projects set for delivery in the short-to-medium term The Remuneration Commiitee
uses this plan to judge performance and management’s execution and delivery of key strategic initiaiives
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT

{CONTINUED)

NOTES TO THE POLICY TABLE (CONTINUED)
Annual DEPS targets and non-financial performance
measures, where used, are likely to be too sensitive to
disclose in advance, for commercial reasons We will,
hawever, disclose the measures and targets (where
applicable) used, and the extent to which we have achieved
them, on a retrospective basss, at the end of the relevant
performance penod

Incentive plan discretions

The committee will operate the current SPP {and other share
plans still n operation) according to therr respective rules and
the policy set out above, and in accordance with the Listing
Rules and HMRC rules where relevant Copies of the SPP
rules are avallable on request from the Company Secretary
As 15 consistent with market practice, the committee retaing
discretion over a number of areas relating to operating and
administrating these plans These include (but are not lirmited
to) the following

* Who participates in the plans

* The timung of grant of award and/or payment

* The size of an award and/or a payment within the plan
limits approved by shareholders

* The choice of {and adjustment of) performance measures
and targets in accordance with the policy set out above and
the rules of each plan (including the treatment of delisted
companies for the purpose of the TSR Comparator Group)

Discretion relating to the measurement of performance in
the event of a change of control or recenstruction

* Determination of a good leaver (in addition to any specified
categories) for incentive-plan purposes, based on the rules
of each plan and the appropriate treatment under the
plan rules

* Adjustments required in certain arcumstances {eg nghts
Issues, corporate restructuning, special dividends and on a
change of control)

Any use of the above discretions would, where relevant,

be explained in the Annual Report on Remuneration As
appropriate, it might also be the subject of consultation with
the Company’s major shareholders

Legacy arrangemaents

For the avoidance of doubt, in approving the Directors’
Remuneration Policy, the Company has authonty to honour
any commitments entered into with current or former
Directors that have been disclosed to shareholders previously
This includes awards made under the deferred bonus plan,
the value-sharing plan (VSP} and any other share plans
operated by the Company
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REMUNERATION SCENARIOS FOR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

As a result of the Company's remuneration policy, a significant
proportion of the remuneration recewved by Executive
Directors depends on Company performance The chart

on page 79 shows how total pay for the Executive Diractors
varies under three different performance scenanos mimimum,
target and maximum

Minimum

This comprises the fixed elements of pay, being base salary,
benefits and pension Base salary and pension are effective
as at 1 June 2015 and the benefits value 1s the actual value for
the year ended 31 May 2014

Target
This comprises fixed pay and the target value of SPP
{250% of salary)

Maxunum
This comprises fixed pay and the maximum value of SPP
(500% of salary)

No account has been taken of share price growth,
or of dividend shares awarded in respect of the
deferred element of bonus and SPP awards over the
deferral/performance penods

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS
Each Executive Director 1s employed under a service contract
with IG Group Limnted (a wholly-owned intermediate helding
company) for the benefit of the Company and the Group

The penod of notice for existing Executive Directors does
not exceed six months and, accordingly, Executive Directors’
employment contracts can be terminated on six months'
notice by either party

In the event that the Company termmates an Executive
Director’s service contract other than in accordance with the
terms of his or her contract, the committee will act in the best
interests of the Company and ensure there 15 no reward for
failure All service contracts are continuous, and contractual
termination payments relate to the unexpired notice period

On a Director’s departure, the Company may at its sole
discretion pay base safary and the value of any benefits
(including pension) that would have been recewvable in ieu
of any unexpired penod of notice In the event of termination
for gross misconduct, the Company may give neither

notice nor a payment in liev of notice Where the Company,
acting reasonably, believes it may have a right to terminate
employment due to gross misconduct, it may suspend the
executive from employment on full salary for up to 30 days to
investigate the circumstances prevailing

The Company may place an executive an gardening leave
for up to the duration of the notice period During this tme,
the executive will be entitled to receive base salary and all
contractual benefits (including pension} At the end of the




REMUNERATION SCENARIOS FOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
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T A Howkins

gardening leave period, the Company may, at its discretion,
pay the executive base salary alone, in lieu of the balance of
any penod of notice given by the Company or the executive

When considenng payments in the event of termination,
the Remuneration Committee takes into account indwidual
crcumstances Relevant factors include the reasons for
termination, contractual obligations and the relevant incentive
plan rules When determining any loss of office payment

for a departing Director the committee will always seek to
minimise the cost to the Company while complying with the
contractual terms and seeking to reflect the crcumstances
in place at the tme The committee reserves the nght to
make additional payments where such payments are made
in good faith in discharge of an existing legal obligation

{or by way of damages for breach of such an obligation), or
by way of settlement or compromise of any claim ansing in
connection with the termination of an Executive Director's
office or employment

For new executive appointments, the committee has
discrevion to offer a longer notice period of up to 12 months
to secure an appointment Any payments in lieu of notice will
be at the committee’s discretion, and wilt be imited to base
salary and the value of benefits (including pension) as set
out above

bustained performance plan awards

As a general rule, f a paruicipant ceases to hold employment
or be a Director within the Group, or gives notice of

leaving, they forfeit any enutlement to recewve further plan
contributions All awards subsisting in their plan account at
such tme are farferited in full

However, the situation may be different if the participant
ceases 1o be an employee or a Dector within the Group
under certain crcumstances These include injury, dhsability,
rettrement, redundancy, the disposal of the participant’s
employing company or the business for which they work by
the Group, or other circumstances at the discretion of the
committee In this case, participation in the plan will cease
once the plan contributions in respect of the plan year in
which the cessation arises are determined This will take
into account the proportion of the full plan year worked
Ordmnarly, the participant’s plan account will then vest,

|
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yielding cne third immediately and thereafter the remaining
balance in equal parts on the first and second anniversary of
such determinations

For the purposes of any awards permitted to vest to leavers as ~
described above, the committee retains discretion to reduce

the level of vesting that would otherwise result It may refer to

such time-based adjustments as 1t considers appropriate

Where awards are granted in the form of options, any vested
awards already held at the time of cessation (ie vested awards
held outside the plan account but unexercised) will remain
exercisable for a imited period The exception 1s when
dismissal has been for misconduct, in which case such awards
fapse in full

Value-shanng plan {(VSP) awards — legacy plan

As a general rule, awards which have not vested will

lapse when employment ceases This may differ in certain
crrcumstances when there 1s a good reason for leaving
Examples include inury, disability, retirement, redundancy,
the dispasal of the participant’s employing company or

the business for which they work by the Group, or other
circurnstances at the discretion of the committee The
commttee has the discretion to determine that an Executive
Director 1s a good leaver In this case, the award will not lapse
but will continue or, if the committee decides, will vest on
cessation to the extent the performance condition is satished
A time pro-rated reduction will apply unless the committee
determines otherwise In the event of death, awards will vest
at that ime to the extent that performance, in the opinion of
the committee, has been satisfied

Change of control

The Executive Directors’ contracts do not provide for any
enhanced payments in the event of a change of control
of the Company, nor for hquidated damages Copies of
the Executive Directors’ service contract are available for
inspection at the Company's registered office
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT

(CONTINUED)

REMUNERATION POLICY ACROSS THE COMPANY
We have designed the remuneration policy for the Executive
Directors and senior management with regard to the

polcy for employees across the Company as a whole The
committee 15 kept updated through the year on general
employment conditions, basic salary-increase budgets,

the level of bonus pools and payouts and participation in
share plans The committee 1s therefore aware of how total
remuneration at the Executive Director level compares to the
total remuneration of the general population of employees
Common approaches to remuneration policy which apply
across the Company include

* Consistency in "pay for performance’, with annual bonus
schemes being offered to the vast majority of employees

» Offering pension, medical and life assurance benefits for all
employees, where practical given geographical location

« Ensuring that salary increases for each category of
employee are considered, taking into account the overall
rate of increase across the Company, benchmarking, and
Company and indmidual performance

» Encouraging broad-based share ownership through the use
of all-employee share plans, where practical

RECRUITMENT REMUNERATION POLICY

The commitiee’s overriding objective 1s to appoint Executive
Directors with the necessary background, skills and
experience to ensure the continuing success of the Company
We recognise that the pace of change and technology
development i our industry, as well as the global nature

of IG Group, mean that the right individuals may often be
highly sought-after

We set the remuneration package for a new Executive
Director in accordance with the Company's approved
remuneration policy, as detalled on page 79 of the
Directors’ Remuneration Report, subject to the additional
prowisions described below The maximum level of vanable
remuneration (excluding any buyout arrangements) that we
can offer to a new executive on an annual basis will be In
accordance with the sustained performance plan hmit, being
500% of salary

In many cases, where we make an external appointment,

the indwidual will forfeit incentive awards connected with
their previous employment on resignation The committee
may therefore decide to offer further cash or share-based
payments to ‘buy-out’ these existing entitlernents by making
awards of a broadly equivalent value, in the committee’s
view These awards can be made either under the Company's
existing incentive plans or wia other arrangements In
determining the appropriate form and amount of any such
award, the committee will consider various factors These
include the type and quantum of award, the length of the
performance period and the performance and vesting
conditions attached to each forfeited incentve award
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Where an individual 1s appointed to the Board, different
performance measures may be set for the SPP for the year of
joining the Board, taking into account the indmidual’s role and
respansibilities and the point 1n the year when they joined

For an internal appointment, any vanable pay element
granted In respect of the prior role may be allowed to pay out
according to its terms, adjusted as appropriate to take inte
account the terms of the Executive Director appointment The
committee will carefully determine the base salary level for a
new Executive Director, taking into account the indvidual’s
background, skills and experience, and the business criticality
and nature of the role being offered It will also consider the
Company's circumstances and relevant exiernal and internal
benchmarks Above all, the committee must exercise its own
Judgement n determining the most appropnate salary for the
new appointment

In certain crcumstances, the committee will have seta
starting base satary which 15 positioned below the relevant
market rate It may then wish to adjust the Executive Director’s
base salary, at a level above the average increase in the
Company, as the individual gains expenience and establishes
a strong performance track record in the role Conversely, the
base salary may need to be positioned above the relevant
market rate 1n order to attract the most appropriate candidate
for the role

We will provide benefits in accordance wth the approved
policy We may pay relocation expenses or allowances,
legal fees and other costs relating to the recruitment

as appropriate

We will set fees for a new Non-Executive Director or Charman
in accordance with the approved policy




CHAIRMAN AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The table below summarises each element of the remuneration policy applicable to the Non-Executive Directors

PURPOSE AND OPERATION OPPORTUNITY PERFORMANCE RECOVERY OR N
LINK TQ STRATEGY METRICS WITHHOLDING <
To attract and retain The Remuneration The Charrman No performance No recovery or
Non-Executive Committee receves a single metrics apply withholding applies
Directors of determines the fee fee to cover all their o
appropriate cahbre for the Chairman Board duties 2
and experience {without the Non-Executive g %‘
Chairman present) o
Directors receive 3z
The Board 1s a fee for carrying &
responsible for out their duties
setting Non- They may receive
Executive Directors’ additional fees
fees The Non- if they chair the '
Executive Directors prnmary Board
are not involved in Committees, and for
any discussions or holding the post of
decsions by the Semor Independent
Board about their Director
own remuneration
Committee
Fees are within membership fees A
the himits set by may be paid )

the articles of
asscciation and
take account of the
commitment and
responsibilities of
the relevant role

Details of current fee
levels are set out In
the Annual Report
on Remuneration

Non-Executive Directors do not have service contracts, they are engaged by letters of appointment Each Non-Executive
Director 1s appointed for an initial term of three years subject to re-election, but the appointment can be terminated on three
months’ notice

CONSIDERATION OF SHAREHOLDER VIEWS

The commuttee engages proactively with the Company's major shareholders For example, when making any matenal changes
to the remuneration policy, the Remuneration Committee Chair wall inform major shareholders of these in advance, and will offer
a meeting to discuss details as required

CONSIDERATION OF EMPLOYMENT CONDITIONS ELSEWHERE IN THE COMPANY

In setting the remuneration of the Executive Directors, the commuittee takes into account the overall approach to reward for
employees i the Company The Group operates in a number of different environments, and has many employees who carry
out diverse roles across a number of countnies All employees, including Directars, are paid by reference to the market rate,

and base salary levels are rewewed regularly When considenng salary increases for Directors, the Company will be sensitive to
pay and employment conditions across the wider workforce, however no remuneration comparison measurements have been
utihsed to date The committee does not formally consult with employees on the executive remuneration policy The committee
15 periodically updated on pay and condittons applying to employees across the Company
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT
(CONTINUED)

ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

This part of the report ncludes a summary of how we implemented the policy In the financral year ended 31 May 2615 {including
payment and awards In respect of incentive arrangements), and how we will apply the remuneration policy for the financial year
ending 31 May 2016 We also give details of the Remuneration Committee’s operation, the Directors’ share interests and how
shareholders voted at the 2014 AGM

IMPLEMENTATION OF REMUNERATION FOLICY IN THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING 31 MAY 2015
Single total figure of remuneration for each Director (audited)

Contnibution to SPP plan account®

Fees/ Legacy
basic Benefits Vested Deferred Plan
Name of salary inkind® Pension® element element Total VSP@ Total
Director Year  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Executive Directors
T A Howkins 2015 472 1 7 390 585 975 - 1,519
2014 459 1 &2 498 748 1,246 195 1,970
CFHIll 2015 33 1 50 273 409 682 - 1.064
2014 321 1 48 349 523 872 17 1,359
P G Hethernngton®™ 2015 283 1 43 292 439 731 - 1,058
2014 275 1 41 374 561 935 117 1,369
Non-Execuvtive Directors
J R Davie @ 2015 73 1 - - - - - 74
2014 192 1 - - - - - 193
A Green @ 2015 235 - - - - - - 235
2014 - - - - - - - -
SGHil 2015 70 ¢ - - - - - 79
2014 53 11 - - - - - 64
D M Jackson @ 2015 29 1 - - - - - 30
2014 &7 [ - - - - - 73
J A Newman 2015 &5 - - - - - - &5
2014 40 - - - - - - 40
S Tymms 2015 55 3 - - - - - 58
204 53 1 - - - - - 54
R P Yates 2015 70 - - - - - - 70
2014 53 - - - - - - 53

"™ P G Hetherington was paid a reduced pro rata salary of £283,400, based upon a £354 300 full-time equivalent salary to reflect his flexible working arrangements
As in previous years and consistent with the previous legacy arrangements, his SPP opportunity 15 based on his full ume equivalent salary As of 1June 2015 PG
Hetherington has ceased the flexible working arrangement and accordingly his salary from this date will revert to the full-time amount

@ J R Dawvie ceased to be Chairman at the 2014 AGM held on 16 Gciober 2014 and D M Jackson ceased to be a directer on 16 October 2014

™ A Green joined the Group as Deputy Chairman on 9 June 2014 and succeeded J R Davie as Chairman at the 2014 AGM

¥ Executive Directors’ benefits can inelude private medcal cover, discounted gym membership and life assurance cover Following an internal review certain

Nen-Executive Directars expenses relating to the performance of a director s duties such as travel to and from company meetings and related accommodation

have been classified as taxable benefits In such cases the Company will ensure that the director 1s kept whole by setthng the expense and any related tax In line

with the regulations these taxable benefits have been disclosed and are shown in the benefits in kind column with a consequentual restatement of the prior year
comparatives The figures shown mclude the cost of the taxable benefit plus the refated personal tax charge

The Group cantributes 15% of basic salary to personal pensions for each of the Executive Directors who also have the option to receive part, or zll of their pensian

entitlement in cash The additional cash payment is counted in heu of pensian and 1s not treated as base salary for the purposes of calculating other benefits

T Hewkins elected to restict pension contnibutions to £40,000 and recerve the balance of the pension contribution as an additional cash payment € Hill elected te

restrict pension contnbutions to £40 000 and receive the balance of the pensien centribution as an additional cash payment P Hetherington elected to recewve the

full pension contribution as an additional cash payment

“ Figures provided are the values of the 5PP plan contnbutions in respect of performance for the penods ending 31 May 2015 and 31 May 2014 (e Plan Years 2 and
1) The vested element 1s the proportion of the Plan Year contribution for the relevant period that vests shortly following the end of the financial year The deferred
elemnent 15 the proportion that remains deferred in the plan account Detalls of SPP awards held in the Plan Account both vested and unvested are provided in the
Qutstanding Share Awards table on page 86

M The 2011 V5P awards had a performance penod ending 31 May 2014 Half the awards vested on 22 July 2014 with the remaining vesting on 21 July 2015 The
value of these awards provided in last year s remuneration report was based on an estimated share price We have restated the amounts (now as 2014 prior year
comparatives) using the actual share price en 22 July 2014 (19 5p for half the awards) and the average three maonth share price for period ended 31 May 2015
(740 9p) for the remaining awards
The 2012 VSP awards had a perfarmance pericd ending 31 May 2015 Parformance was below threshold for both the PBT and TSR metnics and therefore this
award |lapsed
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DETERMINATION OF SPP PLAN CONTRIBUTION FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING 31 MAY 2015

Performance targets for Plan Year 2 {financial year ending 31 May 2015) compnsed Diluted Earnings per Share (DEPS) targets, Total |
Shareholder Return (TSR) and non-financial measures TSR performance was measured over the 2-year penod from 1 June 2013 to i
31 May 2015 and DEPS and non-financial measures over the financial year ending 31 May 2015 :

Threshold Plan
Potential as a (25% payout contnbution as
Performance percentage of for TSR and Maximum Actual percentage of
measure Weighting base salary 0% for DEPS}  (100% payout) performance base salary
3599 pence 8 8
DEPS 45% 225% 40 18 pence 44 20 pence (0% vestng) 0% 2 :
T
TSR 35% 175% Medianranking Upper-quartile 98 of 291 130% =4 z 2
ranking comparies =Sz X
(74 5% vesting) am
MNon-financial 20% 100% See commentary on page 84 76%
Total 100% 500% 206% .

PERFORMANCE MEASURES - HOW THESE ARE SET AND REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE FOR THE
FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING 31 MAY 2015 (AUDITED)

Difuted earnings per share {45% weighting) '
At the start of the 2015 financial year, the committee established a diluted earnings per share (DEPS) range for the purposes of
performance measurement and consequentially payout under the SPP This was demanding given the strategic investment the
business 1s making in new technology, products and geographies In setting the DEPS range, the committee considered the
costs of planned investment in strategic objectives, the actual DEPS for the year ended 31 May 2014 of 40 18 pence and analyst
DEPS consensus for 2015

Notwithstanding the strong underlying performance of the Group over the year, the negative financial impact of the Swiss franc
movement meant that actual DEPS for the year ended 31 May 2015 of 35 99 pence was below the threshold target and therefore
none of the potential award under this measure was granted

In setting the DEPS range for the year ending 31 May 2016, the committee has taken into account a number of relevant factors
including internal and external considerations and an appropriate degree of challenge on prior year performance after taking
account of the iImpact of the Swiss franc event

Total shareholder return (35% weighting)

Under the Total Shareholder Return measure, a median ranking aganst the FTSE 350 {excluding Investment Trusts) would
result in 25% of this element bewng granted with the full award being granted for upper quartile ranking or better The award
to be granted for performance between median and upper quartile would be determined on a straight hine basis between
these points

In respect of the award to be granted in respect of Plan Year 2, TSR was measured over the two-year period from 1 June 2013
to 31 May 2015 Actual TSR performance for |G Group, as measured by New Bridge Street, for the two-year period was 48 2%
Against the peer group this performance was sufficient to rank IG Group at 98 out of 291 companies and resulted in 74 5% of
the potential payout under this measure being awarded

Non-financial measures

The committee approved a basket of non-financial measures comprising strategic goals as well as operational and chent
satisfaction measures for the year ended 31 May 2015 These measures are also utilised for an element of the staff general
bonus pool These measures, and the assessment of performance, for the year ended 31 May 2015 are set out in the following
table An average of the performance under the specific non-financial measures combined with performance under the
execution and delivery measure resulted in an overall assessment of 76% of the potential payout under this element of the plan
being awarded
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DIRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT
(CONTINUED)

System
reliability /
uptime

Maintaining
good standing
relationships
with regulators

Customer
satisfaction

Reputation

SPECIFIC NON-FINANCIAL MEASURES

The main measures used to assess performance against this metric are core dealing 65%

availability per month and maximum percentage downtime 1n any one day The Group (FY14 85%)
strives to achieve 99 8% for the first measure and less than 4 0% for the second measure

During the year, core deahng availability per month was breached on one occasion
(April 2015) and maximum downtime was breached on two occasions —in August 2014
and April 2045

For the majonity of the year core dealing availability was very high The main system
outage and breach of the Group's availability target was due to a software flaw in a new
reporting tool - measures have been taken to remedy this Overall, system relability
was margmally down from the prior year (99 95% versus 99 97%) as shown in the Key
Perdormance Indicators section of the Strategic Report The avallability of the dealing
platform 1s very important in terms of client confidence of trading with I1G and the
Group will continue to undertake work in this area to ensure a consistently high level of
platform uptime is maintamed

The Group continues to mamntain constructive and open relationships with regulators 92 5%
and FY15 was a good year from a regulatory perspective (FY14 90%)

The Group continues to have strong relations with all regulators During FY15, IG
successfully obtained licences in Switzerland and Dubay, both of which involved very
stringent application processes and represented significant achievements [n additian,
there were no regulatory incidents during the year

The Remuneration Commitiee uses a number of indicators to measure performance 85%
agamst this metric (FY14 80%)

Net Promoter Score (NPS) data 1s tracked by the syndicated Investment Trends studies
and 15 a measure of how likely clients are to recommend IG to others Over the last year
the Group has seen improverment in Australia, France and Germany while Singapore
remained unchanged The UK on the other hand saw a drop in NPS but was ranked first
for Spread Betung The reasons for this drop in satisfaction are considered to have been
remedied Please refer to the Key Performance Indicators section of the Strategic Report
for more mfarmation on NPS

Dunng the year, the Group once again commssioned an independent study to conduct
a ‘mystery shopping’ programme among G and a number of competitors in the UK
The study consisted of ten cases being raised with each provider where they were
challenged with the same questions or scenarios Each case was scored against deswred
behaviours expected from the case handler The result of the study shows that the
Group performed conststently well in most categories and ranked first in overall scoring
with a 30% lead against the Group's man competitor

The Group continued to run IG Think Tank, an online community and forum which
supports engagement with clients and the inclusion of therr feedback into the (T
development cycle This has led to better IG apps development, mobile charting
functionalities, and mare informative news feeds

IG brand awareness continued to improve with aimost 50% of online investors naming
the Group when asked to state the different providers they have heard of With the
launch of stockbroking, recognition of the brand grew 14%, which was a significant
achievement given the timeframe

During the year, the Group also estabhshed a semor management forum to discuss
and address the latest client insights and feedback — a process that has already led to a
number of key chent wishes having been addressed or where solutions are in progress

The Remuneration Committee assessed whether thare have been any events resulting 65%
In negative media coverage or reputational damage dunng the year {FY14 100%)

The Group and the industry as a whole experienced adverse press coverage in the
aftermath of the Swiss National Bank decision to remove the Swiss franc’s peg to the
euro Additionzlly, the industry also saw some scrutiny from the regulators following
some concerns raised regarding the operations of some competitors The Group’s PR
team and external adwisors are considered to have done well in mitigating the poor PR
and reputational impact
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SPECIFIC NON-FINANCIAL MEASURES {CONTINUED)

METRIC PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT

Risk The impact of the Swiss franc event was significant and resulted in matenal financial O% {FY14 100%)
management losses for the Group However, the Group was satisfied with the response of the nisk

management systems in terms of the identification of the i1ssues, the speed of which the

losses were quantified and the subsequent communication made with stakeholders

Furthermore, the Group made considerable progress across a number of risk
management areas during the year through the newly estabhshed Board Risk
Committee Nevertheless, the Remuneration Committee’s assessment is that the
negative impact on our shareholders resulting from the Swiss franc event should result
in a zero score for this metric

EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF KEY STRATEGIC INITIATIVES _

Execution and  As part of the Board's strategy planning, there 1s a clear plan of strategic projects 90% (FY14 90%)
delivery of provided to the Remuneration Committee at the start of the year, which details the

key strategic underlying projects set for delivery in the shori-to-medium term The Remuneration

nitiatives Commitiee uses this plan to judge performance and management's execution and

delwvery of key strategic initiatives

There were a number of key strateqic projects delivered during the year
Examples of the projects include

* Stockbroking - Successfully launched in the UK in September 2074 including 1SAs
and use of stock as collateral for shorter-term trading from November 2014 It was
rolled out internationally in the Netherlands in March 2015 and further launches are
expected later this calendar year

Switzerland — The Group received a licence from FINMA, the Swiss regulator, in
September 2014 for Swizertand and the business went live the following menth

¢ Dubai — Anather significant milestone was the licence from the DFSA, the Dubai
Regulator, which was obtained in pnnciple in May 2015

* gTLD - The Group's first gTLD was made avadable in May 2015 with the remainder to
go live sequentially in the first quarter of FY16

Significant progress has been made on a number of projects which was not envisaged
at the start of the financial year — each of which has been progressed without disruption
to the key strategic projects noted above There has also been significant progress
towards several other strategic projects which remain work in progress The outcormne
will be disclosed once they cease to be commercially sensitive

Overall summary

Based on performance for the financial year ending 31 May 2015, we will grant awards under the SPP 1o the value of 206% of
base salary (41% of the maximum potential payout} as plan contributions to the Executive Directors after the announcement of
the results The actual number of shares that will be deposited withun the Directors’ plan accounts will be based on the ten-day
average share price immediately prior to grant

LEGACY VALUE-SHARING PLAN VESTING IN RELATION TO PERFORMANCE PERIOD ENDING

31 MAY 2015

The legacy Value-Sharing Plan (VSP), which was approved by shareholders in 2010, comprises annual awards It provides the
Executive Directors and other senior staff with a pre-defined number of shares for each £10 0 million of surplus shareholder
value created over three years above a hurdle Surplus shareholder value was calculated under two cntena Total Shareholder
Returm (TSR) and Profit before Taxation (PBT) In relation to the final award made under the plan on 1 August 2012, statutory PBT
fell by 13% to £169 5 mullion, following the impact of the Swiss franc (underlying PBT grew by 4%) and a TSR of 88 4% over the
three-year period ended 31 May 2015 none of the award vested Further detail 1s provided overleaf
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DIRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT
(CONTINUED)

The caleulation of surplus shareholder value in relation to this plan s explained below

) TSR element (60%) This 1s based on the value created from the difference between the Total Shareholder Return {TSR) of

IG Group Holdings plc and that of the FTSE 350 Financial Services index, multiplied by the I1G Group Holdings ple starting
market capitalisation

Despite a TSR of B8 4% over the three-year period ending 31 May 2015 {measured by Kepler Associates) there was no vesting
under this element of the scheme as this performance was below that of the FTSE 350 Financial Services Index of 120 6%

(i) Profit before taxation (40%) This 1s based on the growth in PBT over the three-year period, multiphed by a fixed muluple

determined by the IG Group Holdings ple starting market capitalisation, plus net equity cash flows to shareholders above a
hurdle return

The multiple for the 2012 VSP was 8 83 This is derived by dviding the starting market capitalisation of £1,636 million by the
PBT for the year endmng 31 May 2012 (£185 7 million} The required hurdle return was 12% per annum

PBT for the final year of the three-year performance period ending 31 May 2015 of £16% 5 million together with net equity
cash flows to shareholders did not result in the generation of a shareholder value when compared to the required hurdle
return at which vesting commences That is the growth in PBT and dividend return over the three-year performance period
was below the required 12% per annum hurdle rate and accordingly there was no vesting under this element of the scheme

AWARDS GRANTEDR DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING 31 MAY 2015 (AUDITED)

The SPP awards granted duning the financial year ending 31 May 2015 in respect of perfoermance to 31 May 2014 (Plan Year 1)
are as follows

Contnbution
Number of options Number of options
Value of Number inthe plan account  Number of options  n the plan account
%of  options of options after plan year 1 vested and exeraised at the end of the
salary  awarded awarded™ contnbution during the year year
T A Howkins 271% 1,245,965 204,290 204,290 81,716 122,574
CFHll 1% 872,035 142,980 142,980 57.192 85,788
P G Hetherington 271% 934,812 153,273 153,273 61,309 91,964

The number of options contributed to the plan account was based on the 10-day average share price iImmediately post the announcement date of the Group results
for the year ended 31 May 2014 of 10 pence per share Awards were granted i the form of nul cost options Awards were based on performance achieved and are

tharefore subject 1o continued employment and subject to the satisfaction of the underlying financial performance underpin te be tested at the end of Plan Year 5 as
set out in the remuneration policy

Detals of the cutstanding SPP share awards using an estmate of the options 1o be granted in respect of Plan Year 2 (e performance to 31 May 2015} are set
out below

QUTSTANDING SHARE AWARDS
Sustained performance plan

Options
awarded as
dividend Estimated
equivalents Plan cumulative
accruing on  contribution Estimated number of
unvested in respect of number of unvested
Plan account options  year ending options vesting options
brought  duringthe 31 May 2015 Plan account  (40% following  remaining in
forward year {estmated following  determination  plan account
{(number of  (number of number of contnbution  of planyear 2 at the end of
Event shares) options) shares) ™ for the year contributions®@ plan year 2
T A Howkins Plan year 2 122,574 5,825 124,695 253,094 101,238 151,856
CFHll Plan year 2 85,788 4,077 87,276 177,141 70,856 106,285
P G Hethenngton Plan year 2 91,964 4,371 93,561 189,896 75,958 113,938

" Exeeutive Directors will be granted awards in respect of Plan Year 2 following the announcement of results for the year ended 31 May 2015 on 21 July 2015 The
share price used to calculate the number of awards to be granted will be the ten-day average share price immediately following the announcement of results for the

year ended 31 May 2015 on 21 July 2015 As the actual average share price 18 not known at the tme of signing of the Annual Report the above number of awards

has been esumated using a share price of 781 5 pence being the share price on 29 May 2015

Share awards have an exercise price of 0 005 pence and ere exercisable untl August 2024

In accordance with the scheme rules 40% of the cumulative awards in the Plan Account {after the contnbutions in respect of Plan Year 2) will vest in August 2015 with

the vesting of the remaining options deferred The August 2015 vesting will include addiiena! dvidend shares acerued as follows in respect of Plan Year 1 awards

held in the Plan Account — TA Howkns (5 825) € F Hill (4 077) and P G Hetherngton {4 371) based on reinvestment at the dvidend payment date
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Other share awards

Number
vested
Share Number Number Number  Number but not
price at  Number awarded lapsed exercised outstand- exercised
Award  award  as at 31 dunng durnng the during ing at 31 at 31
date date May 2014 the year year the year May 2015 May 2015
T A Howkins
VSP Profit award — three year 290ct 10 528 50p 17,057 - - (17,057) - -
VSP Profit award — four year 290ct 10 528 50p 17,057 - - - 17,057 17,057
VSP Profit award — three year 204ul 11 450 00p 4,114 - - (4,314) - -
VSP Profit award — four year 20J4ut 11 45000p 4,314 - - - 4,314 -
V5P Total shareholder return
award — three year 20Jul 11 45000p 9,984 - - (9,984} - -
VSP Total shareholder return
award — four year 20Jul11 45000p 9.985 - - - 9,985 -
VSP Profit award —threeyear 01 Aug 12 449 70p 163,636 - (163,636} - - -
VSP Profit award — four year 01 Aug 12 449 70p 163,636 - (163,638) - - -
VSP Total shareholder return
award - three year 01Aug 12 449 70p 245,454 - (245,454) - - -
VSP Total shareholder return
award - four year 01Aug 12 44970p 245453 - (245453) - - -
Long-term bonus plan -2012 01 Aug 12 45045p 109,938 - - {109,938) - -
Long-term bonus plan — 2013 29 Jul 13 54529 38,000 - - {38,000) - -
1,028,828 - B1817%  (179.293) 31,356 17,057
Number
vested
Share Number Number Number  Number but not
price at  Number awarded lapsed exercised outstand- exercised
Award award  asat 31 during during the duning Ing at 31 at 31
date date May 2014 the year year theyear May 2015 May 2015
CFHIll
VSP Profit award — three year 20 Jul 1 450 00p 2,589 - - {2,589) - -
VSP Profit award — four year 20Jul 11 45000p 2,589 - - - 2,589 -
VSP Total shareholder return
award - three year 2000111 450 00p 5,990 - - (5,990 - -
VSP Tota! shareholder return
award - four year 204ui 11 45000p 5,990 - - - 5,990 -
Share Incentive Plan — 2012
partnership shares 27 Jul12 41918p 328 - - - 328 -
VSP Profit award - three year ~ 01Aug12 44970p 130,909 - (130,909 - - -
VSP Profit award — four year 01 Aug12 449 70p 130,908 - {130,908 - - -
VSP Total shareholder return
award — three year 01 Aug 12 44970p 196,363 - (195,363 - - -
VSP Total shareholder return
award - four year 01Aug 12 44970p 196,363 - {196,363} - - -
Share Incentive Plan — 2013
partnership shares 26Jul 13 55519p 259 - - - 259 -
Long-term bonus plan - 2013 29 Jul13  54529p 22,783 - - (22,783} - -
Share Incentive Plan - 2014
partnership shares 25Jul 14 556 26p - 27 - - 297 -
695,071 297 (654,543 (31,362 2,463 -
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT
(CONTINUED)

Number
vested
Share Number  Number Number Number but not
price at  Number awarded lapsed exerased outstand- exercised
Award  award  as at 31 dunng dunng the during ing at 31 at 31
date date May 2014  the year year theyear May 2015 May 2015
P G Hetherington
VSP Profit award — four year 22 0ct 10 528 50p 10,661 - - (10,661) - -
VSP Profit award — three year 20Jul 11 450 00p 2,589 - - (2,589) - -
VSP Profit award - four year 20Jul 11 450 00p 2,589 - - - 2,589 -
VSP Total shareholder return
award — three year 20Jul 11 450 00p 5,990 - - (5,990 - -
V5P Total shareholder return
award — four year 20Jul 1 450 00p 5,990 - - - 5,990 -
VSP Profit award — three year 01 Aug 12 44970p 130,909 - {130,909 - - -
VSP Profit award - four year 01 Aug 12 44970p 130,908 - {130,908) - - -
VSP Total shareholder return
award — three year 01 Aug12 44970p 196,363 - {196,363) - - -
VSP Total shareholder return
award — four year 01Augi12 44970p 196,363 ~  (196,363) - - ~
Share Incentive Plan — 2013
partnership shares 26Jul13 55519 258 - - - 258 -
Long term bonus plan - 2013 29 Jul 13 54529 25,340 - - (25,340} - -
Share Incentive Plan — 2014
partnership shares 25 Jul 14 556 26p - 297 - - 297 -
707,960 297 ($54,543}  (44,580) 9,134 -

TABLE OF DIRECTORS' SHARE INTERESTS (AUDITED)
The share interests of each person who was a Director of the Company dunng the year as at 31 May 2015 {together with
interests held by his or her connected persons) were as follows

Share % of salary
Incentive held under
Legally Plan VSP share shareholding
owned shares™  shares® SPP awards® option awards Total policy!™
Vested but Vested but
31TMay  31May unexer- unexer- 31 May
204 2015 Un-vested ased Un-vested ased 2015 % salary
Executive Directors

T A Howkins 1,621,183 1,621,183 - 128,399 - - 31,356 1,780,938 2,638%
CFHI 35,131 43,928@ 1,181 89,865 - - 8579 143,553 107%
P G Hethenngton® 113,970 129,899 852 96,335 - - 8579 235,665 361%

Non-Executive Directors
A Green - - - - - - - - -
SGHll 117,209 80,707 - - - - - 80,707 201%
D M Jackson - - - - - - - - -
J A Newman - - - - - - - - -
S J Tymms - - - - - - - - -
R P Yates 25,000 25,000 - - - - - 25,000 279%

Calculated as shares owned on 29 May 2015 at the closing mid market share price of 781 5p

@ This figure excludes awards under the SPP scheme for performance year ending 31 May 2015 which will be granted fofowing the announcement of the Groups
results on 21 July 2015 The awards held in the Plan Account include those in respect of Plan Year 1 as at 31 May 2015

9 P Hethernngton also held 10 000 preference shares at 31 May 2015 and 31 May 2014

“ O which 43 000 belong to Vanessa Hdl

S This figure ncludes partnarship shares that are purchased as pan of the Grougp s Share Incentive Plan (5IF) which are not subjeci 10 vestng condiions and prior year

figures have been restated

This figure shows the number of matching shares held at 31 May 2015 as part of the Group's Share Incentive Plan (SIP) which will vest after three years from the

respective award date, as long as employees remain employed by the Group

[
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A share ownership pohicy was introduced from the finaneial year ending 31 May 2014 Under this policy, the CEO 1s required to
hold shares to the value of a minimum of 200% of base salary, and for other Executive Directors a requirement of 100% of base
salary applies Only shares owned outnight by the Executive Director are included in the guideline, which must be achieved
within five years of the introduction of the policy or, if later, from the date of appointment to the Board

There have been no changes to any of the Directors’ share interests in the penod since 31 May 2015 The awards to be made

under the Company's SPP in respect of the performance period ending on 31 May 2015 are set out earher in this report and are
not included in this table

CHANGE IN REMUNERATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE

8n
020
Base salary Taxable benefits Performance based remuneration®™ g 5 3
2
% % % % % % % % % 32>
Change Change Change Change Change Change Change Change Change fm
{2015/ {2014/ 2013/ (2015/ (2014/ (2013/ {2015/ (2014/ {2013/
2014) 2013) 2012} 2014) 2013) 2012} 2014) 20131 2012)
Chief Executive 283% 7 49% 314% 0% 0% 0% (3234%) 13623% (64 62%)
Group employees 68% 591% 444% 6 44% 278%  1908% (22 94%) 1309% {42 40%} i

™ For the Chief Executive the charge in remunerauen has been restated to mclude all performance-based rernuneranon Rermuneration 1s ncluded in the financial
year n which performance 1s measured against

@ Given the move away from separate annual and long term plans to a single variable pay plan in the 2014 financial year, the performance based remuneration

cansists of the SPP award and legacy VSP plans only The change s calculated based on the change in the total of the SPP contribution for the plan year and the VSP
vesting in that year

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' OUTSIDE APPOINTMENTS

T Howkins 1s a member of the Board and Executive Commutiee of FIA Europe The Executive Directors have no other -
external appointments

PAYMENT FOR LOSS OF OFFICE (AUDITED)
No Dwector has departed, nor has there been a payment for loss of office during the year

RELATIVE IMPORTANCE OF SPEND ON PAY

The following table sets out the profit, dvidends and overall spend on pay over the last five financial years

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

£m fm £m £m fm
Profit after tax 1319 147 2 1417 136 8 {253
Dividends 1028 1028 846 816 720
Employee remuneration costs 943 873 863 927 755
Average number of employees 1,287 1,070 1,005 960 951
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT

(CONTINUED)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE ACTIVITY
DURING THE YEAR

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE ALLOCATION
OF TIME

M salary and Bonus
Scheme Arrangements

W Incentive Awards

BB Remuneration regulation

Remuneration reporting
Remuneration policy
Other

REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE EFFECTIVENESS

During the year, the committee undertook a questionnarre-
based review of its own effectiveness The evaluation process
was externally facilitated by Lintstock as part of the overall
annual Board effectiveness review Overall, the review
concluded that the committee 1s effective and its performance
was rated highly The committee however could further
enhance its effectiveness with more training and support

on regulatory changes in the area of remuneration and the
impheations for remuneration policy

ADVICE TO THE COMMITTEE

During the financial year ended 31 May 2015 the committee
consulted T Howkins, Chief Executive, about remuneration
matters relating to individuals other than himself The
Company Secretary also provided advice and support to
the committee

Appropnate Company employees and external advisers may
attend committee meetings at the invitation of the Chairman

EXTERNAL ADVISORS

The Remuneratton Committee was advised during the year
by New Bridge Street (NBS), which was appointed following a
competitive tender process in early 2013

NBS provided adwice in respect of a wide range of 1ssues,
including advice on the operation of the Sustained
Performance Plan, TSR performance monitoring, drafiing the
Remuneration Report, remuneration benchmarking and share
plan implementation services

NBS's fee for advice provided to the Remuneration
Commuttee duning the finanaial year ending 31 May 2015 was
£58,000 (excluding VAT)
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NBS was appointed following a review of advisors The
committee considers the advice obtained from NBS to

be objective and independent NBS is a member of the
Rernuneration Consultants Group and 1s a signatory to its
Code of Conduct, which reguires its advice to be objective

and impartial

STATEMENT CF SHAREHOLDER VOTING

AT 2014 AGM

At the October 2014 AGM, resolutions were proposed for
shareholders to approve the Directors’ Remuneration Policy,
the Directors’ Remuneration Report for the financial year
ended 31 May 2014 and the |G Group Long Term Incentive
Plan The following votes were receved

2014 Remuneration Pohcy

Total number

of votes % of votes cast
For 292,271,643 @6 20%
Against 11,550,602 380%
Total 303,822,245 100%
Withheld 375,428 -

2014 Annual Report on
Renumeration
Total number

of votes % of votes cast
For? 300,876,365 99 54%
Against 1,390,389 0 46%
Total 302,266,754 100%
Withheld 1,930,919 -

IG Group Long Term

Incentive Plan
Total number

of votes % of votes cast
Forth 298,686,270 98 34%
Against 5,045,504 1 66%
Total 303,731,774 100%
Withheld 375,902 _

™ For includes votes at the Chairman s discretion

A majonty {over 50%) of the votes cast was required for
the resolutions to be passed, and all were duly approved

by shareholders




TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN CHART

The chart below shows the Company's TSR perfarmance compared with that of the FTSE 350 mdex As IG Group 1s 8 member of
this index, the committee believes it 1s appropriate to compare the Group’s performance against it

500 ,
1G Groyp  FTSE 250  FTSE 350 Finanoal Services

450

400

350

o
o
<
mm
TR
oz
A >
-z
N
m

300

250

200

150

100

May 09 May 10 May 11 May 12 May 13 May 14 May 15

Source Datastream (Thomson Reuters)

The graph represents the change in the value of a nominal investment of £100, made on 1 June 2009, in the Company and in .
the FTSE 350 index The closing values at 31 May 2015 represent the value of each nominal holding at that date, and reflect the
change i the share price and the value of dvidend income reinvested over the period

CHIEF EXECUTIVE — EARNINGS HISTORY

The five-year earnings history of the Chief Executive 1s shown in the table below

Financial year 2010 2011 2012 2013 20144 2015
Single-figure remuneration (£000) 1,628 1,141 2,201 1,103 1,970 1,519
Annual bonus outcome {% maximum) 100% 7% 9% 47% - -
LTIP vesting outcome (% maximum) 48% 40% 1% - - -
VSP vesting outcome {% maximum)™ - - - &% 3% 0%
SPP plan contnibution (% maximum)™ - - - - 54% 41%

™ The SPP replaced the annual bonus and VSP schemes fram the financial year ending 31 May 2014

@ The 2011 Y5P awards had a performance pencd ending 31 May 2014 Half the awards vested an 22 July 2014 with the remaming vesting on 21 July 2015 The
value of these awards provided in last year s ramuneration report was based on an estimated share price We have restated the ameounts (now as 2014 prior year
comparatives) using the actual share price on 22 July 2014 (619 5 pence for half the awards} and the average three month share price for period ending 31 May 2015
(740 9 pence) for the remaining awards
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DIRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT
(CONTINUED)

IMPLEMENTATION OF REMUNERATION POLICY FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING 31 MAY 2016
Base salaries

Base salanies for Executive Directors are reviewed annually by the committee The Remuneration Committee decided to
increase base salanes by 3% for the forthcoming year Base salary (s the only pensionable component

The base salanes as at 1 June 2015 and increases from the prior year are

2015 2016 Increase
T A Howkins £472,200 £486,400 3%
CFHil £330,500 £340,400 3%
P G Hethermgton™ £354,300 £364,900 3%

M n 2015 £ G Hethernington was paid a reduced pro rata salary of £283,400 calculated as 80% of his full-tme equivalent salary of £354,300 to reflect hus flawble working
arrangements In 2014 there 1s no pro rata reduction as P G Hetheningten s flexible working arrangements will ne lenger apply

Chairman and Non-Executive Directors’ fees
The Chairman and Non-Executive Directors’ fees were last reviewed in July 2014 There are no changes to fee levels for the
forthcoming year and the fee levels for 2016 are

» Chairman £235,000 (unchanged from the financial year ended 31 May 2015) The fee was set by the committee after taking
into account the experience of the individual and Chairman fee levels in the market)

* Non-Executive Director base fee £55,000

* Chairman of the Audit Committee additional fee £15,000

« Chairman of Board Risk Committee additional fee £15,000

* Combined role of Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and Senior Independent Director fee £15,000

* The Charman of the Nomination Committee will not receve an additional fee

Benefits and pension

We will provide benefits and pension in line with the information set out in the Policy Table on page 72 (pension to a maximum
of 15% of base salary, cash of equivalent value or a mixture of both)
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Sustained performance plan
For the awards to be granted in respect of Plan Year 3, which will end on 31 May 2016, maximum opporturity of 500% of annual
rate of base salary will apply for Executive Directors

The performance targets for these awards are as follows

MEASUREMENT

FURTHER DETAIL WEIGHTING
PERIOD (PLAN YEARS)

Diluted The committee has determined a shding scale of Financial year ending 45%
earnings targets that will apply for the financial year ending 31 May 2016

per share 31 May 2016

Relauve Performance 1s measured against constituents of The two financial years 35%
Total the FTSE 350 excluding investment trusts No part ending 31 May 2016

Shareholder of this element will be awarded if performance 15

Return below median 25% will be awarded for median,

increasing on a straight-line basis, with full vesting

{or upper-quartile performance or better The
committee’s discretion to scale back vesting will apply
as set out in the Policy Report

Non- The measures will include Financial year ending 20%

financiat 31 May 2016
* System rehiability
measures

* Maintaining good standing with regulators
* Customer satisfaction

* Reputation and PR

* Risk management

* Execution and delivery of key strategic iniiatives
The committee will ensure the EPS and non-financial targets are suitably stretching We deem the EPS and nen-financial

measures themselves to be commeraally sensitive, and will not disclose these prospectively However, we will prowide
retrospective disclosure of the targets and performance aganst them in next year’s remuneration report

H APPROVAL
This report was approved by the Board of Directors on 21 July 2015 and signed on its behalf by

-

Roger Yates
Chair, Remuneration Committee

1]
0
D <
mm
Ta
oz
o »>
Hz
n
m

JilVHOdHOD

16 Grup |Hofdidgs p'e Aonud Repon 2015 § 93




AUDIT
COMMITTEE

Jim Newman, Chairman of
the Audit Committee, gives
his review of the committee’s
activities during the

financial year.

CHAIRMAN'S OVERVIEW

During the year, the Audit Committee has maintained its
focus on the integnty of financial reporting and supported
the Board in carrying out its responsibilities in relation to the
Group's fimancial reporting requirements, through reviewing
the results and formal finaneial announcements The ulbmate
responsibility for reviewing and approving the Annual Report
and other externally reported financial information remains
with the Board

The committee again considered the appropriateness of the
design and effectiveness of the Group's system of internal
controls and governance over a wide range of regulatory and
compliance-related matters The commuttee also reviewed
the quality of the external audit process, including the
identified audit risks, the audit plan and reports from the
Company’s auditor

tn the prior year, as part of its overall constderation of the
effectiveness of the Company's internal audit function, the
committee recewved both an internal review against best
practice guidance and commissioned an External Quality
Assessment (EQA} performed by an independent external
firm The External Quality Assessment concluded that the
internal Audit Charter, pohcies and procedures ‘generally
conforms’ to the I|A Standards and the Code of Ethics This
15 the highest rating achievable in accordance with the llA
Standards The review identified potential improvements
which the commuittee considered - the detail of which is
discussed later in the Internal Audit section

in relation to financial reporting the committee’s primary
responsibilites are to review the appropnateness of the
half-year and annual financial statements Matters considered
include the impact and disclosure of the Swiss franc related
losses, the prior year restatements required following the
mandatory adoption of and conseguenttal changes to
accounting pohcy required by IFRIC 21 and the primary areas
of judgement — each of which are detailed later in this report

The year ended 31 May 2015 is the final year that the Group's
current audit partner will provide an opimon on the Group’s
Annual Report and Finanoial Statements as the mandatory
rotation time limit of five years has been reached For the
financial year ending 31 May 2016 the Group will therefore
have a new audit partner from PricewaterhouseCoopers The
Audit Committee Chairman and the Chief Financial Officer
have worked with PricewaterhouseCoopers in order to ensure
an effective transition

The Audit Commuttee's terms of reference, which were
amended in the prior year to reflect both the revised
Corporate Governance Code and the establishment of the
Board Risk Committee, are summarnsed below and can be
found in full on the corporate website iggroup com




ROLE OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

In summary, the Audit Committee's terms of reference are to

SCHEDULED "

* Monitar the integnty of the Group’s financial statements, MEETINGS ~ SCHEDULED '
‘ integrty P tements ELIGIBLE TO MEETINGS

including Annual and Interim Reports, preliminary results ATTEND ATTENDED ..

announcements and any other formal announcements

relating to 1ts inancial performance, reviewing significant Chairman of the Audit Committee
reporting issues and judgements which they contain Martin Jacksen 1 1
» Prowvide advice to the Board on whether the Annual Report, Jim Newman 4 4 oA
taken as a whole, 1s farr, balanced and understandable and ) 2 g
provides the information necessary for sharehalders to Independent Non-Executive Directors gg 3
assess the company's performance Roger Yates** 4 3 =y ’_;:
* Review the continuing appropnateness of the Group’s Sarn Tymns 4 4 am

accounting policies Andy Green ** 4 4

Review the clanity of disclosures, ensurning the Group has
. d d f the Audit C
made appropriate estimates and judgements in preparing nagﬂjzztsz‘:]';:teppe own a3 Charman of the Audst Commitiee on

all matenal information presented in the Annual Report ** Roger Yates was unable to attend a rescheduled meeting

*** Andy Green attended by invitation
¢ Review an annual report from the Board Risk % Y

Committee on the Company's mnternal controls and Risk AUDIT COMMITTE E- MEMBERSHIP
Management Framework AND ATTENDANCE
+ Ensure there are suitable whistle-blowing arrangements for

employees to raise concerns, In confidence, about possible
Executive Directors who can draw on considerable, recent

wrongdotng in financial reporting or other matters :
financial services experence

All Audit Committee members are independent Non-

¢ Review an assessment of the control environment, via 5
ynternal audit reports, and progress on implementing both The Chief Financial Officer, Chief Risk Officer, Head of
internal and external audit recommendations Finance, Head of Internal Audit, Company Secretary and the

external auditors attend the Audit Committee by invitation
appropriate to the matters under consideration Other
Directors and representatives from the finance function and
other areas of the business attend the Audit Committee

as necessary

+ Monitor and review the internal audit function's
effectiveness in the overall cantext of the Group's internal
controls and risk-management systems

Consider and approve the internal audit function’s remit,
ensure It has adequate resources and appropriate access to

information, and that 1t has adequate standing and 1s free The committee normally meets four umes a year and as
from management or other restrictions and when required Separately, members of the commuttee

also meet privately with the Head of Internal Audit and the
external auditors to {ocus on respective areas of responsibility

Review and assess the internal audit plan

Consider and make recommendations to the Board on
apponting, reappointing and removing the Company’s
external auditors, w.hich arc subject to sharcholder approval

and to discuss any potential requirements for support from
the committee to address any Issues ansing

¢ Oversee the relationship with the external auditors, MAIN ACTIVITIES DURING THE
including approving the audit fee, non-audit fees and FINANCIAL YEAR
non-audit services policy, as well as assessing annually the
external auditors’ independence and objectvity and the Following the establishment of the Board Risk Cormmittee
effectveness of the audit process during the prior year, responsibilty for compliance, conduct

nisk, chent money and fraud was passed to the Board
Risk Committee

Review the annual audit plan and the findings of the
external auditars, including a discussion on major areas
of audit focus, accounting and avdit judgements and any In addition to discharging its responsibilities as described
errors identified dunng the audit above, the commuttee focused on a number of key areas The

+ After each committee meeting, make a formal report to following summary of actmities includes all areas covered by

the Board in which the Chairman of the Audit Committee the Audit Commuttee duning the financial year

descnbes the proceedings

The Company Secretary drafts the agenda for each
commuttee meeting, ensuring that each item in the terms of
reference 15 covered at least once In the financial year, and
more frequently if required
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' AUDIT
COMMITTEE

(CONTINUED) ‘

FINANCIAL REPORTING

In relation to financial reporting, the primary role of the
committee 15 to work with management and the external
auditors in reviewing the appropriateness of the half-year and
annual financaial statements The committee discharged its
responsibilities 1n this area through concentrating on, among
other matters

* Assessing the quality and acceptability of accounting
pohicies and practices

* Ensuring disclosures are clear and compliant with financial
reporting standards and relevant financial and governance
reporting requirements

¢ Considering material areas in which significant judgements
have been applied or there has been discussion with the
external auditors

¢ Reviewing all formal financial announcements and financial
statements prior to issuance

*» Evaluating whether the Annual Report and Accounts,
taken as a whole, are far, balanced and understandable
and provide the information necessary for shareholders
to assess the Company’s performance, business model
and strategy

To aid this review, the commuttee has considered reports from
the Chtef Financial Officer and his team It has also recewved
reports from the external auditors on the outcomes of theirr
half-year review and annual audit

The committee considered and addressed the following
disclosure or primary areas of judgement in relatian to the
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 May 2015

Swuss franc related losses

The committee has receved a paper from management
setting out the rationale for the disclosures made in the
Annual Report and financial statements associated with

the losses incurred as a direct impact of the Swiss National
Bank actions on the 15 January 2015 The ultmate impact

on the Group’s profit before taxation 1s dependent on the
Group’s ability to recover the remamning outstanding debt,
the recovery of which 1s significantly dependent on a small
number of ndividualty large debtors Management's paper
included an analysis of the gross debt, the recoveries made as
at 31 May 2015 and the provision for bad and doubtful debts
recorded in the financial statements The Group's auditor also
provided commentary on this matter to the commuttee

% | IG Giwup Holdit,s plc Sunyal Rege 1t 2015

IFR{IC 21

As disclosed in note 41 to the Financial Statements IFRIC 21
15 mandatory for the Group's 31 May 2015 year-end IFRIC
21 gives guidance as the obligating event that qives rise

to the hiability to pay a levy, in the case of the Group this

15 applicable to the United Kingdom's Financial Services
Compensation Scheme levy (FSCS levy) at 1 Apnl each year
This interpretation 15 retrospective and accordingly requires
restatement of the comparative information

The commitiee has received a paper from management
setting out the techrucal accounting analysis, the impact of
the guidance on the Group’s recognition of the FSCS levy and
the consequential restatement of the prior year information
The Group's auditor also provided commentary on this matter
to the committee

Goodwill

In accordance with accounting standards the Group s
required to review any goodwill balances for impairment and
consider the underlying assumptions involved in caleulating
the value-in-use of separate parts of the business known as
cash-generating urits (CGUs) The commuttee observed that
a significant proportion of the Group's goodwill relates to
the UK, Australian and South African CGUSs, for which both
the single-year profit for the year ended 31 May 2015 and
that included in the Board-approved budget for the year
ending 31 May 2016 are greater than the carrying value of the
associated goodwll Accordingly, the goodwill impatrment
reviews of these CGUs are not considered to contain material
or significant jJudgements

Therefore the key judgement in terms of goodwill
impairment reviews relates to the underlying assumptions
used in calculating the US CGU's value-in-use The US CGU
comprises both the Nadex exchange and the associated
market-making business (the ‘Nadex business'} as well as
the wider commercial use of the exchange technology
within the Group The Nadex business remains in the early
stages of development and while significant progress

has been made dunng the year, 1t has continued to be
loss-making Accordingly, the Audit Committee receved a
paper from management setting out the financial forecasts
for both the Nadex exchange business and the platform
savings associated with the wider use of the exchange
technology within the Group This paper set out the key
assumptions used n the iImpairment review and an associated
sensitivity analysis

The committee also considered the development of the
Nadex business through the year ended 31 May 2015 This
included advances in the platform and product offering,
increased levels of client acquisition and volumes traded,
the additional iquidity resulting from the new market-
maker to the exchange and the continued commitment by
management to ensure the US business has the investment
it needs to reach profitability The committee also reviewed
detailed financial forecasts and assumptions In addition,
the Group’s auditor provided commentary on the matter to
the committee




Useful economic life of intangible fixed assets

The Group 1s required to make judgements regarding the
useful economic Ife and carrying value of all its acquired

and internally developed software and licences and domain
names During the year, the Group continued to invest in the
technology platform, domain names and industry-specific
genenc top-level domains and to consolidate the online
presence around the |G com website As at 31 May 2015, the
Group had £6 1 million of domain assets in the Group balance
sheet that are amortised over a ten-year useful economic

Iife As there is a risk of obsolescence for such assets, the
committee reviewed a repart from management detailing the
financially significant intangible assets, the rationzle for their
useful economic life, thetr continued use within the business
and thewr rematning carrying value

Corporation tax

Calculating the Group's current corporation tax charge
involves a degree of estmation and judgement, as the tax
treatment of certain items cannot be finally determined until
resolution has been reached with the relevant tax authority
The Group helds tax provisions in respect of the potential tax
hability that may anse on these unresolved items However,
the amount ultmately payable may be materially lower than
the amount acerued, and could therefare improve the Group's
overall profitability and cash flows in future periods The
committee reviewed a report from management that detailed
the assumptions made in calculating the Group’s current
corporation tax charge and provisions The Group's auditor
also provided commentary on this matter to the committee

EXTERNAL AUDIT

The committee 1s responsible for making recommendations
on the appointment, reappointment and removal of external
auditors, and for assessing and agreeing the fees payable
to the Company’s auditor (both audit and non-audit fees)
The committee 15 also respansible for reviewing the audit
plans and reports from the external auditors The main
activiies undertaken in relation to the external audit are
summansed below

Audit tendering and rotation

The Company's external audit was last re-tendered

in 2010, resulting in a change of external auditors to
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for the financial year ended 3i
May 2011 In line with the requirement to rotate the senior
statutory auditor, the Company’s current audit partner will
rotate after the audit of the year ended 31 May 2015 1s
complete Having recently conducted a full audit-firm tender
exercise, provided it remains satisfied with the external
audit process, the committee anticipates that the next
formal re-tender process will be for the audit of the year
ending 31 May 2021 This 1s in Iine with the UK Corporate
Governance Code and will comply with the transitional
requirements of both the EU and the Competition and
Markets Authonty, subject to the final UK implementation of
the EU requirements

Oversight of the external audnt

The effectiveness of the external audit process depends
upon appropnately identifying risks at the start of the audit
cycle, and consequently the committee recewes a detaled
audit plan from the auditor, on an annual basis, identifying
its assessment of the key audit nsks internatonal audit
standards require that the nsk of overnide of internal controls
15 assumed to be a significant audit sk In the auditors’
assessment, the primary audit nsk identified to the Finanaial
Statements concerned management override of mternal
controls, including both information technology as well as
manual controls The work performed in this area by the audit
firm 15 detailed in 1ts audit opinion

The risk associated with information technology relates 1o
super-user access to certain legacy areas of the Group's
trading system The committee reviewed reports from
management and internal audit on the design, operation and
ongoing manitonng of a number of key controls designed

to mitigate the risks associated with the super-user access
Addiuonally, the committee assessed whether the audit
process addressed these matters effectively through the
reporting received from the auditor during the audit cycle
Management considers the rnisk in this area to have been
appropriately managed The committee concurs with this
view The committee has also considered the auditors’ report
on the potential overnde of internal controls, including the
results of additional substanuve audit procedures and manual
journal testing undertaken

The auditors' also assessed counterparty credit risk to be

an elevated audit nsk, both in terms of financial institution
credit nsk and also chent credit sk This later element being
particularly highhghted by the Swiss franc related debzors
realised during the year

With regards te financial institution credit nisk the committee
has reviewed a paper from management and additionally the
nsk disclosures within note 36 to the Financial Statements that
set out the control framework and policies and procedures
for the management of credit and associated concentration
nsk by the Group As a key business risk to the Group the
committee considers an appropnate control framework with
regards to financial institutron credit nisk, overseen by the
Board Risk Commuttee has been established Additionally, the
committee assessed whether the audit process addressed
these matters effectively through the reporting received from
the auditor duning the audit cycle Both management and the
audht firm consider the financial statement risk in this area to
have been appropriately managed The committee concurs
with this view

With regards to client credit nsk, this principally anses where
the client total funds deposited with the Group are insufficient
to cover any trading losses incurred and can anse where there
are signaficant and sudden movements in a market From a
financial reporting viewpoint, matenal chent credit nisk only
anses post dhient losses being incurred, as 1s the case with the
Swiss franc related losses As stated earher, the committee has
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received a paper from management setting out an analysis
of the gross debt, the recoveries made as at 31 May 2015
and the provision for bad and doubtful debts recorded in
the financial statements Both management and the audit
firm constder the financial statement nisk in this area to have
been appropnately managed The committee concurs with
this view

The committee also holds private meetings with the external
audhtor through the year as an additional opportunity for
open dialogue and feedback from both the committee and
the auditor without management being present

Effectiveness of the external auditors

Having performed a review of the external auditors during
the year, the committee 1s satisfied with their effectiveness
The committee noted that the Company's current audit
partner will rotate after the audit for the year ended

31 May 2015 15 complete, and that the replacement partner
and handover process remain key to the external auditors’
continued effectiveness

Audit and audit-related fees

Details of the Group's audit and audit-related fees for the year
ended 31 May 2015 are disclosed in note 6 to the Financial
Statements Audit-related fees include the statutory audit of
the Group and rts subsidianes, as well as audits required due
to the regulated nature of our business Also included therein
are fees associated with the ISAE 3000 contrels opinion
relating to the Group's processes and controls over client
money segregation

Dunng the year, the commttee reviewed and approved a
recommendation from management on the Company's audit
and audit-related fees

Non-audit fees

To safeguard the objectivity and independence of the
external auditors from becoming compromised, the
committee has a formal policy governing the engagement
of the external auditors to provide non-audit services This
year, the committee again reviewed the Group’s policy
governing non-audit work, details of which are provided on
the corporate website

The policy makes an important distinction between ‘audit-
related services' and all other ‘non-audit services’

The underlying rationale for this 1s because a number of
‘audit-related services’ are specifically required of the Group’s
auditors, through regulatory, legislative or contractual
obligations in addition to the statutory audit services The
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poliey also sets out the considerations and safeguards that
are required in relation to non-audit services provided by the
auditors, and the specific services the auditors are precluded
from providing Addionally, the policy sets out certain
permitted services for which the committee has pre-approved
management to engage the auditors

This approval 1s subject to the policies set out above, and
to specified fee hmits for ndividual engagements, as well as
the reporting requirermnents for all non-audit services to the
committee There were no exceptions to this policy during
the year

Since apponting PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditors,
the Group has established and developed relationships

with a number of independent advisory and assurance

firms which provide alternatives to engaging the audst firm
During the year, PricewaterhouseCoopers has performed
non-audit services In accordance with the non-audit policy
The committee has monitored PricewaterhouseCoopers to
ensure that under no circumstances has work been performed
which affects its Independence This was done by carefully
assessing the nature of all non-audit work performed,
reviewing a summary of all the non-audit fees paid dunng

the year, evaluating the non-audit policy and ensunng that
appropnate safeguards were in place for each non-audit
engagement The committee also requested and received an
explanation from PricewaterhouseCoopers of its own mn-house
independence process

During the year, non-audit fees of £0 9 milion were paid
to PricewaterhouseCoopers as discussed in note 6 to

the financial statements These principally related to tax
compliance and filing, corporate, structuring and sales-related
tax advice, regulatory advice and strategic adwice to the
board All contracts for non-audit services in excess of

£0 1 million require commttee approval Below this level,
the Chairman of the Audit Commuttee 15 notified of new
instructions for the delivery of non-audit services Firms
other than the auditors have been engaged, following

a campetitive tender process for the provision of a wide
range of non-audit services, including transfer pricing, tax
advisory services related to new business offerings and
changes to regulation, tax comphance services, nsk and
regulatory advice

INTERNAL ALUDIT

The internal audit function provided the committee with

a summary report including internal audit reports and
recommendations in line with the internal audit plan for
the financial year In addition, in the hight of potential
improvements highlighted by the EQA, the function
provided additional updates on specific areas throughaut
the year The mamn areas of focus have been regulatory and
operational in nature The committee monitored progress
on the implementation of the audit recommendations raised
by the internal audit function, and the effectiveness of the
coordination between internal and external audit




The committee reviewed the three-year rolling rnsk-based
internal audit plan including improvements as a result of the
EQA and considered the resources and skills allocated to
the internal audit function in order to execute the plan The
plan consists of vanious different types of audit which require
different skills m order to provide adequate coverage across
the Group

In the current year, internal audit resource was further
supplemented with functional specialism from external
advisory firms, and a Regulatory Internal Audit Manager
was recruited to provide more focus on regulatory nisk

This in-house specialism 1s in additien to the IT Internal
Audit Manager who focuses on internal audits of the IT
department and provides assurance over technology nsks
For the forthcoming year, the committee has again authorised
nvestment both in internal audit resource and In external
expertise This will enable the delivery of the planned audits
with support from external speciahsts The Audit Committee
considers this investment will ensure that resources remam
sufficient to provide adequate coverage of the Group's risks,
while retaining flexibility to address new nisks as they arise
over the three-year plan period

All of the improvements from the External Quality Assessment
performed by an independent external firm have now been
introduced into the internal audit function to the satisfaction
of the Audit Commuttee

INFORMATION TECHNOLQGY CONTROLS

The Group's operations are heavily dependent on information
technology (IT), and accordingly the committee has rewewed
internal audit reports on IT controls and assessments of
external penetration tests and cyber nisk All of these have
been supported or performed by external specialists

AUDIT COMMITTEE EFFECTIVENESS

During the year, the committee undertook a questionnaire-
based review of its own effectiveness The evaluation
process was externally facilitated by Lintstock Limited as
part of the overall annual Board effectiveness review The
review concluded that the commettee »as effective and il
performance was highly rated For the commuttee to continue
to perform effectively, there was the need to ensure that the
balance of competencies on the committee 15 maintained
when members depart In addition, the committee should
conbinue 1ts enhancement of the quahty of the internal audit
programme and 1ts haison with the Board Risk Committee

%,

Jim Newman
Chairman, Audit Committee
21 July 2015

AUDIT COMMITTEE ALLOCATION OF TIME
The following chart highlights how the committee spent its
tume during the year ended 31 May 2015

.

ll Statutory Reporting
B Internal Audit Matters
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BOARD RISK COMMITTEE

Stephen Hill, Chairman of the
Board Risk Committee, gives
his review of the committee’s
activities during the financial year.

CHAIRMAN'S OVERVIEW

The Board Risk Commuttee was formed in 2014 and, 1n its first
full year of operation, has proven to be a useful resource in
providing the Board with further opportunity to review and
challenge the Group's nsk management framework in relation
to current and potential nisk exposures During the year,

as well as the continual review of the main nsk decuments,
including the Risk Appetite Statement, the ICAAP and the
ILAA, the committee considered the impacts of the Swiss
franc event and the resultant changes to our approach to
managing the nisks associated with such an event

ROLE OF THE BOARD RISK COMMITTEE
The committee’s key responsibilities are to

¢ Consider and recommend for approval by the Board, the
Risk Appetite Statement (RAS) and Key Risk Indicators (KRls})
for the current and future strategy

L 3

Monitor, review and challenge the Internal Capital
Adequacy Assassment Process (ICAAP) and internal
Ligquidity Adequacy Assessment {ILAA) This includes stress-
testing, the hquidity and regulatory capital positions of the
Group, the size of the hquidity and capital bufters, and the
appropnateness of management mitigation actions

Ensure ngorous stress-testing and scenario-testing of the
Group’s business and receive reports that explain the impact
of identified risks and threats

Ensure risk mitigation conssistent with our risk appetite 1s
in place

Review the Group’s major sk exposures

Consider the adequacy and effectiveness of the technology
infrastructure and supporting documentation in the Risk
Management Framework

L]

Provide input to the Remuneration Committee on the
nsk implications of the remuneration policy

Review the scope and nature of the work undertaken by the
control functions 1in connection with business model and
industry nsks, and speaifically regulatory, comphance, chent
money, anti-money-laundering and conduct risks

Review and approve the statements to be included in the
Annual Report concerning controls and nsk management

Review and morutor nsk-related control recommendations
to ensure they are being actioned appropnately

The full Terms of Reference for the commuttee can be found
on the Company's website, iggroup com




BOARD RISK COMMITTEE ~ MEMBERSHIP

AND ATTENDANCE

The Board Risk Committee 1s composed of independent
Non-Executive Directors and the table on the next page
shows the committee members dunng the year and therr
attendance at committee meetings

The committee is scheduled to meet four times a year
and additionally as and when required The committee’s
recommendatians are referred to the Board and matters
discussed by the committee are reported to the Board at
Board meetings

The Chairman of the Company, the Chief Financial Officer,
Chief Operating Officer, Chief Risk Officer, Global Head of
Legal and Compliance, Head of Internal Audit and Deputy
Company Secretary all attend the Board Risk Commuttee by
nvitation Other Directors, representatives from the finance
function and other areas of the business attend the Board Risk
Committee appropriate to the matter under consideration

ACTIVITY DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR

The commuttee met three times dunng the year To ensure
the committee discharges its responsibilities appropriately,
an annual work plan 1s set around the committee’s Terms
of Reference and was approved by the committee at

the start of the year The Company Secretary assists the
Chairman of the committee in drafung the agenda for each
committee meeting

During the year, the committee reviewed updates to

the ICAAP and the ILAA, approved the scenarios and
assurnptions for internal stress testing and recommended the
documents to the Board for approval

The Swiss franc strengthened dramatcally following the
removal of the peg by the Swiss National Bank in January
and, as a result, 1G incurred a market loss of £41 8 rullion and
booked a provision for bad debts of £15 1 million The Risk
Committee reviewed how the business had responded to this
event and, in particular, considered how the dealing, market
and credit sk management systems and frameworks had
functioned in response to such a stress

The commuttee was clear that the outcome was within 1G’s
overall nsk appetite, albeit at the higher end, but challenged
management in 1ts modelling of stress scenarios A number of
changes were made to margins on indices and currencies as

a result

The commuttee also provided input to the Remuneration
Committee on the nsks associated with the Group’s
remuneration policy, paying particular attention to the design
and monitoring of sales-incentive schemes

The committee recewved the annual report from the Client
Money Committee, and also reviewed the risks and processes
around client money in relation to potential new business
and product developments The internal audit function also
provided updates on the nsks highlighted in 1its reports

The committee receved an environmental risk report focusing
on nsks which are outside the Company's control but could
have a negative impact on the business

Such risks include political nisks such as the impact of the
exit of the UK from the EU, and other associated regulatory -
rnsks In addition, the commitiee reviewed reports from

the Compliance function on the department’s actvities
around compliance momitoning, conduct sk, money
laundering The committee alsc recewved briefings on current
regulatory themes
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Chairman of the Board Risk Committee
Stepher Hili 3 3

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Roger Yates
Sarn Tymms

Jun Newman
Andy Green
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* Andy Green attended by mwitation

BOARD RiISK COMMI|TTEE ALLOCATION OF TIME

Il Reporting, nisks
and controls

Bl Governance
E]ICAAP and ILAA

[ Comphance and
Conduct Risk

Operational Risk
Remuneration

[L Risk appetite

Chent Money
Others

During the year, a review of the committee's effectiveness and
performance was performed without significant issues

e ——

Stephen Hill
Charrman, Board Risk Committee
21 July 2015
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DIRECTORS’
REPORT

The Directors are pleased to
submit their report, together with
the Group Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 May 2015.

The Directors’ Report comprises pages 102 to 104 of this
report, tagether with the sections of the Annual Report
incorporated by reference

The Comparues Act 2006 {'the Act’) requires the Directars to
present a Strategic Report in the Annual Report and Accounts
This information can be found on pages 10 to 53

The Company has chosen, 1n accordance with section 414 C{11)
of the Act and as noted n this Directors’ Report, to include
certain matters in its Strategic Report that it would otherwise
be necessary to disclose in the Directors’ Repert

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

In comphance with the Disclosure and Transparency Rules
{DTR} 7 2 1, the disclosures required by DTR7 2210727

are set out in this Directors' Report and in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 54 to 109 which, together with
the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities, 1s incorporated by
reference into this Directors’ Report

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

A statement of the Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the
Financial Statements s set out immediately prier to that section
of the Annual Report, on page 105, and a statement regarding
the use of the going-concern basis in preparing these Financial
Statements 1s provided later in this report

The Independent Auditors' Report, which sets out the auditors’
reporting responsibilities, can be found on pages 106 to 109

PRCFIT AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s statutory profit for the year after taxation
amounted to £131,933,000 (2014 £147,156,000), all of which
15 atinbutable to the equity members of the Company
{2014 £147,156,000)

The Directors recommend a final ordinary dividend of

19 70 pence per share, amounting to £71,843,000, making a
total of 28 15 pence per share and £102,660,000 for the year
Dwidends are recognised in the Financial Statements for the
year in which they are pad or, in the case of a final dividend,
when approved by the shareholders The amount recognised in
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the Finanaial Statements, as described in note 12, includes this
financial year's interim dividend and the final dwidend from the
prewiaus year, both of which were paid

The final ordinary dwidend,  approved, will be pad on
30 October 2015 to those shareholders on the register at
02 Qctober 2015

OPERATIONS CUTSIDE THE UNITED KINGDOM

in line with our strategic objectives, the Group has branches
in Australia, South Ainca, France, Germany, Italy, Luxembourg,
the Netherlands, Norway, Ireland, Spatn and Sweden It has
operating subsidianies in the US, Singapore, Japan, Australia,
India, Switzerland, Dubai and Belarus

REVIEW OF BUSINESS AND LIKELY

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

We provide a review of the Group's progress, outlining
developments during the year and giving an indication of likely
future developments, in the Strategic Report on pages 10 to
53 The Strategic Report also covers an analysts of the financial
position of the Group at the year-end, and information about
our Key Performance Indicators

ARTICLES OF ASSOQCIATION

The Company'’s articles of association ('the Articles’) are
available from the Group's website, 1ggroup com, or by wrniting
to the Company Secretary at the Group's registered office

The Articles can also be obtamned from the UK Registrar of
Companies Amendments to the Articles can only be made
by means of a spectal resolution at a general meeting of the
Company's shareholders

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND THEIR INTERESTS
Detalls of the Directors who held office at the end of the

year are set out on pages 56 to 57 and are incorporated into
this report by reference We provide information about the
Directors’ service contracts, and their interests in the share
capital of the Company, in the Directors’ Remuneration Report
on pages 70to 93

Duning the year, Jonathan Davie and Martin Jackson stepped
down as Chairman and Non-Executive Director respectively on
16 October 2014 On this date, Andy Green, who joined the
Board as Deputy Chairman on ¢ June 2014, became Chairman
of the Group Roger Yates and Tim Howkins will retire from the
Board at the Company’s Annual General Meeting (AGM) on

15 October 2015

APPCINTMENT AND RETIREMENT OF DIRECTORS
The appointment and retirement of Directors 15 governed by
the Articles, the UK Corporate Governance Code (‘the Code’),
the Companies Act 2006 and related legislation The Board has
the power to appoint any person as a Director 1o fill a casual
vacancy or as an additional Director, provided the total number
of Directors does not exceed the maximum prescnibed in the
Articles Any such Director holds office only untl the next AGM,
and 1s then eligible to offer himself or herself for election

The Articles also require that all those Directors who have been
in office at the time of the two previous AGMs, and who did




not retire at either of themn, must retire as Directors by rotation
Such Directors are eligible to stand for re-election However, in
line with the Code’s recommendation that all directors of FTSE
350 companies should be subject to annual election, all our
Directors will stand for re-election at the 2015 AGM with the
exception of Roger Yates and Tim Howkins, who are retiring
from the Board

DIRECTORS CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

In accordance with the Companies Act 2006, all Directors must
disclose both the nature and extent of any potential or actual
conflicts with the interests of the Company We explain the
procedure for this in the Board section, on page 61

INSURANCE AND INDEMNITIES

The Group has Directors’ and Officers’ hability insurance

in place, prowding appropriate cover for any legal action
brought against its Directors Qualifying third-party indemmity
provisions (as defined by section 234 of the Companies Act
2006) were in force duning the year ended 31 May 2015 At the
date of approval of the financial statements these provisions
remain in force for the benefit of the Directors, in relation to
certain losses and hiabilities which they may incur (or have
incurred} to third parties in the course of acung as Directors of
the Company

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
In the ordinary course of business, the Company regularly
develops new products and services

GREENHOUSE GAS (GHG) EMISSIONS

Information on the required disclosure of the Group’s GHG
emissions for the year ended 31 May 2015 1s set out in the
Strategic Report on page 37

POLITICAL DONATIONS

The Company made no political donations to pobtical
organisations or independent election candidates and incurred
no political expenditure in the year (2014 £nil)

EMPLOYEE INVOLVEMENT

The Company s fully committed to involving employees in afl
aspects of the business Detaled information on employee
engagement can be found on page 35 of the Strategic Report

EMPLOYEES WITH DISABILITIES

We gwve full and farr consideration to applications for
employment from peaple with disabilities Information on the
Company’s policy on employing people with disabilities can be
found on page 33 of the Strategic Report

SHARE CAPITAL

The Company has three classes of shares ordinary shares,

B shares and preference shares As at 31 May 2015, the
Company's issued shares compnsed 366,157,776 ordinary
shares of 0 005p each, 65,000 B shares of 0 001p and 40,000
preference shares of £1 00 each Details of movement in the
Company’s share capital and rights attached to the issued
shares are given in notes 26 and 27 to the Financial Statements
Information about the rights attached to the Company's

shares can also be found in the Articles Details of the Group's
required regulatory capital are disclosed in note 37 to the
Financial Statements

VARIATION OF RIGHTS

Subject to the provisions of applicable statutes, the nghts
attached to any class of shares may be varied either with the
consent In writing of the holders of at least three-quarters in
nominal value of the 1ssued shares of that class or with the
sanction of a Speaial Resolution passed at a separate meeting
of the holders of the shares of that class

RESTRICTIONS ONTRANSFER OF SECURITIES
There are no specific restrictons on the transfer of securities
in the Caompany, other than as contained i the Articles

and certain laws or regulations, such as those related to
insider trading, which may be imposed from time to time

The Directors and certain employees of the Company are
required 1o obtain the Company's approval prior to dealing in
the Company’s securities The Company 1s not aware of any
agreements between holders of secunties that may result in
restnctions on the transfer of secunties or on voting nights

EXERCISE OF RIGHTS OF SHARES IN EMPLOYEE
SHARE SCHEMES

The trustees of the Employee Benefit Trust do not seek to
exercise voting nghts on shares held in the employee trusts,
other than on the direction of the underlying beneficiaries No
voting rights are exercised in relation to shares unallocated to
indwidual beneftoaries

POWERS OF THE DIRECTORS TO ISSUE OR
PURCHASE THE COMPANY'S SHARES

The Articles permit the Directors to 1ssue or repurchase the
Company's own shares, subject to obtaining shareholders’
prior approval The shareholders gave this approval at the
2014 AGM The authority toissue or buy back shares will
expire at the 2015 AGM, and it will be proposed at the
meeting that the Directors be granted new authorities

to issue or buy back shares The Directors currently have
authonty to purchase up to 36,606,154 of the Company's
ordinary shares However, the Company did not repurchase
any of its ordinary shares dunng the year

Buning the year, the Company instructed the trustee of the
Employee Benedit Trust to purchase shares in order to satisfy
awards under the Group'’s share-incentive plan schemes

The Company also 1ssued shares in respect of long-term
incentwe plan and value-shanng plan schernes Details of the
shares held by the Group's Employee Benefit Trusts and the
armounts paid during the year are disclosed in note 28 to the
Financial Statements

MAJOR INTEREST IN SHARES

Information provided to the Company by major shareholders
pursuant to the Financial Conduct Authonity {FCA)'s Disclosure
and Transparency Rules (DTRs} 1s published via a Regulatory
Information Service and 1s available on the Company's
website The following information has been receved, In
accordance with DTRS, from holders of notifiable interests
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in the Company’s issued share capitat It should be noted

that some of these holdings may have changed since the
Company recewved the notification Holders are not required
to notdy the Company of any change until the next applicable
threshold 1s reached or crossed

31 May 2015

Mo of shares Percentage

Massachusetts Finanaal Services 36,584,986 10 00%

Company

Artemus Investment Management LLP 18,806,983 515%
Black Rock Inc 18,313,343 501%
Cantillon Capital Management LLC 18,258,919 499%
Prudential PLC Group of Companies 11,066,471 300%

The company was informed of the following moverment of notifiable
interest between 31 May 2015 and 20 July 2015

20 July 2015

No of shares Percentage

Allianz Global Investors GmbH 18,303,673 4 99%

CHANGE OF CONTROL

Following any future change of control of the Company, the
Group's banking facilities, which are currently undrawn (refer
to note 18 of the Financial Statements), will be cancelled, and
any obhgations will become immediately due and payable

There are no agreements between the Company and its
Directors or employees providing for compensation on
any loss of office or employment that occurs because of

a takeover bid However, options and awards granted to
employees under the Company’s share schemes and plans
may vest on a takeover, under the schemes’ provisions

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROCLS
The Group 1s exposed to a number of business nisks i
providing products and services to its clients The Board 1s
responsible for establishing the overall appetite for these
risks, which is detailed and approved in the Risk Appetite
Staternent Our Risk Management Framework 1s supported
by a system of internal controls designed to embed the
management of business nisk throughout the Group We
outhne the nisks to which the Group 1s exposed and our
Risk Management Framework, including a description of its
system of internal controls, in the Managing Our Business Risk
section of the Strategic Report
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Details of our use of financial instruments and financial
nsk management are set out In note 35 and 36 to the
Financial Statements

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Details of related-party transactions are set out in note 34 to
the Financial Statements

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company’s AGM will be held on 15 October 2015 We set
out detalls of the resolutions to be proposed at the AGMin a
separate circular sent to all shareholders

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Resolutions to reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as
the Company’s auditors and to authorise the Directors to
deterrmine therr remuneration will be put to shareholders at
the AGM on 15 October 2015

GOING CONCERN

The Directors have prepared the Financial Statements
on a going-concern basis, which requires them to have
a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate
resources to continue In operational existence for the
foreseeable future

The Directors have reviewed the Group's processes for
controlling the financial risks to which it 1s exposed, its
available hquidity, its regulatory capital position and the
annual budget As a result of this review, the Directors are
satisfied that the Group has adequate resources to continue
in operational existence for the foreseeable future For this
reason, they continue to adopt the going-concern basis in
prepanng the Financial Statements

DIRECTORS' STATEMENT AS TO DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

So far as each person who was a Director at the date of
approving this report 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit
information, being information needed by the auditors in
connection with prepanng their report, of which the auditors
are unaware Each Director has taken all the steps that he or
she 15 obliged to take as a Director in order to make himself
or herself aware of any relevant audit information, and to
establish that the Company's auditors are aware of that
information This confirmation 1s given pursuant to section
418 of the Companies Act 20046 and should be interpreted in
accordance with and subject to these prowvisions

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

As a result of a review of our contingent iquidity requirements
and upon approval from the Executive Risk Committee, we
have renegotiated and reduced our liquidity facility from

£200 0 midhon to £180 0 rmilion Further details are set out in
Note 19(e} to the Financial Statements




STATEMENT OF
DIRECTORS'
RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for
preparing the Annual Report, the

Directors’ Remuneration Report
and the Financial Statements in
accordance with applicable law
and regulations.

The Companies Act 2006 requires the Directors to prepare
Financial Statements for each financial year Under this law,
the Directors have prepared the Group and parent company
Financial Statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union In preparing these Financial Statements, the
Directors have also elected to comply with IFRSs issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)

Under company law, the Directors must not approve the
Financial Statements unless they are satished that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the
Company, and of the Group's profit or loss for that financial
year In prepanng these Financial Statements, the Directors
are required to

+ Select surtable accounting policies and apply
them consistently

* Make judgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent

* State whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union and IFRSs 1ssued by the IASB have been
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the Financial Statements

* Prepare the Financial Statements on 2 going-concern bass,
unless 1t 1s Inappropnate to presume that the Company will
continue n business

Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation
and dissermination of Financial Statements may differ from
legislation in other junsdictions

The Dhrectors are responsible for ensunng that the Company
keeps adequate accounting records These records must be
sufficient to show and explain the Company’s transactions and
disclose the financial position of the Company and the Group
with reasonable accuracy at any tme They must also enable
the Directors to ensure that the Financial Statements and the
Directors’ Remuneration Report comply with the Companies
Act 2006 and, as regards the Group Financial Statements,
Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

The Directars are responsible for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and the Group, and for taking reasonable steps
to prevent and detect fraud and other rregulanties

The maintenance and integrity of the Group's website 1s also
the Directors' responsibility

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

It 15 the Directors' opinion that the Annual Report and
Accounts, taken as a whole, are far, balanced and
understandable and provide the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Company's performance, business
mode! and strategy

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are hsted in
the Corporate Governance Report, confums that, to the best
of therr knowledge

s The Financial Statements, which have been prepared in
accordance with the applicable set of accounting standards,
give a true and fair view of the assets, habilities, inancial
position and profit of the Company and the undertakings
included in the consolidauon taken as a whole

* The Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report included
within this Annual Report prowide a fair review of the
business's development and performance, the Company's
posiion and the undertakings included in the consolidation
taken as a whole, together with a description of the
princaipal risks and uncertainties that the Group faces

On behalf of the Board

(-

Chnstopher Hill
Chief Financial Officer
21 July 2015
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INDEPENDENT
AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF

IG GROUP HOLDINGS PLC

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our opiion

In our opinion

¢ |G Group Holdings ple's Group Financial Statements
and the Company Financial Statements (the ‘Financial
Staternents’) give a true and farr view of the state of the
Group's and of the Company’s affairs as at 31 May 2015 and
of the Group's profit and the Group’s and the Company’s
cash flows for the year then ended,

¢ The Group Financial Statements have been properly
prepared In accordance with International Frinancial
Reporting Standards ['IFRSs’) as adopted by the
European Union,

* The Company Financial Statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union
and as applied in accordance with the prowsions of the
Compantes Act 2006, and

» The Financial Statements have been prepared in
accordance with the reguirements of the Companies Act
2006 and, as regards the Group Financial Statements,
Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation

What we have avdited

IG Group Holdings plc's Financial Statements comprise

+ The Group and Company Statements of Financial Position
as at 31 May 2015,

* The Group income Statement and the Group statement of
comprehensive income for the year then ended,

* The Group and Company Cash Flow Statements for the
year then ended,

* The Group and Company Statements of Changes in Equity
for the year then ended, and

+ The notes to the Financial Statements, which include

a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information
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The financial reperting framework that has been applied in
the preparation of the Financial Statements 1s applicable law
and IFRSs as adopted by the European Umon and, as regards
the Company Finanoial Statements, as applied in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

Cur audit approach
Cverview

We present below an overview of our audit approach, the
details of which are considered within our audit report

* Overall Group materiality
£8 5 million which represents
5% of profit before tax

Matenality
* The majority of the audit work

was performed by the Group
audit team 1n London

Specific procedures were
carned out by overseas teams
where necessary

Audit scope

* Risk of management
Areas of overnde of internal controls,
forus incorporating Information
Technalogy
s Counterparty credht risk

The scope of our audit and our areas of focus

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (15As (UK & Ireland)’)

We designed our audit by determining materiality and
assessing the nisks of matenal misstatement in the Financial
Statements In particular, we looked at where the directors
made subjective judgements, for example in respect of
significant accounting estimates that involved making
assumptions and constdenng future events that are inherently
uncertain As in all of our audits, we also addressed the

nsk of management override of internal controls, Including
evaluating whether there was evidence of bias by the
directors that represented a nisk of matenal misstatement due
to fraud




The nisks of matenal misstatement that had the greatest effect
on our audit, including the allocation of our resources and
effort, are identified as ‘areas of focus’ in the table below We
have also set out how we tailored our audit to address these

specific areas 1n order to provide an opinion on the Financial
Statements as a whole, and any comments we make on the
results of our procedures should be read in this context This
15 not a complete list of all risks identified by our audit

Area of focus

How our audit addressed the area of focus

Risk of management override of internal controls, incorporating
Information Technology

International Standards on Audrting {UK & ireland) (ISAs (UK

& Ireland)} require that we consider this as a significant nsk as
management 15 In & unique position to perpetrate fraud because of
thewr ability to manipulate accounting records and prepare fraudulent
Financial Statements by overnding controls that otherwise appear to
he operaung effectively

Although management s responsible for safeguarding the assets
of the business, we planned our audit so that we had a reasonable
expectation of detecung matenal misstaternents to the Financial
Statements and accounting records

Speatfically in relation 10 Infermation Technology, the nisk relates to
super user access to the Universe the marn client ledger system by
certain indwiduals in order to perform ther role Those indviduals
have an opportunity to commit and conceal fraud

We tested the fraud nisk assessment performed by management and
the prevention and detection controls in place in the Group with no
exceptions noted from our testing We tested the appropnateness
and authorisation of journal entries that we dentified as unusual and
no rssues arose from thrs work

We exarmmed significant one-off transactions and considered
their accounting treatment with ne significant exceptions arising
We also incorporated an element of unpredictabibity into our
testing approach

We understood and tested key controls in place over financial
information Specifically in relation to information technology we
performed tesung over the IT general controls n Universe, including
access rights Additionally we tested the controls mitigating the nsks
relating te super user access including controls that would identify
unexpected changes to data which could impact the Financial
Statements and reconciliations of Universe reports to external third
party sources including broker and bank reconciliations We noted
no significant 1ssues ansing

Counterparty credit nisk

The Group Is exposed to counterparty credit risk when placing cash
with banks and brokers and indwidual chent counterparty credit nisk

The remaval of the ink of the Swiss franc to the euro in January
resulted in significant provision for bad debis retating to individual
chents for the Group at the year end

We inspected the Group's credit policy and tested the effectiveness
of the ongoing monitoring which includes ensurning balances held
with counterparties are within the levels approved by the Executive
Risk Committee and checking for changes 1n the short term and long
term credit worthiness of institutional counterparties No significant
were \dentified through this work

We tested on a sample basis the credit worthiness of institutional
counterparties 1o external ratng agency reports No exceptions were
noted from this work

We performed contrals and substantive testing over cash and
broker reconailhations We noted no significant issues ansing

We read and understood the bad debt provisicning policies and
checked that these were consistent with prior year Where this
was not the case, we understcod the rationale for any change and
considered whether new methodologies are appropriate

We reperformed the calculation of the prowision to calculate the
expected recovery and value within the Financial Statements, and no
1ssues were noted in the testing

We understood the basis and assumptians used by management
for the provisioning of the Swiss franc exposures We considered
the adequacy of tins provision and noted no significant i1ssues from
our testing

How we taillored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we
performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on
the Financial Statements as a whole, taking into account the
geographic structure of the Group, the accounting processes
and controls, and the industry in which the Group operates

The Group consists of a UK holding Company with a number
of subsidiary entiies and branches containing the operating
businesses of both the UK and overseas territories The

accounting records for both the UK and overseas businesses

are prnimanly maintained in the UK As a result, the majonity

of the audit work was performed by the Group audit team

in London, with certan, speofic procedures camed out by
overseas PwC engagement teams where necessary This work
was himited to payroll procedures in Australia and Singapore

.
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Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application

of matenality We set certain quantitative thresholds for
matenality These, together with qualitative considerations,
helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature,
timing and extent of our audit procedures and 1o evaluate the
effect of misstatements, both individually and on the Financial
Statements as a whole

Based on our professional judgement, we determined
matenality for the Financial Statements as a whole as follows

Overall Group matenahty | £8 5million (2014 £%7 mulhon)

How we determined nt 5% of profit before 1ax

Rationale for benchmark Consistent with last year, we applied
applied this benchmark a generally accepted
audit practice, in the gbsence

of ndicatars that an alternative
benchmark would be appropriate

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report
to them musstatements identified during our audit above
£420,000 (2014 £450,000) as well as misstatements below
that amount that, in our view, warranted reporting for
qualitative reasons

Going concern

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the
Drrectors' Statement, set out on page 104, in relation to
going concern We have nothing to report having performed
our review

As noted in the Directors' Statement, the directers have
concluded that 1t 15 appropnate to prepare the Financial
Statements using the going concern basis of accounting

The going concern basis presumes that the Group and the
Company have adequate resources to remain in operatton,
and that the directors intend them to do so, for at least one
year from the date the Financial Statements were signed As
part of our audit we have concluded that the directors’ use of
the going concern basis is appropnate

However, because not all future events or conditions can
be predicted, these statements are not a guarantee as
to the Group's and Company's ability to continue as a
going concern
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OTHER REQUIRED REPORTING

Consistency of other information

Companies Act 2006 opinion

In our opinian, the information given in the Strategic Report
and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which
the Financial Statements are prepared is consistent with the
Financial Statements

15As (UK & Ireland) reporting

Under ISAs (UK & Ireland) we are required to report to you if m our
apinion

+ Information in the Annual Report i1 We have no

exceptions to
— matenally inconsistent with the informatton report ansing from

in the audited Financial Statements, or this respansibility

- apparently matenally incorrect based
on, or matenally Inconsistent with, our
knowledge of the Group and Company
acquired in the course of performing our
audit, or

— otherwise misleading

* the statement given by the directors an page | We have no
105, in accordance with provision C 11 of exceptions to
the UK Carporate Governance Code ('the report ansing from
Code }, that they consider the Annual Report | this responsibility
taken as a whole to be farr, balanced and
understandable and prowides the information
necessary for members to assess the Group’s
and Company's performance, business model
and strategy i1s matenally inconsistent with
our knowledge of the Group and Company
acquired in the course of performing
our audit

* the section of the Annual Repert on page We have no
96, as required by provision C 3 8 of the exceplions o
Code, desenbing the work of the Audit report arising from
Committee does not appropnately address | this responsibility
matters commumcated by us to the Audit
Cammittee

Adequacy of accounting records and information and
explanations receved

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to
you if, in our opinion

* We have not received all the information and explanations
we require Tor our audit

¢ Adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us

s The Company Financial Statements and the part of the
Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in
agreement with the accounting recerds and returns

We have no exceptions 1o report arising from
this responsibility




Directors' remuneration

Directors' remuneration report — Compames Act 2006
opinion

In our opinion, the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report
to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with
the Comparies Act 2006

Other Companies Act 2006 reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report
to you i, in our opinion, certain disclosures of directors’
remuneration specified by faw are not made We have no
exceptions ta report ansing from this responsibility

Corporate governance statement

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the part
of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the
Company's compliance with the ten provisions of the UK
Corporate Governance Code We have nothing to report
having performed our review

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND THE AUDIT

Our responstbilities and those of the directors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities set out on page 105, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the Financial Statements
and for being satisfied that they give a true and farr view

Qur responsibility 1s 10 audit and express an opinion on the
Financial Statements in accordance with applicable law and
15As (UK & Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with
the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for
and only for the Company’s members as a body in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2004 and for
no other purpose We do not, in giving these opinions, accept
or assumne responsibility for any other purpose or to any other
person to whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands 1t
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent
N Writing

What an audit of Financial Statements involves

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts

and disclosures in the Financial Statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the Financial Statements are free
from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error
This includes an assessment of

¢ Whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the
Group's and the Company’s eircumnstances and have been
consistently apphed and adequately disclosed,

* The reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by the directors

* The overall presentation of the Financial Statements

We primarily focus our work in these areas by assessing the
directors’ judgements against available evidence, forming

our own judgements, and evaluating the disclosures in the
Financial Statements

We test and examine information, using sampling and other
auditing techniques, to the extent we consider necessary to
provide a reasonable bass for us to draw conclusions We
obtain audit evidence through testing the effectiveness of
controls, substantive procedures or a combination of both

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial
infermation in the Annual Report to 1dentify matenal
inconsistencies with the audited Financial Statements and to
identfy any nformation that 1s apparently matenally incorrect
based on, or matenally inconsistent with, the knowledge
acquired by us in the course of performing the audit If we
become aware of any apparent matenial misstatements ar
inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Darren Ketteringham {Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

21 July 2015
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FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

GRQUP INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2015

Restated”

Year ended Year ended

31 May 2015 31 May 2014

Note fm fm

Trading revenue™ 4221 407 9
Interest income on segregated client funds 3 49 58
Revenue 4270 4137
Interest expense on segregated client funds 04) 03
Introducing partner commussions (337) (37 5)
Betting duty and financial transaction taxes® b3 {38)
Other operating income 3 D6 21
Net operating income 4 387 2 3742

Analysed as

Net trading revenue® K} 3884 3704
Other net operating Income 12} 38
Administrative expenses™ 5 (217 &) (178 8)
Operating profit 1696 1954
Finance tncome 8 18 15
Finance costs q 19 20)
Profit before taxation 1695 194 9
Taxation 10 {37 4} 47 7)
Profit for the year 1319 147 2
Profit for the year attnbutable to owners of the parent 139 147 2
139 147 2

Earmings per ordinary share Note 2015 Restated”
Basic i1 36 i3p 40 35p
Diluted 1 3599 40 22p

The notes on pages 116 to 177 are an integral part of these Financial Statements

M The Groups trading revenue and net trading revanue have been negatively impacted by £122 milion and £11 8 million respectively betting duty and financial
transaction taxes by £0 4 million and administrative expenses by £11'5 million following the Swiss National Bank s announcement on 15 January 2015, that it had
ceased intervention in the exchange rate between the Swiss frang and euro Please refer to note 2 for further details

*  As outlined in the Group Accounting policies on page 168, comparative periods have been restated to reflect the change in timing of recognition of the FSCS levy in
accordance with IFRIC 21 Lewies See note 38 for additional informauon
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GROUP STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2015 4z
zZ
mo
Restated* z2
Year ended 31 May 2015 Year ended 31 May 2014 w
fm f£m fm fm
Profit for the year 1319 147 2
Other comprehensive income/(expense) ’
ltemns that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss
Change in value of available-for-sale financial assets 03 01 )
Foreign currency translation income/(expense) on overseas subsidiaries 0é {65}
Other comprehensive income/(expense) for the year, net of tax 0y 64)
Total comprehensive incoma for the year 1328 1408
Total comprehensive iIncome attnbutable to owners of the parent 1328 1408
i328 1408

All items of other comprehensive Income or expense may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss
The items of comprehensive iIncome noted above are stated net of related tax effects

The notes on pages 116 to 177 are an integral part of these Financial Statements

* As outlined in the Group Accounting policies on page 168 comparative penods have been restated 1o reflect the change iIn timing of recognition of the FSCS levy in
accordance with IFRIC 21 Levies See note 38 for additional nformation
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AT 31 MAY 2015

Group Company

Restated* Restated
31 May 31 May 1 June 31 May

2015 2014 203 2015 2014
MNote fm fm fm fm fm
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 13 133 130 145 - -
Intangible assets 14 1240 1227 1205 - 16
Investrment i subsidianes 15 - - - 4798 4716
Financial investments 21 755 322 - - -
Deferred tax assets 10 71 74 109 - -
2199 1750 1459 4798 4732
Current assets
Trade recewvables 17 2696 3275 3006 - -
Prepayments and other recevables 122 122 103 2028 1357
Cash and cash equivalents 18 1488 105 98 3 - -
Financial investments 21 29 503 505 - -
4535 4915 4597 2028 1357
TOTAL ASSETS 6834 666 5 4056 6826 608 9
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Tracle payables 22 177 219 190 - -
Other payables 23 612 584 591 1265 77
Income tax payable 131 203 243 - -
920 1006 1024 1265 77
Non-current habilities
Redeemable preference shares 26 - - - - -
Total liabilities 920 100 6 1024 1265 77
Equity attnbutable to owners of the parent
Share caprtal 27 - - - - -
Share premium 27 2068 2068 2068 2068 2068
Other reserves 29 @18 854 851 393 343
Retained earnings 2928 2737 2113 3100 3801
Shareholders’ equity 5914 5659 5032 5561 6012
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 6834 666 5 56 6826 6089

*  As cuthned i the Group accounung policies on page 168, comparative periods have been restated to reflect the change in uming of recognition of the FSCS levy in
accordance with IFRIC 21 Lewies See note 38 for additional nfermation The opening batance sheet as at 1 June 2013 reflects the Group s restated closing balance
as at 31 May 2013

The financial statements on pages 110 to 177 were approved by the Board of Directors on 21 July 2015
and signed on 1ts behalf by

%L/

Tim Howkins Chnstopher Hill
Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer

Regrstered Company number 04677092
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2015

Share Non-
Share premwm Other Share- con-
captal  account reserves Retaned  holders’  trolling Total

(note 27) (note 27} [note 29} earnings equity Iinterests equity
Group fm fm fm fm fm fm fm T
Restated* At 1 June 2013 - 2068 851 2m3 5032 - 5032
Profit for the year - - - 147 2 1472 - 147 2
Other comprehensive expense for the year - - 54) - 64) - 64)
Total comprehensive (expense)income for the year - - 54} 147 2 1408 - 1408 '
:Eh?:tltey%e}ttled employee share based payments - N 86 _ 56 _ 66
Utilisation of own shares - - 01 - 01 - 01
Equity dwidends paid {Note 12) - - - (84 8) (84 8) - (84 8)
Movement in equity - - 03 462 4 627 - 627 § E
Restated* At 31 May 2014 - 2068 854 2737 5659 - 5659 g %
Profit for the year - - - 1319 19 - LA - >
Other comprehensive income for the year - - 09 - 09 - 09
Total comprehensive (expense)/income for the year - - a9 1319 1328 - 1328
(En?;:ney-a%?ﬂed employee share-based payments _ _ 53 _ 53 _ 53
Excess of tax deduction benefit an share-based _ B 65 _ 05 B 05 L
payments recognised directly in equity (Note 10}
Purchase of own shares - - 03 - 03 - (03 :
Equity dividends pand {(Note 12} - - - (112 8) (112 8) - (1128
Movement in equity - - &4 191 255 - 2558
At 31 May 2015 - 2068 k! 2928 5914 - 5914

The notes on pages 116 to 177 are an integral part of these Financial Statements

* As outhned in the Group accounting policies on page 168 comparative pericds have been restated to reflect the change in timing of recogmitian of the FSCS levy in
accordance with IFRIC 21 'Levies  See note 38 for adduional infarmation
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2015

Share
Share premium Other
capital account reserves Retained

{note 27) (note 27) {note 29} earnings Total equity

Company fm fm fm fm fm
At 1 June 2013 - 2068 274 3591 5933
Profit for the year and total comprehensive income - - - 858 858
Equity-settled employee share based payments (note 30} - - &6 - 66
Utilisation of own shares - - 03 - 03
Equity dividends paid {note 12} - - - (84 8) (84 8)
Mavement tn equity - - 69 10 79
At 31 May 2014 - 2068 43 3601 6012
Profit for the year and total comprehensive income - - - 627 627
Equity-settled employee share-based payments (note 30) - - 53 - 53
Purchase of own shares - - 03) - 03)
Equity dividends paid (note 12} - - - 112 8) (1128
Movement in equity - - 50 (50 1) 451}
2068 3 3100 556 1

At 31 May 2015 -

The notes on pages 116 to 177 are an integral part of these Financial Statements
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CASH FLOW STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2015

Group Company
Restated”
Year ended  Yearended  Yearended  Year ended '
31 May 2015 31 May 2014 31 May 2015 31 May 2014 ot

Note fm £m fm fm o on
Cash generated from operations 20 2104 1765 1128 858
Income taxes paid {42 9) {47 B) - -
Interest receved on segregated client funds 49 60 - -
Interest paid on segregated client funds (04} {03} - -
Net cash flow from operating activities 1720 1344 1128 858 '
Investing activities
Interest receved 08 14 - -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 60 {(34) - - Y
Payments to acquire intangibte assets 64) (81) - - a f
Proceeds from maturity of financial investments and 513 504 _ _ % 5
coupon recelpts E ‘Z
Purchase of financial investments (51 1) {91 3) - - “
Net cash flow used in investing activities {17 4) 420 - -
Financing actvities .
Interest paid (9 20 - (12) -
Equity dividends paid to owners of the parent 12 1128 {84 8) (1128) (84 8}
Proceeds from drawdown of committed banking facility 19(c) 1000 800 - -
Repayment of committed banking facility 19(c) (100 Q) (800 - -
Net cash flow used in financing activities (114 7) 84 8) {112 8) (86 0}
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 459 54 - 02
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 05 983 - 02
Exchange profit/(loss} on cash and cash equivalents 14 (24) - -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 18 1488 1015 - -

* As outhned in the Group accountng policies on page 168, comparative penads have been restated 16 reflect the change in timing of recognition of the FSCS levy in
accordance with IFRIC 21 Levies See note 38 for additional information

For the purpases of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents 1s stated gross of the drawdown of the committed
banking facility (31 May 2015 and 31 May 2014 £nil) Please refer to note 19

The notes on pages 116 to 177 are an integral part of these Financial Statements
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INDEXTO NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE

—_

Presentation, cnuical accounting estimates and judgements

2 Underlying results

3 Turnover

4 Segment information

5 Administrative expenses

6 Auditors' remuneration

7 Staff costs

8 Finance income

9 Finance costs

10 Taxation

11 Earnings per ordinary share

12 Dwwvidends

13 Property, plant and equipment

14 Intangible assets

15 Investment in subsidianes

16 Impairment of goodwill

17 Trade recewables

18 Cash and cash equivalents

19 Lquidity analysis and nsk management
20  Cash generated from operations

21 Financial investments

22 Trade payables

23 Other payables

24 Prowisions

25  Contingent habtlities

26  Redeemable preference shares

27 Share capital

28 Own shares held in Employee Benefit Trusts
29 Otherreserves

30  Employee share plans

3t Capital commitments

32  Obligations under leases

33 Transactions with Directors

34 Related party transactions

35  Financial instruments

36  Financial nsk management

37  Capital management and resources

38  Impact of adopting new accounting standards
39  Subsequent events

40 Authorisation of financial statements and statement of compliance with IFRS
41 Accounting policies
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 PRESENTATICN, CRITICAL
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Cnitical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the Group
to make estimates and judgements that affect the amounts
reported for assets and habilities, as at the year-end, and the
amounts reported for revenues and expenses during the year
The nature of esumates means that actual outcomes could
differ from those estimates

In the Directars’ opinion, the accounting estimates or
judgements that have the most significant impact, on the
measurement of items recorded in the financial statements,
remain the impairment of goodwll {refer to note 16), the
useful economic Iife applied to the Intangible assets, the
recoverability of amounts owed by chents and the calculation
of the Group's current corporation tax charge (refer to

note 10(b})

The yudgements in relation to the assessment of goodwill for
imparrment largely relate to the assumptions underlying the
calculation of the value-in-use of the US cash generating unit
(CGU} The US CGU comprises both the Nadex exchange
and associated market making business (the ‘Nadex
exchange business’) as well as the wider commercial use

of the exchange technology within the Group While the
Nadex exchange business remains loss making, the wider
commercial use of the technology by the Group provides
other significant economic benefits, which taken alone
support the carrying value of the goodwill For this reason,
the Directors consider that a reasonably possible change in a
key assumption would not cause the units' carrying amount
to exceed s recoverable amount In the event of the Nadex
exchange business falling to generate sufficient profits, the
deferred tax asset of US$2 8 million held in relation to carry
forward tax losses might suffer impairment

The assessment of the useful economic Iife of the Group's
internally developed and acquired software, licenses, domain
name and generic top-level doman based intangible assets 1s
judgemental and can change due to obsolescence as a result
of unioreseen technological developments The useful Iife

for licences represents management’s view of the expected
term over which the Group will receve benefits from the
software, and does not exceed the licence term For internally
developed and acquired software and domain assets the life
15 based on historical experience with sirmilar products as well
as anticipation of future events which may impact therr useful
economic Iife

The recoverability of amounts owed by clients, particularly
{cllowing the impact of the actions of the Swiss National Bank
in January 2013, 1s dependent on the Group's ability to collect
the remaining outstanding amounts from a small number of
indwidually large debtors Provisions have been made where
the directors consider there 15 a nisk of non-recoverability
{refer to note 36{(n}b)

The calculation of the Group's current corporation tax
charge involves a degree of estimation and judgement with
respect of certain items whose tax treatment cannot be
finally determined until resolution has been reached with

the relevant tax authonty The Group holds tax provisions in
respect of the potential tax hability that may arise on these
unresolved items, however, the amount ultimately payable
may be matenally lower than the amount accrued and paid
and could therefore improve the averall profitability and cash
flows of the Group n future periods

The measurement of the Group's net trading revenue 1s
predominately based on quoted market pnces (refer to note
35 for the financial instrument valuation hierarchy disclosures}
and accordingly involves little judgement However, the
caleulation of the segmental net trading revenue, as the
Group manages nsk and hedges on a group-wide portfolio
basis, involves the use of an allocation methodology This
allocation methodology does not impact on the overall Group
net trading revenue disclosed

2 UNDERLYING RESULTS

The Directors regard the adjustment of exceptional items as
detailed below necessary to provide a greater understanding
of the results of the Group for the year
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2(A) UNDERLYING PROFIT BEFORE TAX AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Exceptional rrems — Swiss franc event impact

On 15 January 2015, the Swiss National Bank announced that it had ceased intervention in the exchange rate between the Swiss
franc and euro This caused a sudden extreme appreciation in the value of the franc, accompanied by a lack of market liguidity
which lasted several minutes and resulted In a negative financial impact to the Group to a maximum of £300 milion This was
from a combination of £11 & million of market losses and £18 4 million of gross client credit exposures The market related losses
occurred where client positions were closed in the Group's systems at a more beneficial level than the Group was able to close
its entire corresponding hedge due to the market dislocation

The precise level of the impact on the Group's profit before taxation 1s partally dependent on the Group’s ability to recover
client debts The recovery of the outstanding debt 1s dependent on the ultimate recovery from a small number of debtors The
Group’s approach remains that for clients who are considered to be well positioned and with resources to pay their debts the
Group will continue to employ resources to recover the debts The impact on profit before tax and diluted earnings per share at
31 May 2015 15 as below

Statutory Underlying Restated*
Year ended  Swiss franc  Yearended  Year ended
31 May 2015 event impact 31 May 2015 31 May 2015

Note £m fm fm £m
Net operating income 2(b} 3872 122 3994 3742
Analysed as
Net trading revenue 2(b) 3(a) 3884 18 400 2 3704
Other net operating (loss)/income™ 2(b} (12 04 08} 38
Admentstrative expenses? (217 &) 115 {206 1} (178 8)
Operating prefit 2(b} 169 6 237 1933 1954
Finance income 8 18 - 18 15
Finance costs 9 19 - (19 20
Profit before taxation 1695 237 1932 1949
Tax expense™ 10 (37 6) a9 (42 5) 47 7}
Profit for the year 1319 188 1507 147 2
Earnings per ordinary share Restated*
- basic 2(c) 3513p 514p 41 27p 40 35p
- difuted 2(d) 3599 508p 4107p 4022p
M £0 4 million Swiss franc event impact relates to betting duty
@ |ncluded in administrative expenses are
fm
Swiss franc related bad debts charge®" 151
Employee bonuses?? {31}
Share schemes - Sustained Performance Plan (SPPP2 % {05)
15
2% The movernent in the Swiss franc event related debts are below
fm
Gross debt at 15 January 2015 184
Amounts recovered?* (28)
Bad debts charge [note 36) (151
Net debt at 31 May 2015 0s

*  As outlned in the Group accounting policies on page 168 comparative periods have been restated to reflect the change in timing of recognition of the FSCS levy in
accordance with IFRIC 21 Levies See note 38 for additional information

22 The losses associated with the Swiss franc move impact upan the general staff bonus pool The approximate reduction in the general staff benus pool of
£3 1 million results from imparad pedormance agamst both financial and non-financial measures

o3 Pgriormance under the Executive Director and Senior Managemaent SPP 15 35% weighted to a dituted earmings per share (DEPS) target At headline DEPS no awards
under the element of the scheme will be made with a resulting reduced IFRS 2 charge of £0 § rillion

a8 Amounts recovered are settled debtors in the penod from 15 January to 31 May 2015

® The Swiss franc event tax impact of £4 9 milion was calculated using the UK effective corporation tax rate at 20 B3%
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2(B} UNDERLYING SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS

Rest of
UK Austraha Europe World Central Total
Year ended 31 May 2015 fm fm £m £m £m f£m ,
Net trading revenue 2060 581 769 474 - 3884
Swiss franc event impact on net trading revenue 59 il 40 08 - 18 .
Underlying net trading revenue 2119 592 809 482 - 400 2

2(C) UNDERLYING EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per ordinary share 1s calculated by dividing the profit for the penod attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent by the weighted average number of ardinary shares in 1ssue duning the penod, excluding shares purchased and held

as own shares in Employee Benefit Trusts Diluted earnings per ordinary share 1s caleulated using the same profit figure as that
used in basic earnings per ordinary share and by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
assume converston of all dilutive ordinary shares ansing from share schemes

The following reflects the income and share data used in the earnings per share computations

ta
43
Statutory Underlying Restated* b g
Year ended  Swiss franc  Year ended Year ended Z2
31 May 2015 eventimpact 31 May 2015 31 May 2014 o 2
- -
Note £m £m £fm fm tn
Profit for the period
Earmings attributable to equity shareholders of the parent 2(a} 1319 88 1507 147 2
Year ended Year ended -
31 May 2015 31 May 2014
(number) (number)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
Basic 365,199,825 364,710,756
Dilutive effect of share-based payments 1 383,806 1,213,527
Diluted 366,583,631 365,924,283
Statutory Underlying Restated™
Year ended  Swiss franc  Yearended  Year ended
31 May 2015 event impact 31 May 2015 31 May 2014
Note fm fm fm fm
Basic earnings per ordinary share i 3613p 514p 4 27p 40 35p
Diuted earmings per ordinary share 3599p 508p 41 07p 4022p

* As outlined in the Group accounting pelicies on page 168 comparatve penods have been restated to reflect the change in timing of recognition of the FSCS levy n

sceardance with IFRIC 21 Levies See note 36 far additional information
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2(D) UNDERLYING FUNDS GENERATED FROM QPERATIONS

The following statement summarises the Group’s cash generation durning the penod and excludes all cash flows n relation to
monies held on behalf of chents Additionally amounts due from brokers and the iquid asset buffer have been included within
‘own funds’ in arder to provide a clear presentation of the Group's available cash resources The denvation of own funds 1s
explained in note 15(a), and 15 stated net of amounts drawn on the Group's commutted banking facility

Statutory Underlying Restated*
Year ended Swiss franc Year ended Year ended
31 May 2015 eventimpact” 31 May 2015 31 May 2014
Note fm fm £m fm

Operating activities
Profit before tax 2(a), 19(d) 1695 237 1932 1949
Depreciation and ameorusation 1) 107 - 107 97
Other non cash adjustments™ 19(d) ©5) 36 33 38
Income taxes paid {429 49 {47 8) (47 8
Own funds generated from operations 1358 224 159 2 1606

The £3 & million included in the Other non-cash adjustments line relates to remuneration expenses The £4 9 million in the Income taxes paid line was calculated
5ing the UK effective corporation tax rate at 20 83% (refer to note 2(a))

* As outlinad in the Group accounting policies on page 168, comparative periods have been restated to reflect the change in timing of recognition of the FSCS levy in
accordance with IFRIC 21 Levies See note 38 for addional informauon

3 TURNOVER

3{A) NET TRADING REVENUE
Net trading revenue represents trading revenue from financial instruments carnied at fair value through profit or loss net of
intraducing partner commussion, and commission earned from providing the execution only stockbroking service This 1s
consistent with the management information received by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (refer to note 4} Revenue from
external customers includes interest income on segregated client funds and 1s analysed as follows

Year ended  Year ended
31 May 2015 31 May 2014

fm £m

Net trading revenue
Contracts for difference 2058 2108
Spread betting 1462 1328
Binaries 362 268
Stockbroking commission®™ 02 -
Total net trading revenue 3884 3704
Interest income on segregated chent funds 49 38
3933 3762

Revenue from external customers

In addition to the above, finance income 1s disclosed in note 8 The Group does not derive more than 10% of external revenue

from any one single customer
" During the year the Group commenced the offening of an execution only stockbroking service in the UK Ireland and the Netherlands
3(B) OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Year ended  Year ended
31 May 2015 31 May 2014

£m fm
Revenue share arrangement™ - 14
Administrative charges to chents® 06 D7
06 21

" The Group receved income under a revenue share agreement with Spreadex Limited in relation to the client list of the former Sport business, calculated by
reference to the revenue that Spreadex Limited generated from chents on the st Thes arrangement ended on 23 June 2014

@ The Group charges inactvity {ees for those accounts on which chients have not traded for two years
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4 SEGMENT INFORMATION =

The segment information 1s presented as follows

s Segment net trading revenue has been disclosed net of introducing partner comrmissions as this 1s consistent with the
management information recewved by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM), being the Executive Directors .

Net trading revenue 1s reported by the location of the office that manages the underlying client relationship and aggregated
into the disclosable segments of UK, Austraha, Europe and Rest of World The Rest of World segment comprises the Group's
operations in Japan, South Afrnica, Singapore, the United States and the Urited Arab Emirates

* The UK segment comprises the Group's operations in the UK and Ireland

The Europe segment comprises the Group's operations in France, Germany, ltaly, Luxembourg, the Netherlands, Norway
Spain, Sweden and Switzerland

s Segment contribution, being segment trading revenue less directly incurred costs, as the measure of segment profit and loss
reported to the CODM

The UK segment dernves its revenue from financial spread bets, contracts for difference {CFDs), binary options and execution-
only stockbroking The Australian segment derves its revenue from CFDs and binary options The European segment derives
its revenue from CFDs, binary options and execution-only stockbroking The businesses reported within Rest of World derve
revenue from the operation of a regulated futures and options exchange as well as CFDs and binary options

The Group employs a centralised operating model whereby market risk 1s managed principally in the UK, switching to Australia
outside of UK hours The costs associated with these operations are included in the Central segment, together with central costs
of senior management, IT development, marketing and other support functions As the Group manages risk and hedges on a
group-wide portfolio basis, the following segmental revenue analysis involves the use of an allocation methodology Interest
income and expense on segregated chent funds 15 managed and reported to the CODM centrally and thus has been reported
in the Central segment In the following analysis, the Central segment costs have been further allocated to the other reportable .
segments based on a number of cost allocation assumptions and segment net trading revenue :
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Rest of

UK Austraba Europe World Central Total

Year ended 31 May 2015 £m fm fm fm fm fm
Segment net trading revenue 2060 58 1 769 474 - 3884
Interest iIncome on segregated client funds - - - - 49 49
Revenue from external customers 2060 5814 769 474 49 3933
Interest expense on segregated client funds - - - - 04 04
QOther operating income - - - - 06 06
Betting duty and financial transaction taxes (58 (01} 04 - - 63)
Net operating income 2002 580 763 47 4 51 3|72
Segment contribution 1545 483 331 256 832 1803

Allocation of central Income and costs 41 6) (125 19 0) (10N 832 -
Depreciation and amortisation (56) {14) (22) (15) - (107
Operating profit 107 3 344 3¢ 40 - 1696
Net finance costs ©1)
Profit before taxation 1695
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Rest of

UK Australia Europe World Central Total
Restated* Year ended 31 May 2014 fm fm fm fm £m fm
Segment net trading revenue 1927 522 821 434 - 3704
Interest income on segregated client funds - - - - 58 58
Revenue from external customers 1927 522 821 434 58 3762
Interest expense on segregated chent funds - - - - 03) 03
Other operating income - - - - 21 21
Betting duty and financial transacuion taxes (35} - 03 - - (38
Net operating income 1892 522 818 434 76 3742
Segment contnbution 1605 437 s 252 759 2051
Allocation of central iIncome and costs {379} nn 17 &) 9 3} 759 -
Depreciation and amortisation 49 13 @0 (14} - 97
Operating profit 177 313 N9 145 - 1954
Net finance income 05
Profit before taxation 1949

* During the year ended 31 May 2015 the Group adopted IFRIC 21 Lewies The comparative figures for the year ended 31 May 2014 have been restated to reflect the

change in tming of recogrition of the UK FSCS levy

5 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

This 15 stated after charging/(crediting)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Amortisation of intangible assets

Advertising and marketing

Net charge for impaired trade receivables®
Operating lease rentals for land and buildings

Foreign exchange gains®

Group
Year ended  Year ended
31 May 2015 31 May 2014
fm £m
57 47
50 50
378 nz
161 16
53 44
06) 04)

™ Net charge for impaired trade recevables includes £15 1m (2014 £nil) in relation to the Swiss franc event frafer to note 2)
@ All of the above except foreign exchange differences are inctuded in administrative expenses within the :ncome statement Foreign exchange gans and losses are

included in revenue
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6 AUDITORS REMUNERATION

Group
Year ended  Year ended
31 May 2015 31 May 2014
£m fm
Audit and audit-related fees™
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors for the audit of the 04 03
parent company and consolidated financial statements
Fees payahle to company's auditor and 1ts associates for other services
- Statutory and regulatory audit of subsidianes and branches of the Company 03 02
- Audit related assurance senvices
» Other services supplied pursuant to legislation 09 01
¢ Other audit-related assurance services 01 01
Total audit and audit-related fees 09 a7
Non-audit fees
Other services relating to taxation
- Tax compliance services? 02 03
- Tax adwisary services® 03 02
Services relating to regulatory advice® 01 -
Services relating to strategic advice® 03
Total other fees 09 05

Includes the Group s audit fee as well as services that are speafically required of the Group's auditors through legrslative or contractual requirements controls

assurance engagements requied of the auditars by the regulatory authorines in whose junsdiction the Group operates and other audit-related assurance services
2 Includes corporate and other tax comphance and filing services which are closely related 1o the audt process and are therefore efhciently prowided by the auditars

due to thewr existing knowledge of the business

Y Includes advice relating to the Group s transfer pricing policies sales taxes, tax structures and other general tax advice

" Includes services provided in relation to requlatary requirements and other regulatory advice
¥ Inctudes advisory work in relation to strategic advice 1o the Board

An overview of the Audit Committee’s review of Auditors’ remuneration and non-audrt fee policy can be found in the

Corporate Governance Statement
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7 STAFF COSTS

The staff costs for the year, including Directors, were as follows
Group

Year ended  Year ended
31 May 2015 31 May 2014

fm £m

Wages and salanes 794 754
Social secunty costs 92 87
Other pension costs {in retation to defined contnbution schemes) 57 52
%3 893

Staff costs, including Directors, include the following amounts in respect of performance-related banuses, and share-based
payments (inclusive of national insurance) charged to the Income statement

Group

Year ended  Year ended
31 May 2015 31 May 2014

fm fm
Performance related bonuses 140 172
Equity-settled share-based payment schemes 63 71
203 243
The Directers’ emolumenits for the years ended 31 May 2015 and 31 May 2014, can be found in the Directors’
Remuneration Report
The average monthly number of employees, including Directors, was made up as follows
Group

Year ended  Year ended
31 May 2015 31 May 2014

fm fm
IT development 479 395
IT support 81 71
Sales, marketing and chent support 488 397
Dealing 38 38
Management and admenistrative M 1469
1,287 1,070

8 FINANCE INCOME

Group

Year ended  Year ended
31 May 2015 31 May 2014
fm fm
Bank interest recevable o7 046
Interest recewvable from brokers 04 06
Interest accretion on financial investments 07 03
18 15
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9 FINANCE COSTS

Group
Year ended  Year ended
31 May 2015 31 May 2014
£m fm
Liquichty facility arrangement and non-utihsation fees 12 17
Interest payable to chents 01 -
Interest payable to brokers 01 -
Bank interest payable 01 03
Other charges 04 -
19 20
Interest payable to chents relates to wterest pad or accrued to chents i relation to ttle transfer funds {refer to note 18)
10 TAXATION
10(A) TAX ON PROFITON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
Tax charged in the mcome statement
Group
Restated*
Year ended 31 Year ended
May 2015 31 May 2014
fm fm
Current income tax
UK Corporation Tax 343 424
Foreign tax 38 36
Adjustment in respect of prior years (10 (i8)
Total current income tax kY| 442
Deferred income tax
Ongtnation and reversal of temporary differences 04) 05
Adjustment in respect of pnor years 09 23
Impact of change in tax rates on deferred tax - 07
Total deferred income tax (note 10(d}) 05 35
376 477

Tax expense in the income statement (note 10(b})
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10 TAXATION (CONTINUED)

10(B) RECONCILIATION OF THE TOTAL TAX CHARGE

The standard rate of corporation tax in the UK changed from 21% to 20% with effect from 1 Aprl 2015 Accordingly, the effective
corporation tax 1s calculated at 20 83% {2014 22 67%} of the estimated assessable profit in the UK Taxation outside the UK 1s
calculated at the rates prevaifing In the respective junsdictions The tax expense in the income statement for the year can be
reconciled to the income statement as set out below

Group

Restated*
Year ended  Year ended
31 May 2015 31 May 2014

£m fm
Profit before taxation 1695 1949
Profit muluphed by the UK standard rate of corporation tax of 20 83% (2014 22 67%) 353 441
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 0s 01
Impact of tming differences not recogrised 12 13
Higher taxes on overseas earnings 07 10
Adjustment in respect of prior years o1 05
Impact of change in tax rates on deferred tax - 07
Total tax expense reported in the income staternent 376 477

The effective tax rate 1s 22 18 % (2014 24 47%)

*  As outlined in the Group accaunting pelicies on page 168 comparative periods have been restated to reflect the change in timing of recognition of the FSCS levy in
accordance with IFRIC 21 Levies  See note 38 for addiional information
10(C) DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS
The deferred income tax assets included in the Statement of Financial Position are as follows
Group

Restated*
Year ended  Year ended
31 May 2015 31 May 2044

fm £m
Decelerated caprtal allowances - 04
Tax losses available for oifset against future tax 18 17
Share-based payments 15 10
Other tming differences 38 40
71 71

The tax losses available for offset against future tax relate to operating losses arising in the US consolidated tax group, the
recoverability of which 15 dependent on sufficient future operating profits in those entities A deferred tax asset 1s recogrised
where it 15 considered probable that the US consolidated tax group will generate future operating profits which can be offset
against the tax losses carried forward Where 1t is not anticipated that future operating profits will be generated agamnst which
the losses can be offset, a deferred tax asset 1s not recognised
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Share-based payment awards have been charged to the Income Statement but are not allowable as a tax deduction until the
awards vest The excess of tax relief in future years over the amount charged to the income Statement 1s recognised as a credit
directly to equity The movement in the deferred incorme tax assets mcluded in the Statement of Financial Position 15 as follows

Group

Restated*
Year ended Year ended
31 May 2015 31 May 2014 '

fm fm
At the beginning of the year 71 09
Income statemenit charge {note 10(d)) {05) (35)
Tax credited directly to equity 05 - .
Foreign currency adjustment - 03 &L
IFRIC 21 restatement - - '
At the end of the year 71 71

* As outhined in the Group accounting policies on page 148 comparative penods have been restated to reflect the change in timing of recognition of the FSCS levy in
accordance with IFRIC 21 Levies See note 38 for additional information

10(D) DEFERRED INCOME TAX - INCOME STATEMENT CREDIT
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Restated™
Year ended  Year ended
31 May 2015 31 May 2014

fm fm
The deferred income tax charge included in the Income Statement 1s made up as follows !
Decelerated capital allowances 04 03 .
Share based payments 01 {(1n
Other timing differences 02 (21)
Income statement charge 05 (35)
The deferred tax credited to equity dunng the year 1s as folfows
Share based payments {0 5) -

Closing deferred tax on UK temporary differences has been caleulated at the substantively enacted rate of 20% (2014 20%}

* As outlined in the Group accounting polities on page 168 comparative peniods have been restated to reflect the change in tirming of recognition of the FSCS levy in
accordance with IFRIC 21 Levies See note 38 for additional information

10(E) FACTORS AFFECTING THE TAX CHARGE IN FUTURE YEARS

Factors that may affect the Group’s future tax charge include the geographic locauon of the Group's earnings, the tax rates

In those locations, changes in tax legistation, future planning opportunities, the use of brought-forward tax losses and the
resolution of epen tax issues The calculation of the Group's total tax charge involves a degree of estimatron and judgement
with respect to the recognition of deferred tax assets (refer to note 10(d)) and of certain items whose tax treatment cannot

be finally determined until resolution has been reached with the relevant tax authorty The Group holds tax provisions in
respect of the potential tax hability that may arise on these unresclved items, however, the amount ulimately payable may be
materally lower than the amount accrued and could therefore improve the overall profitability and cash flows of the Group in
future penods
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11 EARNINGS PER ORDINARY SHARE

Basic earnings per share 1s calculated by dividing the profit for the year attnbutable to owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares m 1ssue during the year, excluding ordinary shares purchased by the Company and held as
own shares in Employee Benefit Trusts Diluted earnings per share 1s calculated using the same profit figure as that used in basic
earnings per share and by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of all
dilutive ordinary shares anising from share schemes The following reflects the income and share data used in the earmings per
share computation

Group

Restated*
Year ended  Year ended
31 May 2015 31 May 2014

fm fm
Profit for the year 1319 147 2
Earnings attnbutable to non-controling interests - -
Earmings attnbutable to owners of the parent 1319 147 2
Woeighted average number of shares
Basic 365,199,825 364,710,756
Dilutive effect of share-based payments 1,383,806 1,213,527
Duluted 366,583,621 355,924,283
Group
Restated*

Year ended Year ended
31 May 20015 31 May 2014

Basic earnings per share 3613p 40 35p
Diluted earnings per share 3599 40 22p

* As outlined i the Group accounting palicies on page 168 comparative periods have been restated 1o reflect the change in uming of recegmition of the FSCS levy in
accordance with IFRIC 21 Levies See note 38 for additional information

12 DIVIDENDS

Group

Restated*
Year ended  Year ended
31 May 2015 31 May 2014

fm fm
Declared and paid during the year
Final dwidend for 2014 at 22 40p per share (2013 17 50p) 819 638
tnterim dividend for 2015 at 8 45p per share (2014 575p) 309 210
1128 848
Proposed for approval by shareholders at the AGM
Final dmdend for 2015 at 19 70p per share (2014 22 40p) 718 81 ¢

The final dwvidend for 2015 of 19 70p per share amounting to £71 8 mulion was proposed by the Board on 15 July 2015 and
has not been included as 2 hability at 31 May 2015 This dividend will be paid on 30 October 2015, following approval at the
Company’s AGM, to those members on the register at the close of business on 2 October 2015

The dividend paid or declared in relation to the financial year are set out below

Year ended  Year ended
31 May 2015 31 May 2014

fm fm

Dwidend declared per share
Interirn dividend B 45p 575
Final diviclend 19 70p 22 40p
2815p 28 15p
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Office
equipment, Computer
Leasehold fixtures and other

Improvements and fitungs equipment Total
Group fm fm fm fm
Cost
At 1 June 2013 175 24 80 37e
Fereign currency adjustment 02 on 03} 0 &)
Additions 07 62 25 34
Written off on on (50 (52
At 31 May 2014 179 24 152 355
Fareign currency adjustment o0 - - on
Additions 10 03 45 59
Written off - - o (10)
At 31 May 2015 188 27 188 403
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 June 2013 7 15 148 234
Foreign currency adjustment o1 ©n 02 04)
Prowided during the year 19 04 24 47
Wiritten off (GR)) o1 50 (52
At 31 May 2014 88 17 120 225
Foretgn currency adjustment ©n - o1 02
Provided during the year 20 05 32 57
Written off - - 0o (10
At 31 May 2015 107 22 141 270
Net book value — 31 May 2015 81 05 47 133
Net book value — 31 May 2014 1 a7 32 130
Net book value — 1 June 2013 104 09 32 145
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Chent
hsts and
customer Domain Development Software and

Goodwili relationships names costs licences Total
Group fm fm fm fm £ £rn
Cost
At 1 June 2013 2355 20 40 73 159 2647
Foreign currency adjustment 06) {03) - - ©on (10}
Additions - - 18 47 13 78
Written off" {128 2) - - - 04 {128 &)
At 31 May 2014 1067 17 58 120 167 1429
Foreign currency adjustment 04 ot - - 01 04
Additions - - 15 3 13 59
Written off - - - - 03) 03
At 31 May 2015 1071 16 73 159 178 148 ¢
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 June 2013 1282 20 01 19 120 144 2
Foreign currency adjustment - 03) - - 01 ©4)
Provided during the year - - 04 17 29 50
Written off® (1282 - - - 04) (128 8)
At 31 May 2014 - 17 05 36 144 202
Fereign currency adjustment - @1 - - a1 -
Prowided during the year - - o7 24 19 50
Written off - - - - @3 03)
At 31 May 2015 - 16 12 60 161 249
Net book value - 31 May 2015 1071 - 61 91 17 1240
Net book value — 31 May 2014 1067 - 53 84 23 1227
Net book value — 1 June 2013 107 3 - 39 54 39 1205

" Goodwill of £123 0 million and £5 2 midlion relating to the Group s Japanese and discontinued Sport businesses was fully impared in the year ended 31 May 2011
(refer 1o note 15{b) of the Group financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2011)

Goodwill primanly relates to the purchase of IG Group ple by |G Group Heldings ple, detarl 1s provided in note 16 The client hst

acquired with the business of ldeal CFDs has been amortised on a sum of digits basis over three years

Domain names include the cost of acquinng 1g com and a suite of complementary domains to support the Group global brand

This also includes industry-specific generic top-level domains (gTLDs)

Development costs relate to both internally generated intangible assets and third-party software acquired to further enhance

the Group own proprietary software

Software and licences relate entirely to external purchases of off-the-shelf, commercially available software {or internal

consumption within the Group

The expected useful lives of each class of intangible asset are set out in note 41, Accounting Policies
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Domamn names

Company f£m

Cost :

At 1June 20013 - ’
Additions i6 '
At 31 May 2014 16 e
Additions 15 ]
Transfer to Group companmes ™ (31

At 31 May 2015 - .
Accumulated amortisation Lo
At 1 June 2013 —
Provided during the year -

At 31 May 2014 -

Provided during the year 02

Disposal 02

At 31 May 2015 -
Net book value - 31 May 2015 -
Net book value - 31 May 2014 16
Net book value - 31 June 2013 -
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™ During the year the Company transferred the genenc top level domains 1t owned to other group companies

Please refer to the Group intangible assets disclosure above for more detalls regarding demain names

15 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 5

PARENT COMPANY — INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

Company
31 May 2015 31 May 2014
At cost fm £m
At the beginning of the year M s 4600
Additions™ 82 1né
At the end of the year 4798 a7 s

™ Additiens in the year ended 31 May 2015 compnse the investment relating to equity-settled share based payments for subsidiary employees of £5 3 million (2014
Eé 6 mill:on) and the purchase of shares in the Companys immed:ate subsidiary |G Group Limited of £29 million (2014 £5 0 million)
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15 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

The following comparues are all owned directly or indirectly by IG Group Holdings plec

Country of Voting
Name of Company Incorporation Halding Rights Nature of Business
Subsidiary undertakings held directly
IG Group Limited UK Ordinary shares 100% Holding company
IG Jersey Cashbox Limited Jersey Ordinary shares 100% Non-trading
Subsidiary undertakings held indirectly
|G Index Limited UK Ordinary shares  100% Spread betting
|G Markets Limited UK Ordinary shares  100% C';E;ﬁ‘:;’;g;ff‘f;fﬁ';::;:;”f;
|G Markets South Africa Limited UK Ordinary shares  100% CFD wrading
IG Australia Pty Limited Austrahia Ordinary shares  100% Sales and marketing office
IG Asia Pte Limited Singapore Ordinary shares  100%  CFD trading and foreign exchange
North American Dervatives Exchange inc USA Ordinary shares  100% Exchange
IG Securities Limited™ Japan Ordinary shares  100%  CFD trading and foregn exchange
IG Bank S A (previousty called IG Switzerland 5 A} Switzerland  Ordmary shares  100%  CFD trading and foreign exchange
Market Data Limited UK Ordinary shares  100% Data distribution
Market Risk Management Inc Usa Ordinary shares  100% Market maker
IG Infotech (India) Private Limited Indha Ordinary shares  100% Software development
IG Norminees Limited UK Ordinary shares  100% Nominee company
IG Knowhow Limited UK Ordinary shares  100% Software development
extrabet Limited UK Ordinary shares  100% Non-trading
LLCIG Dev Belarus Ordinary shares  100% Software development
IG Finance UK Ordinary shares  100% Financing
|G Finance Two UK Ordinary shares  100% Financing
IG Finance Three UK Ordinary shares  100% Financing
|G Finance Four UK Ordinary shares  100% Financing
IG Finance 5 Limited UK Ordinary shares  100% Financing
|G Forex Limited (previously called IG Finance 6 Limited) UK Ordinary shares  100% Financing
IG Spread Betting Limited (previously called I1G Finance 7 UK Ordinary shares  100% Financing
Limited)
IG Finance 8 Limited UK Ordinary shares  100% Financing
IG Finance  Limited UK Ordinary shares  100% Financing
ITS Market Solutions Limited UK Ordinary shares  100% Non-trading
Fox Sub Limited Gibraltar Ordinary shares  100% Financing
Fox Sub Twoe Limited Gibraltar QOrdinary shares  100% Financing
Fox Japan Holdings™ Gibraltar Ordinary shares  100% Holding company
IG US Holdings Inc USA Ordinary shares  100% Holding company
Market Data Japan Limited Japan Ordinary shares  100% Holding company
FXOnlne Japan Co, Limited Japan Ordinary shares  100% Non-trading
1G Limited Dubai Crdinary Shares  100%  CFD trading and foreign exchange
1G Services Limited Dubal Crdinary Shares  100% Intra-Group Corporate Services
Financial Domaign Limited UK Ordinary Shares  100% Holding company
Financial Domaign Registry Holdings Limited UK Ordinary Shares  100% Holding company
Financial Domaign Registrar Limited UK Ordinary Shares  100% Domans registrar
Financial Domaign (Services) Limited UK Crdinary Shares  100% Domains registry
DotSpreadbetting Registry Limited UK Ordinary Shares  100% Domains registry
DotMarkets Registry Limited UK Ordinary Shares  100% Domains registry
DotTrading Registry Limited UK Ordinary Shares  100% Domains regisiry
DotCFD Regrstry Limuted UK Crdinary Shares  100% Domains regisury
DotBroker Registry Limited UK Ordinary Shares  100% Domains registry
DotForex Registry Limited UK Ordinary Shares  100% Domains registry
IG Markets Corporation Canada Ordinary Shares  100% Non-trading
Nadex Domains Inc USA Ordinary Shares  100% Domains registry
Tower Three Capual Inc USA Ordinary Shares  100% Non-trading
Hedgestreet Securittes Inc UsA Ordinary Shares  100% Non-trading
Nadex Clearing LLC usa Ordinary Shares  100% Non-trading
Deal City Limited UK Ordinary Shares  100% Software development

" |G Secunties Limited and Fox Japan Heldings have a year end of 31 March due to local Japanese law
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Employee Benefit Trusts
IG Group Heldings plc Inland Revenue Approved Share Incentive Plan (UK Trust) L

|G Group Limited Employee Benefit Trust (Jersey Trust}
IG Group Employee Equity Plan Trust (Australian Trust)

The following UK enuies, all of which are 100% owned by the Group, are not subject to an audit by virtue of s479A of the
Companes Act 2006 relating to subsidiary companses 1G Finance 5 Limited {06752558), IG Finance 9 Limuted (07306407), and
Extrabet Limited (34560348)

The following UK entities, all of which are 100% owned by the Group, are exempt from the requirement to prepare individual
accounts by virtue of s394A of the Comparies Act 2006 relating to the individual accounts of dormant subsidianies |G Nommees

Limited ({04371444), IG Finance {05024562), IG Finance Two {(05137194), IG Finance Four (05312015), |G Forex Limited (068083641), .

IG Spread Betting Limited (06806588), IG Finance 8 Limited (06807456}, ITS Market Sclutions Limited {04768327), Financial
Domaign Limited (09233880), Financial Domaign Registry Holdings Limited {09235699), Financial Domaign Registrar Limited
(09235694}, Financial Domaign (Services) Limited (09235591), DotSpreadbetung Registry Limited (09237702), DotMarkets
Registry Limited (09237708}, DotCFD Registry Limited {09237733), DotBroker Registry Limisted (09237714), DotForex Registry
Limited (09237740} and Deal City Limited (2635230} (incorporated 11 June 2015}

"
16 IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL 5%
Goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing purposes 1o the cash-generating units (CGUs), as follows é E
Group ar
31 May 2015 3t May 2014
£m £m
UK 1000 1000 ,
Australa 09 09
us 50 46
South Africa 12 12
1071 1067

UK goodwill arose on the purchase of IG Group plc by IG Group Holdings Limited on 5 September 2003 Goodwill disclosed
for Australia arose on the acquisition of the non-controlling interest in IG Australia Pty Lumited in the year ended 31 May 2006
Goodwill ansing on the acquisitions of Nadex (formerly HedgeStreet) and the associated exchange technology and licence, and
Ideal CFDs has been allocated to the separate US and South African CGUs respectively

imparrments during the year ended 31 May 2015

There was no indication of an 'impairment tngger’ existing on any of the CGUs {2014 £nil), nor any mpairment recogrised
duning the year ended 31 May 2015

Impairment testing at year end

The goodwill assutialed with each CGU has been subject to an impairment test at 31 May 2015 as set out in the fallowing
disclosures For the purposes of impairment testing of goodwill, the carrying amount of each CGU 1s compared to the
recoverable amount of each CGU and any deficits are provided The carrying amount of a CGU includes only those assets that
can be attnbuted directly, or allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis

The esttmated recoverable amaunt for the UK CGU of £1 7 billion (2014 £1 3 bilhon} s based upon fair value less costs of
disposal Thisis £1 é billion {2014 £1 2 bilhon) in excess of the carrying amount of the CGU

The estmated recoverable amount of the US CGU, however, 1s based upon a value-in-use calculation due to the difficulty in
determining a farr value for this CGU For the US CGU this 1s calculated as the total of the present value of projected future cash
flows and a terminal value
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16 IMPAIRMENT OF GOQDWILL (CONTINUED)

Sensitwity to changes in assumptions

The UK, Australian and South Afnican CGUs reported a segment operating profit, after the allocation of central costs,

of £107 3 million, £34 4 million and £2 3 million respectively for the year ended 31 May 2015 (refer to note 4, Segment
information} Furthermore, the UK CGU represents 53% of the Group's net trading revenue for the year ended 31 May 2015
The Board approved budget for the financial year ending 31 May 2016 and longer-term strategic plans for the Group forecast
at least a similar level of performance for these CGUs to continue As a result both the single year operating profit and

thus the recoverable amount of the UK, Australian and South African CGUs 1s sigmificantly in excess of the carrying value
Accordingly, the outcome of the impairment review for the CGUs 1s not considered 1o be sensiuve to the assumptions used

The Directors have performed a sensitivity analysis around the assumptions used in the value-in-use calculation of the goodwill
associated with the US CGU The US CGU compnses both the Nadex exchange and associated market making business (the
‘Nadex exchange business’) as well as the wider commercial use of the exchange technology within the Group While the Nadex
exchange business remains loss making, the wider commercial use of the technology by the Group provides other significant
economic benefits which taken alone support the carrying value of the goodwill For this reason, the Directors consider that a
reasonably possible change in a key assumption would not cause the umits' carrying amount o exceed its recoverable amount
In the event of the Nadex exchange business failing to generate sufficient profits, the deferred tax asset of US$2 8 million held
in relation to carry forward tax losses might suffer impairment

Key assumptions used in fair value less costs of disposal calculations

The fair value less costs of dispasal of the UK CGU has been calculated using an earnings multiple determined by reference to
the Compary's quoted market capitalisation and the Group's segmental operating profit As the business model of this CGU 1s
largely synonymous with that of the Group, this methodology 1s deemed to be appropriate

Key assumptions used in value-im-use calculations

Projected future cash flows for the US CGU were based upon the Board-approved budget for the year ending 31 May 2016
Forecasts to the year ending 31 May 2020 were then extrapolated from the budget using a range of client recruitment, chent
retention rates, average trading clients’ growth month on month and revenue per client assumptions These were based

upon actual amounts measured in prior periods which were projected forward in accordance with expected trends This
methodology 1s consistent with that used for the 31 May 2014 year-end impairment review The revenue growth rates, disclosed
in the following table, are consistent with the long-term growth rates of other of the Group's businesses measured over a
five-year period

The calculation of value-in-use for the US CGU 1s most sensitive to the following assumptions

s Client recruitment and retention rates
¢ Average revenue per chent
* The discount rate

* The long-term growth rate used for the terminal value calculation
Cash flows were translated into sterling using year-end exchange rates

The cash flows were discounted using a pre-tax discount rate as disclosed in the table below This was derived using a region
specific, market-based cost of equity and debt assumption in order to reflect both the financing cost and sk associated with
the US CGU The long-term growth rate (g) used in the terminal value caleulaton of the US CGU is also disclosed below and s
equivalent to, or lower than, the respective long-term growth rate for the US economy

Average years 1-5 Terminal growth rate
Discount rate growth rate (a)
Cash-generating unit 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
us 1581% 16 8% 58% 44% 19% 19%

On the basis of the results of the above analysis there was no impairment of goodwill duning the year
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17 TRADE RECEIVABLES v

Group
31 May 2015 31 May 2014 ,
£m £m V"
Vo
Amounts due from brokers™ 2392 3039 .
Other amounts due to the Group? 284 213 :
Ll
Amounts due from clients® 20 23 '
2696 3275
™ Amounts due from brokers represent balances with brokers where tha combination of cash held on account and the valuatian of financial derivative open positiens -
results 1n an amount due to the Group At 31 May 2015 the actual broker margin requirement was £204 8 million (2014 £285 1 million} with the balance being excess s ('
cash margn held at brokers b
@ Othar amounts due to the Group include balances that will be transferred to the Group s own ¢ash from segregated ¢lient funds on the following working day in L.

accordance with the UK s Financial Conduct Authonty (FCA) CASS rules and similar rules of other regulators ;n whose jurisdiction the Group operates as well as ‘
excess funds heki in segregation in certain junsdictions This alse includes amounts due from banking counterparties or held within segregated client funds in
relation to monies transferred by clients to the Group that remain unsettled at the year-end The Graup 15 required to segregate these client funds at the point of
client funding and not at cash settiement ‘

@ Amounts due from clients arise when a client s total funds deposited with the Group are insufficient to caver any trading losses incurred and are stated net of an
allowance for impairment (refer note 36}

G
>z
18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS "rz:%
18{A) CASHAND CASHEQUIVALENTS é,’:
Group Company
31 May 2015 31 May 2014 31 May 2015 31 May 2014 !
fm fm fm £m ot
Gross cash and cash equivalents!” 10624 959 @ - - - "
Less Segregated client funds? (9138) (858 4) - - ) ;,
Cash and cash equivalents® 1488 1015 - - v

il

Gross cash and cash equivalents includes each of the Group s own cash proceeds from the drawdown of the committed banking facility as well as all chent

monigs held

@ Segregated chent funds comprnise indwidual chient funds held in segregated client money accounts or money market facilties established under the UK s Financial
Conduct Authonity (FCA) CASS rules and similar rules of other regulators in whose junsdiction the Group operates Such mones are not included in the Groups
Staternent of Financial Posibion

@ Cash and cash equivalents includes bath title transfer funds held by the Group under a Title Transfer Caollateral Arrangement (TTCA) by which a client agrees that full

ownership of such monies 1s uncanditionally transferred to the Group, and chent monies deposited with the Group s Swiss banking subsidiary |G Bank SA

The Group s Swiss banking subsidiary IG Bank 5A s also required to protect custorner deposits under the FINMA Privleged Deposit Scheme At 31 May 2015 1G

Bank 5A was required to hokd £2 8 miflion in satisfaction of this requirement

18(B} CLIENT FUNDS AND ASSETS

Group Company
31 May 2015 31 May 2014 31 May 2015 31 May 2014
£fm fm fm fm
Segregated client funds™ N36 858 4 - -
Segregated client assets® 774 - - -
Total segregated client funds and assets 99 ¢ 8584 - -

™ Segregated client funds comprise indmdual chient funds held in segregated client money accounts or money market faciities established under the UK s Financiai
Conduct Authonty (FCA) CASS rules and similar rules of other regulatars in whose junsdiction the Group operates Such monies are not included 0 the Groups
Statement of Financial Position

@ During the year the Group commenced the offering of an execution only stockbroking service in the UK Ireland and the Netherlands As a result the Group 1s
required to segregate the clients equity positons under the Financial Conduct Authority s "CASS rules
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1s LIQUIDITY ANALYSIS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The following section provides an analysis of the Group's avallable iquidity, the liquidity requirements that result from the
Group’s business model, and sets out the key measures used to monitor and manage the level of hquidity available

The key measures used by the Group are explained below

Liquid assets These are the total liguid assets that the Group can access These include cash held at bank (both own cash and
title transfer funds) as well as at brokers, the liquid assets buffer held by the Group and other cash amounts due 1o the Group

Own funds These are liquid assets less title transfer funds Title transfer funds are client monies held by the Group under a Title
Transfer Collateral Arrangement (TTCA)

Available hquid assets Certain of the Group's funds are not Immediately available for the purposes of central market nsk
management as they are required to provide regulatory capital balances in regulated subsidianies Additionally, the Group's
overseas businesses also require working capital balances to both fund daily operations and to ensure sufficient iquidity 1s
available to fund the local client segregation requirements Available iquid assets are therefore liquid assets less all amounts
held in overseas subsidianes and amounts due from segregation — each of which are not considered immediately available for
market risk management

Net available hquidity This 1s the remaining liquidity avallable o the Group after the funding of the broker margin requirement
associated with market risk management

Total available hqudity This measure 15 the total of the Group’s iquid assets and the Group’s undrawn committed
banking facilities

In order to mitigate hiquidity rnisks, the Group regularly stress-tests its three-year iquidity forecast to validate the appropriate
level of committed unsecured bank facilities held Cn 15 July 2014 the Group completed the renewal negotations of the
hgquidity facility with a syndicate of three banks In doing so, the Group has maintained the size of the overall facility at
£200 0 million Of the total committed banking facility, £120 0 million 1s available for a period of one year and £80 0 million 1s
available for three years respectively from the facility signing date The drawings made under the Group's facility in the year
ended 31 May 2014 are disclosed in note 19(¢)

Additionally, the Group's Japanese business, |G Secunties Limited, has a ¥300 0 million hquidity facility as at 31 May 2015 (2014
¥300 million)

The following notes have been provided to further explain the denvation of hquid assets, own funds, ava:lable liquid assets, net
avallable hquidity and total available quidity The generation of own funds is disclosed in note 19(d}
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19(A) LIQUID ASSETS AND OWN FUNDS toE

‘Liquid assets’, stated net of borrowings, and "own funds’ are the key measures the Group uses to monitor the overall level of
hiquidity avallable to the Group The denvation of both iquid assets and own funds are shown in the following table

31 May 2015 31 May 2014 b
Note fm fm
Cash and cash equivalents' 18 1488 1015 A
Amounts due from brokers® 17 2392 3039
Financial investments — held at brokers®" 23 253 -
Finanoial investments — hquid asset buffer?? 23 831 825 ,
Other amounts due to the Group® 17,22 276 204 \
Liquid assets 5240 508 3 -
Less P
Drawdown of committed banking facility - - .
Client funds held on balance sheet® 22 {169 210)
Own funds 507 1 487 3

™ Cash and cash equivalents represent cash held on demand with financial instituuens (please refer 1w note 18)

@ Amounts due from brokers represent balances with brokers where the combination of cash held on account and the valuation of financial dervative open positions.
results 1n an amount due to the Group These positions are held to hedge chent market expasures in accardance with the Group s market nsk management policy

B9 Dunng the year ended 31 May 2015 the Group purchased an addiional UK Government Gilt which 12 held at brokers as collateral to support the hedging of client
market exposures n accordance with the Groups market rsk management policy (refer to note 21)

82 Tha UK Government secunities held by the Group in satisfaction of the FCA requirements to hold a liquid asset buffer against potential iquidity stress under BIPRU 12

" Other amounts due to the Group include balances that will be transferred to the Group s own cash from segregated dient funds on the following working day n
accordance with the FCA CASS rules and similar rules of other regulators in whose junisdiction the Group operates This alse mcludes amounts due from banking
counterparties or held within segregated client funds in relation to monies transferred by clients to the Group that remain unsettled at the year end The Group s
required 1o segregate these chent funds at the point of client funding and not at cash settlement

% Chent funds held on balance sheet include both Title Transfer funds and chent monies deposited with the Group s Swiss banking subsidiary These are recognised on
the Group s statement of financial position with an associated payable to chents .
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19 LIQUIDITY ANALYSIS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

19(B} THE GROUF'S LIQUIDITY REQUIREMENTS

The Group requires day-to-day hquidity for each of the full segregation of client momies, the funding of regulatory and working
capital in overseas businesses, the funding of margin requirements at brokers to hedge the underlying client positions under
both normal and stressed conditions, the funding of a iquid asset buffer, and amounts associated with general working capital

The available hquid assets measure excludes cash amounts tied up in both the requirement to segregate client funds and 1n the
regulatory and working capital of overseas businesses, as they are not considered to be available for the purposes of central

market and hquidity nsk management

These requirements are analysed in the following table

31May 2015 31 May 2014

Note £m fm
Liquid assats 19(a) 5240 508 3
Less amounts required to ensure appropriate client meney segregation 7 22 (27 &) (20 4)
Less amounts required for regulatory and working capital of overseas businesses™ {58 8) (28 8)
Avalable hquid assets 437 & 4591
Less broker margin requirement? 17 (204 8) (285 1)
Net available hquidity 2328 1740
Ofwhich s
Held as a hquid assets buffer®? 2 831 825

Drawdown of cammitted banking facility?#

{1

in the year ended 31 May 2015 the Group made a regulatory capital injection into its United Arab Ermirates and Swiss subsidiaries The Group s regulated

subsidianies in Australia, Japan Singepore South Alrica, Switzerland United Arab Emirates and the US all have mimimurn cash holding requirements associated

with their respective regulatery capital reguirements Additionally, the Group s regulated business or subsidianes in Australia, Singapore Japan South Afnica

united Arab Emirates and the US are required to segregate indidual client funds in segregated chent money bank accounts This daily segregation requirement
occurs priot to the release of funds from the UK [note market rsk management s performed centrally for the Group in the UK] in ralation to the associated hedging
positions held at external brokers Accordingly cash balances are held in each of the overseas businesses in order to ensure chent money segregation obligations
are met Both the regulatory working capital amounts and customer deposits are not available to the Group for the purposes of central market risk management

@ Positions are held with external brokers in order 1o hedge client market nsk exposures in accordance with the Groups market nisk management poliaes

89 The iquid assets buffer s not available to the Group in the ordinary course of business however utilisation 15 allowed in times of Liquidity stress and therefore it i1s

considered as available for the purposes of overall hquidity planning
P32 The short 1erm banking facility was undrawn at 31 May 2015 and 31 May 2014
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1%(C) LIQUIDITY MANAGEMENT AND LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquichty nsk 1s managed centrally and on a group-wide basis The Group’s approach te managing liquidity 1s to ensure 1t will
have sufficient hguidhty to meet its broker margin requirements and other financial labilities when due, under both normal
circumstances and stressed conditions The Group has carned out an Individual biquidity Adequacy Assessment {'ILAAY) during
the year, and while this applies specifically to the Group’s FCA regulated entities, 1t provides the context in which hquidity 15
managed on a continucus basis for the whole Group

The Group does not have any matenal hquidity mismatches with regard to liquidity matunity profiles due to the very short-term
nature of its financial assets and babuities Liquidhty nisk can, however, anse as individual client funds are required to be placed in
segregated client money accounts in all jurnisdictions with the exception of Switzerland where the entity has a banking licence A
result of this is that short-term {less than one week) hiquidity ‘gaps’ can potentially arnise in periods of very high client activity or
significant increases or falls in global financial market levels

During peniods of significant market movements the Group may be required to fund margin payments to brokers prior to the
release of funds from segregation, and in peniods of significant market increases or mcreased chent activity, the Group may
be required to fund higher margin requirements at brokers to hedge increased underiying client positions These additional
requirements are funded from the Group’s available iguid assets while these individual client positions are open, as individual
chent funds remain in segregated client money bank accounts

In order to mitigate this and other liquidity nisks, the Group regularly stress-tests its three-year iquidity forecast to validate the
appropnate level of committed unsecured bank facilities held

These facilities were drawn to a maximum of £25 0 million for a pertod of 7 days in January 2015, £50 0 million for a penod of

30 days in March 2015 and £25 0 million for 2 further 7 days in May 2015 On all three occasions, the drawdown was to fund
relatively high levels of broker margin due to changes in market conditions In the year ended 31 May 2014 the facilittes were
drawn down to a maximum of £50 0 million for a penod of 30 days but partially repaid down to £25 0 million for a further 32
days in October to December 2013, and for £30 0 million for 28 days during February and March 2014 following the reduction in
available hquidity after payment of dividends and at a tme of relatively high levels of broker margin

As well as the three-year liquidity forecast, the Group also produces more detalled short-term hquidity forecasts and detailed
stress-tests such that appropriate management actions or hgquidity facility drawdown can occur prior to a period of expected
liguidity requirements

A number of measures are used by the Group for managing hiquidity nisk, one of which is the level of total avaitable hquidity
For this purpose, total iquidity s calculated as set out in the following table inclusive of the undrawn committed facility

31 May 2015 31 May 2014

fm fm
Liguid assets 5240 508 3
Undrawn committed banking facility™ 2000 2000
Total hqundity (including facihities)® 7240 708 3

" Draw down of the comm tted banking facility 15 capped at 80% of the actual broker margin requirement on the draw down dats The maximum available draw down

was £163 8 millien at 31 May 2015 (2014 £200 G million) based on the broker margin requirements on those dates, of which £nil was drawn down as at 31 May 2015
(31 May 2014 £nil)

2 Stated inclusive of the iquid assets buffer of £83 1 mullion {2014 £82 5 million) that 1s held by the Group in satisfaction of the FCA requirements to hald a liquid asset
buffer against potential hiquidity stress under BIPRU 12 Utiisation of the hiquid assets buffer 1s allowed in times of hquidity stress and therefore 12 1s considered as
available for the purposes of overall hquidity planning

The Group's total hquidity enables the funding of large broker margin requirements when required — the total available iquichty
that can be uttlised for market nisk management at 31 May 2015 should be considered in light of the intra-penod high broker
margin requirement of £293 7 million (2014 £290 3 million), the requirement to hold a liquid assets buffer, the continued growth
of the business (both for client trading and geographic expansion), the Group’s commitment to segregation of indvdual clients,
money as well as the declared final dividend for the year ending 31 May 2013, all of which draw upon the Group’s hquidity
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19 LIQUIDITY ANALYSIS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

19(0) OWNFUNDS GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

The following cash flow statement summarises the Group's generation of own funds dunng the year and excludes all cash flows
in relation to monies held on behalf of clients Additionally, both amounts due from brokers and financial investments have been
included within ‘own funds’ in order to provide a clear presentation of the Group's cash resources The dervation of own funds
15 explained in note 19(a}, and s stated net of amounts drawn on the Group’s committed banking facility A narrative explanation
of the key cash flows disclosed in the following cash flow statement is provided within the Operating and Financial Review

Restated*
Yearended  Year ended
31 May 2015 31 May 2014

fm fm
Operating activities
Profit before tax 169 5 1949
Cepreciation and amortisation {note 5) 107 @7
Other non-cash adjustments {05) 38
Income taxes paid 429 (47 B)
Own funds generated from operations 1368 160 &
Maovement in working capital 79 (33)
Inflow/{outflow) from investing activities
Interest receved 08 15
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (124) (115
Cutflow from financing actvities
Interest paid (19 (20
Equity dividends paid to owners of the parent {12 8} (84 8)
Total outilow from investing and financing actvivies (126 3) (96 8}
Increase in own funds 184 605
Own funds at 1 June 487 3 4293
Exchange gains/(losses) on ocwn funds 14 25
Own funds at 31 May 507 1 4873

* Asouthned in the Group Accounting policies on page 168 comparative periods have been restated to reflect the change in timing of recogmtion of the FSCS levy in
accordance with IFRIC 21 Levies See note 38 for addtional information

19(E) SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

As at 31 May 2015, the Group had £200 0 mullion in revelving credit facility from a syndicate of three UK banks The Group has
undertaken a review of its contingent liquidity requirements and, upon approva! from the Executive Risk Committee, concluded
to reduce the facility to £160 0 million and nclude a fourth bank in the syndicate The inclusion of a fourth bank in the syndicate
offers the Group further bank diversification This new facility has £100 0 million available for up to a 1-year term {with an option
to extend for a further year) and £60 0 million available for up to 3 years and was signed on 17 July 2015 {refer to note 39)

A final dvidend of 19 70p per share amounting to £71 8 million was proposed by the Board on 15 July 2015

In the Directors’ epinion the Group has sufficient hquidity available to meet operational requirements under both normal and
stressed conditions  Liquidity management 1s also dependent on credit risk management subsequently described in note 36(1)
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20 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 7

Group Company
Restated* L
Yearended Yearended Yearended Year ended -
31 May 2015 31 May 2014 31 May 2015 31 May 2014 L
Note fm fm fm £m .
oA
Operating activities
Operating profit/{losses} 169 6 1954 ®3 (23}
Adjustments to reconcile operating profit 1o net cash
flow from operating actiities
Net interest (ncome on segregated client funds {45) (55 - - i
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 13 57 47 - - W .
Amortisation of mtangible assets 14 50 50 02 -
Non-cash foreign exchange losses/(gans) n ©2 86 ~ _
operaung profit
Share-based payments 53 66 53 56
Decrease/(increase} in trade and other recewables 328 (409 29 805 -
o
Increase in trade and other payables 27 26 1107 10 ! E
2z
Cash generated from operations 2104 1765 1128 858 5 o
Zy
-]
* As outlined in the Group Accounting policies on page 168 comparative periods have been restated to reflect the change in uming of recognimien of the FSCS levy in w"

accordance with IFRIC 21 Levies See note 38 for addwonal infarmatron

21, FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

Group
31 May 2015 31 May 2014 '
£m fm .

UK Government securities
At 1 June 825 505
Purchase of secunues 764 913
Maturity of secunties and coupon receipts {513 (5% 6)
Accrued interest 05 02
MNet gains transferred to equity 03 01
At 31 May™ 108 4 825
Less non-current portion 755 (322)
Current portion 329 503

M The balance 15 made up as follows

Group
31 May 2015 31 May 214
im fm
Liquid asset buffer * B3 1 825
Collateral at broker” 2 253 -

9 The UX Government secunities are held by the Group in satisfaction of the FCA requirements to hold a liquid asset buffer aganst potential iquidity stress under
BiPRU 12

"2 Dyring the year ended 31 May 2015 the Group purchased a £25 7m (carrying vahue of £25 3 million at 31 May 2015) UK Government Gilt which is held at brokers as
collateral to support the hedging of client market exposures in accordance with the Group's market risk management policy

The effective interest rates of secunties held at the year-end range from 0 41% to 101%

Financial investrments are shown as current assets when they have a matunity less than one year and are held as "available-
for-sale’ The farr value of securities held 1s based on closing market prices at the year end as published by the UK Debt
Management Office Please refer to note 34()(c) for a matunty profile
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22 TRADE PAYABLES

Group
31 May 2015 31 May 2014
£m fm
Client funds hetd on balance sheet™ w69 210
Amounts due to chents® 02:] 08
Cther trade payables - 01
177 219

M Chent funds held on balance sheet include both Title Transfer funds and chent monies deposited with the Group's Swiss banking subsichary These are recognised on
the Group s statement of financial position with an associated payable to clients

2 Amounts due 1o clents represent a combination of balances that will be transferred from the Group s own cash into segregated client funds on the following working
day In accordance with the UK's Financial Conduct Authonty (FCA} CASS' rules and similar rules of other regulators in whose unsdicion the Group operates

23 OTHER PAYABLES

Group Company
31 May 2015 5, ;Zs;aztgf; 31 May 2015 31 May 2014
fm fm fm fm
Accruals 353 541 69 72
Other taxes and scaal security 59 43 - -
Amounts due 1o Group companies (Note 34b) - - 1196 05
612 584 1265 77

included within accruals are amounts in relation to employee bonuses

= As outlined in the Group Accounting policies on page 168 comparative periods have bean restated to reflect the change in tming of recogmition of the FSC5 levy in
accordance with IFRIC 21 Levies See note 3B for additional information

24 PROVISIONS

The Group and Company had no matenal provisions at 31 May 2015 (31 May 2014 fni)

25 CONTIGENT LIABILITIES

From time to time the Group may be involved in disputes in the ordinary course of business Provision 1s made for all daims
where costs are likely to be incurred and there are currently no contrgent habilities expected to have a matenal adverse financial
impact on the Group's consolidated results or net assets
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26 REDEEMABLE PREFERENCE SHARES

Company and Group
31 May 2015 31 May 2014
fm fm
Allotted, called up and fully pard
40,000 preference shares of £1 each - -

The preference shares are entitled to a fixed non-cumulative dividend of 8% paid in preference to any other dividend
Redemption 1s only permissible in accordance with capital distribution rules or on the winding up of the Company where the
holders are entitled to £1 per share plus, if the Company has sufficient distributable reserves, any accrued or unpaid dividends
The preference shares have no voting nghts, except that they are enutled to vote should the Company fal to pay any amount
due on redemption of the shares The effective interest rate on these shares 15 8% (2014 8%)

27 SHARE CAPITAL

COMPANY AND GROUP

Share premium

]
- M
41
Z
23
50
=
52
w

Number of shares Share caputal account
fm fm

Allotted and fully paid
(1) Ordinary shares (0 005p)
At 1 June 2013 364,894,924 - 2068
lssued dunng the year 859 707 - -
At 31 May 2014 365,754,631 - 206 8
Issued dunng the year 403145 - -
At 31 May 2015 366,157,776 - 2068
{n} B shares (0 001p)
Az 31 May 2015 65,000
At 31 May 2014 45,000 - -

During the year to 31 May 2015, 403,145 (2014 859,707) ordinary shares with an aggregate nominal value of £20 (2014 £43) were
issued following the exercise of Sustained Performance Plan and Value Share Plan awards for a consideration of £20 (2014 £43)

Except as the ordinary shareholders have agreed or may otherwise agree, on a winding up of the Company, the balance of
assets avallable for distnbution after the payment of all of the Company's creditors and subject to any special nghts attaching to
other classes of shares are distributed among the shareholders according to the amounts paid up on shares by them

B shares

The B shares carry na entitlement to dividends and na voting nights To the evtent not already receved by them the B
shareholders shall, on a winding up of the Company be entitled to receve, from the trustee, a consideration equal to the
amount realised by the sale by the trustee of approximately 122 ordinary shares for every B share held
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28 OWN SHARES HELD IN EMPLOYEE BENEF!IT TRUSTS

The movements in own shares held in Employee Benefit Trusts in respect of employee share plans during the year were

as {ollows
Company and Group
31 May 2015 31 May 2014
fm fm
At the beginning of the year
1,045,727 (2014 1 223,411) ordinary shares of 0 005p each 11 15
Purchased during the year
48,169 (2014 4,968) ordinary shares of 0 005p each 03 -
Exeraised/re-allocated during the year
124,561 (2014 181,652} ordinary shares of 0 D05p each c2) (2]
At the end of the year
970,335 (2014 1,046,727) ordinary shares of 0 005p each 12 11

The Group has a UK-resident Employee Benefit Trust in order to hald shares in the Company in respect of awards under the
Group’s HM Revenue and Customs approved Share Incentive Plan (SIP) At 31 May 2015, 320,192 ordinary shares (2014 389,725)
were held in the trust and at the year-end have reduced shareholders’ equity by £2 5 million (2014 £2 3 million) These include
35,956 ardinary shares (2014 151,711) which were not allocated to employees and are available for future SIP awards The
market value of the shares held conditionally at the year-end was £0 3 million (2014 £0 2 million)

The Group has a Jersey resident Employee Benefit Trust which holds shares in the Company At the 31 May 2015, the trust held
512,075 (2014 512,075) ordinary shares which are available to satisfy awards under the long-term share plans and Directors’
deferred bonus award The shares held at the year-end have reduced shareholders’ equity by £26 (2014 £26) The market value
of the shares held conditionally at the year-end was £4 0 million (2014 £3 1 million}

The Group has an Australian resident Employee Equity Plan Trust in order to hold shares in the Company in respect of awards
under a SIP At 31 May 2015, 15,126 ordinary shares (2014 9,790) were held in the trust and at the year-end have reduced
shareholders’ equity by £0 1 million {2014 £0 1 milhon)

Upon flotation of the Company on 4 May 2005, 5,861,497 ardinary shares and cash of £2 4 million were transferred to the Jersey
Employee Benefit Trust by institutional shareholders in order to satisfy their obligations to holders of 48,059 B shares and 14,941
B shares respectively During the year ended 31 May 2015, 100 {2014 33} B shares were sold by B shareholders to the Trust

The Trust sold 12,195 (2014 4,025) ordinary shares in order to realise the funds necessary to purchase these B shares The Trust
unconditionally held 63,992 (2014 63,892} B shares at the year-end The Trust also held 1,008 (2014 1,108) B shares and 122,940
{2014 135,137) ordinary shares which it may sell in order to satisfy its cbligations to B shareholders, all of whom are current or
former employees
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29 OTHER RESERVES

]

The share-based payment reserve relates to the esumated cost of equity-settled employee share plans based on a straight-
line basis over the vesting penod and the associated taxation The foreign currency translation reserve includes amounts in
relation to the translation of overseas subsidianes The available-for-sale reserve includes unrealised gains or losses in respect of

financial investments

Own shares Lt e
held in
Share- Employee Transactions
based Foreign Benefit with non-  Available Total
payments currency Trusts  controliing for sale other
{Note 30) translation  (Note 28) interests reserve reserves
Group fm fm fm fm fm fm .
Restated* at 1 June 2013 333 554 (15) 2n - 851 .
Equity-settled employee share-based payments 56 - - - - 66
Excess of tax deduction benefit on share-based - _ _ _ a
payments recognised directly in equity (Note 10} -
Foreign currency translation on overseas subsichanes - 653) - - - (65)
"
Exercise of US share incentve plans - - - - - - gl
az
Exeraise of UK share incentive plans 02 - 02 - - - g ;
Uthisation of own shares 01 02) 02 - - 01 g0
==
Purchase of own shares - - - - - - 0
Gain on financial investments - - - - 01 01
At 31 May 2014 398 487 (11} 2n 01 854 b
Equity-settled employee share based payments 53 - - - - 53 \
Excess of tax deduction benefit on share-based 05 _ _ _ 05 :,
payments recogmsed directly in equity (Note 10} = .
Foreign currency translation on overseas _ 06 - - _ 06 y
subsichanes
Exercise of US share incentive plans - - - - - -
Exercise of UK share incentive plans 02 - 02 - - -
Utlisation of own shares - - - - - -
Purchase of own shares - - 03} - - 03}
Gain on financial investments - - - - 03 03
At 31 May 2015 454 493 (12 (21) ba 918

* As outhned in the Group Accounting policies an page 168, comparative perads bave been restated to reflect the change in iming of recogmition of the FSCS levy in

accordance with IFRIC 21 Levies See note 38 for additional information

Own shares held
in Employee

Share-based

payments Benefits Trusts Total other

(Note 30Q) (Note 28) reserves
Company fm fm fm
At June 2013 289 (15 274
Eaquity-settled employee share-based payments 66 - 66
Excess of 1ax deduction benefit on share-based payments recognised R
directly in equity (Note 10) - -
Exeraise of UK share incentive plans 02 02 -
Uuhisation of own shares 01 02 03
At 31 May 2014 354 1 343
Equity settled employee share-based payments 53 - 53
Excess of tax deduction benefit on share-based payments recognised -
directly in equity {(Note i0) - -
Exeraise of UK share incentive plans (02) 02 -
Purchase of own shares - {3 03)
At 31 May 2015 405 (12) 393
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30 EMPILOYEE SHARE PLANS

The Company operates four employee share plans a Sustained Performance Plan (SPP), a Long-Term Incentive Plan {LTIP), a
Value-Sharing Plan (VSP) and a Share Incentive Plan (SIP), all of which are equity-settled The expense recognised in the income
statement in respect of share-based payments {including associated social secunity costs} was £6 3 million (2014 £7 1 million)

30{A) CURRENTSCHEMES

Sustained Performance Plan {(SPP)

The SPP award was introduced in the year ended 31 May 2014 to replace the VSP award for the Group's executive directors and
other selected senior employees The Remuneration Committee approves any awards made under the plan and 1s responsible
for setting the policy for the operation of the plan, agreeing performance targets and participation

The legal grant of awards under the SPP occurs post the relevant performance penod At the outset of the financial year

the Remuneration Commuttee approves, and communicates to the participants, performance conditions and a pre-defined
maximum monetary award in terms of multiple of salary The grant of awards, in the form of equity settled par value options, 1s
based upon three performance conditions Total Shareholder Return (TSR}, diluted earnings per share and operational non-
financial performance Awards subsequently vest in tranches over the long-term {up 1o seven years), so the participant retains an
ongoing substantial stake in the share price performance of the Company

The following table shows the number of options awarded in relation to performance for the year ended 31 May 2014

Dividend

equivalent

Expected Awarded Lapsed Exercised awarded
Share price  full vesting Atthestart duningthe duringthe duningthe duringthe Atthe end
Award date at award date of the year year year year year of the year
{(number} {number} {number) {number} {number} {number)
4 Aug 2014 607 0p 4 Aug 2020 - 919,119 {104,073) (200 217} 29 220 644 049
Total - 919,119 {104,073) (200 217} 29 220 644,049

Of the above SPP exerased dunng the year ending 31 May 2015, the average share price at exercise was

Award date Average share price at exercise

4 Aug 2014 615 56p

The werghted average exercise price of all SPP awards 1s 0 005p

As a 'shared understanding' under IFRS2 is established between the Company and parucipants at the scheme outset, the costs
associated with the SPP are accounted for as share-based payments from this time

Further information on the Company’s SPP awards i1s given in the Dhrectors’ Remuneration Report

The awards for the current year SPP will be granted post year-end following the approval of actual performance against targets
set by the Remuneration Committee A ten-day share price averaging pered that will commence after the Company's closed
period 1s utilised to convert notional salary awarded into a number of options (refer to the Directors’ Remuneration Report for
performance conditions)

The table below details the number of option awards expected to be awarded for the year ended 31 May 2015

Awards expected durning the

Award date Share price at 29 May 20154 Expected full vesting date year ending 31 May 2016

{number)
4 Aug 2015 781 5p 4 Aug 2020 504,832
Total 504,832

" Closing share pnce on 29 May 2015
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Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP}
The LTIP award has been made avalfable to semor management who are not invited to participate in the SPP

ke
oA

LTIP awards allow the award of nominal cost options, which vest when specific performance targets are achieved, conditronal
upon continued employment at the vesting date For each award a minmmum performance target has to be achieved before any i
shares vest and the awards vest fully once the maximum performance target 1s achieved

[T R,

The awarded LTIP vests after three years with a predefined number of shares allocated pro-rata based on achieving diluted
earmngs per share growth of between zero and 9% for the awards made in the year ended 31 May 2014, and between zero and
13% for the the year ended 31 May 2015, with straight line vesting in between !

1y

The maximum number of LTIP awards that can vest under the awards made are

~

Share price Expected At the start of Awarded dunng Lapsed duning Exercised during At the end "o !

Award date at award vesting date the year the year the year theyear oftheyear 17 T

i Ko~

(number) {number) {number) {number) {number} L

28 Nov 2013 584 00p 28 Nov 2016 437733 - {31 321 - 406,412 fow
5 Aug 2014 81850p  5Aug 2017 - 454,665 (8,403) - 446,262
Total 437733 454,665 (39,724) - 852,674

The weighted average exercise price of all LTIP awards 1s 0 005p

Share Incentive Plan (5IP)
SIP awards are made available to all UK, Australian and US employees The Executive Directors have responsibitity for setting
the terms of the award which are then approved by the Remuneration Committee

AYIONYNIS

v
-
>
=
m
Z
m
4
-
Lo

The UK and Austrahan awards invite all employees to subscribe for up to £1,800/4$3,000 (2014 £1,500/A%3,000) of partnership
shares, with the Company typically matching on a two-for-one (2014 one-for-one) basis All matching shares vest after three :

years as long as the employee remains employed with the Group for the term of the award Shares awarded under the scheme N
are held in trust in accordance with local tax authonty rules Employees are entitled to receive dividends on the shares held in L
trust for as long as they remain employees LA

The US award invites employees to invest a maximum of 5% of their salary bi-annually to the award The award runs for a
six-month period and at the end of this period, the employees are iInvited to purchase shares in 1G Group Holdings plc at a
discount of 15% to the scheme price, being the lower of the opening share price and the closing share price for the period

The maximum number of SIP shares that can vest based on the awards made are

Country pr?cr:aa;et Expected At the start Awarded Lapsed during Exercised At the end
of award  Award date award vestingdate of the year dunng the year the year during the year of the year

{number) (number) (number) {number)  (number)
UK 28 July 2011 44374 28 July 2004 47,627 - (563) (47 0s4) -
Austraha 1 August 2011 44477 1 August 2014 2,706 - - (2 708) -
UK 27 Jly 2012 45400 27 July 2015 73153 - (2257) {2 628) 61,268
Austraia 22 August 2092 43200 22 August 2015 3,304 - - - 3304
UK 26 July 2013 5 8000 25 July 2016 56 457 - (5,720) {1,034) 49,703
Australia 15 July 2013 57250 15 duly 2016 3780 - - (3249) 3,456
UK 25 July 2014 60580 25 July 2017 - 195,238 (19,598) (2,374} 173,266
Austraha 15 July 2014 59970 15 July 2017 - 8,366 - - 8,366
Total 187 027 203 604 [35,134) (56,132} 299 3463
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30 EMPLOYEE SHARE PLANS {CONTINUED)

30(A) CURRENT SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

Of the above SIP awards exercised dunng the year ending 31 May 2015, the average weighted share price at exeroise was

Average share

Country of award Award date  price at exercise
UK 28 Jul 2011 598 D0p
Australia 1 Aug 2011 607 00p
UK 27 July 2012 639 77p
UK 26 Jul 2013 630 18p
Austraha 15 July 2013 575 50p
UK 27 July 2014 701 50p

The weighted average exercise price of all SIP awards during the year ending 31 May 2015 1s 605 14p

30(B8} FAIR VALUE OF EQUITY-SETTLED AWARDS

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments to employees 1s determined at the date at which a shared
understanding of the terms and conditions of the arrangement 1s reached between the Company and the participants
The weighted average fair value of the equity-settied awards granted or deemed as such under IFRS2 dunng the year was
£8 @ million (2014 £11 2 milion)

For SIP awards, the fair value 1s determined to be the share price at the grant date, without making an adjustment for expected
dwvidends, as awardees are entitled to dividends over the vesting period

For LTIP awards, the farr value at grant date 1s determined by taking the share price at grant date An adjustment for the present
value of future dividends 1s not required as dividend equivalents are awarded on options granted under the LTI?

For potential SPP awards made under the Total Shareholder Return (TSR) criteria, fair value s calculated using an option pricing
model prepared by advisers For the SPP awards made under the earnings per share and non-financial operational measures
the fair value s determined by taking the share price at deemed grant date less the present value of future dvidends for the
duration of the performance period Dwvidend equivalents accrue under the SPP on awarded but unvested options post the
performance penod Post vesting {minimum holding period) dwidend equivalents cease to accrue on unexercised options

The inputs below were used to determine the fair value of the TSR element of the SPP awards granted on 12 September 2014

Date of grant 12 September 2014
Share price at grant date (pence) 59% 00p
Expected life of awards {years) 1

Risk-free sterling interest rate (%) -

IG expected volatility (%)? 19 78%
Benchmark index correlation (%) 18 08%
Intenm dividend estimate® 8 45p

M Due to mirimal exercise price the nsk free rate has no impact on the fair value calcufation

™ Based on histoncal TSR volatihity of IG Group Haldings plc measured dally over a period prior te the date of grant and commensurate with the remaining
performance period

® The drvdend paid in the period from the deemed grant date to the end of the performance period, from which date dimdend equivalents accrue on awarded but
unvested options

The weighted average fair values per award granted are as follows

At the beginning  Awarded dunng Lapsed during Exercised during At the end

of the year the year the year the year  of the year
Year ended 31 May 2015 262 45p 526 33p 242 96p 419 82p 534 09p
Year ended 31 May 2014 266 93p 583 42p 287 95p 254 55p 262 45p
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30{C) LEGACY SCHEMES

Value Sharing Plan (VSP}

The VSP award was an annual award introduced during the year ended 31 May 2011 In the year ended 31 May 2014, however,
the VSP awards were replaced by the SPP for executives and selected senior management and LTIP awards for other senior |
management VSP awards were conditional awards made available to Executive Directors and other senior staff Participants do
not pay to recelve awards or to exerase options The VSP perfarmance penod 15 over three years with a pre-defined number

of shares allocated, for each £10 million of surplus shareholder vafue created over the three-year period above a hurdle Half !
of the shares vest after three years and can be exercised at that date, with the remaining half being deferred for a further '
year, conditional upon coentinued employment at the vesting date The V5P 1s based upon two performance conditions,
Total Shareholder Return (TSR} and profit before taxation

T an .
’

.
=
2

The maximum number of VSP shares that can vest based on the awards macde are

Noeah

Share Expected ‘
price at vesting Atthe start  Awarded during Lapsed during  Exercised dunng At the end of '

Award date award date  of the year the year the year the year the year
(number) {number) (number) {number) {number)

29 Oct 2010 52850p 29 Oct 2013 17,057 E - (17,057) -

29 Oct 2010 52850p 29 Oct 2014 121,893 - (705) (96,213} 24 975 5 ]

20 Jul 20 45000p 31 Jul 2014 100 214 - {?,26%) (89,640 1313 g E

20 Jul 2011 45000p 31 Jul 2015 98 864 - (17 227) - 81,637 g E

1 Aug 2012 44970p 3 Jul 2015 3,491,992 - (3.491,992) - - ar

1 Aug 2012 44970p 31 Jul 2016 3,482,189 - (3,482,189} - -

Total 7,312,209 - {7,001,374) {202,910) 107,925 i

Of the above VSP exercised duning the year ending 31 May 2015, the average share price at exercise was <

Award date Average share price at exercise N
29 Oct 2010 602 89p
20 Jul 2011 627 38p

The weighted average exercise price of all VSP awards 1s 0 005p

Legacy Leng-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP}

The histonic LTIP awards were made available to Executive Directors and other senior staff in the years ended 31 May 2005 to
3t May 2010 and were then replaced by the VSP award

These histortc LTIP awards allowed the award of nil cost or nominal cost shares which were legally classified as options and
vested when specific performance targets were achieved, conditional upon continued employment at the vesting date For
each award a minimum performance target nad to be achieved betore any options vested and the awards vested fully once the
maximum performance target was achieved

The remaining number of LTIP awards that can be exerased 1s

Share Expected
price at vesting At the start Awarded during Lapsed during Exercised during At the end of

Award date award date of the year the year the year the year the year

(number) {number) {number) (number) {(number}
23 Jul 2007 31225p 23 Jul 2010 15,952 - - - 15,952
Total 15,952 - - - 15,952

The weighted average exercise price of all LTIP awards 1s 0 005p
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31 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group and Company had £8 4 million capital expenditure contracted for at year end but not yet incurred
{2014 £0 9 million)

32 OBLIGATIONS UNDER LEASES

Operating lease agreements
The Group and Company have entered into commercial leases on certain properties Future minmum rentals payable under

non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

31 May 2015 31 May 2014

Group £m £fm

Future minimum payments due

Not later than one year 53 49

After one year but not more than five years 59 164

After more than five years 121 179
333 392

31 May 2015 31 May 2014

Company fm fm

Future mimmum payments due

Not later than one year 23 23

After one year but not mare than five years 25 26

After more than five years 05 153
223 272

The Group’s main lease on its UK headquarters and several of its smaller offices include annual inflationary rent increase clauses

33 TRANSACTIONS WITH DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 May 2015 the Group paid £13,200 {inclusive of VAT) to Promontory Financial Group (UK} Limited
{Promontory} for financial advisory services The services provided were made in the ordinary course of business on similar terms
as those prevailing for transactions with other persons unconnected with the Group $ Tymms 15 a Non-Executive Director for
the Group and a managing director for Promoniory The Group had no other transactions with its Directors other than those
disclosed in the Directors’ Remuneration Report
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

34(A) GROUP

The Directors and other members of management classified as ‘persons discharging management responsibility’ in accordance
with the Financial Services and Markets Act are considered to be the key management personnel of the Group in accordance
with 1AS 24 The Diectors’ Remuneration Report discloses all benefits and share-based payments made durning the year and the
preceding year to the Directors The total compensation for key management personnel together with their connected parties
was as follows

31 May 2015 31 May 2014

Company fm fm
Short-term employee benefits 28 27
Post-employment benefits 03 02
Share based payments 32 40

63 70

34(B) COMPANY

The Company had the following amounts outstanding with subsidianes at the year-end

31 May 2015 31 May 2014

fm £m
Loans to related parties 2018 1330
Loans from related parties 126 0%

All amounts remain outstanding at the year-end and are repayable on demand A number of intercompany amounts were
subject to offset arrangements during the year

35 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Accounting classifications and fair values — Group

The table below sets out the classification of each class of financial assets and liabilties and their fair values {excluding
accrued interest) The Group considers the carrying value of all financial assets and liabilires 1o be a reasonable approximation
of farr value and represents the Group’s maximum credit exposure without taking account of any collateral held or other

credit enhancements

‘Trade recewables - due from brokers’ represent balances with brokers where the combination of cash held on account
{disclosed as loans and recetvables) and the valuation of financial derivative open positions (disclosed as held for trading)
results in an amount due to the Group These positions are held to hedge client market exposures and hence are considered
to be held for trading and are accordingly accounted for at far value through profit and loss (FVTPL} These transactions are
conducted under terms that are vsual and customary to standard margin trading actvities and are reported net in the Group
Statement of Financial Positon as the Group has both the legal nght and intention to settle on a net basis

‘Trade payables due to clients’ represent balances where the combnation of client cash held on account and the valuation of
financial derivative open positions results in an amount payable by the Group Trade payables — due to clients are reported net
in the Group Statement of Financial Position as the Group adjusts the gross amount payable to clients (ile monies held on behalf
of chients) for profits or losses incurred on a daily basis consistent with the legal nght and intention to settle on a net basis

o
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35 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The Group's financial instruments are classified as follows

FVTPL - Other Total
Held for Loans and amortised Avalable- carrying
Group Note trading receivables cost  forsale  amount Fair value
As at 31 May 2015 £m £m £fm fm fm fm
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 18 - 148 8 - - 1488 1488
Finanaial investments® 21 - - - 108 4 108 4 108 4
Trade recewvables — due (to}/from brokers
Non-exchange traded instruments (C) 1762 - - 1665 166 5
Exchange-traded instruments 08 79 - - 727 727
Total trade receivables — due (to)/from brokers B9 2481 - - 2392 2392
Trade recewables — due from clients 17 - 20 - - 20 20
Trade recevables - other amounts due from chents 17 - 284 - - 284 84
89 427 3 - 108 4 5268 5268
Financial lizbilities
Trade payables — Client funds held on balance sheet 22 - - 169 - 169 169
Trade payables - Amounts due to clients 22 - 08 - - 08 08
Redeemable preference shares 26 - - - - - -
- D§ 169 - 177 177

" The balance s made up of £83 1 millien (2014 £82 5 million) of UK Gavernment securities held by the Group in satisfaction of the FCA requirements to hold a iquid
asset buffer against potential hquidity stress under BIPRU 12 and a £25 3 million {2014 £rl) UX Government Gilt which 1s held at brokers as collateral to support the
hedging of client market exposures in accordance with the Group s market risk management policy {refer to note 21)

FVTPL - Other Total
Held for Loans and amortised Available-  carrying
Group Note trading recevables cost  for-sale  amount Fair value
As at 31 May 2014 fm fm £m fm fm £m
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 18 - 1015 - - 1015 1015
Financial investments™ 21 - - - 8z5 825 825
Trade recevables — due (toyfrom brokers
Non-exchange traded instruments 123 1759 - - 1882 188 2
Exchange-traded instruments (357) 1514 - - 157 1957
Total trade recevables - due {to)/from brokers (23 4) 3273 - - 3039 3039
Trade receivables - due from chents 17 - 23 - - 23 23
Trade recewvables — other emaunts due to the Group 17 - 213 - - 213 213
(238 452 4 - 825 5115 5115
Financial izbiives
Tracle payables - Client funds held on balance sheet 22 - - 210 - 210 210
Trade payables — Amounts due to chents 22 - 08 - - 08 08
Redeemable preference shares 26 - - - - - -
- 08 210 - 218 218

& £82 5 million of UK Government securities held by the Group in satisfaction of the FCA requirements to hold a liquid asset buffer aganst potential hquidity stress

under BIPRU 12 (refer to note 21)
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Financial mstrument valuation herarchy
The hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments carned at far value 1s as follows

Total far
Level 1" Level 2@  Level 3@ value
Group fm fm fm fm
As at 31 May 2015
Finanaal assets
Trade recevables — due from/(to) brokers 08 %7 -~ 89
Ftnancial investments® 108 4 - - 108 4
" Valued using unadjusted quoted prices in acuve markets for idenucal financial instruments This category mcludes the Group's exchange-traded open ¢ .
hedging positions
2 Valued using techriques whare a price 1s denved based significantly on observable market data For example whera an active market for an idantical financial .

instrument ta the product offered by the Group 1o 1ts chents or used by the Group to hedge s market risk does not exist

® Valued using techniques that incorporate information ather than observable market data that 1s significant o the overall valuation
There have been no changes in the valuauon techmques for any of the Group s financia! mstruments held at fair value in the year {2014 none} During the year
ended 31 May 2015, there were no transfers (2014 none)between Level 1 and Level 2 farr value measurements, and no transfers into ar out of Level 3 fair value
measurements (2014 nene)

# The balance 15 made up of £83 1 million (2014 £82 5 millien) of UK Government securities held by the Group in satisfaction of the FCA requirements to hold a iquid

asset buffer against patential Liguidity stress under BIPRU 12 and a £25 3 million {2014 Enil) UK Government Gik which 15 held at brokers as collateral to support the ﬂ n
hedging of chent market exposures in accardance with the Group s market nsk management policy {refer to note 21) : =
m >
=z
=0
Z>
Total fair ar
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 value
Group fm fm fm fm
As at 31 May 2014 '
Financial assets
Trade recesvables — due {to)/from brokers (357) 123 - (23 4)
Finanaial investments® 825 - - 825 '

® £82 5 million of UK Government securities held by the Group in satisfaction of the FCA requirements to hold a liquid asset buffer against potentizl iquidity stress
under BIPRU 12 (refer to note 21)
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35 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of the movement in Level 3 of the valuation hierarchy

Gamns or Cash
At 1 June losses in settled At 31 May
2014  revenue®™ positions®  Transfers 20159
Group £m fm fm fm fm
Financial assets
Tracle recevables — due from chents [Note 3(a)) - 362 (362) - -

' Ihsclosed in trading revenue in the income statement This represents cliant positions that have closed in the year as well those apen at the year end
@ Value of chent positions that have cash settled in the year
™ value of open, unsettled client pesitions at the yearend disclosed in trading revenue in the iIncome statement

Gains or Cash
At1June lossesm settled At 31 May
2013 revenue positions  Transfers 2014
Group fm fm £m fra fm
Financial assets
Trade recewvables - due to clients {Note 3{a)) - 268 (26 8) - -

The impact of a reasonably possible alternative valuation assumption on the valuation of trade receivables — due from clients
reported within Level 3 of the valuation hierarchy s not significant

Accounting classifications and fair values — Company

FVTPL - Other Total
Held for Loansand amortised Avalable-  carrying
trading receivables cost for-sale  amount Fair value
Company fm fm fm fm fm fm
As at 31 May 2015
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - - - - - -
Amounts due from Group companees (Note 34(b)) - 2018 - - 2018 2018
- 2018 - - 2018 2018
Financial habilities
Amounts due to Group companies (Note 34(b)) - - 196 - 196 1196
Redeemable preference shares - - - - - -
- - 196 - 196 1196
FVTPL - Other Total
Held for Loansand amortised Avallable- carrying
trading receivables cost forsale  amount Far value
Company fm fm fm frm fm fm
As at 31 May 2014
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - - - - - -
Amounts due from Group comparies (Note 34(b)} - 1330 - - 1330 1330
- 1330 - - 1330 1330
Financial liabihties
Amounts due to Group comparves (Note 34(b)) - - 05 - 05 05
Redeemable preference shares - - - - - —
- - 05 - 05 05
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items of income, expense, gains or losses — Group .
Gains and losses ansing from financial assets and habilities classified as farr value through the profit and loss, held for trading,
amounted to net gains of £388 4 million (2014 £370 4 million)

Finance income {refer to note 8) totalled £1 8 million (2014 £1 5 milkion) An amount of £1 8 mullion (2014 £1 5 rmilhon) represents
interest income on financial assets not at far value through profit or loss and includes interest recewvable in respect of non-

segregated chent balances, part of which 1s held with broker and interest recevable calculated using the Effective Interest Rate
methodology for financial investments .

Finance costs (refer to note 9) totalled £1 ¢ million (2014 £2 0 mullion) An amount of £1 8 million represents interest expense
on financial habilities not at fair value through profit or toss (2014 £04 million) The remainder, £0 1 mullion {2014 £1 6 million)
represents fee expense arising from maintaining the Group's committed bank facilimes

Financial instruments subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting agreements and similar arrangements

Within the Group's terms and conditions with indwidual clients and brokers are standard netting agreement clauses The effect
of these netting arrangements, including nights of set-off associated within the Group’s recogrised financial assets and financial
liabilities 1s as follows

Gross amounts  Amounts set off in  Net amounts presented

before offsetting the balance sheet in the balance sheet “.

Group Note fm fm fm ;{ g
As at 31 May 2015 Eg
Financial assets i
Financial investments® 21 108 4 - 1084
Trade recevables - due from brokers? 17 3209 (817) 2392 \
Trade recevables - due from clients® 17 2381 (236 1) 20
Trade recewvables - other amounts due to the Group 17 284 - 284 '

6958 (317 8) 3780
Financial habilities
Trade payables — due to brokers™® 817 81N -
Trade payables 22 2538 (2351) 177

3355 (317 8) 177

# The balance 1= made up of £83 1 millicn (2014 £82 5 million) held by the Group i satisfactien of the FCA requirements to hold a liquid asset buffer against
potential Dguidity stress under BIPRU 12 and a £25 3 million (2014 £nd} UK Government Gilt which 1s held at brokers as collateral to support the hedging of client
market exposures n accordance with the Group s market nisk management policy (refer to note 21}

Trade recervables due from brokers and Trade payables — due to brokers represent balances with brakers where the combimnation of cash held on account
{disclosed as loans and recewables) and the net valuation of financial denvative open positons {disclosed as held for trading) results in an amount due to/from

the Group The net financial dervative open positions have been presented gross according to whether individual positions held at brokers are in a profit or

loss position

Trade receivables due from clients represent balances with clients where the combination of cash beld on account (disclosed as loans and receivables) and the net
valuation of financial dervative open positions (disclosed as held for trading) results in an amount due to the Graup The net financia! derivative open positions have
been presented gross accarding to whether indwidual positions held with clients are in a proft or loss posiion
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Finanoial instruments subject 1o offsetting, enforceable master netting agreements and similar arrangements {continued)

Net amounts
Gross amounts  Amounts set off in  presented in the

before offsetting  the balance sheet balance sheet
Group Note fm £m £m
As at 31 May 2014
Financial assets
Financial investments™ al 825 - 825
Trade recewables — due from brokers i7 3795 {754 03¢
Trade recerables - due from clients 17 2820 (2797 23
Trade receivables — other amounts due to the Group V7 213 - 213
7453 (355 3) 4100
Financial habihties
Trade payables - due to brokers 756 {75 6) -
Trade payables 22 3016 279 7 219
3772 {355 3) 219

@ £82 5 million of UK Government securities held by the Group In satisfaction of the FCA requirements to hold a liquid asset buffer aganst potential hquidity stress
under BIPRU 12 {refer to note 21 for details)

36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Responsibility for nsk management, including financial risks, resides at all levels within the Group, starting with the Board of
Directors Our Corporate Governance structure, including details of how the Board delegates responsibibity for internal control
and rnisk management to our Audit and Risk committees, 1s described in detail in the Corporate Governance section of the
Annual Report

The Group's Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) and Individual Liquidity Adequacy Assessment (ILAA), while
applying speafically to the Group's FCA entities, provide an on-going assessment of the risks the Group considers to have

the potential to have a significant detrimental impact on ts financial performance and future prospects and describes how the
Group mitigates these risks subject to the Group's nsk appetite

Financial nsks ansing from financial instruments are analysed into market, credit, concentration and hquidity rnisks, and these are
discussed below

(1} Market rnisk

Market risk 15 the nisk that changes in market prices will affect the Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments This i1s analysed into market price, currency and interest rate risk components

The Group's market risk 1s managed under the ‘Market Risk Policy’ on a group-wide basis and exposure to market risk at
any paint in tme depends primanly on short-term market conditions and the levels of chient actiaty The Group utilises
market position hmits for ‘operational efficiency’ and does not take proprietary posiions based on an expectation of market
movements As a result not all net client exposures are hedged and the Group may have a residual net position in any of the
financial markets in which 1t offers products up to the market nsk imit

The Group's Market Risk Pohcy incorporates a methodology for setting market position hmuts, consistent with the Group's nisk
appeute, for each financial market in which the Group's clients can trade, as well as certain markets which the Board considers
to be correlated These limits are determined with reference to the expected liquidity and volatility of the underlying financial
product or asset class and represent the maximum long and short client expasure that the Group will hold without hedging the
net client exposure

The Group's real-time market position monitoring system allows it to monttor its market exposure aganst these limts
continuously If exposures exceed these limits, the policy requires that hedging is undertaken to bning the exposure back within
the defined imit

There i1s a significant level of ‘natural” hedging ansing from the Group’s global client base pursuing varying trading strategies
which results 1n a sigmificant portfolio hedging effect This reduces the Group's net market exposure prior to the Group hedging
any residual net client exposures

Where the Group has residual positions in markets for which it has not been possible or cost-effective to hedge, the Executive
Risk Committee determines the appropriate action and reviews these exposures regularly, subject to the nsk management
framework approved by the Board
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Binary bets and options are typically difficult or not cost-effective to hedge and there 1s often no direct underlying market which
can be utihsed in setting the price which the Group quotes The Group normally undertakes no hedging for these markets, but
can hedge specific positions If considered necessary The Group aims to reduce the volatility of revenue from these markets

by offering a large number of different betting opportunities, the results of which should, to some extent, offset each other I
irrespective of the underlying market outcome The overwhelmingly short-term nature of these contracts means that risk on .
these markets at any point In ttme is not considered to be sigrificant '

A} MARKET PRICE RISK 1

This 1s the nisk that the fair value of a financial instrument fluctuates as a result of changes in market prices other than due to the !
effect of currency or interest rate risks

Equity market price nsk
The mest significant market risk faced by the Group 1s on equity positions, including shares and indices which are highly e
correlated and managed on a portfolio basis -

-

2

During the year, following further development of the back-end nsk management systems, a detailed analysis of the risk '
hmits market-by-market was undertaken This resulted in increasing certain risk imits, as well as making the main regional and
global equity imits dynamic by responding intraday when the market 1s open and most iquid, when chent activity increases or
decreases and reducing the limit approaching market closing Accordingly, the intraday limit will fluctuate but with a maximum
limit set at £100 0 rmullion

At 31 May 2015 the exposure limit was £30 0 midlion (2014 £20 0 million) and the Group’s equity exposure was £2 8 million
(2014 £2 7 million) The average equity exposure hmit during the year was £26 4 milhon (2014 £18 2 million} As noted earlier in
this section, the Group’s market risk policy requires that when the exposure exceeds the exposure limit, hedging is undertaken
to bring the exposure back within that limit as soon as practical

n
S
Z
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The Group has no significant concentration of market nsk |

No sensitivity analysis 15 presented for equity market price nisk as the impact of reasonably possible market movements on the
Group's net trading revenue and equity are not significant, being less than the Group's average dally net trading revenue from
financial instruments Changes in market risk variables have no direct impact on the Group's equity as the Group has no financial A L
instruments designated in hedging relationships

Other market price nsk

The Group also has market price nisk as a result of its trading activities (offering bets and Contracts for Difference (CFDs) on
Interest rate denvatives and commodities) that i1s hedged as part of the overall market risk management The exposure 1s
monitored on a Group-wide basis and 1s hedged using exchange-traded futures and options Exposure limits are set by the
Executive Risk Committee for each product, and also for groups of products where 1t 1s considered that their price movements
are likely to be positively correlated

The exposure to interest rate dervatives and commodities at the year-end are as follows

31May 2015 31 May 2014

£m £m
Interest rate derivatives 10 12
Commodities 74 47

No sensitivity analysis I1s presented for other market price nisk as the impact of reasonably possible market maovements on the
Group's net trading revenue are not significant Changes in nisk vanables have ne direct impact on the Group’s equity as the
Group has no financial instruments designated in hedging relationships
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36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {CONTINUED)

B) FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK
The Group 1s exposed to two sources of foreign currency nisk

1) Translational fareign currency risk

Translation exposures anse from financial and non-financial items held by an entity with a functional currency different from
the Group's presentation currency The functional currency of each company in the Group is that denominated by the country
of incorporation as disclosed in note 15 The Group does not hedge translational exposures as they do not have a significant
impact on the Group'’s cap'ltal resources

)] Transactional foreign currency risk

Transactional foreign currency exposures represent finanaial assets or liabilities denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the transacting entity Transaction exposures anse In the normal course of business and the management
of thes nsk forms part of the risk pohicies outlined above Limits on the exposures which the Group will accept in each currency
are set by the Executive Risk Committee and the Group hedges its exposures as necessary with market counterparties Foreign
currency nisk 1s managed on a group-wide basis, while the Company’s exposure to foreign currency nsk 1s not considered by the
Directors to be significant

The Group monitors transactional foreign currency nisks including currency statement of financial position exposures, equity,
commodity, interest and other positions denominated in foreign currencies and bets and trades on foreign currencies The

Group’s net exposure to foreign exchange nsk based on notional amounts at each year-end was as follows

31 May 2015 31 May 2014

fm fm
US dollar 49 24
Euro 91 {18)
Australian dolar (23) 09
Yen 27 88
Cther (39 38

No sensitivity analysis 1s presented for foreign exchange risk as the :mpact of reasonably possible market movements on the
Group's net trading revenue are not significant Changes in nisk varables have no direct impact on the Group's equity as the
Group has no financal Instruments designated in hedging relationships

C} NON-TRADING INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group also has interest rate nisk relating to fimancial instruments not held at far value through profit or loss These
exposures are not hedged

The interest rate nsk profile of the Group’s financial assets and habiliies as at each year-end was as follows

Between
Within 1 year 2 and 5 years Morte than 5 years Total

3ITMay 31TMay 31TMay 31May 31May 31May 31May 31 May
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 24

Group fm fm fm fm £m £m £m £m

Fixed rate

Redeemable preference shares - - -

Financial nvestments™ 329 503 755 322 - _ 208 4 825
Floating rate

Cash and cash equivalents 148 8 1075 - - B - 1488 1015
Trade recevables ~ due from brokers 2302 3039 - - - - 2392 3039
Trade payabtes - client funds held on 169) 210 _ B B _ 169) 210

balance sheet

4040 4347 755 322 - - 4795 466 9

% Financial Investments are made up of £83 1 milken (2014 £82 5 rullion) held by the Group in sausfaction of the FCA requirements to hold a liquid asset bufler
against potential liquidity stress under BIPRU 12 and & £25 3 mullion {2014 £nil) UK Government Gilt which 1s held at brokers as collateral to support the hedging of
client market exposures in accordance with the Group's market nsk management policy {refer to note 21}
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Interest on financial nstruments classified as fixed rate 1s fixed untll the matunty of the instrument Please refer to note 21 for .
effective interest rates receved

Interest on financial instruments classified as floating rate 1s re-priced at intervals of less than one year Trade receivables and
payables include chent and broker balances upon which interest s paid or received based upon market rates R

Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis -
A non-traded interest rate nsk sensitivity analysis has been performed on net interest income on segregated client funds, based

on the value of client funds held at the year-end, on the basis of a 0 25% (2014 0 25%) per annum fall and a 0 5% (2014 0 5%)

rse In Interest rates, at the beginning of the year, as these are considered ‘reasonably possible’ The impact of such a fall in

interest rates would reduce net interest income on segregated client funds by approximately £2 2 millien (2014 £1 6 mdlion}

per annum The impact of such a nse in interest rates would increase net interest Income on segregated client funds by S

approximately £4 5 milon (2014 £3 3 million) per annum Changes in nisk vanables have no material impact on the Group's .
equity as the Group has no financial instruments designated in hedgeing relationships .
{n} Credit nsk

Credit nisk is the nisk that a counterparty fails to perform its obligations, resulting in financial loss The principal sources of credit
nisk to our business are from financial mmstitutions and indmdual clients

The Group's credit nisk 1s managed on a group-wide basis

A) FINANCIAL INSTITUTION CREDIT RISK

w
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Financial institution credit nsk 1s managed in accordance with the Group's ‘Counterparty Credit Management Policy’

Financial institutional counterparties are subject to a credit review when a new relationship 1s entered into and this 1s updated
semi-annually {or more frequently as required eg on a change in the finanoial Institution’s corporate structure) Proposed |
maximum exposure limits for these financial institutions are then reviewed and approved by the Executive Risk Committee

As part of 1ts management of concentration risk, the Group 15 also committed to mantaining multiple brokers for each
asset class Where possible, the Group negotiates for its funds to receve client money protection which can reduce direct
credit expasure

In respect of financial institution credit nisk, the following key metrics are monitored on a daily basis

* Balances held with each counterparty group, against imits approved by the Executive Risk Commuttee, and

* Any change in short- and long-term credit rating

The Group 1s responsible under various requlatory regimes for the stewardship of chent mormes These responsibilities are
defined in the Group's Counterparty Crechit Management Policy and include the appointment of and periodic review of
institutions with which chent money 1s deposited The Group's general policy is that all financial institutional counterparties
holding client money accounts must have mimmum shart- and long-term ratings of A-2 and A- respectively, although in some
operating junisdictions where accounts are maintained to provide local banking facilitres for clients it can be problematic to

find a banking counterparty sausfying these minimum ratings requirements In such cases the Group will seek to use a locally
systernically important institution These cntena also apply for the Group’s own bank accounts held with financial institutions
The Group alse actively manages the credit exposure to each of its broking counterparties setthng or recalling balances at each
broker on a daily basis in line with the collateral requirements |

In addition, the majonity of deposits are made on an overnight or breakable term basis which enables the Group to react ,
immediately to any detenoration in eredit quality, and deposits of an unbreakable nature or requiring notice are only held with
a subset of counterparties which have been approved by the Executive Risk Committee At 31 May 2015 there were no deposits
held on an unbreakable basis (2014 £rul}
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36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {(CONTINUED)

B) CLIENT CREDIT RISK

The Group operates a real-time mark-to-market trading platform, with chent profits and losses being censtantly updated on
each client’s account

Client credit nisk principally arises when a client’s total funds deposited with the Group are insufficient to cover any trading
losses incurred In addiion, a small number of clients are granted credit imits to cover open losses and margin requirements as
descnbed below

In particular, chient credit nsk can arise where there are significant, sudden movements in the market 1 e due to high general
market volatility or specrfic volathty relating te an indwidual financial instrument in which the client has an open position

We mitigate, but do not eliminate, chent credit sk in a number of ways, including the real time monitaning of client positions
via our ‘close-out monitor’, the ability of clients to set a level in advance at which the deal will be closed (the 'stop’ level or
‘guaranteed stop’ level) and the use of tiered margining

Credit sk 1s also mitigated in part through increased margin requirements on larger positions, our client suitability critena, and
1s supported by an extensive training programme that aims to educate clients in all aspects of trading and nsk management
which encourages them to collateralise their accounts at an appropriate level in excess of the mimimum reguirement

The principal types of client credit nisk exposure are managed under the Group's ‘Client Credit Management Policy’ and depend
on the type of account and any credit offered to clients as follows

Chents subject to the Group's "clese-out monitor’

The ‘close-out monitor’ {COM) 1s an automated liquidation process whereby accounts which have broken the liquidation
threshold are automatically identified Where client losses are such that their total equity falls below the specified hquidation
level positions will be liguidated, resulting in reduced credit nsk exposure for the Group

Both the ‘close-out monitor’ and client inthiated ‘stops’ result in the transfer of market risk to the Group Market nisk anses
following the closure of the underlying client position as the Group (subject to the market nisk imits, discussed in the ‘Market
risk’ section with regards to market nisk), may hold a corresponding hedging position that will, assuming suffictent market
liquidity, be unwound

tn addition a subset of clients has what are known as "Limited Risk” accounts For such accounts a level 1s set in advance (the
‘guaranteed stop’ level} at which the deal will be closed, meaning a maximum client loss can be calculated at the opening of
the trade Clients placing trades with guaranteed stop levels pay a small premium on each transaction The maximum loss Is
then the amount the client 1s required to deposit to open the trade, meaning that in most circumstances the client can never
lose more than their intial margin deposit Although no longer offered to new clients, the Group still has a significant number of
chents with this type of account This type of account results in the transfer of an element of market nsk to the Group, which 1s
managed under the Group’s Market Risk Policy, and only a subset of more liquid products are available to trade Clients with any
type of account may still choose to use guaranteed stops (where available and on payment of the premium}

The majonty of client positions are menitored on the Group's real-time COM system or are limited risk accounts with
guaranteed ‘stop-losses’ As at 31 May 2015, 99 85% (2014 99 81%) of financial chent accounts are subject to the automatic
COM procedure or are ‘limited nsk’ accounts

Credit accounts

Clients holding other types of accounts are permitted to deal in circumstances where they may be capable of suffering losses
greater than the funds they have deposited on therr account, or tn hmeted circumstances are allowed credit The Group has a
formal credit policy which determines the financial and experience criteria which a client must satisfy before being given an
account which exposes the Group to credit risk, including trading limits for each client and strict margining rules

The Group may offer credit imits with the result that any ‘open loss’ can be paid subject to agreed credit terms  These accounts
typically only create a credit exposure when the client’s loss exceeds their intial margin deposit

In addition to the wawver of payment of open losses on a trade, the Group may also offer clients credit in respect of their
mitial margin This 1s a permanent waning of initial margin requirements while the imit 1s active on the account subject to the
credhit hmit

Credit limits are only granted following provision by the client of evidence of their available financial resources and credit
accounts limits are continuously reviewed by the Group’s Credit Department Each client with a credit hmut 1s also assigned
a igquidation level, breach of which will result in closure of positions Credst accounts are small in number, are not actively
promoted and in general they are not made available to new chients
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Risk-based tiered margins

The Group applies a tiered-margin requirement for equities and other instruments with risk-adjusted margin requirements
dependent on several factors including the volatiity and liquidity of the underlying instrument

This has resulted in potential margin requirement of up to 75% of the value of the notional ¢lient position for large client
positions but a reduced margin requirement for smaller chient positions

These tiered margins, in addition to the COM discussed earlier, contribute to the further mitigation of the Group's chent

counterparty credit risk exposure

Management of chent collateral

The Group also accepts collateral from a small number of its stockbroking clients in the form of shares or other secunties which
mitrgate the Group's credit nsk Clients retain title to the secunties lodged while their trading account 1s operating normally,
but are required to sign a collateral agreement which will allow the Group to take title and sell the securities in the event of the

client defaulting on any margin obhgations

The collateral value assigned to the client account 1s updated in real time, and each security 15 assigned a ‘haircut’ value eg a
chent s typically allowed to use 90% of a major FTSE 100 current market value

The analysis of neither past due nor impaired credit exposures in the following table excludes individual chent funds held in
segregated client maney accounts or money market faalities established under the UK's Financial Conduct Authonty (FCA)
*CASS' rules and similar rules of other regulators in whose junisdiction the Group operates Under these rules, client money
funds held with trust status are protecied in the event of the insolvency of the Group

Cash and cash equivalents

31 May 2015 31 May 2014

Trade receivables —
due from brokers

31 May 2015 31 May 2014

Trade receivables -
due from chients

31 May 2015 31 May 2014

fm fm fm fm fm fm
Group {note 18) {note 17) (note 17)
Individually impaired
Gross exposure - - - - 227 14
Allowance for impairment - - - - 217 (10 8)
- - - - 10 08
Past due but not impaired
Ageing profile
0-3 months - - - - 01 03
> & months - - - - D2 -
- - - - 03 03
Neither past due nor impaired
Credit rating
Ab+ & above 70 - - - - -
AA to AA- 65 91 169 551 - -
A+ to A 1257 B&7 2192 247 4 - -
BBB+ to BBB- 87 51 D2 01 - -
BB+1to B 02 o1 - - - -
cce - - - _ - -
Unrated™ 07 05 29 13 o7 12
1488 1015 2392 3039 07 12
Total carrying amount 1488 1015 2392 3039 20 213

" Amounts due from brokers are primarily related 1o the Group s operations in South Afnca Unrated amounts due from clients relate to open postions Prepayments

and other recevables are all unrated {2014 all unrated)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

B) CLIENT CREDIT RISK {CONTINUED}

The Financial investments are UK Government secunties held by the Group i satisfaction of the FCA requiremenis to hold a
‘lquid asset buffer’ against potential hquidhty stress under BIPRU 12 and as such they are rated as AA+

Impairment of trade receivables due from chents

The Group records specific impatirments of trade recevables due from clients in a separate allowance account Impairments are
recorded where the Group determines that it s probable that it will be unable 10 collect all amounts owing according to the
contractual terms of the agreement There are no collective mpawments taken, and no other assets are considered impaied
Below 1s a reconciliation of changes in the separate allowance account durning the year

31 May 2015 31 May 2014

Group fm fm
Balance at 1 June 106 108
Impairment toss for the year

- gross charge for the year 180 29

- recoveries (28) {13
Wrnite-offs (41} (5
Foreign exchange - 03
Balance at 31 May 217 106

Included in the 'gross charge for the year' ine 1s £15 Tmillion and £2 8 million in the ‘recovenes’ line in the table above, in
relation to the Swiss franc event (see note 2, for detalls)

The recovery of the outstanding debts asscciated with the Swiss franc 1s dependent on the ultmate recovery from a small
number of debts The Group's approach remains that for clients whom are considered to be well positioned and with rescurces
to pay their debts the Group will continue to employ resources to recaver the debts

Crednt nsk — Company
Held within prepayments and other recevables in the Statement of Financial Position of the Company are amounts payable
to the Company from related parties that are unrated Refer to note 34(b) The Company 15 not otherwise exposed to matenal

amounts of credit nsk

()} Concentration nsk

Concentration risk 15 defined as all risk exposures with a loss potential which 1s large enough to threaten the solvency or the
financial position of the Group In respect of financial risk, such exposures may be caused by credit nsk, market nisk, liquidity nisk
or a combination or interaction of those risks

The following table analyses the Group's credit exposures, at their carrying amounts, by geographical region and excludes
indwidual client funds held in segregated client money accounts established under the UK's Financial Conduct Authority (FCA)

'‘CASS' rles and similar rules of other regulators in whose jurisdiction the Group operates

Analysis of credit exposures at carrying amount by geographical segment

UK Europe Australia Rest of World Total
Group fm fm fm fm fm
As at 31 May 2015
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 718 05 57 708 148 8
Finangial investments™ 108 4 - - - 108 4
Trade recewvables - due from brakers 449 449 291 1203 2392
Trade recevables — due from chents 20 - - - 20
Other amounts due 1o the Group 222 - - &2 284
Total financial assets 2493 454 48 1973 526 8

M Financial investments are made up of £83 1 million {2014 £82 5 million) held by the Group in satisfaction of the FCA requirements to hold a lquid asset buffer
agamst potensal hquidity stress under BIPRY 12 and 3 £25 3 million (2014 £nil) UK Government Gilt which 1s held at brokers as collateral to support the hedging of
chenit market exposures in accordance with the Group s market nisk management policy (refer to note 21)
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Ux Europe Austraha Rest of World Total
Group fm £m £m fm fm
As at 31 May 2014
Financial assets
Cash and cash equwalents 743 i2 65 195 1015
Financial investments 825 - - - 825
Trade recesvables — due from brokers 925 518 522 107 4 3039
Trade recewvables — due from chents 20 02 01 - 23
Other amounts due to the Group 142 - 17 54 213
Total financial assets 2855 532 605 1323 5115

The Group's largest credit exposure to any one individual broker at 31 May 2015 was £91 2 milion (A- rated) (2014 £79 0 million,
A- rated) Iincluded in cash and cash equivalents, the Group's largest credit exposure to any bank at 31 May 2015 was

£54 3 million (A rated) (2014 £61 5 milion, AA+ rated} The Group has no significant exposure to any one particular clent or
group of connected clients

All of the Company's credit expasures anse in the UK at both 31 May 2015 and 3t May 2014

(v) Liqusdity risk

Liquichty risk 1s the risk that the Group wall encounter difficulty in meeting obligations ansing from its financial habdities that are
settled by delivering cash or other financial assets For further details refer to note 19

Derwvative and non-dervative cash flows by remaming contractual matunty — Group

The following tables present the undiscounted cash flows recevable and payable (excluding interest payments) by the Group
under derivative and non-denvative financial assets and liabilities allocated to the earliest period in which the Group can be
required to pay although the remaining contractual maturities may be longer

Amounts payable on demand

Derivative Non-dervative Total
As at 31 May 2015 fm £m £m
Finanacial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - 1488 148 8
Finanaial investments®! - 108 4 1084
Trade receivables - due (to)/from brokers 89 2481 2392
Trade recevables — due from chents - 20 20
Trade recevables - other amounts due to the Group - 284 284
89 5357 5268
Financial liabilities
Trade payables - Chent funds held on balance sheet - (169 (169
89 5188 5099

™ Financial nvestments are made up of £83 1 milhon {2014 £82 5 million) held by the Group in satisfaction of the FCA requirements 1o hold a liquid asset buffer
against potential hquidity stress under BIPRU 12 and a £25 3 million {2014 nil) UK Government Gilt which s held at brokers as collateral to support the hedging of
chent market exposures in accordance with the Group s market nsk management pelicy (refer to note 21}

Derwvative trade recervables disclosed in the table above represent the Group’s open postions with brokers Non-derivative trade
recewvables and payables disclosed in the table above represent cash margin held at brokers, UK Government secunities and client
debtors Derwvative and non-denivative cash flows are presented alongside each other in the table above as they result from the same
underlying trading relatonship and as the Group has both the fegal nght and intention to settle on a net basis

Trade recewables are disclosed as repayable on demand as when client positions are closed the corresponding positions relating to
the hedged position are closed with brokers Accordingly the Group releases cash margin, which is repaid by brokers to the Group
on demand
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

B) CLIENT CREDIT RISK (CONTINUED)

Dervative and non-denvative cash flows by remaining contractual matunity — Group {continued)

Amounts payable on demand

Derivative Non-derivative Total
As at 31 May 2014 fm fm fm

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - 1015 1015
Financial investments™ - 825 825
Trade recewvables — due {to)from brokers (234) 3273 3039
Trade recevables — due from clients - 23 23
Trade receivables - other amounts due to the Group - 213 213
234 5349 5115

Finanaal liabilities

Trade payables — Chent funds held on balance sheet - 210 {210)
(23 4) 513¢ 4905

M £82 5 milon of UK Government gecurties held by the Group in satisfaction of the FCA requirements to hold a liquid asset buffer against potential hquidity stress
under BIPRU 12 (refer to note 21 fer details}

Amounts payable over 5 years
The Group has non-denvative cash flows payable over 5 years in relation to the redeemable preference shares at 31 May 2015
and 2014, as disclosed in note 26

Dernvative and non-derivative cash flows by remaining contractual maturity - Company

There were ne Company dervative cash flows as at 31 May 2015 (2014 £nl)

At 31 May 2015 the Company held cash and cash equivalents of £724 (2014 £194) available on demand and redeemable
preference shares of £40,000 (2014 £40,000) the terms of which are disclosed in note 26

37 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT AND RESOURCES

Capital management

The Group 1s supervised on a consolidated basis by the UK's Financial Conduct Authornity (FCA)} The Group’s operations
in Australia, Japan, Singapore, South Afnica, Switzerland, United Arab Emirates and the United States, are also regulated
Individual capital requirements in these junsdictions are taken into account when managing the Group's capital resources

The Group’s regulatory capital resources management objective 15 to ensure that the Group complies with the requlatory capital
resources requirement set by the FCA and other global regulators in junsdictiens in which the Group’s entities operate

The Group’s capital management policy aims to maximise returns on equity while maintaining a strong capital position to
enable the Group to take advantage of growth opportunities, whether organic or by acquisition The Group does not seek to
generate higher returns on equity by introducing leverage through, for example, the use of long-term debt finance

The Group’s 2014 ICAAP was approved by the Board in December 2014 There have been no capital requirement breaches
during the financial and prior year The Group also regularly undertakes three-year stress and scenario testing of its main
financial and operationat nsks to project s future capital and iquidity adequacy requirements

The disclosures required of the Group under the Caprtal Requirements Regulation (Pillar IH) will be made on the Group’s
corporate website iggroup com These will provide additional information which will allow market participants to assess key
pieces of information on a firms capital, risk exposures, nisk assessment process and hence the capital adequacy of the firm
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in accordance with the Capital Requirements Directive IV (CRD IV} and the IFPRU prudential regulations the Group 1s required L
to disclose a return on assets metnic This has been calculated as "profit for the year' divided by "shareholders equity’

Restated* '
31 May 2015 31May2014 '\~
£m fm | ;,
Return on assets 22 3% 26 0% !

Capital resources
The Group had significant surplus regulatory capital resources over the Pillar 1 regulatory capital resources requirerent

throughout the year An analysis of the Group’s consolhdated capital resources and capital resources requirement s provided in T ]
the Operaung and Finanoial Review B
The following table summarises the Group's capital adequacy on a consolidated basis .
Restated*
£m 31 May 2015 31 May 2014 "
AT
Sharehclders' equity per audited financial statements 5914 565 9 LA g
m
Investrnent in own shares 12 1" z %
m 0
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital 5926 567 0 f >
]
Less Intangible assets (124 Q) nzz7a
Less Investment in own shares 12 (11
Less Deferred tax asset™ 1) 71) z .
Tota! capital resources (CR) 450 3 4341 o
v 1
L]
@ The new CRD IV requirements which came into force on 1 January 2014 requira deferred tax assets relating to future profitability to be deducted from Tier 1 Capital
in the determination of caprtal resources for the Group s
* Az outined in the Group Accounting policies on page 168 comparative pencds have been restated to reflect the change In timing of recognition of the FSCS levy in b

accordance with IFRIC 21 Levies See note 38 for additional information
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38 IMPACT OF ADOPTING NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Restatement of comparatives — IFRIC 21 *lLewvies’

As outlined in the Group’s accounting policies on page 168, during the year ended 31 May 2015, the Group adopted IFRIC 21

‘Levies’ and has accordingly restated the prior periods

The following tables reflect the impact on the Group’s financial statements at 31 May 2015 of IFRIC 21 “Levies’ at 1 June 2014

IFRIC 21 Levies

Income statement — year ended 31 May 2015 £m
Admrmistrative expenses 53
Profit before tax 53
Taxation ¢redit™ 14
Profit for the year 3¢

Basic and diluted loss per share [cent)

1 53p and 1 52p

Consolidated statement of financial position 31 May 2015 {lines impacted by IFRIC 21)

Deferred tax 14
Cther payahles" 70
Retained earnings — current year 39

M Tax impact was calculated at the substantively enacted rate of 20% (2014 20%) on the FSCS levy charge for the year ending 31 March 2016 before adjustments made

to prior year charges

The following tables set out the impact of IFRIC 21 ‘Levies’ on the comparative amounts for the year ended 31 May 2014

Cansolidated income statement (hnes impacted by IFRIC 21}

As onginally IFRIC 21
published Levies Restated
Year ended 31 May 2014 £fm £m £m
Adminsstrative expenses (1790 02 (178 8)
Operating profit 1952 G2 1954
Profit before taxation 1947 02 1949
Tax expense 477 - 477}
Profit for the period 1470 02 1472
Consolidated statement of finanaal position {lines impacted by IFRIC 21}
As oniginally IFRIC 21
published Levies Restated
31 May 2014 fm fm fm
Assets
Deferred tax assets 57 14 71
Current habilities
Other payables 533 51 584
Equity
Retained earnings 2774 37 2737
As oniginally IFRIC 21
pubhshed Levies Restated
1 June 2013 £m fm fm
Assets
Deferred tax assets 95 14 109
Current habilities
Other payables 538 53 591
Equity
Retained earnings 2152 (39 213
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Consohdated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity {lines impacted by IFRIC 21}

As onginally IFRIC 21
published Levies Restated
31 May 2014 £fm £m frn
Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the penod/year 2152 (39 2113
Profit for the year 1470 02 147 2
Balance at the end of the penod/year 2774 (37} 2737
Consolidated cash flow statement (lines impacted by IFRIC 21)
As ongunally IFRIC 21
published Levies Restated
Year ended 31 May 2014 fm fm £m
Cash flow from operating actvities
Profit before tax 1947 02 1949
Other non cash ttems 39 o2 37
Cash generated from operations 1765 - 1765

39 SUBSEGUENT EVENTS

As at 31 May 2015, The Group had £200 0 million in revotving credit facility from a syndicate of three UK banks The Group has
undertaken a review of its contingent hguidity requirements and upon approval from the Executive Risk Committee, concluded
to reduce the faclity to £1600 miliion and include a fourth bank in the syndicate The inclusion of a fourth bank in the syndicate
offers the Group further bank dwersification This new facihity has £100 ¢ million available for up to a 1 year term {with an option
to extend for a further year) and £60 0 million available for up to 3 years and was signed on 17 July 2015

40 AUTHORISATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND STATEMENT OF
COMPLIANCE WITH IFRS

The financial statements of |G Group Holdings plc {the Company) and its subsidianes (together the Group) for the year

ended 31 May 2015 were authorised for 1ssue by the Board of the Directors on 21 July 2015 and the statements of financial
position signed on the Board’s behalf by Tim Howkins and Christopher Hilt IG Group Holdings picis a public imited company
incorporated and domicited in England and Wales The Company's ordinary shares are traded on the London Stock Exchange
The Company's registered address is 25 Dowgate Hill, London, United Kingdom, EC4R 2YA

The Group and Company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union (EU) and IFRIC interpretations as they apply to the financial statements

of the Group and of the Company for the year ended 31 May 2015 and applied in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006 The Group and Company financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets and hiabilities (including dervatives) at fair
value through profit or loss

The pnnaipal accounting policies adopted by the Group and the Company are set out In note 41
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

411 Basis of preparation
The accounting policies which follow have been applied in preparning the financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2015

As permitted by Section 408(1)(b)}, (4} of the Companies Act 2004, the individual income statement of G Group Heldings plc
(the Company} has not been presented in these financial statements The amount of profit for the year deak with in the financial
statements of IG Group Holdings ple s £62 7 mullion {2014 £85 8 million) A statement of comprehensive income for IG Group
Holdings plc has also not been presented in these financial statements No (tems of other comprehensive income arose in the
year (2014 £nil)

Com paratives restatement

IFRIC 21 ‘Levies’
Comparative periods have been restated to reflect the impact of the adoptien of IFRIC Interpretation 21 Levies

The adoption of IFRIC 21 impacts the accounting for the Financial Services Compensation Scheme (FSCS) levy for the year
commencing 1 June 2014 FSCS levies are raised in respect of the financial year of the FSCS that runs frem 1 Apnil to the
following 31 March The levy 1s payable in its entirety if the Group 1s in operation under its Financial Conduct Authonty (FCA)}
licence on 1 April, being the obligating event, and 1s levied relating to revenues of the Group's prior year IFRIC 21 requires

the levy to be recognised in full in the income statement on 1 April each year The existence of relevant activity in the previous
period 1s necessary, but not sufficient, to create a present obligation, neither does the future operation of the business after 1
April result in the charge being spread over the FSCS finanaial year, this being the previous accounting treatment adopted by
the Group Therefore, for each financial year presented the levy has been expensed to the income statement in full on 1 April
Prior year comparatives have been restated under the IFRIC with an equity reserves adjustment recogmised for the FSCS levy as
at 1 Apnl 2013 Full detail of the restatement 1s provided in note 38

Before the adoption of IFRIC 21, the Financial Services Compensation Scheme (FSCS) levy was recogmised on an accrual basis in
accordance with the IAS 37, 'Provisions, contigent liabiliues and contingent assets’

Presentation in £'m

In present:ing the amounts used in these financial statements the level of rounding has been changed from thousands, which
were used in the comparative peneds, to millions In accordance with the requirements of 1AS 8, this level of rounding does not
omit materal information

4111 Going concern
The Directors have prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis that requires the Directors to have a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue In operational existence for the foreseeable future

41 2 Basis of consohdation

{(a) Subsidianes

The Group financial statements consolidate the financial statements of IG Group Holdings plc and the entities it controls (its
subsidiaries) made up to the reporting date as listed in note 15

Subsidianes are consolidated from the date of their acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such contrel ceases Control comprises the power to govern the financial and
operating pelicies of the investee so as to obtain benefit from its activities and 15 achieved through direct or indirect ownership
of voting rights, currently exercisable or convertible potential veting rights, or by way of contractual agreement The results,
cash flows and final positions of the subsidianes used in the preparation of the consohdated financial statements are prepared
for the same reporting year as the parent campany and are based on consistent accounting policies All inter-company balances
and transactions between Group entities, including unrealised profits arising from them, are eliminated on consohdation

On acquisition, the assets, habilities and contingent habilires of a subsidiary are measured at therr farr values at the date

of acquisiion The cost of an acquisition 1s measured at the fair value of consideration paid including an estimate of any
contingent or deferred consideration Contingent or deferred consideration 1s re-measured at each statement of financial
position date with periodic changes to the estimated Lability recognised in the consolidated income statement Acquisition
related costs are expensed as incurred Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the identifiable net assets
acquired 1s recogmsed as goodwill Any deficiency of the cost of acquisition below the farr values of the identifiable net assets
acquired (discount on acquisition) 1s credited to the income statement in the penod of acquisition

The results of subsidiares acquired or disposed of duning the year are included in the consolidated income statement from the
effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropnate

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the finanoial statements of subsidianies to bring the accounting policies used into
ltne with those used by other members of the Group
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(b} Non-controlling interests o
Where the Group and a non-controlling shareholder enter into a forward contract (symmetrical put and call options) under which \

the Group 1s required to purchase the non-controlling interest for its fair value {formulae-based valvation), at the forward date,

the Group continues 1o recognise the non-controlling interest at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s tdentifiable net assets,

until expiry of the arrangement The forward liability 15 alse recognised for management'’s best estimate of the present value of the
redemption amount with a corresponding entry in equity The accretion of the discount on the hiability 1s recogmised as a finance .
charge in the consolidated income statement The hability 1s re-measured to the final redemption amount with any penedic 1 - n
changes to the estmated liability recognised in the consolidated income statement On expiry of the forward, the hability 1s

eliminated as paid and any difference in the value of the non-controlling interest 1o the exercise price deducted from equity

On an acquisition-by-acquisition basts non-controlling interests are measured either at farr value or at the non-controlling
nterest proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as transactions with equity owners of the Group For purchases from -
non-controlling interests, the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of .
the non-controlling interest 1s recorded in equity .

Losses applicable to the non-controling shareholder in a consolidated subs:diary’s equity may exceed the non-controlling
interest In the subsidiary’s equity The excess and any further losses applicable to the non-cantrolling shareholder, are allocated
against the majonty interest, except to the extent that the non-controlling shareholder has a binding obligation and 1s able

to make an additional investment to cover the losses If the subsidiary subsequently reports profits, such profits are allocated
to the majority interests until the non-controlling shareholder’s share of losses previously absorbed by the majonty has

been recovered
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Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets in subsidiaries that s not held by the Group and 1s
presented within equity in the consolidated statement of financial position, separately from parent sharehelders’ equity

413 Foreign currencies '
The functtonal currency of each company in the Group 1s that of the country of Incorporation (as disclosed in note 15) as this ‘
I1s consistent with the pnimary economic environment in which the entity operates The Group’s most significant functional
currency 15 sterling Transactions in other currencies are iniiially recorded in the functional currency by applying spot exchange
rates prevailing on the dates of the transactions At each statement of financial position date, monetary assets and habilihes
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange prevaiing on the same date
Non-monetary assets and habilities carned at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates
prevalling at the date when the fair value was determined Gains and losses artsing on translation are taken to the income
statement, except for exchange differences ansing on monetary assets and lisbilities that form part of the Group’s net
investment n a foreign operation These are taken directly to equity until the disposal of the net investment, at which time they
are recognised in profit or loss

On consclidation, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s overseas operations are translated into sterling at exchange rates
prevailing on the statement of financial position date Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the period Exchange differences ansing, if any, are classified as equity and are taken directly to a translation reserve Such
transtation differences are recognised as income or as expenses in the penod in which the operation 1s disposed of Goodwill
and fair value adjustments ansing on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and habiliies of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate

41 4 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreoation and accumulated impairment losses Cost
comprises the aggregate amount paid and the fair value of any other consideration given to acquire the asset and includes
costs directly attributable to making the asset capable of operating as intended

Depreciation 1s provided on all property, plant and equipment at rates calculated to write off the cost, less estimated residual
value based upon estimated useful lives Estimated residual value and useful lives are reviewed on an annual basis and residual
values are based on prices prevailing at the statement of financial position date Depreciation 1s charged on a straight-line basis
over the expected useiul lives as follows

Leasehold improvements - over the lease term of up to 15 years
Office equipment, fixtures and fittings - aver 5 years
Computer and other equipment - over 2, 3or 5 years

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes i crcumstances
indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable, and are written down immediately to their recoverable amount
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

41 4 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
anise from the continued use of the asset The gain or loss ansing on derecognition of an asset 15 determined as the difference
between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and 1s included in the iIncome statement in the period

of derecognition

415 Goodwill

Goodwill ansing on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisition {fair value of consideration paid) over

the Group’s interest in the farr value of the identifiable assets, habilities and contingent habiliues of a business at the date

of acquisitrton Goodwall 1s recogrised as an asset and s allocated to cash-generating units for purposes of impairment
testing Cash-generating units represent the smallest \dentifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets

Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase method Any excess of the cost of the business combination
over the Group's interest in the net farr value of the identifiable assets, liabilihes and contingent habilities 1s recogrused in
the statement of financial position as goodwill and i1s not amortised To the extent that the net farr value of the acquired
entity's identifiable assets, habilities and contingent habilities s greater than the cost of the investment, a gain 1s recogrised
immediately in the income statement Any goodwill asset arising on the acquisition of equity accounted entities 1s included
within the cost of those entities

After initial recognition, goodwill 1s stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses, with the carrying value being
reviewed for impairment, at least annually and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill s allocated to the related cash-generating units momitored by management
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its carmying amount, including goodwill, an imparrment
loss 1s recognised in the iIncome statement

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to a cash-generating unit 1s taken into account when determining the gain or loss on
disposal of the unit, or of an operation within it

41 6 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are carred at cost less accumulated amortsation and accumulated impairment Josses

Intangible assets acquired separately from a business are carned initially at cost An intangible asset acquired as part of a
business combination such as a trade name or customer relationship 1s recognised at fair value outside goodwill if the asset s
separable or anses from contractual or other legal nghts and 1ts fair value can be measured relably Expenditure on internally
developed intangible assets, excluding development costs, 1s taken to the income statement in the year in which it 1s incurred
Development expenditure Is recogrised as an intangible asset only after all the following eriteria are met

* The project’s technical feasibility and commercial viability can be demonstrated

¢ The avallability of adequate technrcal and financial resources and an intention to complete the project have been confirmed and
¢ The correlation between development costs and future revenue has been established

Following imtial recogmition, the historic cost model 1s applied, with intangible assets being carned at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses

Intangible assets with a finite life are amortised over therr expected useful lives, as follows

Development costs - straight-line basis over 3 years

Software and licences - straight-ine basis over the contract term of up to 5Syears
Trade names - sum of digits method over 2 years

Client hists and customer relationships - sum of digits method over 3 years

Domain names and generc top-level domains - straight-line basis over 10 years

The carrying value of intangible assets 1s rewiewed for impairment whenever events or changes in aircumstances indicate the
carrying value may not be recoverable In addition, the carrying value of capitahised developrnent expenditure 1s reviewed for
impairment annually before being brought into use
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417 Impairment of non-financial assets

At least annually, or when impairment testing 1s required, the Directors review the carrying amounts of the Group's property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets to determine whether there 1s any indication that those assets have suffered

an impairment loss if any such indication exists (or at least annually for goodwill}, the recoverable amount of the asset 1s |
estimated i order to determine the extent of the imparrment loss (f any) Where the asset does not generate cash flows that
are independent from other assets, the Group estirmates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs

s

a-

The recoverable amount s the higher of fair value less selling costs and value-in-use In assessing value-in-use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present values using a pre-tax discount rate This rate reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money as well as the nisks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted

If the recoverable amount of an asset 15 estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset 1s ©o
reduced to its recoverable amount Imparrment losses are recognised as an expense immediately

An assessment 15 made at each reporting date as to whether there 1s any indication that previously recognised mparrment y
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased If such indication exists, the recoverable amount 1s estimated A previously
recogrised imparment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recogrused [f that 15 the case, the carrying amount of the assets
increased to its recoverable amount That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no imparment loss been recogrised for the asset in prior years A reversal of an imparment loss 1s recognised
as income immediately, although impairment lasses relating to goodwill may not be reversed
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418 Investments n subsidianes
Investments in subsicharies are stated at cost less accurnulated imparment losses

M9 Financial instruments

41 91  Classification, Recogmtion and Measurement ¢
The Group determines the classificaton of its financial instruments at imitial recogrnition in accordance with the categories
outhned below and re-evaluates this designation at each financial year-end When financial instruments are recognised inibally,
they are measured at farr value, being the transaction pnice plus, in the case of financial assets and financial habilities not at
fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs Financial instruments are disclosed in note 35 to the
financial statements

(a) Financial assets and financial abihities at far value through profit or loss

Financial assets and finanaial iabilities classified as held for trading, or designated as such on inception, are included in this
category and relate to the financial derivative open positions included in trade receivables - due from brokers and trade
payables - due to clients as shown in the statement of financial position and related notes Financial instruments are classified
as held for trading if they are expected to settle in the short term The Group uses derwative financial instruments in order to
hedge denvative exposures ansing from open client positions, which are also classified as held for trading

All financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are carned in the statement of financial position at far value with
gains or losses recognised in revenue in the consolidated income statement

Deteimination of lain value

Financial instruments ansing from open client positions and the Group's hedging positions are stated at fair value and disclosed
according to the valuation hierarchy required by IFRS 7 Fair values are predominantly determined by reference to third-party
market values (bid prices for long positions and offer prices for short positions} as detailed below

Level 1 Valued using unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical financiat instruments

Level 2 Valued using techniques where a price 1s denved based significantly on observable market data For example, where
an active market for an identical financial iInstrument to the product offered by the Group to its clients or used by the Group to
hedge its market nsk dees not exist

Level 3 Valued using techniques that incorporate information other than observable market data that 1s significant to the
overalt valuation
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

4191 Classification, Recognition and Measurement (continued)

(b} Loans and receivables

Loans and recevables are non-denvative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market They are included in current assets, except for matunties greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting period
These are classified as non-current assets The Group’s loans and recewvables comprise “trade recevables’, ‘cash and cash
equivalents’ and ‘trade payable 'amounts due to title transfer clients

{c} Availlable-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-denvatives that are either designated in this category or not classified in any other
categanas They are included in non-current assets unless the investment matures or management intend to dispose of it within
12 months of the end of the reporting peniod The Group's avallable-for-sale assets comprise "financial investments’

41 92 Derecognition of financial assets and habilities
A financial asset or hability 1s generally derecogrised when the contract that gives nise to 1t 1s settled, sold, cancelled or expired

{a) Financial assets

A financial asset 1s derecognised where the nights to receve cash flows from the asset have expired, the Group retains the right
to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full without matenal delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through' arrangement, or the Group has transferred its nights to receive cash flows from the asset and erther (a)
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially ali the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred controt of the asset Where the Group has transferred its nghts to recewve cash
flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the nisks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the asset 1s recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset Continuing
involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset 1s measured at the lower of the onginal carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay

(b} Finanaial habilities

A financal hability 1s derecognised when the obligation under the labihty ts discharged or cancelled or expires Where an
existing financial hability 1s replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
lability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification 1s treated as a derecognition of the onginal liability and the
recognition of a new hability, such that the difference in the respective carrying amounts together with any costs or fees incurred
are recognised in profit or loss

41 10 Trade recevables and trade payables

Assets or habilities resulting from profit or losses on open positions are carned at fair value Amounts due from or to clients and
brokers are netted against other assets and liabilities with the same counterparty where a legally enforceable netting agreement
15 In ptace and where 1t 1s anticipated that assets and habilities will be netted on settlement

Trade recevables represent balances with counterparties and chents where the combination of cash held on account and the
valuation of inancial derivative open positions result in an amount due to the Group A prowvision for impairment 1s established
where there 15 objective evidence of non-collectability Reference 1s made to an aged profile of debt and the prowision s subject
to management review

Trade payables represent balances with counterparties and clients where the combination of cash held on account and the
valuation of financial dervative open positions results in an amount payable by the Group

41 11 Prepayments and other receivables

Prepayments and other recervables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market, do not qualify as trading assets and have not been designated as farr value through profit or loss Such
assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method if the time value of money 1s significant Gains and losses
are recognised in income when the recewables are derecognised or impaired, and when economic benefit1s consumed A
provision for impairment 1s established where there 1s objecuive evidence of non-collectabuility

4112 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits which may be accessed without penalty Cash equivalents compnise short-
term highly hgquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignriicant
risk of changes 1n value For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement, net cash and cash equivalents consist of cash
and cash equwalents as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts
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The Group holds money on behalf of clients 1n accordance with the client money rules of the UK Financial Conduct Authonty ‘
{FCA) and other regulatory bodies Such monies are classified as either ‘cash and cash equivalents’ or *segregated client funds’

in accordance with the relevant regulatory requirements Segregated client funds comprise individual client funds held in

segregated chent money accounts or money market facihties Segregated chent money accounts hold statutory trust status

restncting the Group's ability to control the momies and accordingly such amounts and are not held on the Group's statement of
financial position “,

The amount of segregated client funds held at year-end 15 disclosed in note 18 to the financial statements The return receved o
on managing segregated client funds 1s included within net operating income

Title transfer funds are held by the Group under a Title Transfer Collateral Arrangement (TTCA) by which a client agrees that full
ownership of such morues s unconditonally transferred to the Group Title transfers funds are accordingly held on the Group's
statement of financial position with a corresponding liability to clrents within trade payables

Cash and cash equivalents also includes cient monies deposited with the Group's Swiss banking subsidiary {refer to note 18)

4113 Fwnanaal investments

Financial investments are held as avallable-for-sale and are non-denvatve financial assets that are not classified as held for
trading, designated at fair value through profit or loss, or lcans and recevables Financial investments are recogrised on a trade
date basis They are initially recognised at fair value plus directly related transactions costs They are subsequently carried at fair
value Farir value 15 the quoted market price of the specific Investments held

Financial investments available-for-sale are carmed at farr value Unrealised gains or losses are reported in equity (in the available
for sale reserve) and in other comprehensive income, until such investments are sold, collected or atherwise disposed of, or
until any such investment 1s determined to be impaired On disposal of an investment, the accumulated unrealised gain or

loss included i equity is recycled to the income statement for the penod and reported in other income Gains and losses on
disposal are determined using the average cost method
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Interest on financial investments 1s included in interest using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method

The effective interest rate 1s the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected
Iife of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter penod to the net-carrying amount of the financial asset or
fimanaial iabilty When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms
of the finanecial instrument {for example, prepayment, call and similar options) but shall not consider future credit losses The
calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate (see IAS 18 Revenue), transaction costs and all other premiurns or discounts

At the year-end date the Group considers whether there 1s objective evidence that a finanaial investment 1s mpaired In case
of such evidence, it 1s considered impaired if its cost exceeds the recoverable amount The recoverable amount for a quoted
financial investment 1s determined by reference to the market price A quoted financial investment is considered impaired of
objective evtdence indicates that the decline in market price has reached such a level that recovery of the cost value cannot be
reasonably expected within the foreseeable future

if a financial Investment 1s determined to be iImpared, the cumulative unrealised loss previously recognised In equity 1s recycled
to profit for the period

41 14  Other payables

Non-trading finanaial iabilities are recognised intially at farr value and carned at amorused cost using the effective interest rate
method if the time value of money 1s significant

4115 Provisions

Prowisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive abligation as a result of past events, it 15 probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obhigation, and the amount ¢an be reliably estmated

41 16 Borrowings

Borrowings are recogrised imibially at their 1ssue proceeds less transaction costs incurred Subsequently, taking inte
censideration the term of the barrowings, an assessment 1s made whether to state at amortised cost, with any difference
between net proceeds and the redemption value being recogrised in the income statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest rate method

All borrowing costs are expensed as they are incurred
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41 ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

4117 Employee Benefits

{a) Pension obligations

The Group operates defined contnbution schemes Contnbutions are charged to the income statement as and when they
become payable according to the rules of the schemes Once the contributions have been paid the group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions

(b} Bonus schemes

The Group recognises a hability and an expense for bonuses based on formulae that take into consideration the
revenue or earmings attributable to the Group's shareholders after certain adjustments and also based on operational
non-financial measures

(c) Termination benefits

Terminauon benefits are payable when an employment contract 1s terminated by the Group The Group recognises termination
benefits when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits

41 18 Taxation
The income tax expense represents the sum of tax currently payable and movements in deferred tax

The tax currently payable 1s based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income
statement because 1t excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and 1t further excludes
iterns that are never taxable or deductible The Group's hability for current tax is calculated using tax rates in the respective
junsdictions that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the statement of financial position date

Deferred tax 1s accounted for on all temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and lrabulities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax basis used in the computation of taxable profit In principle, deferred tax liabilities are
recognised for all temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable
profits wall be available, against which deductible temporary differences may be utilised Such assets and habilities are not
recogrised If the temporary difference anses from goodwill {or negative goodwill) or irom the initial recognition {other than in a
business combination) of other assets and llabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit

Deferred tax liabiliies are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group s able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and 1t 1s probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 15 reviewed at each statement of financial position date and reduced to the extent
that it 1s no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax assets and liabilittes are measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply when the
related asset i1s realised or liability 1s settled, based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of
financial position date Deferred tax 1s charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to items credited or
charged directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax 15 also dealt with in equity

Deferred tax assets and liabilives are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authonty and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets and halulities on a net basis

4119 Share caprtal

{a) Classification of shares as debt or equity

When shares are 1ssued, any component that creates a financial lability of the Group 1s presented as a hiability in the statement
of financial position, measured imitially at fair value net of transaction costs and thereafter at amortised cost untl extinguished
on conversion or redemption The corresponding dividends relating to the liability component are charged as interest expense
in the tncome statement

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded as the proceeds received, net of direct 1ssue costs Equity instruments
are classified accarding to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into An equity mstrument 1s any contract that
evidences a residual interest In the assets of the Group after deducting all of its labilities

{b) Own shares held in Employee Benefit Trusts

Shares held in trust by the Company for the purposes of employee share schemes are classified as a deduction from
shareholders’ equity and are recogmised at cost Consideration receved for the sale of such shares is also recogrised in equity,
with any difference between the proceeds from the sale and the onginal cost being taken to revenue reserves No gain or loss is
recognised in the income statement on the purchase, sale, 1Issue or cancellation of equity shares
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{c) Share-based payments

The Company operates three employee share plans a Share Incentive Plan and a Sustained Performance Plan and a Long Term
Incentive Plan Previously the company operated a Value-shanng Plan, that was all equity settled

For market-based vesting conditions, the cost of these awards 1s measured at farr value caleulated using option pricing medels
(refer to the share based payment note for additional detail of the models and assumptions used for the vanous award schemes)
and are recogrised as an expense in the Income statement on a straight-line basis over the vesting penod based on the
Company's estimate of the number of shares that will eventually vest

For non-market-based vesting cenditions, at each statement of financial position date before vesting the cumulative expense 1s
calculated representing the extent to which the vesting period has expired and management's best estimate of the achievement
or othenwise of non-market conditions determining the number of equity instruments that will ulumately vest The movement

in cumulative expense since the previous statement of financial position date s recognised in the ncome statement as part of
administrative expenses, with a corresponding entry in equity

The grant by the Company of options over its equity instruments to employees of the subsidiary undertakings in the Group 1s
treated as a capital contribution The farr value of the employee services receved is recognised over the vesting peried as an
increase In the investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity

41 20 Revenue recognition

Trading revenue represents gains and |osses anising on client trading activity, primarily i financial spread betting, contracts for
difference or binary options as well as the transactions undertaken to hedge the nsk associated with client trading actvmity Open
chent and hedging positions are carried at far market value and gamns and losses arising on this valuation are recognised in
revenue as well as gains and losses realised on positions that have closed The policies and methodologies associated with the
determination of fair value have been discussed previously under Financial Instruments

Trading revenue also includes

- spread, commission and funding charges made to clients in respect of the opening, holding and closing of financial spread
bets, contracts for difference or binary options,

- commission earned from the execution-anly stockbroking service after deducting contracting and trade settlement fees
payable to third-party brokers Revenue is stated net of sales taxes and 1s recogmsed in full on the date of trade being placed,
and

- member fees charged by the Group’s regulated futures and options exchange

The Group acts in a non-adwisory capacity to match buyers and sellers under the execution-only stockbroking service, does not
act as principal when prowiding this service and only recewves and transmits orders between counterparties

Trading revenue 1s reported gross of introducing partner commuission as these amounts are directly linked to trading revenue
Introducing partner commussion, along with betting duties and financial transaction taxes paid, is disclosed as an expense in
arnving at net operating income

Revenue 1s recogrised when it 1s probable that economic benefits assooated with the transaction will flow to the Group and the
revenue can be reliably measured

Finance revenue or interest Income on segregated clhent funds 15 accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
odtsianding and at the effective interest rate appiicable The effecuve interest rate 1s the rate which exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount Interest income on
segregated client funds 1s disclosed within revenue and therefore operating profit, as this 1s consistent with the nature of the
Group's operations

Net trading revenue, disclosed on the face of the Consclidated Income Staterment and in the Notes to the Financial Statements,
represents trading revenue from financial instruments carnred at fair value through profit or loss and has been disclosed net

of introducing partner commission as this 1s consistent with the management information received by the Chief Operating
Decision Maker

Dividends recevable are recognised when the shareholder’s night to receive the payment 15 established

4121 Operating profit

Operating profit 1s the sum of the results of the principal activities of the Group after charging depreciation of property, plant
and equipment, amoruisation of intangible assets, operating lease rentals on land and buildings, foreign exchange differences,
profit or loss on sale of property, plant and equipment and other admimistrative expenses
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41 ACCCUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

41 22 Use of non-GAAP measures

The Group believes that the presentation of underlying results provides additional useful information to shareholders on the
underlying trends and comparable performance of the Group over time These terms are not defined under IFRS and may
therefore not be comparable with similarly titled profit measures reported by other companies They are not intended to be
a substitute for, or supenor 1o, GAAP measures The term ‘underlying’ refers to the relevant profit, earnings or taxation being
reported excluding exceptronal items

Exceptional items are those items of income and expense that the Group considers are matenal one-off in nature and of
such significance that they ment separate presentation in order to aid the reader’s understanding of the Group's financial
performance Such items would include profits or losses on disposal of businesses and costs associated with acquisitions and
disposals, major restructuning programmes, significant geodwill or other asset impairments, other particularly significant or
unusual items

Other non-GAAP measures used in these financial statements are return on assets (refer to note 37), capital resources {refer to
note 37} and own funds generated from operations (refer to note 1%{(d)}

41 23  Finance costs and interest expense on segregated chent funds

Finance costs and interest expense on segregated client funds are accrued on a time basis by reference to the principal amount
charged at the eflective interest rate applicable The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the future expected
cash flows to the carrying amount of the habilty lssue costs are included in the determination of the effective interest rates

Interest expense on segregated client funds 1s disclosed within operating profit as this is consistent with the nature of the
Group's operations

41 24 Dwvdends

Dividend distnbution to the company's shareholders 1s recognised as a iability in the Group's financial statements in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the Company's shareholders

41 25 Operating leases

Leases are classified as operating leases where the lessor retains substantially all the nisks and benefits of ownership of the asset
Lease payments under an operating lease are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless
another systematic basis 1s more representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit

4126 Segment information

The Group's segmental information 1s disclosed in a manner consistent with the basis of internal reports regarding components
of the Group that are regularly rewiewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker {CODM), who for the Group are the Executive
Directors, in order to assess the performance and to allocate resources to those 'operating segments’ The Group has therefore
deterrmined its operating segments based on the management information received on a regular basis by the Executive
Directors of the IG Group Holdings plc Board as they are considered to be the CODM Operating segments that do not meet
the quantitative thresholds required by IFRS B are aggregated

The Group envisages that the reportable segments may change as overseas businesses move towards operational maturity,
breaking through the quantitative thresholds of IFRS 8 The segments are therefore subject to annual review and the
comparatives restated to reflect any reclassifications within the segmental reporting

41 27 Changes in accounting policies

With the exception of the adoption of IFRIC 21, the accounting policies adopted in the preparauon of financial statements are
consistent with those followed in the preparation of the Group’s Annual Report for the year ended 31 May 2014

41 27 1 New accounting standards and interpretations
Effective from 1 June 2014, the Group adopted the following interpretation and amendments to standards

(a) New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted by the Group

In addition to IFRIC 21 (described in Note 41 1), the following amendments to standards have also been implemented but have
not had a matenal effect on the Group’s results

* IFRS 10, 'Consolidated financial statements’ (effective 1 January 2013) (EU endorsed from 1 January 2014}

* IFRS 11,'Joint arrangements’ {effective 1 January 2013) (EU endorsed from 1 January 2014)

¢ |FRS 12, 'Disclosures of interests in other entities’ (efective 1 January 2013) (EU endorsed from 1 January 2014)

= A5 27 {revised 2011), ‘Separate financial statements’ (effective 1 January 2013) (EU endorsed from 1 January 2014)

* |1AS 28 {revised 2011), ‘Associates and joint ventures’ (effective 1 January 2013) (EU endorsed from 1 January 2014)
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¢ Amendments to IFRS 10, 12 and IAS 27 on consalidation for mvestment entities (effective 1 January 2014} s
* Amendment to [AS 32, 'Financial instruments Presentation’, on asset and hability offsetting {effective 1 January 2014)
* Amendment to IAS 36, ‘Impairment of assets’ on recoverable amount disclosures (effective 1 January 2014)

+ Amendment to 1AS 39, ‘Financial instruments’ recogmition and measurement’ on novation of denvatives (effective 1
January 2014)

¢ Annual improvements 2012 {effective 1 July 2014} ,
¢ Annual improvements 2013 {effective 1 July 2014}

* Amendment to I1AS 19, ‘Employee benefits’ regarding employee or third-party contnbutions to defined benefit plans
(effecuve 1 July 2014)

Amendment to I1AS 32, ‘Financial instruments Presentation’ on offsetting financial assets and financial habiities This

amendment clanfies that the right of set-off must not be contingent on a future event It must also be legally enforceable for all ,
counterparties in the normal course of business, as well as in the event of default, nsolvency or bankruptcy The amendment '
also considers settlement mechanisms The amendment did not have a significant effect on the Group financial statements

{b} New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted by the Group

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning
after 1 June 2014, and have not been apphed in prepanng these consolidated financial statements With the exception of the
following new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations below, there are no others which are expected to
have a matenal impact
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IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, addresses the classification, measurement and recognition of financial assets and financial
habilities The complete version of IFRS 9 was 1ssued in July 2014 It replaces the guidance in IAS 39 that relates to the
classification and measurement of financial nstruments IFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed measurement model and
establishes three primary measurement categores for financial assets amortised cost, farr value through OCI and farr value
through P&L The basis of classification depends on the entity's business model and the contractual cash flow charactenstics
of the financial asset Investments in equity Instruments are required to be measured at fair value through profit or loss with
the irrevocable option at Inception to present changes in fair value in OCI not recycling There 15 now a new expected credit
losses model that replaces the incurred loss impairment model used in |AS 39 For financial habilities there were no changes
to classification and measurement except for the recognition of changes in own credit nisk in other comprehensive income, for
latilities designated at farr value through profit or loss IFRS 9 relaxes the requirements for hedge effectiveness by replacing
the bright line hedge effectiveness tests It requires an economic relationship between the hedged item and hedging
instrument and for the ‘hedged ratio’ to be the same as the one management actually uses for nsk management purposes
Contemporaneous documentation is still required but 1s different to that currently prepared under 1AS 3% The standard 1s
effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 Early adoption 15 permitted subject to EU endorsement
The Group 1s yet to assess IFRS 9's full impact

IFRS 15, 'Revenue from contracts with customers’ deals with revenue recogmtion and establishes principles for reperting useful
information to users of financial statements ahout the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising
from an entity’s contracts with customers Revenue 1s recogmised when a customer obtains control of a good or service and thus
has the ability to direct the use and obtan the benefits from the good or service The standard replaces 1AS 18 'Revenue’ and
IAS 11 ‘Construction contracts’ and related interpretations The standard 1s effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2017 and earlier application is permitted subject to EU endorsement The Group 1s yet to assess the full impact of
IFRS 15

There are no other IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are not yet effective that would be expected to have a matenal impact on
the Group The list below includes those which will have an immateral impact on the Group
* Amendment to IFRS 11, ‘Joint arrangements’ regarding acquisiion of an interest in a joint operation {effective 1 January 2016)

* Amendment to |AS 16, ‘Property, plant and equipment’ and IAS 38, ‘Intangible assets’ regarding depreciation and
amortisation {effecuve 1 January 2016)

* Amendments to IAS 16, ‘Property, plant and equipment’ and IAS 41, "Agnculture’ regarding bearer plants {effective 1 January
2016) {not EU endorsed at the tme of going to prnint)

* Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 regarding the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture (effective 1 January 2016)

* Amendment to IAS 27, ‘Separate financial statements’ regarding the equity method (effective 1 January 2016)
* IFRS 14, 'Regulatory deferral accounts’ (effective 1 January 2016}
s Annual improvements 2014 (effective 1 January 2016}
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FIVE-YEAR
SUMMARY

GROUP INCOME STATEMENT

2015 20142 2013 2012®  zonmoe

For the year ended 31 May £m £Em fm fm fm
Net trading revenue 3884 3704 3619 3668 3127
Other net aperating income (12) 38 61 24 59
Net cperating income 387 2 3742 3679 3692 3186
Admirustrative expense (206 9) (169 1) (163 B) (1729 (145 1)
Depreciatton amortisation and amounts written off PPE (107 97 (12 2) (108) (10 3)
Operating profit 169 6 1954 1?19 1855 1632
Finance income 18 15 20 25 24
Finance costs (19) 20 (18 23 (24)
Profit before tax 1695 194 9 1922 1857 163 2
Amortisation and impairment of intangibles ansing on consolidation - - - - (1507)
Profit before taxation from continuing operations 1695 1949 1922 1857 125
Tax expense {37 6) {47 7) {50 5) (48 &) (32 8)
Loss from discontinued operations - - - 04) 50
Profit/loss for the year 39 147 2 1417 1368 {253

OTHER METRICS

2015 2014@ 2013 2012@  Z01me

Own funds generated from operations £136 Bm £160 6m £154 3m £1407m £137 7m
Earnings per share {(EPS)

Basic earnings per share 3613p 40 35p 39 02p 37 90p 32 Bép
Diluted earnings per share 5 P%p 40 22p 38 80p 37 54p 3257p
Dwidend per share

Intenm dividend per share 845p 57% 575 575 525p
Final dividend per share 19 70p 22 40p 17 50p 1675p 14 75p
Tatal dvidend per share 28 15p 28 15p 23 25p 22 50p 2000p
Dividend payout ravie (against chluted EPS) 7822% 69 99% 59 92% 59 94% 41 41%

Profit margin
Profit before taxation margin 43 64% 5261% 5310% 50 80% 52 20%
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CLIENT METRICS

2015 2014= 2013% 2012®  2011ne
Average revenue per chent £2854 £2,937 £2,659 £2,560 £2,341
Number of active chents 136111 126,108 136,063 143 304 133 580
Number of clients opened 70,967 54,957 55,889 67,593 71,344
Number of chents rading for the first time 40,932 33,7109 3794 48,029 12,958
GROUP STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
2015 20142 2013@ 20129 201 1me
As at 31 May £m fm £m fm £m
Assots
Non-current assets
Property plant and equipment 133 130 145 156 68
Intangible assets 1240 1227 1205 1154 172
Financial nvestments 755 322 - - -
Deferred tax assets 71 71 95 19 113
219 ¢ 1750 44 4 1428 1452
Current assets
Trade recevables 2696 3275 3006 2223 2701
Prepayment and ather recewvables 122 122 103 g7 82
Cash and cash equivalent 148 8 1015 983 2282 1245
Financial investment 329 503 505 - -
4635 4915 4597 4602 4028
Total assets 683 4 6665 604 1 6031 5481
Liabilities
Current habilitres
Trade payables 177 219 120 611 835
Other payables 612 585 538 648 451
Provisions - - - 14 14
Income tax payable 131 203 243 287 371
920 1006 971 1559 1671
Non current habilities
Deferred tax liabilines - - - - -
Provisiens - - - - 20
Redeemable preference shares - - - - -
- - - - 20
Total habilities %20 10056 972 559 16% 2
Capital and reserves
Total shareholders” equity 5914 5659 5070 4470 3787
Non-cantrolling interest - - - 01 02
Total equity 5914 5659 5070 4471 3789
Total equity and hiabilities 683 4 6665 604 1 6031 5481

™ The profit before tax and diluted earmings per share figures FY11 exclude both the amortisation and impairment of goodwill and custemer relationsh:ps associated

with our Japanese business IG Secunties (formerly FXOnhne) and of the Group s Sport Business
P FY14 has been restated following the adoption of IFRIC 21 Please refer to note 38 of the financial statements
® FY11 FY12 and FY13 have not been restated following the adaption of IFRIC 21 on a mateniality basis
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EXAMPLES

In the following pages we have
illustrated detailed examples

for Contracts for difference,
Spread Betting and Stockbroking.

SELLING A CFD

In this example, on day one you decide to sell a CFD for 20,000 shares in B plc {assumed to be a FTSE 100 company} as you
expect B plc's share price to fall This i1s known as 'going short’ On day two the share price has indeed fallen, and you decide to
close your position

As long as your contract 1s open, your account will show any ‘running’ profit or loss on your open CFD position {not illustrated
below) You must have deposited sufficient funds to cover any running losses

You cannot place a trade without having any money in your account In this example, we assume you have £1,000 Its important

to note that you can make losses in excess of your initial deposit requirement {referred to as ‘margin requirement’ in CFD
trading), if the market moves against you

STEP 1 — DAY ONE— OPENING THE POSITION
The quoted bid/offer price for B plc 1s 80 25p/80 35p

OFFER TRADE
PRICE DETAILS 80 25p 20,000
MID
PRICE
£803 00
Expecung the market will 20,000 (number of shares} x BO 30p {the mid price)
BiD fall you sell at the x 5% (the margin percentage]
8D PRICF - - e - Cm mal - R
FRICE
B e e o 20} MiSSIQ - .
£16.05
20 000 (number of shares) x B0 25p (the bid price)
x O 10X {commussion)
STEP 2

When you open the position, you are required to have enough funds in your account to cover the ininal margin plus commission
on the trade In this example the margin requirement is £803 00 and the commussion 1s £16 05, so the available funds in your
account will fall from £1,000 00 to £180 95 {ie £1,000 00-£803 00-£16 03} It s important 1o note that the £803 00 1s held as a
margin requirement agamst the risk of the open position and will be released on the closing of the position 1t is still your money
but 1s not available for withdrawal from the account while the position 1s open

" The margin percentage (and therefore margin requirement) depends on the size of your CFD position and other factors such as the valatility and liguidity of the
underlying share In this example we have used a margin requirement of 5%
2 Commissions are vanable but for UK FTSE 100 CFDs (a5 assumed for B ple} this was 0 10% on 31 May 2015
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STEP 3

Tradittonally, clients who held long poesitions overnight would need to pay a funding END-OF-DAY '
charge, while dients with short positions would receve interest if held overnight PRICE 80.75rp :

(DAY ONE)

This charge or interest 1s calculated as the one-month sterling LIBOR rate +/- a
spread However, with current market interest rates lower than the spread, chents -

with short positions also incur a charge As at 31 May 2015, the current LIBOR rate £0 89 '

20,000 x 80 75p x 2 O1%/365 days

was 0 49%, while the spread was 2 50%, resulting in a net financing charge of 2 01%
for short CFD positions held avernight {which for UK CFDs means those open at
10pm UK time) A corresponding long CFD position would incur a charge of 2 99%
This 1s re-calculated daly

STEP 4
In this example we have kept things simple and assumed no corporate actions occur However, we will also reflect the impact of ,

any corporate action on the underlying share, such as a dwidend or a rights i1ssue, on your positions For more detalls, please .
see our website, IG com

STEP S— DAY TWO ~ CLOSING THE POSITION )
On day two, the share price has fallen and you decide to close the position i

' TRADE m »
marl fallen - 1
e e e DETAILS 78 35p 20,000

CLOSING POSITION PR %ﬁ,,m_mmﬁzgp i ;

CRice 78.35p

MID Bplc e #-
PRICE Z
78.30p £15 67 P4 <
20000 x78 35px 0 10% %ﬂ
BID - —— e no
PRICE 78.25p PROFIT PER SHARE e
19p
Difference batween opening bid and closing offer prices
Of caurse, had the market moved in the opposite direction, you {80 25p-78 35p)
would have made a loss of £100 for every penny the share price
gained, which may have exceeded your intial margin outlay GROSS PROFIT ON TRADE
£380.00
20,000x1 9p

STEP 6 — CALCULATING THE PROFIT OR LOSS

When you open your position you may
chaose to add a stop [f you choose

a guaranteed stop {only available for

Selling commission (Step 1) (£1609 certain products), we guarantee that
Financing charge (Step 3) {(£0 89 £089 your posttion will be closed at this level
and your maximum loss 1s therefore
Buying commussion {Step 5) {£1567) £1567 fixed There 15 a small charge for a
Gross profit (Step 5) £380 00 (£380 00) guaranteed stop, which will be added
to the transaction cost You may also
IG hedging gain® N/A £380 00 choose to add a non-guaranteed stop,
which will trigger a closing order when
Net gain £347 39 £32 61 this level 1s breached Non-guaranteed

stops are free, but you may not be
closed at this level, parucularly if the
market gaps

™ Commissions are variable, but for UK FTSE 100 CFDs (as assumed for B ple) this was O 10% on 31 May 2015

2 This simple example assumes |G 15 100% hedged on the chent trade and makes an equal and opposite gain on our broker position to the amount paid to the
chent The cast of our hedging with the broker has been wnored for simplicity Thus our net profitis £32 61 which 1s recorded in trading revenue and consists of the
commussion ang financing charges levied on the chent
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EXAMPLES
(CONTINUED)

BUYING A SPREAD BET

In this example, you decide to buy A plc (assumed to be a FTSE 100 company)
at £100 per point, as you expect that A plc's share price will nse This is known as
‘going leng’ Later in the day the share price has indeed risen and you decide to
close your position by selling A plc at our then current bid price

Your profit 1s the difference between the buying and selling prices, plus or minus
any funding charges or other costs (discussed in Steps 3 and 5}

As long as your bet 15 open, your account will show any ‘running’ profit or loss on
your open position {not dlustrated below) You must have deposited sufficient funds
to cover any running losses

You cannot place a bet without having any money in your account In this example,
we assume you have £1,000 It s important to note that you can make losses in
excess of your mual deposit, if the market moves against you

STEP 1- OPENING THE POSITION

A plc s trading in the market at 144 5p/144 7p and our quote for A plc on a daily funded bet 1s 144 3p/144 9p You decide
to buy £100 per point at 144 9p, our offer price In this example one pant represents a 1p movement in the underlying share
price, so your £100 per pont bet 1s equivalent to buying 10,000 shares in A plc

Expecting the market will

SI1ZE (£ PER PCINT)

|G OFFER nse you open the bet at the BET
PRICE OFFER PRICE DETAILS 144.9p £100 00
UNDEFRLYING A pIC INITIAL DEPOSIT REQUIREMENT M
G 144.5¢/144.7p £723 00
lEIOO 00 (bes size} x 144 6p (the mid price) X 5% (the depout factor)
1G B8ID - - - T - -~ - - T T T
CEREAT LY
£2000

Difference between the market price and cur quote
{144 9p-144 7p)x £100 OC per pont

STEP 2

When you open the position, you are required to have the inibal £723 deposit requirement in your account The avatlable funds
in your account will therefore fall from £1,000 to £277 (e £1,000-£723) The avallable funds remaining in your account need to be
enough to cover any running losses you may incur, or you run the nsk of being closed out of the bet It 1s )mportant to note that
the £723 1s held as a deposit aganst the nsk of the open position and will be released on the closing of the position 1t 1s stll
your money but 1s not available for withdrawal from the account while the position 1s open

At this stage you may choose to add a stop to your position If you choose a guaranteed stop (only available for certan products),
we guarantee that your position will be closed at this level and your maximum loss s therefore fixed There 1s a small charge

for a guaranteed stop, which will be added to the transaction cost You may also choose to add a non-guaranteed stop, which
will tngger a closing order when this level s breached Non-guaranteed stops are free, but you may not be closed at this fevel,
particularly f the market gaps

U The deposit factor tand therefore deposit requirement) depends on your account type and other factors such as the volatihty and hquidity of the underlying share
@ Qur dealing spread varies depending on the market and asset class traded and can be vanable, especialty in volatile market conditions For examples please see
our website 1G com
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STEP 3

In this example we have kept things simple and assumed no corporate actions occur However, we will also reflect the impact of
any corporate action on the underlying share, such as a dvidend or a nghts issue, on your posiions For more details, please :
see our website, IG com

STEP 4 — CLOSING THE POSITION e
Later that day, the A plc share price has indeed risen and you decide to close the position, realising your profit on the bet
At this point A plc 1s trading in the market at 148 6p/148 8p and our daily quote 1s 148 4p/149 Op

ER POIN
BET BID PRICE SIZE(EP T

o e 149.0p DETAILS 148 4p £100 00
UNDERLYING A P‘C u

SHARE PRICE 148.67/148.8p £390 00

Calculated as the market pnce movement of the share

(148 6p—144 7p)x £100 OO per pony ;
1G BID The market has nsen — o ~ E— .
PRICE 148.4r you sell at the IG BID PRICE - -
P Ay .
CLOSING POSITION R = e
£2000

Calculated at 148 6p-148 4p x £100 00 per port

r4
<
m
L]
-4
o]
=

Of course, had the market moved in the opposite direction, you would have made a loss of £100 for every penny the share prce fell,
which may have exceeded your initial deposit
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STEP 5 - CALCULATING THE PROFIT OR LOSS
For many markets {eg index futures), we build funding ¢harges into the quote pnce For share daly funded bets we make funding
adjustments each day at 10pm We apply funding at the rate of one-month LIBOR +/- a spread (generally 2 5%}

In the example above, if the bet had
remained open at 10pm, and assuming
one-month LIBOR of 0 49%, a funding

Buying spread (Step 1) (£20 00) charge of £1 23 would have been apphed
against the client account and recorded

Selling spread (Step 4} (£20 00) £2000 as revenue for IG (calculated as (£100

Gross profit (Step 4) £39000 (£a9000) X 130 0p assumed end-of-day price x
299%) /365 =1£123)

IG hedgmg gain® N/A £39000

Net gan £350 00 £40 00

" This simple example assumes IG s 100% hedged on the client trade and makes an equal and opposite gan on our braker position to the amount paid to the chent
The cost of our hedging with the broker has been tgnored for simplicity Therefore our net profit is £40 00 which is recorded in trading revenue and 1s equivalent to
the spread included in our queted prices
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EXAMPLES
(CONTINUED)

STEP 1 - PRICE DISCOVERY

Most traditional stackbrokers only provide a
vald for a short period of time With us, you
order book in the underlying market Dealin

STOCKBROKING WITH IG

In this example, you deaide to buy A plc {assumed to be a FTSE 100 company) at the
offer price on your stockbroking account, as you wish to own shares in the company
You have linked your stockbroking account to your CFD account so you have access
to IG's collateral feature After a few months, the share price has nsen and you
decide to close your position by selling A plc at the current bid price

Your profitis the difference between the buying and selling prices, plus any
dividends and minus any commussion ar other costs (discussed in Steps 2 and 5)

You cannot place a trade without having any money in your account In this example,
we assume you have £1,000 It 1s important to note that the value of shares, ETFs
and ETCs bought through any stockbroking or stocks and shares ISA account can
fall as well as nise, which could mean getting back less than you onginally deposited

‘request for quote’ or ‘at quote’ service that delivers a fixed price, which (s only
can trade ‘at quote’ or ‘on exchange’, allowing you to interact directly with the
g 'on exchange' offers you live visibility of prices and full market depth allowing you

to make an informed decision Choose between ‘at quote’ or ‘on exchange’ to execute your order at the best available pnice

If you place an 'on exchange’ order we use our Smart Order Router (SOR) to seek out the best price and size avalable Qur SOR

searches for liguidity across multiple venues
of getting price improvements If there 1s no
locking for size or price improvements Fina

, starting with ‘dark pools’ that offer mid-point matching - the best posstble chance
improvement available on ‘dark’ venues the SOR goes to a market maker, again
Ily, if neither of the above sources provides price or size improvements, SOR sends

orders to 'lit’ venues, where they will be visible on an exchange

At quote

Interact with market makers

On exchange

APLC

1,000 shares Interact directly with order book

Gat flxed price by RSP

Fixed price 777p

STEP 2 - EXECUTING YOUR TRADE
Once you have decided whether you would

Place orderin the book
Order to buy
e —

L.

R G kfookslogthelbestavailableipriceatiexecttion)

Potential price improvement

TG OR100KS Tor the best
4 Eian.ra'?: o s o --.U;'z.--.k-c.-

like to deal ‘at quote’ or ‘on exchange’, you can place your trade directly from your

platform Once the appropnate price has been identified, your trade 15 executed

When you buy your shares you are required

to have sufficient funds on your account to make the purchase and cover the cost

of commussion, as well as currency conversion fees (if the share s priced in a foreign currency) In this example, we assume you

have also been active on your CFD account,

which means you automatically qualify {or our lowest commussion ratet™, which 1s

£6 The available funds in your account will therefore fall by the value of the shares you have bought plus the commission In

this example, you purchase 100 shares price
{te £1000 - £775 - £6) Unlike our margined

d at 775GBp (the best available price), which will reduce your cash balance to £219
products, you own your shares outright, meaning that you do not need to make any

additional payments to maintain your stockbroking position

TRADITIONAL
STOCKBROKFR 777p
OFFER PRICF
I1G OFFER
T PRICH 775p
16 BID
PRICE 771p
TRADITIGNAL
STOCKBROKER 768p
BID PRICH
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TRADE
DETAILS

775¢p \ 100

£775 00

100 (number of shares) x 775p (the IG offer price)

If you expect the market
tonse you buy al the
OFFER PRICE

C VTR ER |

£6 00 .
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STEP 3 - USING YOUR SHARES AS COLLATERAL
You can make the most of your shareholdings with IG using our collateral service The collateral service allows you to use up to
95% of the value of your shareholdings as imtial margin against your spread bets or CFD positions @

In this example, we assume that you have a position on your CFD account in B ple, anather FTSE 100 listed company, which
has a margin requirement of £300 The fact that you are holding the physical shares in A ple, and have Iinked your accounts * a
for collateral means that you can use up to 95%P of the value of this position (that 1s, £775 x 5% = £736) to cover your margin
requirement on B ple This will free up any additional funds on your CFD account, which you can then use to open further CFD

positions or as a buffer against adverse market movements

It 1s important to note that the collateral value is real-time This means the collateral value of your assets will fluctuate according
to movements in the price of the stockis} you hold on your stockbroking account

Your shareholdings remain intact and retain their full value,” you simply use a percentage of therr value as collateral to fund
shorter-term trades Importantly, you can only use your shareholdings to cover the imnial margin on your spread bets or CFDs
Any running losses will need to be covered by the available cash in your CFD account For more details, please see our
website, |G com

STEP 4 - CORPORATE ACTIONS

In this example we have kept things simple and assumed no corporate actions occur However, as the owner of the equity we
will also reflect the impact of any other corporate actions on your shares, such as a nghts 1ssue, on your positions For more
details, please see our website, IG com

STEP 5 - SELLING YOUR SHARES

As the objectives of your portfolio change, you can divest all or parts of your shareholding using our supenior execution
technology Once your sale 1s confirmed, your account will be credited with the equivalent cash As before, we assume that you
qualify for our fowest comrmussion rate as a holder of active stockbraoking and margined accounts, so the commission s £6 If the
price of your shares i A plc has risen from 775p to 84ép, your account balance will nse to £1,059 (1 e £219 + £844 - £4)
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TRADITIONAL TRADE BID PRICE
STOCKBRCKFEHR
OFFFR PRICE DETAILS 846p 100
B - X M
1o OrFeR 850p - EEHRIEIER s
The marker has nisen —
1G B1D 846 you sell atthe IG BID PRICE Lo - —— £_6.90_. — -
FRICE P PROFIT PER SHARE
CLOSING POSITION
TRADITIONAL
STOCS'BDR'?RIEEE Diiference between apenng offer prce and clos ng bid pice
[BaGp - 775p)

GROSS PROFIT ON TRADE

STEP 6 —~ TRANSPARENT TRADING

As well as buying new shares you can conveniently keep your shares pertfolio in one place, by transferring in your existing
shareholdings to us, free from |G charges Once your shares are transferred you will have access to the full range of features on
1G's platform including our collateral service and our superior execution

You will also have access to our range of over 6,000 internatronal shares, which are offered in therr local denarmination,
regardless of the currency on your account This means you'll know exactly what you're paying, with our fee of just 0 3% to
convert to your base currency

Obtaining live prices for international stocks from an exchange can incur a monthly fee, but we will refund this charge in full
if you place a mumimum number of trades in the previous month However, unlike some other stockbrokers, this 1s the only
other fee - besides commission - we will charge you, meaning you are only charged when you trade and not just for holding
your portfolio

Commussions are vaniable, but ff your stockbroking account 1s accessible under the same login as your active spread betting er CFD account you automatically

qualfy for our lowest commussion rate by placing at least one spread bet or CFD trade in the previous calendar month This was £6 on 31 May 2015

@ Generally you can use 75% - 95% of the value of your portfolio as ccllateral depending on the hiquidity of shareholdings For more detals please see our
website IG com

@ We do all we can to make sure you have the opportunity to cover any realsed spread betting or CFD losses with cash If you do not deposit additional funds to

cover a losing leveraged trade we will follow our normal process of closing the trade and informing you that your account 1s in debit We wilt only take control of

your shares ff your account remains in debit For more details, please see our website 1G com
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS

TERM NOTES

ABI Association of British Insurers

AGM Annual General Meeting

Basel lll The comprehensive set of reform measures designed to strengthen regulation, supervision and risk
management in the banking sector

Binary bet A special form of spread bet with only two outcomes at expiry f a specified result 1s achieved, the
bet Is closed at a level of 100 If the result 1s not achieved, the bet closes at 0

CFTC The US Commodities Futures Trading Commission

cGuy Cash Generating Unit

Close-out monstor The Group's automatic real-time positron-closing system {see the Managing Our Business Risk

(COM) section in the Strategic Repont and note 36 to the Financial Statements}

Contract for A CFD s a contract to exchange the difference in the price of an asset between the time the contract

difference {CFD) 15 opened and the time 1t 1s closed An example 1s shown on page 180

COREP Capital and Liquidity Reporting

CSR Corporate social responsibility

DEPS Diluted Earnings Per Share

DFSA Dubai Financia! Services Authority

Direct market access DMA enables clients to interact directly with the market, including participating in the order book of

(DMA) a stock exchange

DTRs The FCA's Disclosure and Transparency Rules

EBA European Banking Authority

EPS Earnings per share

EQA External Qualty Assessment

ESMA European Securities and Markets Authority

ETF Exchange-traded fund

Exposure monitor Qur real-time technology solution which constantly measures our financial exposure to all
traded instruments

FCA Financial Conduct Authonty (UK regulator)

FINMA The Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authonty

FRC Financial Reporting Council

FSB Financial Services Board (South Alfnca)

FSCS Financial Services Compensation Scheme

FTT Financial Transaction Tax

Fugitive emissions Greenhouse gas emissions caused by intentional or unintentional releases, eg equipment leaks or
hydrofluorocarbon emissions from the use of refngeration and ar-conditicning equipment

GHG emissions Greenhouse gas emissions

Goodwll An intangible asset representing the addiwonal value that arises as a result of the acquisition of the

acquired company by another at a value greater than that of the target company’s assets
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TERM NOTES ‘

GTLDs Genenc top-level domains - represented by the characters following the dot at the end of an
internet domain name, eg com, net

1AS International Accounting Standard e

ICAAP Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process The ICAAP is an internal document which identifies )
the controls we use to mitigate risks to the Group's capital and assesses and quantifies our capital
requirements

IFRIC International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards '

NA Institute of Internal Auditors

ILAA Individual Liquidity Adequacy Assessment The ILAA 1s an internal document which identifies the "o
controls we use to mitigate liquidity nsks and assesses and quantifies our hquidity requirements

10SCO International Organization of Secunities Commissions

ISA International Standards on Auditing

1SS Institutional Shareholder Services Inc

JFSA Japanese Financial Services Agency

KPls Key Performance Indicators '

KRls Key Risk Indicators

LCR Liquidity Coverage Ratio

LIBOR London wnter-bank offered rate — a benchmark interest rate published by leading London banks ]

LTIP Long-term mcentive plan '

MAS The Monetary Authonty of Singapore .-

MIFID Markets in Finanaial Instruments Directive — EU law covening financial regulation in all T

member states

Multlateral trading
factlity {MTF)

A non-exchange finanaial-trading venue providing an alternative to traditional stock exchanges .

Nadex

The Noarth Amerncan Dervatives Exchange, cur US-based retall derivatives exchange business

Net Promoter Score
(NPS)

NPS 15 calculated by asking respondents how likely they are to recommend a company to a fnend
or colleague Respondents reply on a 0-10 scale, with the final NPS calculated as the percentage of
promoters {those answering % or 10) minus the percentage of detractors (those answering 0-6)
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NSFR Net Stable Funding Ratio
oTC ‘Over the counter’ refers to non-exchange-traded financial instruments
PRIPs Packaged Retall Investment Products
Regulatory capital The total capital available to the Group, as calculated under the EU Capital Requirements Regulation
resources and the Financial Conduct Authonty's IFPRU 3 rules
Rest of World One of our four reporting segments, consisting of our operations in Japan, Singapore,
South Africa and the US
RREV Research Recommendations Electronic Voting
Scope 1/2/3 The three classifications of emissions required to be considered under the mandatory
emissions GHG reporting
SiP Share-incentve plan
SPP Sustained perfarmance plan
Spread bet A bet an whether a financial market {the underlying market) will nse or fall We offer two prices on

every market, and the difference 1s known as the bid/affer spread If you think a market ss set to
nse you ‘buy’ at the hugher (offer) price, and ff you think st will fall you ‘sell’ at the lower {(bid) price
Your subsequent gain or loss on the bet will be determined by the direction and degree of any
movement in the underlying market An example is shown on page 182

Tiered margins

We use a system of margin tiers that reflect the degree of risk involved in chient trades Generally,
the nskier the traded instrument or the larger the trade size, the higher the level of margin required,
up to 100%

Title Transfer

A financial agreement to transfer money to cover obhgations, such that that money will not be

Collateral regarded as client money, which must be segregated, although IG retains the hability to repay the
Arrangement {TTCA) clent

TSR Total Shareholder Return

UK Corporate The Cede sets out standards of good practice in board leadership and effectiveness, remuneration,
Governance Code accountabihity and relations with shareholders Provision B7 1 states that all directors of FTSE 350
{the Code) companies should be subject to annual election by shareholders

Up/down binary bet

A speafic type of binary bet where the outcome 15 expressed as being above or below the current
market value (e the market has moved up or the market has moved down)

Volatihty-based
binary bet

A category of binary bet where the achievement of a specific outcome 15 directly related to the
volatility of the underlying market

VSP

Value-sharing plan
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GLOBAL OFFICES

LONDON
(HEADQUARTERS)

|G (IG Index Limited and
|G Markets Limited)
Cannon Bndge House
25 Dowgate Hill

Londen

EC4R 2YA

UNITED KINGDOM

+44 (0)20 7896 0011
helpdesk uk@g com
IG com

EUROPE (EXCLUDING UK)

AMSTERDAM

IG Markets Limited

World Trade Center Amsterdam
Strawinskylaan 387

1077 XX Amsterdam
NETHERLANDS

+31 (020 794 6610
info nl@g com
IG com/nl

DUBLIN

IG {IG Index Linited and
IG Markets Limited}

72 Charlemont Street
Dublin 2

REPUBLIC OF IRELAND

+353 1 526 6061
dublinoffice@g com
IG com/ie
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DUSSELDORF
IG Markets Limited
Berliner Allee 10
40212 Dusseldorf
GERMANY

+49 (0)211 882 370 00
nfo de@ig com
IG com/de

LUXEMBOURG

IG Markets Limited

15 rue du fort Bourbon
L1249

LUXEMBOURG

+3522487 1117
info lu@ig com
IG com/lu

MADRID

IG Markets Limited
Paseo de la Castellana 13
Planta 1a Derecha

28046 Madnd

SPAIN

+34 91 787 561 61
info es@ig com
IG com/es

MILAN

IG Markets Limited

Via Paolo da Cannobio, 33
7° Piano

20122 Milano

ITALY

+39 02 0069 5595
italiandesk@g com
IG com/it

rﬁﬂllﬁ[‘ |

OsSLO

IG Markets Limited
Akersgata 20

0158 Oslo
NORWAY

+47 22 400 200
info no@ig com
IG com/no

PARIS

IG Markets Limited
17 Avenue George V
75008 Paris
FRANCE

+33(0)170981818
info fr@g com
I1G com/ir

STOCKHOLM

IG Markets Limited
Stureplan 2

114 35 Stockholm
SWEDEN

+46 {0)8 505 15 000
info se@ig com
IG com/se

SWITZERLAND
IG Bank S A

42 Rue du Rhone
Geneve

1204
SWITZERLAND

+41 228881012
support@igbank ch
IG com/en-ch




ASIA PACIFIC

MELBOURNE

IG Austrahia Pty Limited
Level 15

55 Collins Street
Melbourne VIC 3000
AUSTRALIA

+61 (0)3 9860 1799
helpdesk au@ig com
1G com/au

SINGAPORE
|G Asia Pte Limited
9 Battery Road

#01-02 Strants Trading Building

SINGAPORE 049910

+{65) 63901 5133
helpdesk@ig com sg
|G com sg

TOKYO

iG Securiues Limited
Shiodome City Center 10F
1-5-2 Higashi-shinbashi
Minato-ku, Tokyo 105-7110
JAPAN

+81 (0)3 6704 8500
info |p@ig com
IG com/jp

NORTH AMERICA

CHICAGO

North Amencan
Derwatives Exchange, Inc
311 South Wacker Drive
Suite 2675

Chicago, IL 60606

us

+1 312884 0100
customerservice@nadex com
nadex com

SOUTH AFRICA
JOHANNESBURG

IG Markets South Africa Limited

The Place

1 Sandton Drive
Sandton, Gauteng
2196 Johannesburg
SOUTH AFRICA

+27 {010 344 UUSY
helpdesk za@ig com
IG com/za

MIDDLE EAST

DUBAI

IG Limited

Office 2 &3

level 27

Currency House — Tower 2

Dubai International Financial Centre
P O Box - 506968

DUBAI, UAE

+971 45 59 2000
helpdesk ae@ig com
IG com/ae
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SHAREHOLDER
INFORMATION

RECEIVING SHAREHOLDER INFOCRMATION

BY EMAIL

You can opt to receve shareholder information from us by
emall rather than by post We will then email you whenever we
add shareholder communications to the Company website

To set this up, please visit investorcentre co uk/ecomms and
register for electronic communications {e-comms)

If you subsequently wish t6 change this instruction or revert
to receving documents or information by past, you can do so
by contacting the Company's registrars at the address shown
in the Company Information opposite You can also change
your communication method back to post by logging n to
your Investor Centre account and go to ‘update my details’
followed by ‘communication options’

The Regsstrar can also be contacted by telephone on

0371 495 2032 Calls to this number cost no more than a
national rate from any type of phone or provider These prices
are for indication purposes only, if in doubt, please check the
cost of calling this number with your phone line provider Lines
are open 8 30am - 5 30pm, Man-Fri excluding bank holidays

SHAREHOLDER ENGQUIRIES

I you have any quernies relating to your shareholding,
dividend payments or lost share certificates, or if any of your
detalls change, please contact Computershare by visiting
investorcentre co uk or by using the contact details above
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AMERICAN DEPOSITARY RECEIPTS (ADRS)

The company has a sponsored Level 1 Amencan Depositary
Receipt (ADR) programme, with Citibank N A acting as the
depositary bank, which enables US investors to invest in IG
shares though an ADR, denominated in US dollars 1G's ADR
programme trades in the US over-the-counter (OTC) market,
under the symbol IGGHY Each ADR currently represents one
orchnary share

E ctiadr@citi com W aiti com/dr
T UK +44 (20} 7508 2708 US +1{212)723 5435

DIVIDEND DATESH

Ex-dividend date 01 October 2015

Record date 02 October 2015
Last day to elect for

dividend reinvestment plan 09 October 2015
Annual General Meeting 15 October 2015
Final dwidend payment date 30 October 2015
2016 intenm dividend February 2016

ANNUAL SHAREHOLDER CALENDARW
Company reporting

Final results announced 21 July 2015
Annual Report published 15 September 2015
Annual General Meeting 15 October 2015

INTERIM REPORT

As part of our e-comms programme, we have deaided not to
produce a printed copy of our Intenim Report We will instead
publish the report on our website, where it will be available
around mid-January each year

M Please note that these dates are provisional and subject to change




CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Certain statements included in our 2015 Annual Report, or
incorporated by reference to it, may constitute 'forward-
looking statements’ in respect of the Group's operations,
performance, prospects and/or financial condimon

By their very nature, forward-looking statements involve
uncertainties because they relate to events, and depend
on circumstances, that will or may occur in the future If
the assumptions on which the Group bases its forward-
looking statements change, actual results may differ from
those expressed In such statements The forward-lcoking
statements contained herein reflect knowledge and
information available at the date of this Annual Report
and the Group underiakes no oblgation to update these
forward-locking statements except as required by law

This report does not constitute or form part of any offer or
invitation to sell, or any solictation of any offer to purchase
any shares or other securiies in the Company and nothing in
this report should be construed as a profit forecast

MARKET SHARE

Market share data has been provided by Investment Trends
Pty Limited (website investmenttrends co uk)

Contact Pawel Rokicki (emall pawel@nvestmenttrends co uk)
Unless stated, market share data 1s sourced from the following
current reports

* Investment Trends UK Leveraged Trading Report
(released October 2014}

* Investmment Trends Australia CFD Report
{(released September 2014)

* [nvestment Trends Singapore CFD and FX Report
(released November 2014)

* [nvestment Trends Germany CFD and FX Report
{released June 2015)

* Investment Trends France CFD and FX Report
(released July 2015)
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COMPANY
INFORMATION

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

T A Howkins {Chief Executive)
P G Hetherington

CFHIll

Nen Executive Directors

A J Green (Chairman)

SGHill

J A Newman

SJ Tymms

R P Yates (Senior Independent Director}

COMPANY SECRETARY
B € Messer

SR S S A o AL 7 o) of ok d SR

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants
and Statutory Auditors

7 More London Riverside
London

SE1 2RT

BANKERS

Lloyds Banking Greup plc
10 Gresham Street
London

EC2V 7AE

Royal Bank of Scotland Greup ple

280 Bishopsgate
London
EC2M 4RB

HSBC Bank ple

8 Canada Square
London

E14 5HO

SOLICITORS
Linklaters

1 Sik Street
London

EC2Y 8HQ

REGISTRARS

Computershare Investor Services plc

The Pavilions
Bndgwater Road
Bristol

BS99 6ZZ

BRGKERS

Barclays Bank Plc

5 The North Colonnade
Canary Wharf

London

£14 4B8

Numis Securiies bimited
10 Paternoster Square
London

ECAM LT

REGISTERED QFFICF
Cannon Bridge House
25 Dowgate Hill
London

EC4R 2YA

REGISTERED NUMBER
04677092
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Accounting policies

Active chents

Amortisation

Asgets and liabilities
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Auditors’ remuneration
Auchtors’ report

Binaries

Board of Directors

Broker margin

Capital expenditure

Cash flow

Charitable donations
Client money

Contracts for difference (CFDs)
Depreciation

Diluted earnings per share
Dividend

Dwndend - key dates
Employees

Financial calendar
Five-year summary

Generic top-level domains {gTLDs)
Key Performance Indicators
Liquichty

Nadex

Net Promoter Score (NPS)
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Offices

Operating costs

Political donations
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Remuneration
Revenue per chent

Risk

Shareholder information
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Spread betting

Strategic objectives
Stockbroking

Subsequent events

Total Shareholder Return {TSR)

Trading revenue
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THANK YOUt

Special thanks to everyone for therr valuable contnbution

to producing this report

Mana Abidi

Vinaykumar Ahir

Dionysis Alexopoulos

Chnis Alfred
Ryan Arnoid
Sruti Bajoria
Carnie-Jo Baker
Hui Shan Beh
Dan Boneham
Jackie Bornor
Burger Botes
Paul Brooking
Harold Burr
Mark Chesterman
Fabian Chu
Lizzie Counthan
Sean Dwyer
Michelle Eardley
Huw Ellis
Fabrizio Ferraro
Johnathan Fung
Ivan Gowan
Paul Gyles

Ab Hine

Robert Hollamby
Harriet Keilthy

Himanshu Kher

Harry Lewis
Lesley Lorraine
Paul Lucas
Nataha Maslicov
Joe McCaughran
Kieran McKinney
Phillip Moon
Jake Mulaikal
Tony Nicel

Helen Nolan
Elsa Ormaechea
Lucy Parry

Lucy Read
Shingal Rupanga
Gary Sanders
Carmel Sargent
Paula Smith

Josh Springthorpe
Paul Stevens
Ellen Taylor
Anne Vasey
Anthony von den Driesch
Sara Walker
Dew Walters
Andrew Weddell
Johan Wiese

Bunmi Williams-Likinyo

The wrder Finance team and all our employees across our offices

Designed by ab
www ab-uk com
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London
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